
Page 1 of 5 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, MAY 06, 2024 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Approval of the minutes of the Regular City Council meeting of April 15, 2024. 

Agenda Revisions 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 

business.) 

Staff Updates 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2024 
Alley Reconstruction Project. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 04/23/2024) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost 
for the 2024 Alley Reconstruction Project. 

3. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2024 
Sidewalk Assessment Project - Zone 6. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 04/23/2024) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost 
for the 2024 Sidewalk Assessment Project - Zone 6. 

4. Public hearing on the proposed amendments to the City’s FY2024 Budget. 
 

1



Page 2 of 5 

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 04/18/24) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 

d) Public comments. 

e) Resolution approving and adopting amendments to the City's FY2024 Budget. 

5. Hearing on a proposed resolution adopting and levying the final schedule of assessments for the 
2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project – Zone 1. 
 
a) Staff comments. 
 
b) Respondent comments. 
 
c) Resolution adopting and levying the final schedule of assessments for the 2023 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project - Zone 1. 

Old Business 

6. Pass Ordinance #3054, amending Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to the Art and Culture Center and Board, upon its third & final consideration. 

7. Pass Ordinance #3055, amending Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to the Visitors and Tourism Board, upon its third & final consideration. 

8. Pass Ordinance #3056, amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
Boards and Commissions and Department of Community Development, upon its third & final 
consideration. 

9. Pass Ordinance #3057, amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
Department of Community Development, upon its third & final consideration. 

10. Pass Ordinance #3058, amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
Compensation, of Division 6, Utilities Board of Trustees, upon its second consideration. 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 

discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

11. Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of April 15, 2024 relative to the 
following item: 
a) Discussion on Regular Council Meetings to be held on Tuesdays.  

12. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Elyse Platt, Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission, term ending 09/30/27. 
b) Gretchen Harken, Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission, term ending 09/30/28. 
c) Cindy Wiles, Board of Rental Housing Appeals, term ending 05/01/2028. 
d) Eryn Hamann, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2025. 
e) MaraBeth Soneson, Utilities Board of Trustees, term ending 08/31/2030. 

13. Receive and file Departmental Quarterly Reports of January - March 2024. 

14. Receive and file communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to the following certified 
list: 
a) Fitness Coordinator. 

15. Receive and file the Bi-Annual Report of Community Main Street relative to FY24 Self-Supported 
Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) funds and an FY24 Economic Development Grant. 

2



Page 3 of 5 

16. Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:  
a) Casey’s #1887, 2425 Center Street. 
b) Casey’s #2630, 5226 University Avenue. 
c) Casey’s #2865, 5908 Nordic Drive. 
d) Casey’s #3045, 601 Main Street. 
e) Casey’s #3610, 1225 Fountains Way. 
f) Hansen’s Dairy, 123 East 18th Street. 
g) Happy’s Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue, Suite 5. 
h) Hy-Vee Fast and Fresh, 6527 University Avenue. 
i) Hy-Vee Food Store, 6301 University Avenue. 
j) Metro Mart #3, 103 Franklin Street. 
k) The Landmark, 107 Main Street. 
l) Up In Smoke, 2218 College Street. 

17. Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Hurling Hatchet, 100 East 2nd Street, Special Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
b) Double Tap, 312 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
c) Famous Dave's, 6222 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol -renewal. 
d) The Other Place, 209 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
e) Casey's General Store, 2425 Center Street, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 
f) Prime Mart, 2323 Main Street, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 
g) Walgreens, 2509 Whitetail Drive, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 
h) Deringer’s Public Parlor, 314 ½ Main Street, Class C retail alcohol – change in ownership. 
i) Double Tap, 312 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol – change in ownership. 
j) The Stuffed Olive and Roxxy, 314-316 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service – 
change in ownership. 
k) Live to 9, 200 Block of State Street and 100 Block of East 2nd Street including adjacent sidewalks, 
Special Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - six 5-day permits (May 28- June 1, June 4-8, June 
11-15, July 9-13, July 23-27, and August 6-10). 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

18. Resolution Calendar with items considered separately. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Amendment One to the Service/Product 
Agreement with Eide Bailley, LLP for Audit Services. 

20. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to CFD 2100: Personnel Policies – Introduction. 

21. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to CFD 2101: Personnel Policy – Equal 
Employment Opportunity. 

22. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to CFD 2102: Personnel Policy – Harassment-Free 
Workplace. 

23. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to CFD 2106: Personnel Policy – Probationary 
Period. 

24. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to CFD 2107: Personnel Policy – Transfer. 

25. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to CFD 2108: Personnel Policy – Promotion. 

26. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to CFD 2110: Personnel Policy – Outside 
Employment. 

27. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to CFD 2121: Personnel Policy – Nepotism 
Prohibition. 

28. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to CFD 2152: Personnel Policy – Performance 
Appraisals. 

3



Page 4 of 5 

29. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to CFD 2255: Personnel Policy – Service Awards. 

30. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to CFD 2351: Personnel Policy – Attendance and 
Punctuality. 

31. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to CFD 2354: Personnel Policy – Leaves of 
Absence. 

32. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to CFD 2356: Personnel Policy – Sick Leave. 

33. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to CFD 2401: Personnel Policy – Employee 
Behavior. 

34. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to CFD 2402: Personnel Policy – Employee 
Personal Appearance. 

35. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to CFD 2405: Personnel Policy – Mobile Device 
Allowance. 

36. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to CFD 2406: Personnel Policy – Technology 
Resources Acceptable Use. 

37. Resolution approving and adopting a job classification for the position of Policy & Administration 
Specialist. 

38. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Property Lease Agreement with Chicago, 
Central & Pacific Railroad Company. 

39. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product Agreement with  Benton's Sand 
& Gravel, Inc. for demolition of a structure located at 1218 Cottage Row Road. 

40. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product Agreement with Lehman 
Trucking & Excavating Inc. for demolition of a structure located at 523 West 1st Street. 

41. Resolution approving the preliminary plat for Panther West Additions. 

42. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product Agreement for asbestos 
abatement services with Advanced Environmental Testing & Abatement Inc. relative to properties 
located at 2603 South Union Road, 2617 South Union Road and 6512 West Ridgeway Avenue. 

43. Resolution approving and accepting a Warranty Deed, Purchaser's Affidavit and Trustee Affidavit, in 
conjunction with the Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout Program. 

44. Resolution approving the preliminary plat and final plat of Pinnacle Prairie Commercial South Phase 
VI. 

45. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for Completion of Improvements with 
Greenhill Estates, Inc. relative to the final plat of Pinnacle Prairie Commercial South Phase VI. 
(Contingent upon approval of previous item) 

46. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a contract with Laser Line Striping relative to 
pavement marking services. 

47. Resolution approving and accepting Patent No. 6464 and No. 6465 from the Iowa Department of 
Transportation (Iowa DOT), in conjunction with the West 1st Street Project. 

48. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Traffic Safety Improvement 
Program (TSIP) Funding with the Iowa Department of Transportation (IDOT) relative to the Prairie 
Parkway and Viking Road Intersection Improvements Project. 

49. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of ten Owner Purchase Agreements; and approving 
and accepting seventeen Temporary Construction Easements, seven Sanitary Sewer Easements 

4



Page 5 of 5 

and three Storm Sewer and Drainage Easements, in conjunction with the North Cedar Heights Drive 
Phase 2 Project. 

50. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement with Learn & Play Preschool & Daycare LLC, relative to a post-construction stormwater 
management plan for 4710 Cedar Heights Drive. 

51. Resolution receiving and filing, and approving and accepting the bid of Aspro, Inc. in the amount of 
$389,994.00, for the Orchard Hill Pickleball Court Expansion Project. 

52. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Aspro, Inc. for the Orchard Hill 
Pickleball Court Expansion Project. 

53. Resolution receiving and filing, and approving and accepting the bid of Peterson Contractors, Inc. in 
the amount of $6,237,016.30, for the West Viking Road Reconstruction and Trail Project. 

54. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the West 
Viking Road Reconstruction and Trail Project. 

55. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Municipal Pipe Tool 
Company, LLC for the 2024 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 

56. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 3 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & Associates, Inc. for administration and design 
services relative to the Oak Park Boulevard Sewer Replacement Project. 

57. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a License Agreement with Windstream Intellectual 
Property Services, LLC relative to installing a fiber optic telecommunications system within the public 
right-of-way along Hudson Road and Technology Parkway. 

58. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a License Agreement with Windstream Intellectual 
Property Services, LLC relative to installing a fiber optic telecommunications system within the public 
right-of-way along West Viking Road. 

59. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting May 20, 2024 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2024 Seal Coat Project. 

60. Resolution setting May 20, 2024 as the date of public hearing on the proposed rezoning from M-1, 
Light Industrial District, to C-2, Commercial District, of properties located at 2300 Main Street, 2216 
Main Street and 127 East 23rd Street. 

61. Resolution setting May 20, 2024 as the date of public hearing on the proposed vacation of certain 
public right-of-way of an alley between Longview Street and Cedar Street. 

62. Resolution setting May 20, 2024 as the date of the public hearing on the proposed amendments to 
Chapter 1, General Provisions, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the  general penalty for 
scheduled violations. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

63. Allow Bills and Claims for May 6, 2024. 

Council Updates and Announcements 

Council Referrals 

Adjournment 

5



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, APRIL 15, 2024 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR DANIEL LAUDICK PRESIDING 
  

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, 
Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, Dunn. Absent: None. Mayor Laudick led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
 
54718 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Dunn that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of April 1, 2024 be approved as presented and ordered of record. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
54719 - Traci Mallaro and Lorelei Redfern, Cedar Falls, spoke in support of the new 

Cedar Falls Natatorium and the CAT grant agreement. Mayor Laudick 
commented. 

 
  David Spritzer, Cedar Falls, commented on increased noise and speeding on 

State Street and asked for police presence. 
 
  Bob Manning, Cedar Falls, expressed thanks to the Mayor for speaking at the 

Homebuilders Annual Housing Conference. Manning also commented on interest 
rates, home sales and new home construction. 

 
  Reverend Michael Blackwell, Cedar Falls, commented on the quality of life and 

racial issues in Cedar Falls. 
 
  Noah Hackbart, UNI Student Liaison, noted it was his last meeting as student 

liaison and thanked City Staff and City Council. Mayor Laudick and 
Councilmembers Dunn and Schultz commented. 

 
  Kim Jensen Jordan, Cedar Falls, spoke on the future of the Sartori hospital site 

and healthcare in Cedar Falls. 
    
54720 - Mayor Laudick announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 4, 

2024, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed FY2025 
Budget for the City of Cedar Falls. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by 
Latta that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on 
file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54721 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed budget. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Director of Finance & Business 
Operations Rodenbeck provided an update on the proposed budget. There being 
no one else present wishing to speak about the proposed budget, the Mayor 
declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
54722 - It was moved by Latta and seconded by Ganfield that Resolution #23,567, 

approving and adopting the FY2025 Budget for the City of Cedar Falls, be 
adopted. Following comments and questions by Councilmembers Kruse, Dunn, 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

Crisman, Ganfield, Schultz, Latta, and Hawbaker, and responses by Mayor 
Laudick and Director of Finance & Business Operations Rodenbeck, it was 
moved by Dunn and seconded by Crisman to amend the motion and remove the 
transfer of $100,000 surplus from FY2024 to buydown property tax and approve 
the budget at the $11.91 rate. Following comments by Councilmembers Ganfield, 
Kruse, Schultz, Hawbaker, and Latta, the motion failed 2-5, with Schultz, Latta, 
Kruse, Hawbaker, and Ganfield voting Nay. The Mayor then put the question on 
the original motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, Dunn. 
Nay: Kruse. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,567 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
54723 - Mayor Laudick announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 9, 

2024, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the Orchard Hill Pickleball 
Court Expansion Project. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Schultz 
that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54724 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. City Engineer Wicke provided 
an update on the proposed project. Following opposing comments by Cedar Falls 
residents, Kathy Oakland, Keith Larson, Kim Kischer Larson, and Lori Newbragh, 
and supportive comments by Cedar Falls residents Mark Rhoades and Deb 
Rhoades, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of 
business. 

 
54725 - It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Hawbaker that Resolution #23,568, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the Orchard Hill Pickleball Court Expansion Project, be adopted. 
Following comments and questions by Councilmembers Latta, Dunn, Ganfield, 
Schultz, Crisman, Hawbaker, and Kruse, and Cedar Falls residents Mark 
Rhoades and Deb Rhoades, and responses by Recreation & Community 
Programs Manager Soppe and Director of Public Works Schrage, the Mayor put 
the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Crisman, Dunn. 
Nay: Ganfield. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,568 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
54726 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #3051, 

amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the City’s 
floodplain regulations, be passed upon its third and final consideration. Following 
due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, 
Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Ordinance #3051 duly passed and adopted. 
 

54727 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Latta that Ordinance #3052, adopting 
the Code of Ordinances for the City of Cedar Falls, be passed upon its third and 
final consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

question on the motion and upon the call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, 
Crisman, and Dunn.  Nay: None.  Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Ordinance #3052 duly passed and adopted. 

 
54728 -  It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #3053, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicle, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to the speed limit on certain portions of Center Street, be passed upon its 
third and final consideration. Following comments by Cedar Falls residents Mark 
Suchy and Ramona Suchy, and Councilmember Crisman, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon the call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, 
Crisman, and Dunn.  Nay: None.  Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Ordinance #3053 duly passed and adopted. 
 

54729 -   It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Crisman that Ordinance #3054, 
amending Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to the Art and Culture Center and Board, be passed upon its second 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon the call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, 
Crisman, and Dunn.  Nay: None.  Motion carried. 

 
54730 -   It was moved by Latta and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #3055, amending 

Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the 
Visitors and Tourism Board, be passed upon its second consideration. Following 
due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon the call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted.  Aye: 
Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, and Dunn.  Nay: None.  
Motion carried. 
 

54731 -   It was moved by Crisman and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #3056, 
amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
Boards and Commissions and Department of Community Development, be 
passed upon its second consideration. Following due consideration by the 
Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon the call of the roll, 
the following named Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, 
Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, and Dunn.  Nay: None.  Motion carried. 

 
54732 -   It was moved by Crisman and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #3057, 

amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
Department of Community Development, be passed upon its second 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon the call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, 
Crisman, and Dunn.  Nay: None.  Motion carried. 
 

54733 - It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Kruse that the following items on the 
Consent Calendar be received, filed, and approved: 

  
 

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

 Receive and file the City Council Special Meeting minutes of April 1, 2024 
relative to the following item: 
a) Public hearing on the proposed FY2025 Property Tax Rate for the City of 
Cedar Falls. 

 Receive and file communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to the 
following certified lists: 
a) Civil CAD/GIS Technician. 
b) Construction Projects Manager. 

 Approve an Order Accepting Acknowledgement/Settlement Agreement with PMA 
North Cedar, LLC, d/b/a Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street, for a first tobacco 
violation. 

 Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Berk's Main Street Pub, 207 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
b) ZSAVOOZ, 206 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service 
- renewal. 
c) Happy’s Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol & 
outdoor service - 5 day permit. 

  Motion carried unanimously.  
  
54734 - It was moved by Crisman and seconded by Kruse that the following resolutions 

be introduced and adopted: 

 Resolution #23,569, of support for the creation of the Cedar Falls Local Housing 
Trust Fund. 

 Resolution #23,570, approving an Application for Tax Abatement under the 
College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan for residential building improvements 
located at 2007 College Street. 

 Resolution #23,571, approving and authorizing submission of a High-Quality 
Jobs Program Business Financial Assistance Application to the Iowa Economic 
Development Authority on behalf of LAFORGE, LLC. 

 Resolution #23,572, approving and authorizing a Community Attraction and 
Tourism (CAT) Grant Agreement between the Enhance Iowa Board and the City 
of Cedar Falls. 

 Resolution #23,573, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with Foth Infrastructure 
& Environment, LLC relative to the Main Street Reconstruction Project. 

 Resolution #23,574, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. relative to the Prairie Parkway and Viking Road Intersection 
Improvements Project. 

 Resolution #23,575, receiving and filing, and setting May 6, 2024 as the date of 
public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate 
of cost for the 2024 Alley Reconstruction Project. 

9

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

 Resolution #23,576, receiving and filing, and setting May 6, 2024 as the date of 
public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate 
of cost for the 2024 Sidewalk Assessment Project. 

 Resolution #23,577, setting May 6, 2024, as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed amendments to the City’s FY2024 Budget. 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, Dunn. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #23,569 through #23,577 
duly passed and adopted. 

54735 -   It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that Ordinance #3058, 
amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
Compensation, of Division 6, Utilities Board of Trustees, be passed upon its first 
consideration. Following comments by Councilmember Latta, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon the call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, 
Crisman, and Dunn.  Nay: None.  Motion carried. 

 
54736 -  It was moved by Latta and seconded by Crisman that the bills and claims of April 

15, 2024 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be 
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in 
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, Dunn. Nay: 
None. Motion carried. 

 
54737 -  Councilmember Dunn commented on Earth Day cleanup and noted garbage 

bags are available for pick up at various locations within the city. Dunn also 
commented on the city podcast that is held every other week and is available on 
Spotify and the City website. 

 
    Mayor Laudick also commented on Earth week cleanup and the Monarch Club at 

the High School. 
          
54738 -  It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Kruse that the meeting be adjourned at 

8:58 P.M. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
                                                           __________________________________ 
                                                           Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

10

Item 1.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: May 6, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: 2024 Alley Reconstruction Project 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3335 
  Public Hearing 
 
 

This project involves the reconstruction of five (5) alleys, three (3) of which are concrete 
and two (2) of which are permeable alleys. Work shall include a combination of excavation 
and backfill of the alley areas; removal and replacement of driveway and sidewalk and of 
PCC curb and gutter; subdrain installation; placement of storage and filter aggregate; 
installation of permeable interlocking clay brick pavers, seeding, and concrete, asphalt, 
or gravel driveway replacement.  
 

The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $582,973.00. The project 
will be funded by the Storm Water Fund and Street Construction Fund.  
 

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the 2024 Alley 
Reconstruction Project. 
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

11

Item 2.



ITEM ITEM UNIT TOTAL
NO. CODE DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QUANTITY COST UNITS TOTAL UNITS TOTAL UNITS TOTAL UNITS TOTAL UNITS TOTAL UNITS TOTAL

1 2010-108-D-3 OFF-SITE TOPSOIL C.Y. $50.00 70 $3,500.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 19 $950.00 0 $0.00 25 $1,250.00 26 $1,300.00

2 2010-108-E-0 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY, WASTE C.Y. $30.00 588 $17,640.00 85 $2,550.00 41 $1,230.00 60 $1,800.00 71 $2,130.00 171 $5,130.00 160 $4,800.00

3 2010-108-I-0 SUBBASE, MODIFIED, 6 IN. S.Y. $17.00 1723 $29,291.00 516 $8,772.00 243 $4,131.00 358 $6,086.00 427 $7,259.00 123 $2,091.00 56 $952.00

4 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 18 IN. HDPE L.F. $60.00 155 $9,300.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 155 $9,300.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

5 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 24 IN. HDPE L.F. $120.00 291 $34,920.00 291 $34,920.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

6 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 30 IN. HDPE L.F. $130.00 42 $5,460.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 42 $5,460.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

7 4020-211 SPECIAL PIPE CONNECTIONS, SW-211 EACH $2,200.00 4 $8,800.00 2 $4,400.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 2 $4,400.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

8 4020-108-D-1 REMOVAL STORM SEWER PIPE LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 36 IN. L.F. $30.00 571 $17,130.00 291 $8,730.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 280 $8,400.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

9 4040-108-A-0 SUBDRAIN, PERFORATED, 6 IN. L.F. $25.00 592 $14,800.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 255 $6,375.00 337 $8,425.00

10 4040-108-C-1 SUBDRAIN CLEANOUT, TYPE A-1, 6" EACH $600.00 4 $2,400.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 2 $1,200.00 2 $1,200.00

11 4040-108-D-0 SUMP PUMP TAP EACH $500.00 2 $1,000.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 2 $1,000.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

12 5020-108-E-0 VALVE BOX ADJUSTMENT EACH $500.00 1 $500.00 1 $500.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

13 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, SINGLE FLAT EACH $7,000.00 4 $28,000.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 4 $28,000.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

14 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, DOUBLE FLAT EACH $8,500.00 1 $8,500.00 1 $8,500.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

15 6010-108-H-0 REMOVAL OF STORM MANHOLES AND INTAKES EACH $1,500.00 4 $6,000.00 1 $1,500.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 3 $4,500.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

16 7010-108-A-0 PAVEMENT, STAND. OR SLIP-FORM, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. $75.00 2073 $155,475.00 516 $38,700.00 243 $18,225.00 358 $26,850.00 427 $32,025.00 299 $22,425.00 230 $17,250.00

17 7010-108-E-0 CURB, PCC 7 IN. 2.5 FT. WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. $85.00 212 $18,020.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 65 $5,525.00 0 $0.00 68 $5,780.00 79 $6,715.00

18 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY S.Y. $30.00 255 $7,650.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 78 $2,340.00 10 $300.00 82 $2,460.00 85 $2,550.00

19 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. $30.00 87 $2,610.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 25 $750.00 0 $0.00 34 $1,020.00 28 $840.00

20 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. $135.00 87 $11,745.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 25 $3,375.00 0 $0.00 34 $4,590.00 28 $3,780.00

21 7030-108-H-0 DRIVEWAY, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. $135.00 255 $34,425.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 78 $10,530.00 10 $1,350.00 82 $11,070.00 85 $11,475.00

22 7030-108-H-2 GRANULAR SURFACING, 1-INCH ROADSTONE S.Y. $40.00 31 $1,240.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 10 $400.00 0 $0.00 21 $840.00 0 $0.00

23 7040-108-A-0 PATCH, 7" P.C.C., FULL DEPTH, "M" MIX S.Y. $300.00 44 $13,200.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 44 $13,200.00

24 7040-108-C-0 PATCH, PARTIAL DEPTH, HMA (ST) SURFACE, 1/2", PG58-28S TONS $250.00 7 $1,750.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 7 $1,750.00

25 7040-108-H-0 PAVEMENT REMOVAL S.Y. $18.00 1232 $22,176.00 516 $9,288.00 243 $4,374.00 0 $0.00 429 $7,722.00 0 $0.00 44 $792.00

26 7040-108-I-0 CURB AND GUTTER REMOVAL L.F. $25.00 212 $5,300.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 65 $1,625.00 0 $0.00 68 $1,700.00 79 $1,975.00

27 7080-10-8-B-0 ENGINEERING FABRIC S.Y. $8.00 808 $6,464.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 350 $2,800.00 458 $3,664.00

28 7080-108-D-0 STORAGE AGGREGATE S.Y. $25.00 1028 $25,700.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 514 $12,850.00 514 $12,850.00

29 7080-108-E-0 FILTER AGGREGATE S.Y. $15.00 198 $2,970.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 99 $1,485.00 99 $1,485.00

30 7080-108-F-0 PERMEABLE INTERLOCKING PAVERS, CLAY BRICK S.Y. $145.00 254 $36,830.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 127 $18,415.00 127 $18,415.00

31 8030-108-A-0 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. $10,000.00 1 $10,000.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

32 9020-108-A-0 SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING S.F. $2.25 3712 $8,352.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 1000 $2,250.00 0 $0.00 1346 $3,028.50 1366 $3,073.50

33 9040-108-D-1A WATTLES, 9IN. STRAW L.F. $10.00 100 $1,000.00 100 $1,000.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

34 9040-108-D-2A WATTLES, MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL L.F. $5.00 100 $500.00 100 $500.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

35 9040-108-T-1 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, INSTALLATION EACH $375.00 5 $1,875.00 1 $375.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 4 $1,500.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

36 9040-108-T-2 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, MAINTENANCE EACH $90.00 5 $450.00 1 $90.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 4 $360.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

37 11020-108-A-0 MOBILIZATION L.S. $25,000.00 1 $25,000.00 1 $25,000.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00
38 11050-108-A-0 CONCRETE WASHOUT LS $3,000.00 1 $3,000.00 1 $3,000.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

$582,973.00 TOTAL= $147,825.00 TOTAL= $27,960.00 TOTAL= $62,481.00 TOTAL= $113,706.00 TOTAL= $104,509.50 TOTAL= $116,491.50TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE

14TH & 15TH - CLAY & 

WASHINGTON

1ST & 2ND - WASHINGTON 

& MAIN (N & S)

11TH & 12TH - BLUFF & 

GROVE

1ST & 2ND - WASHINGTON & 

MAIN (E & W)

5TH & 6TH - FRANKLILN & 

CLAY
3RD & 4TH - MAIN & STATE

2024 ALLEY RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT
CITY PROJECT NO. RC - 000 - 3335

FINAL ESTIMATE OF COSTS

AND QUANTITIES

April 4,  2024

12

Item 2.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: May 6, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: 2024 Sidewalk Assessment Project – Zone 6 
  SW-000-3324 
  Public Hearing 
 
Submitted within for City Council Approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs 
and Quantities for the 2024 Sidewalk Assessment Project – Zone 6.  
 
This project involves the replacement of deficient sidewalk adjacent to various property owners. 
The project will replace the deficient sidewalk for the adjacent property owner and assess the 
cost of replacement to the property owner.   
 
Once the replacement has been completed, the Engineering Division will submit a bill to the City 
Clerk. The City Clerk will then send notice of the bill in the mail to the adjacent property owner. 
The adjacent property owner will have 30 days to pay the bill without interest or penalty. If the 
adjacent property owner fails to pay the bill in 30 days, the cost of replacement will be applied to 
the property owners’ property taxes. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $547,606.50.  
 
The Engineering Division recommends approving the Plans, Specifications and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the 2024 Sidewalk Assessment Project – Zone 6.  
 
xc: David Wicke, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
  

13

Item 3.



ITEM ITEM UNIT TOTAL

NO. CODE DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QUANTITY COST

1 2010-108-D-3 OFF SITE TOPSOIL C.Y. $250.00 108.20 27,050.00$     

2 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. $90.00 1792.00 161,280.00$   

3 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 4 INCH S.Y. $125.00 1310.30 163,787.50$   

4 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 6 INCH S.Y. $250.00 481.70 120,425.00$   

5 8030-108-A-0 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. $40,000.00 1.00 40,000.00$     

6 9010-108-B-0 SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING S.F. $6.00 5844.00 35,064.00$     

$547,606.50TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE

2024 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT
CITY PROJECT NO. SW - 000 - 3324

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

14

Item 3.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
Financial Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council Members  

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: April 26, 2024 

 SUBJECT: FY2024 Budget Amendment 

 
Attached please find the certification resolution for the FY2024 budget amendment.  
This is our second budget amendment for FY2024 and final budget amendments must 
be filed with the county auditor by May 31 of the current fiscal year per Iowa Code 384-
18(2).   
 
This budget amendment is necessary due to timing of various projects and participation 
in grant programs.  As the notice shows additional intergovernmental, charges for 
services, special assessments, miscellaneous, other financing sources revenues, as 
well as cash reserves will offset these expenditures. 
 
Also included in the budget amendment are the proposed line-item amendments by the 
various departments.  Those departmental amendments are also attached to this 
memo. 
  
CC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
       Ron Gaines, City Administrator 
 
 
 
  

15

Item 4.



16

Item 4.



budam24 No2.xlsx

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS

FY2024 BUDGET
FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - INTO GENERAL
DEPARTMENTS PROJECTED ACCT. BAL. FUND 

           ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FY2024 FY2024 BEFORE ACCOUNT ACCOUNT ADJUSTMENT CASH REASON FOR ADJUSTMENT
NUMBER NAME BUDGET EXPENDITURES ADJUSTMENT NUMBER NAME AMOUNT USED

Public Records 101-1008-441.6501 F.I.C.A. $19,570.00 $22,270.00 ($2,700.00) 101-1008-441.6101 Full-Time Wages $2,700.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line item.

101-1008-441.8306 Education $1,500.00 $1,550.00 ($50.00) 101-1008-441.8305 Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodge) $50.00

($2,750.00) $2,750.00

FBO Administration 101-1026-441.6101 Full-time Wages $191,270.00 $191,770.00 ($500.00) 101-1026-441.6102 Part-time Wages $500.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line item.
101-1026-441.7101 Office Supplies $500.00 $900.00 ($400.00) 101-1026-441.8148 Contract Services $400.00
101-1026-441.8305 Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodge) $2,000.00 $2,800.00 ($800.00) 101-1026-441.9301 Equipment $800.00

($1,700.00) $1,700.00

Financial Services 101-1028-441.6403 Life Insurance $600.00 $620.00 ($20.00) 101-1028-441.6102 Part-time Wages $520.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line item.
101-1028-441.6402 Health Insurance Reimb. $620.00 $1,120.00 ($500.00)
101-1028-441-8306 Education $2,000.00 $2,750.00 ($750.00) 101-1028-441.8305 Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodge) $750.00

($1,270.00) $1,270.00

Human Resources 101-1038-441.6103 Overtime $0.00 $2,000.00 ($2,000.00) 101-1038-441.6102 Part-Time Wages $25,000.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line item.
101-1038-441.7299 Postage $500.00 $800.00 ($300.00) 101-1038-441.8133 Employee Survey $5,000.00
101-1038-441.8149 Background Check $0.00 $6,000.00 ($6,000.00) 101-1038-441.8155 Employee Assist Prog $2,200.00
101-1038-441.8153 Job Notices $65,000.00 $79,000.00 ($14,000.00) 101-1038-441.8157 Pay Plan Study $300.00
101-1038-441.8156 Employee Wellness Program $24,000.00 $32,500.00 ($8,500.00) 101-1038-441.8301 Training & Travel $500.00
101-1038-441.8199 Civil Service Commission $4,000.00 $6,000.00 ($2,000.00)
101-1038-441.8201 Telephone $1,000.00 $1,200.00 ($200.00)
101-1038-441.8109 Human Rights Commision $3,000.00 $3,720.00 ($720.00) 101-0000-371.0100 Miscellaneous Revenue $720.00 Over expended line item offset by HRC Summit Revenues.

($33,720.00) $33,720.00

Legal 101-1048-441.6403 Life Insurance $430.00 $440.00 ($10.00) 101-1048-441.6102 Part-time Wages $20.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line item.

101-1048-441.6404 Ltd Insuranceurance $560.00 $570.00 ($10.00) 101-1199-441.8913 Contingency $10,000.00

101-1048-441.8129 Legal Consultants $175,000.00 $185,000.00 ($10,000.00)

($10,020.00) $10,020.00

Library 101-1060-423.6101 Full-time Wages $643,240.00 $700,000.00 ($56,760.00) 101-1060-423.6102 Part-time Wages $62,100.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line.

101-1060-423.6401 Health Insuranceurance Premiums $108,490.00 $113,590.00 ($5,100.00)

101-1060-423.6403 Life Insurance $1,450.00 $1,560.00 ($110.00)

101-1060-423.6404 LTD Insurance $1,910.00 $2,040.00 ($130.00) Over expended line items offset by underspent line and additional donation revenues.

101-1060-423.7275 Display $2,000.00 $2,050.00 ($50.00) 101-1060-423.7299 Postage $2,150.00

101-1060-423.7276 Public Relations $1,200.00 $3,300.00 ($2,100.00)

101-1060-423.8305 Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodge) $1,000.00 $4,050.00 ($3,050.00) 101-1060-423.8105 Professional Services $3,050.00

101-1060-423.8601 Repair & Maintenance $7,000.00 $21,250.00 ($14,250.00) 101-1060-423.8501 Utilities $14,250.00

101-1060-423.8919 Co-Lab Materials $0.00 $150.00 ($150.00) 101-1060-356.7800 Library Gifts & Memorials $750.00 Over expended line items offset by additional donation revenues.

101-1060-423.8920 Adult Books $0.00 $500.00 ($500.00)

101-1060-423.8924 Adult Audio $0.00 $50.00 ($50.00)

101-1060-423.8926 Non-Print Resources $0.00 $50.00 ($50.00)

101-1060-423.8934 Endowment Supported Program $60,000.00 $92,000.00 ($32,000.00) 101-1060-356.7901 Library Endowments $32,000.00 Projects exceeded budgets, offset by additional endowment revenues.

101-1060-423.9301 Equipment $0.00 $3,300.00 ($3,300.00) 101-1060-423.7306 Building Repair $3,300.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line item.

($117,600.00) $117,600.00

Library Levy 101-1061-423.6401 Health Insurance Premiums $12,000.00 $14,000.00 ($2,000.00) 101-1061-423.6101 Full-time Wages $29,500.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line items and Levy cash reserves.

101-1061-423.7111 Technical Processing Supplies $30,000.00 $57,500.00 ($27,500.00)

101-1060-423.8920 Adult Books $52,500.00 $86,000.00 ($33,500.00) 101-0000-104.0000 General Fund - Cash $227,700.00 $227,700.00

101-1060-423.8921 Young Adult Books $18,000.00 $30,000.00 ($12,000.00)

101-1060-423.8922 Youth Books $48,000.00 $62,500.00 ($14,500.00)

101-1060-423.8923 Large Print Books $6,000.00 $12,000.00 ($6,000.00)

101-1060-423.8924 Adult Audio $8,000.00 $13,500.00 ($5,500.00)

101-1060-423.8925 Adult Video $41,000.00 $50,000.00 ($9,000.00)

101-1060-423.8926 Non-Print Resources $29,000.00 $41,000.00 ($12,000.00)

101-1060-423.8929 Newspapers $2,300.00 $2,800.00 ($500.00)

101-1060-423.8935 Youth Audio $8,800.00 $10,000.00 ($1,200.00)

101-1060-423.8936 Youth Video $10,500.00 $15,000.00 ($4,500.00)

101-1060-423.8937 Young Adult Audio $2,000.00 $7,000.00 ($5,000.00)

101-1060-423.8938 Young Adult Video $1,000.00 $5,000.00 ($4,000.00)

101-1060-423.8942 Adult E-Materials $40,000.00 $114,000.00 ($74,000.00)

101-1060-423.8944 Young Adult E-Materials $2,500.00 $12,000.00 ($9,500.00)

101-1060-423.8946 Youth E-Materials $6,700.00 $12,000.00 ($5,300.00)

101-1060-423.8947 Library of Things $2,500.00 $12,000.00 ($9,500.00)

101-1061-423.9301 Equipment $0.00 $21,700.00 ($21,700.00)

($257,200.00) $257,200.00

BUDGET ADJUST. - FROM

17

Item 4.



City Administrator 101-1118-441.6403 Life Insurance $910.00 $920.00 ($10.00) 101-1118-441.6102 Part-time wages $10.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

101-1118-441.7201 Operating Supplies $0.00 $300.00 ($300.00) 101-1118-441.8125 Promotional Tapes & Ads $400.00

101-1118-441.7299 Postage $0.00 $100.00 ($100.00)

101-1118-441.8131 Business Retention $1,500.00 $70,000.00 ($68,500.00) 101-1118-441.8198 Economic Development $75,000.00

101-1118-441.8305 Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodge) $4,000.00 $8,000.00 ($4,000.00)

101-1118-441.8306 Education $2,000.00 $4,500.00 ($2,500.00)

($75,410.00) $75,410.00

Mayor 101-1158-441.7101 Office Supplies $480.00 $1,330.00 ($850.00) 101-1119-441.8913 Contingency $4,250.00 Over expended line item covered underspent line items.

101-1158-441.8148 Contract Services $0.00 $2,000.00 ($2,000.00) 101-1118-441.8198 City Admin-Economic Development $5,300.00

101-1158-441.8303 Outings, Dinners, Awards $1,390.00 $2,390.00 ($1,000.00) 101-1158-441.8201 Telephone $200.00

101-1158-441.8306 Education $420.00 $620.00 ($200.00) 101-1158-441.8301 Capital Outlay $400.00

101-1158-441-8305 Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodge) $2,600.00 $5,300.00 ($2,700.00)

101-1158-441-8304 Dues & Memberships $510.00 $3,910.00 ($3,400.00)

($10,150.00) $10,150.00

Council 101-1168-441.6101 Full-time Wages $49,630.00 $54,230.00 ($4,600.00) 101-1168-441.6501 FICA $2,400.00 Over expended line item covered underspent line items.

101-1168-441.6601 IPERS $3,350.00 $4,000.00 ($650.00) 101-1168-441.8201 Telephone $1,000.00

101-1168-4414.8305 Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodge) $1,850.00

($5,250.00) $5,250.00

Admin./Legal Miscellaneous 101-1199-441.8823 CV Coalition Dues $1,660.00 $1,720.00 ($60.00) 101-1199-441.8101 Professional Services $1,600.00 Over expended line item covered underspent line items.

101-1199-441.8911 League Dues $12,500.00 $13,040.00 ($540.00)

101-1199-441.8914 Refunds $2,000.00 $3,000.00 ($1,000.00)

($1,600.00) $1,600.00

Data Processing 606-1078-441.7201 Operating Supplies $3,500.00 $13,000.00 ($9,500.00) 606-0000-371.0100 Miscellaneous Revenue $10,450.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line items and additional miscellaneous revenues.

606-1078-441.8101 Professional Services $1,000.00 $3,000.00 ($2,000.00) 606-1078-441.8170 Contract Services $1,550.00

606-1078-441.8114 Egov $30,000.00 $30,500.00 ($500.00) 606-1078-441.8305 Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodge) $500.00

606-1078-441.8306 Education $6,000.00 $6,500.00 ($500.00) 606-1078-441.8601 Repair & Maintenance $10,000.00

606-1078-441.8610 Sofware Support Agreements $365,000.00 $444,000.00 ($79,000.00) 606-1078-441.9301 Equipment $69,000.00

($91,500.00) $91,500.00

Cable TV 254-1088-431-89-18 Community Program $35,500.00 $39,500.00 ($4,000.00) 254-1088-431-81-37 Legal Services $5,000.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

254-1088-431-92-01 Structure Improvements $0.00 $100.00 ($100.00)

254-1088-431-72-01 Operating Supplies $6,000.00 $6,900.00 ($900.00)

($5,000.00) $5,000.00

Community Center 262-1092-423.6101 Salaries - Full-Time $0.00 $400.00 ($400.00) 262-1092-423.6102 Part-time Wages $2,450.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line item.

262-1092-423.6401 Health Insurance Premiums $0.00 $50.00 ($50.00) 262-1092-423.7219 Printing $200.00

262-1092-423.7101 Office Supplies $700.00 $900.00 ($200.00)

262-1092-423.8601 Repair & Maintenance $4,000.00 $6,000.00 ($2,000.00)

($2,650.00) $2,650.00

Parking 258-5531-435.6403 Life Insurance $180.00 $185.00 ($5.00) 258-5531-435.6102 Part-time Wages $5.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line item.

258-5531-435.7104 Tickets $3,000.00 $6,600.00 ($3,600.00) 258-5531-435.7201 Operating Supplies $9,000.00

258-5531-435.8915 Credit Card Charges $0.00 $6,700.00 ($6,700.00) 258-5531-435.8305 Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodge) $1,000.00

258-5531-436.8306 Education $300.00

($10,305.00) $10,305.00

Street Repair 242-1240-431.9225 Cedar Heights Area $0.00 $2,500,000.00 ($2,500,000.00) 242-0000-371.0100 Misc Receipts $2,706,000.00 Over expenditures due to timing of capital projects and timing of reimbursements from 

242-1240-431.9251 Seal Coat $100,000.00 $300,000.00 ($200,000.00) other funding sources.

242-1240-431.9285 Union Road $0.00 $6,000.00 ($6,000.00)

($2,706,000.00) $2,706,000.00

Emergency Reserve Fund 404-1220-431.9237 Buyout Demo $0.00 $279,500.00 ($279,500.00) 404-0000-341.0400 Grant Funding $279,500.00 Over expenditure for FEMA Flood buyouts and demolitions offset with grant revenues 

404-1220-431.9586 Center St. Streetscape $0.00 $50,000.00 ($50,000.00) 404-0000-104.0000 Cash Reserves $50,000.00 Project funded with Emergency Flood Reserves as planned by City Council on CIP. 

($329,500.00) $329,500.00

18

Item 4.



Flood Reserve Fund 405-1220-431.9843 River Project $0.00 $5,700,000.00 ($5,700,000.00) 405-0000-341.0500 EDA Grant Funding $1,000,000.00 Project funded with Emergency Reserves as planned by City Council on CIP.  Payments running through

405-0000-343.0900 REAP Grant Funding $135,000.00 this fund will be reimbursed by grant funds and other city funding sources. 

405-0000-371.0100 Miscelleneous Revenue $4,565,000.00

($5,700,000.00) $5,700,000.00

TIF Bond Fund 430-1220-431.9764 Viking Road Extension $0.00 $400,000.00 ($400,000.00) 430-0000-104.0000 TIF Bond - Cash $1,000,000.00 Project is cash flowed until TIF certification for project has occurred.

430-1220-431.9848 Hudson Rd/Ridgeway $0.00 $600,000.00 ($600,000.00)

($1,000,000.00) $1,000,000.00

Bond Funds 437-1220-431.9548 Hudson Rd Rec Trail $0.00 $65,000.00 ($65,000.00) 437-0000-104.0000 Bond Fund Cash $65,000.00 Overexpenditure will be offset by bond proceeds already sold.

438-1220-431.9527 Union Road Trail $0.00 $16,000.00 ($16,000.00) 438-0000-341-0500 Intergovernmental Revenue $16,000.00 Overexpenditure will be offset by reimbursements received.  

438-1220-431.9823 Greenhill Rd & S Main $0.00 $400,000.00 ($400,000.00) 438-0000-104.0000 Bond Fund Cash $400,000.00 Overexpenditure will be offset by bond proceeds already sold.

438-1220-431.9883 Cedar Heights Drive $0.00 $300,000.00 ($300,000.00) 438-0000-104.0000 Bond Fund Cash $300,000.00 Overexpenditure will be offset by bond proceeds already sold.

438-1220-431.9885 Lake Street Trail $0.00 $10,000.00 ($10,000.00) 438-0000-341-0500 Intergovernmental Revenue $10,000.00 Overexpenditure will be offset by reimbursements received.  

439-1220-431.9548 Bunker Gear $0.00 $25,000.00 ($25,000.00) 439-0000-104.0000 Bond Fund Cash $25,000.00 Overexpenditure will be offset by bond proceeds already sold.

439-1220-431.9824 Annual St Rep Amen $0.00 $120,000.00 ($120,000.00) 439-0000-104.0000 Bond Fund Cash $120,000.00 Overexpenditure will be offset by bond proceeds already sold.

439-1220-431.9843 Cedar River Rec Improv. $70,000.00 $368,640.00 ($298,640.00) 439-0000-104.0000 Bond Fund Cash $298,640.00 Overexpenditure will be offset by bond proceeds already sold.

439-1220-431.9887 Slope Repair $0.00 $100,000.00 ($100,000.00) 439-0000-104.0000 Bond Fund Cash $100,000.00 Overexpenditure will be offset by bond proceeds already sold.

439-1220-431.9896 Financial System $0.00 $210,000.00 ($210,000.00) 439-0000-104.0000 Bond Fund Cash $210,000.00 Overexpenditure will be offset by bond proceeds already sold.

($1,544,640.00) $1,544,640.00

Special Assessments 473-1220-431.9899 Sidewalk Project $0.00 $75,000.00 ($75,000.00) 473-0000-104.0000 Special  Assessment Fund -  Cash $58,500.00 Sidewalk project expenditures will be offset by payments already received by home owners and

473-0000-314.0300 Special Assessment Receipts $15,000.00    future special assessment property tax collections.

473-0000-371.0702 Assessment Receipts $1,500.00

($75,000.00) $75,000.00

Capital Projects 443-1220-431.9888 Ashworth Drive $0.00 $2,000,000.00 ($2,000,000.00) 443-0000-104.0000 Capital Projects Cash $2,000,000.00 Over expenditure will be offset by cash reserves

($2,000,000.00) $2,000,000.00

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS $13,981,265.00

GEN FUND CASH USED BY F.B.O. $227,700.00

19

Item 4.



budam24 No2.xlsx

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS

FY2024 BUDGET
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - INTO BUDGET ADJUST. - FROM GENERAL
DEPARTMENTS PROJECTED ACCT. BAL. FUND 

  DIVISIONS ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FY2024 FY2024 BEFORE ACCOUNT ACCOUNT ADJUSTMENT CASH REASON FOR ADJUSTMENT
NUMBER NAME BUDGET EXPENDITURES ADJUSTMENT NUMBER NAME AMOUNT USED

Community Dev. - Admin. 101-2205-432.7299 Postage $500.00 $550.00 ($50.00) 101-2205-432.7101 Office Supplies $600.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line item.

101-2205-432.8101 Professional Services $0.00 $4,000.00 ($4,000.00) 101-2205-432.7211 Dues, Books, Magazines $200.00

101-2205-432.8306 Education $1,000.00 $1,500.00 ($500.00) 101-2205-432.7219 Printing $400.00

101-2205-432.7260 Safety Supplies $50.00

101-2205-432.7301 Repair & Maintenance Supplies $800.00

101-2205-432.8201 Telephone $1,000.00

101-2205-432.8305 Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodge) $1,500.00

($4,550.00) $4,550.00

Inspection Services 101-2235-412.72-19 Printing $2,400.00 $3,400.00 ($1,000.00) 101-2235-412.72-11 Dues, Books, Magazines $1,000.00 Over expended due to overlap of hiring prior to employee retirement, offset by underspent line items.

101-2235-412.86-01 Repair and Maintenance $0.00 $750.00 ($750.00) 101-2235-412.71-07 Code Enforcement $750.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

($1,750.00) $1,750.00

Planning & Community Services 101-2245-442.8101 Professional Services $13,000.00 $17,000.00 ($4,000.00) 101-2245-442.7219 Printing $1,000.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line item.

101-2245-442.7299 Postage $2,500.00

101-2245-442.8201 Telephone $500.00

($4,000.00) $4,000.00

Sec. 8 Housing 217-2214-432.7201 Operating Supplies $440.00 $540.00 ($100.00) 217-2214-432.7211 Dues, Books, Magazines $300.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

217-2214-432.8101 Professional Services $21,100.00 $21,600.00 ($500.00) 217-2214-432.8963 HAP - Damages $500.00

217-2214-432.8201 Telephone $700.00 $1,000.00 ($300.00) 217-2214-432.7225 Mileage $100.00

217-2214-432.8306 Education $1,000.00 $1,900.00 ($900.00) 217-2214-432.8305 Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodge) $900.00

217-2214-432.8961 Housing Asst. Payments $1,173,000.00 $1,241,330.00 ($68,330.00) 217-0000-341.0300 Intergov't Revenue - Section 8 Housing $68,330.00 New Enhanced Vouchers for CY2024 offset with additional Enhanced HAP Revenue

($70,130.00) $70,130.00

Block Grant 223-2224-432.6101 Full-time Wages $5,090.00 $5,190.00 ($100.00) 223-2224.432.7225 Mileage $50.00 Over expended line items offset bu underspent line items.

223-2224-432.6401 Health Insurance Premium $460.00 $490.00 ($30.00) 223-2224-432.7201 Operating Supplies $30.00

223-2224-432.7219 Printing $400.00 $500.00 ($100.00) 223-2224-432.7211 Dues, Books, Magazines $100.00

223-2224-432.8101 Professional Services $31,500.00 $32,000.00 ($500.00) 223-2224-432.7299 Postage $50.00

223-2224-432.8305 Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodge) $500.00 Allocate to correct service agency line item; due to CDBG award is after fiscal year budget is finalized

223-2224-432.8807 Pathways Behavioral Services $0.00 $5,800.00 ($5,800.00) 223-2234-432.8960 Service Agencies $31,300.00 Allocate to correct service agency line item; due to CDBG award is after fiscal year budget is finalized

223-2224-432.8813 Family Childrens Council $0.00 $5,500.00 ($5,500.00) Allocate to correct service agency line item; due to CDBG award is after fiscal year budget is finalized

223-2224-432.8815 Wloo/CF Salvation Army $0.00 $10,000.00 ($10,000.00) Allocate to correct service agency line item; due to CDBG award is after fiscal year budget is finalized

223-2224-432.8833 NE Iowa Food Bank $0.00 $10,000.00 ($10,000.00)

223-2224-432.8958 Neighborhood Beautification $0.00 $17,190.00 ($17,190.00) 223-2234-432.89-50 Housing Rehab $182,690.00 Allocate to tree beautification project line item; due to CDBG award is after fiscal year budget is finalized

223-2224-432.8959 Neighborhood Infrastructure $0.00 $165,500.00 ($165,500.00) Allocate to sewer lining line item; due to CDBG award is after fiscal year budget is finalized

223-2244-432.8984 HOME Program $0.00 $166,200.00 ($166,200.00) 223-0000-341.0102 HOME Grant Revenues $154,284.00 Over expended line item offset by HOME grant reimbursements and previous refunded HOME project
223-0000-104.0000 CDBG  Cash Reserves $11,916.00 held in cash reserves.

($380,920.00) $380,920.00

Economic Development 483-2245-432.8903 TIF Payments $0.00 $500,000.00 ($500,000.00) 483-0000-382.0103 Transfer In $500,000.00 TIF payments made out of ED fund will be reimbursed by TIF collection revenue

483-2245-432.9224 High School Pool $0.00 $500,000.00 ($500,000.00) 483-0000-104.0000 Economic Development Cash Reserves $500,000.00 Project funded with Economic Development Funds as planned by City Council on CIP.

484-2245-432.9110 Land Acquisition $0.00 $45,000.00 ($45,000.00) 484-0000-371.0600 Miscellaneous Receipts $45,000.00 Overexpenditure will be offset by lease and farm rent payments received on the properties.

($1,045,000.00) $1,045,000.00

Recreation 101-2253-423.6109 Fitness Coor. Wages (PT) $0.00 $46,300.00 ($46,300.00) 101-2253-423.6101 Full-time Wages $46,300.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items. 

101-2253-423.6114 Front Desk Wages $118,110.00 $125,110.00 ($7,000.00) 101-2253-423.6110 Exercise Main Wages $7,000.00

101-2253-423.6116 Ballfield Maint. Wages $8,000.00 $10,000.00 ($2,000.00) 101-2253-423.6130 Indoor Pool Head Guard Wages $5,000.00

101-2253-423.6117 Adult Sports Wages $6,000.00 $7,500.00 ($1,500.00) 101-2253-423.6131 Indoor Ligeguard Wage $5,000.00

101-2253-423.6124 Swim Lesson Wages $38,600.00 $41,100.00 ($2,500.00) 101-2253-423.6139 Falls Cashier Wages $900.00

101-2253-423.6127 Child Care Wages $13,500.00 $14,500.00 ($1,000.00) 101-2253-423.6140 Falls Concessions Wages $2,000.00

101-2253-423.6135 Falls Manager Wages $12,500.00 $14,000.00 ($1,500.00) 101-2253-423.6141 Falls Maintenance $5,000.00

101-2253-423.6136 Falls Asst Manager Wages $25,000.00 $25,500.00 ($500.00) 101-2253-423.6401 Health Insurance Premiums $5,000.00

101-2253-423.6137 Falls Lifeguard Wages $164,000.00 $174,000.00 ($10,000.00) 101-2253-423.6501 FICA $5,000.00

101-2253-423.7231 Youth Sports Equip $28,000.00 $33,000.00 ($5,000.00) 101-2253-423.6601 IPERS $13,000.00

101-2253-423.7241 Falls Concessions $41,000.00 $43,000.00 ($2,000.00) 101-2253-423.7232 Adult Sports Equipment $5,000.00

101-2253-423.7243 Rec Center Concessions $0.00 $7,000.00 ($7,000.00) 101-2253-423.7236 Birthday Party Supplies $100.00

101-2253-423.7318 Lifeguard Training Supplies $1,750.00 $3,250.00 ($1,500.00) 101-2253-423.7242 Swim Lesson Supplies $1,000.00

101-2253-423.7355 Media $2,500.00 $3,500.00 ($1,000.00) 101-2253.423.8501 Utilities $10,000.00

101-2253-423.8306 Education $1,000.00 $1,500.00 ($500.00) 101-2253.423.8630 Maintenance & Upkeep $8,000.00

101-2253-423.8505 The Falls Pool Utilities $94,600.00 $97,600.00 ($3,000.00)

101-2253-423.8631 The Falls Repair & Maintenance $58,000.00 $73,000.00 ($15,000.00)

101-2253-423.8914 Refunds $5,000.00 $11,000.00 ($6,000.00)

101-2253-423.8915 Credit Card Charges $25,000.00 $30,000.00 ($5,000.00)

($118,300.00) $118,300.00

20

Item 4.



Softball Capital 295-2253-423.9201 Softball Player Capital $3,000.00 $3,100.00 ($100.00) 295-0000-104.0000 Softball Captial Cash Reserves $100.00 Cash reserves in the fund will be used to cover the overexpenditure.

($100.00) $100.00

Recreation Capital 297-2253-423.9201 Rec Capital $1,560,000.00 $1,652,940.00 ($92,940.00) 298-0000-104.0000 Recreation Capital Cash Reserves $55,000.00 Cash reserves and miscellaneous revenues will be usede to cover the overexpenditure due to 

297-0000-371.0100 Recreation Capital Misc. Revenue $37,940.00 timing of front desk remodel project, weight room equipment, and A/C unit at recreation center.

($92,940.00) $92,940.00

Cultural   101-2280-423.6154 Instructors $38,610.00 $55,610.00 ($17,000.00) 101-2280-423.6150 Assistants $17,000.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

101-2280-423.7301 Repair & Maintenance Supplies $1,000.00 $1,200.00 ($200.00) 101-2280-423.7299 Postage $200.00

101-2280-423.8116 Printing & Publication $7,500.00 $7,710.00 ($210.00) 101-2280-423.8306 Education $210.00

101-2280-423.8914 Refunds $600.00 $9,000.00 ($8,400.00) 101-2280-356.1400 Facility Rental Revenue $8,400.00 Over expended line item offset by facility revenue.

101-2280-423.8933 Friends Supported Programs $10,000.00 $15,000.00 ($5,000.00) 101-2280-371.4300 Friends Reimbursement Revenue $5,000.00 Over expended line item offset by reimbursement revenue from the Friends of the Hearst.

($30,810.00) $30,810.00

Cultural Capital 298-2280-423.8939 Purchased Items - Donated $0.00 $14,000.00 ($14,000.00) 298-0000-373-0400 Donation Revenue $1,500.00 Over expenditures will be offset by donation revenue, capital fee revenue and cash reserves.

298-2280-423.9201 Hearst Capital $0.00 $9,000.00 ($9,000.00) 298-0000-355-1000 Hearst Capital Fees $9,000.00

298-0000-104.0000 Hearst Capital - Cash Reserves $12,500.00

($23,000.00) $23,000.00

Tourism & Visitors 261-2291-423.7299 Postage $10,000.00 $11,000.00 ($1,000.00) 261-2291-423.8307 Registraions $1,000.00 Over expended line items are offset by underspent line items and additional revenues

261-2291-423.7355 Media $55,880.00 $68,380.00 ($12,500.00) 261-0000-371.1002 Media Income Revenue $10,000.00

261-2291-423.8550 Community Awareness $3,000.00 $3,500.00 ($500.00) 261-2291-423.9301 Equipment $500.00

261-2291-423.8551 Events/Bids/Sponsorships $7,000.00 $8,500.00 ($1,500.00) 261-2291-423.7353 Website/CRM $1,500.00

261-2291-423.8915 Credit Card Charges $0.00 $500.00 ($500.00) 261-2291-423.7357 Gift Shop $500.00

261-2291-423.8305 Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodge) $500.00

261-2291-423.8501 Utilities $2,000.00

261-2291-423.8994 Special Projects $0.00 $132,000.00 ($132,000.00) 261-0000-371.1000 Special Projects Revenue $132,000.00 Panthers On Parade project offset by additional revenues.

261-2291-423.9201 Structure Improv. & Bldgs. $50,000.00 $250,000.00 ($200,000.00) 261-0000-104.0000 Tourism Cash Reserves $206,000.00 Cedar River Project allocation offset by cash reserves

261-2291-423.8552 Tourism Marketing Grants $62,000.00 $68,000.00 ($6,000.00) Carryover Marking Grants offset by cash reserves

($354,000.00) $354,000.00

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS $2,125,500.00

GEN FUND CASH USED BY C.D. $0.00

21

Item 4.



budam24 No2.xlsx

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS

FY2024 BUDGET

BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - INTO BUDGET ADJUST. - FROM GENERAL
DEPARTMENTS PROJECTED ACCT. BAL. FUND 

  DIVISIONS ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FY2024 FY2024 BEFORE ACCOUNT ACCOUNT ADJUSTMENT CASH REASON FOR ADJUSTMENT
NUMBER NAME BUDGET EXPENDITURES ADJUSTMENT NUMBER NAME AMOUNT USED

Fire  101-4511-414.6101 Full-time Wages $2,729,840.00 $2,827,840.00 ($98,000.00) 101-5521-415.6101 Police - Full-time Wages $98,000.00 Over expended line items due to Firefighter training of new officers, offset by underspent line items.
101-4511-414.6401 Health Insurance Premiums $279,740.00 $320,740.00 ($41,000.00) 101-5521-415.6401 Police - Health Insurance Prem. $41,000.00
101-4511-414.6103 Overtime $30,000.00 $70,000.00 ($40,000.00) 101-4511-414.6178 Volunteers - Internal $17,000.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

101-4511-414.6174 Fire Hrs over 212, Shift Pay $100,000.00 $105,000.00 ($5,000.00) 101-4511-414.6501 FICA $1,000.00

101-4511-414.6404 Ltd Insurance $8,250.00 $8,650.00 ($400.00) 101-4511-414.6601 IPERS $2,500.00

101-4511-414.7202 Laundry $500.00 $800.00 ($300.00) 101-4511-414.8171 Consolidated Dispatch $15,000.00

101-4511-414.7209 Equipment Repair $12,000.00 $18,000.00 ($6,000.00) 101-4511-414.8201 Telephone $3,400.00

101-4511-414.7302 Dormitory Furnishings $4,000.00 $5,900.00 ($1,900.00) 101-4511-414.8501 Utilities $22,300.00

101-4511-414.7310 Headquarter Supplies $6,000.00 $15,000.00 ($9,000.00) 101-4511-414-7277 Volunteer Supplies $3,900.00

101-4511-414.8601 Repair and Maintenance $7,000.00 $9,000.00 ($2,000.00)

101-4511-414.8914 Refunds $0.00 $500.00 ($500.00)

101-4511-414.8101 Professional Services $0.00 $16,000.00 ($16,000.00) 101-4511-358.1100 Fire Miscellaneous Revenue $16,000.00 Over expended line item offset by additional miscellaneous revenues

($220,100.00) $220,100.00

Police 101-5521-415.6175 Overtime- Police Grant $0.00 $23,000.00 ($23,000.00) 101-5521-415.6175 Overtime - Holiday $14,000.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

101-5521-415.6403 Life Insurance $4,570.00 $4,620.00 ($50.00) 101-5521-415.6178 Volunteers - Internal $9,000.00

101-5521-415.7105 Advertising $400.00 $10,400.00 ($10,000.00) 101-5521-415.6404 Ltd Insurance $50.00

101-5521-415.7201 Operating Supplies $29,000.00 $39,000.00 ($10,000.00) 101-5521-415.7107 Code Enforcement Supplies $4,650.00

101-5521-415.7229 SWAT Equipment $5,000.00 $6,000.00 ($1,000.00) 101-5521-415.7208 Camera Equipment $1,500.00

101-5521-415.8101 Professional Services $10,000.00 $28,000.00 ($18,000.00) 101-5521-415.7219 Printing $2,000.00

101-5521-415.8306 Education $20,000.00 $25,000.00 ($5,000.00) 101-5521-415.7221 Community Service Project $3,500.00

101-5521-415.8601 Repair and Maintenance $0.00 $1,500.00 ($1,500.00) 101-5521-415.7233 Police Auxilary $4,000.00

101-5521-415.8915 Credit Card Charges $0.00 $750.00 ($750.00) 101-5521-415.7234 Community Service Officer $2,500.00

101-5521-415.8999 Canine Unit $12,000.00 $24,000.00 ($12,000.00) 101-5521-415.7299 Postage $1,100.00

101-5521-415.8158 Witness Fees $1,000.00

101-5521-415.8201 Telephone $2,000.00

101-5521-415.8501 Utilities $15,000.00

101-5521-415.8605 Equipment Repairs $3,000.00

101-5521-415-8171 Consolidated Dispatch $18,000.00

101-5521-415.8308 Academy $30,000.00 $65,000.00 ($35,000.00) 101-5521-358-2100 Police Miscellaneous Revenues $35,000.00 Over expended offset by additional miscellaneous revenues.

($116,300.00) $116,300.00

Fire Grants 101-1199-411.3264 Fire Equipment Grant $0.00 $10,000.00 ($10,000.00) 101-1199-343.0601 Fire Grant  - Revenue $10,000.00 Grant expenses offset by additional grant revenues and under spent line item

($10,000.00) $10,000.00

Police Forfeiture 291-5521-415.8941 Police Forfeiture $0.00 $4,000.00 ($4,000.00) 291-0000-372.0200 Police Forfeitures Misc.Revenue $4,000.00 Purchase of exercise equipment offset by forfeiture revenues.

($4,000.00) $4,000.00

Fire Retirement 293-4511-414.5302 Fire Retirement $592,680.00 $692,680.00 ($100,000.00) 293-0000-104.0000 Fire Retirement Cash Reserves $100,000.00 Over expenditure offset by cash reserves.

($100,000.00) $100,000.00

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS $450,400.00

GEN FUND CASH USED BY P.S.S. $0.00

PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES

22

Item 4.



budam24 No2.xlsx

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS

FY2024 BUDGET

BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - INTO BUDGET ADJUST. - FROM GENERAL
DEPARTMENTS PROJECTED ACCT. BAL. FUND 

  DIVISIONS ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FY2024 FY2024 BEFORE ACCOUNT ACCOUNT ADJUSTMENT CASH REASON FOR ADJUSTMENT
NUMBER NAME BUDGET EXPENDITURES ADJUSTMENT NUMBER NAME AMOUNT USED

Cemetery 101-6613-433.8103 Recording Fees $0.00 $1,060.00 ($1,060.00) 101-6613-433.8501 Utilities $1,060.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

101-6613-433.8305 Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodge) $0.00 $300.00 ($300.00) 101-6613-433.8201 Telephone $450.00

101-6613-433.8306 Education $0.00 $150.00 ($150.00)

($1,510.00) $1,510.00

Public Buildings 101-6616-446.6402 Health Insurance Reimb $290.00 $600.00 ($310.00) 101-6616-446.6101 Full-time Wages $3,000.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

101-6616-446.7201 Oper/Supplies $72,000.00 $76,000.00 ($4,000.00) 101-6616-446.6401 Health Insurance Premiums $1,310.00

101-6616-446.7306 Building Repair $51,000.00 $75,000.00 ($24,000.00) 101-6616-446.6501 FICA $250.00

101-6616-446.8108 Pest Control $4,430.00 $5,430.00 ($1,000.00) 101-6616-446.6601 IPERS $250.00

101-6616-446.8602 Buildings & Grounds $311,020.00 $356,020.00 ($45,000.00) 101-6616-446.7217 Uniforms $1,000.00

101-6616-446.7254 Building Supplies $3,000.00

101-6616-446.7305 Operating Equipment $3,000.00

101-6616-446.8201 Telephone $500.00

101-6616-446.8306 Education $1,000.00

101-6616-446.8360 Maint & Upkeep $2,000.00

101-6616-446.8501 Utilities $43,000.00

101-6616-446.8670 Civil Defense Siren Repl. $3,000.00

101-6616-446.9201 Equipment $13,000.00

($74,310.00) $74,310.00

Golf Capital 296-6623-423.9201 Structures Improvements &  Bldgs. $55,000.00 $165,000.00 ($110,000.00) 296-0000-104.0000 Golf Capital Cash Reserves $110,000.00 Unexpected building repair cost for the Golf Pro Shop and timing of Pheasant Ridge cart path 

project offset withcash reserves.

($110,000.00) $110,000.00

Engineering 101-6625-432.7299 Postage $4,000.00 $5,000.00 ($1,000.00) 101-6625-432.7108 Public Advertising $1,000.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

101-6625-432.8101 Professional Services $0.00 $5,000.00 ($5,000.00) 101-6625-432.8625 Engineering & Architect Services $5,000.00

101-6625-432.8144 USGS River Gauge $12,500.00 $13,100.00 ($600.00) 101-6625-432.8629 Lab & Testing $600.00

($6,600.00) $6,600.00

Storm Water 555-6630-432.8304 Dues & Memberships $10,000.00 $10,705.00 ($705.00) 555-6630-432.86-26 Arc Map Modeling $705.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

555-6630-432.8501 Utilities $0.00 $1,000.00 ($1,000.00) 555-6630-432.8620 Storm Sewers $9,900.00

555-6630-432.8634 Billing & Collections $70,330.00 $79,230.00 ($8,900.00)

($10,605.00) $10,605.00

Parks 101-6633-423.6401 Health Insurance Prem. $54,870.00 $62,020.00 ($7,150.00) 101-6633-423.6601 IPERS $7,150.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

101-6633-423.8304 Dues & Memberships $700.00 $950.00 ($250.00) 101-6633-423.7201 Oper/Supplies $5,490.00

101-6633-423.8305 Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodge) $720.00 $1,500.00 ($780.00)

101-6633-423.8306 Education $2,540.00 $3,000.00 ($460.00)

101-6633-423.8848 Bwoods CampGr H/M $0.00 $2,000.00 ($2,000.00)

101-6633-423.9301 Equipment $9,000.00 $11,000.00 ($2,000.00)

101-6633-423.9201 Structure Improvements & Bldg. $124,000.00 $161,262.00 ($37,262.00) 101-6633-356.6100 Park Receipts Revenue $37,262.00 Over expended line item offset by private donation reimbursements for Place to Play Park

($49,902.00) $49,902.00

Street Construction - O&M 206-6637-436.6103 Overtime $20,450.00 $30,450.00 ($10,000.00) 206-6637-436.6101 Full-time Wages $10,000.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

206-6637-436.7217 Uniforms $3,590.00 $5,190.00 ($1,600.00) 206-6637-436.7305 Oper/Equip $4,000.00

206-6637-436.7257 Ice Control $300,000.00 $315,000.00 ($15,000.00) 206-6637-436.7337 Crack Sealing $32,700.00

206-6637-436.7299 Postage $0.00 $100.00 ($100.00) 206-6637-436.8151 Post Employment Physicals $3,000.00

206-6637-436.7332 Streets $127,000.00 $150,000.00 ($23,000.00) 206-6637-436.8152 Drug Screen $3,000.00

206-6637-436.8118 INRCOG $7,190.00 $7,195.00 ($5.00) 206-6637-436.8170 Contract Services $2,065.00

206-6637-436.8201 Telephone $2,400.00 $4,000.00 ($1,600.00)

206-6637-436.8306 Education $3,040.00 $6,500.00 ($3,460.00)

206-6637-436.9301 Equipment $484,000.00 $1,034,000.00 ($550,000.00) 206-0000-104.0000 Street Construction Cash $136,000.00 Supply chain issues; purchased FY23 and FY25 dump trucks this fiscal year when trucks were 

206-0000-371.0100  Street Const.-Misc. Revenue $400,000.00 available, offset by underspent line items, additional miscellaneouse revenue and cash reserves.

206-6637-436.8981 Cafeteria Plan $4,000.00

206-6637-436.6101 Full-time Wages $6,000.00

206-6637-436.6401 Health Insurance Premiums $4,000.00

206-6637-436.9293 W 27th Street Recons. $0.00 $2,750,000.00 ($2,750,000.00) 206-6637-436.9201 Structure Improv. & Bldg. $757,000.00 W 27th St Improv. budgeted amount included in Structure Improvement line item also received 

206-0000-371.0100  Street Const.-Misc. Revenue $1,993,000.00 reimbursement from Cedar Falls Schools to offset over expenditure.

206-6637-436.9251 Seal Coat Program $0.00 $150,000.00 ($150,000.00) 206-6637-436.9201 Structure Improv. & Bldg. $150,000.00 Seal Coat Program budgeted amount included in Structure Improvement line item.

206-6637-436.9281 Permeable Alley Program $0.00 $315,000.00 ($315,000.00) 206-6637-436.9201 Structure Improv. & Bldg. $315,000.00 Permeable/Alley Reconstruction project budgeted amount included in Structure Improvement line item.

($3,819,765.00) $3,819,765.00

PUBLIC WORKS

23

Item 4.



Street Construction - Traffic 206-6647-436.7101 Office Supplies $170.00 $500.00 ($330.00) 206-6647-436.6101 Full-time Wages $2,000.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

206-6647-436.7201 Operating Supplies $14,000.00 $16,500.00 ($2,500.00) 206-6647-436.6401 Health Insurance Premiums $4,000.00

206-6647-436.7211 Dues, Books, Magazines $170.00 $300.00 ($130.00) 206-6647-436.8201 Telephone $450.00

206-6647-436.7217 Uniforms $590.00 $690.00 ($100.00) 206-6647-436.8305 Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodge) $1,000.00

206-6647-436.7260 Safety Supplies $1,080.00 $1,300.00 ($220.00) 206-6647-436.8306 Education $1,500.00

206-6647-436.7312 Traffic Signals $18,500.00 $20,000.00 ($1,500.00) 206-6647-436.8619 Traffic Signal Repair $1,000.00

206-6647-436.7325 Traffic Signs $21,000.00 $22,500.00 ($1,500.00) 206-6647-436.9201 Structure Improv & Bldg $41,330.00

206-6647-436.8501 Utilities $0.00 $45,000.00 ($45,000.00)

($51,280.00) $51,280.00

Refuse 551-6685-436.6103 Overtime $11,330.00 $25,000.00 ($13,670.00) 551-0000-104.0000 Refuse Cash Reserves $8,690.00 Over spent line items offset by cash reserves and underspent line items.

551-6685-436.6403 Life Insurance $1,100.00 $1,130.00 ($30.00) 551-6675-436.7201 Refuse Admin Oper. Supplies $500.00

551-6685-436.6404 Ltd Insurance $1,440.00 $1,480.00 ($40.00) 551-6675-436.7219 Refuse Admin - Printing $500.00

551-6685-436.7219 Printing $1,670.00 $2,170.00 ($500.00) 551-6675-436.7299 Refuse Admin -Postage $500.00

551-6685-436.7299 Postage $1,570.00 $2,920.00 ($1,350.00) 551-6685-436.6102 Part-time Wages $7,000.00

551-6685-436.7305 Operating Equip. $11,000.00 $22,000.00 ($11,000.00) 551-6685-436.6601 IPERS $3,000.00

551-6685-436.8101 Professional Services $0.00 $3,000.00 ($3,000.00) 551-6685-436.7105 Advertising $1,000.00

551-6685-436.8606 Education $1,700.00 $3,000.00 ($1,300.00) 551-6685-436.7201 Operating Supplies $2,000.00

551-6685-436.8609 Office Machine Maint $300.00 $600.00 ($300.00) 551-6685-436.7266 Dumpster Replace. $7,000.00

551-6685-436.8634 Billing & Collections $70,330.00 $79,230.00 ($8,900.00) 551-6685-436.7306 Building Repair $3,000.00

551-6685-436.8637 Refuse Cart Tracking SW $5,000.00 $35,000.00 ($30,000.00) 551-6685-436.8151 Post-employment Physicals $600.00

551-6685-436.8915 Credit Card Charges $0.00 $5,000.00 ($5,000.00) 551-6685-436.8152 Drug Testing $2,000.00

551-6685-436.8201 Telephone $1,000.00

551-6685-436.8601 Repair & Maint $300.00

551-6685-436.8635 Scales $4,000.00

551-6685-436.8636 Transfer Station Maint $2,000.00

551-6685-436.8981 Cafeteria Plan $4,000.00

551-6685-436.9201 Structure Improv/Bldg $28,000.00

551-6685-436.9301 Equipment $390,000.00 $715,000.00 ($325,000.00) 551-0000-104.0000 Refuse Cash Reserves $325,000.00 Over expended due to supply chain issues for FY23 garbage truck, offset with cash reserves

($400,090.00) $400,090.00

Storm Water Bond 541-6630-432.9201 Storm Water Capital $0.00 $110,000.00 ($110,000.00) 541-0000-104.0000 Bond Fund Cash Reserves $110,000.00 Over expenditure will be offset by bond proceeds already sold.

($110,000.00) $110,000.00

Water Reclamation 552-6665-436.7101 Office Supplies $500.00 $1,000.00 ($500.00) 552-6665-436.7106 Office Equipment $1,000.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

552-6665-436.7217 Uniforms $3,000.00 $3,500.00 ($500.00) 552-6665-436.7453 CCTV Equipment $6,000.00

552-6665-436.7260 Safety Supplies $8,000.00 $12,000.00 ($4,000.00) 552-6665-436.7456 Flood Control $2,000.00

552-6665-436.7299 Postage $600.00 $800.00 ($200.00) 552-6665-436.8151 Post-employment Physicals $1,100.00

552-6665-436.7367 Odor Control $10,000.00 $12,000.00 ($2,000.00) 552-6665-436.8152 Drug Testing $1,000.00

552-6665-436.7368 Polymer $30,000.00 $41,000.00 ($11,000.00) 552-6665-436.8201 Telephone $1,500.00

552-6665-436.7406 Bldg & Grounds $6,000.00 $6,500.00 ($500.00) 552-6665-436.8501 Utilities $19,740.00

552-6665-436.7413 PW Repair Supplies $35,000.00 $38,000.00 ($3,000.00) 552-6665-436.8703 Rental Equipment $5,000.00

552-6665-436.8304 Dues & Memberships $2,000.00 $2,500.00 ($500.00) 552-6665-436.8981 Cafeteria Plan $4,000.00

552-6665-436.8634 Billing & Collections $70,300.00 $79,200.00 ($8,900.00)

552-6665-436.8904 Sales Tax $115,760.00 $126,000.00 ($10,240.00)

($41,340.00) $41,340.00

Vehicle Maintenance 685-6698-446.6103 Overtime $5,150.00 $6,150.00 ($1,000.00) 685-6698-446.6101 Full-time Wages $1,000.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

685-6698-446.6401 Health Insurance Premium $63,910.00 $74,510.00 ($10,600.00) 685-6698-446.6102 Part-time Wages $4,000.00

685-6698-446.8708 Work by Outside Agency $100,000.00 $125,000.00 ($25,000.00) 685-6698-446.6501 FICA $3,000.00

685-6698-446.6601 IPERS $3,600.00

685-6698-446.7254 Building Supplies $3,000.00

685-6698-446.7260 Vehicle Supplies $9,000.00

685-6698-446.8601 Repair & Maintenance $1,500.00

685-6698-446.8604 Radio & Communication $7,500.00

685-6698-446.8615 Tire Repairs $4,000.00

685-6698-446.9301 Equipment $345,000.00 $479,000.00 ($134,000.00) 685-0000-104.0000 Vehicle Maint. Cash Reserves $100,000.00 Supply chain issues; purchased FY25 squad cars (2) and van for Hearst Center this fiscal 

685-0000-371.5100 Vehicle Maint. Misc. Revenue $34,000.00 year when vehicles were available, offset by cash reserves and additional miscellaneous revenue.

($170,600.00) $170,600.00

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS $4,846,002.00

GEN FUND CASH USED BY P.W. $0.00

24

Item 4.



 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING AND LEVYING THE FINAL 
SCHEDULE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR THE 

2023 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT, ZONE 1 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has received the final schedule 

of assessments showing the assessments proposed to be made for the construction of the 2023 
Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 1, Cedar Falls, Iowa, completed under contract by Boulder 
Contracting, LLC, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in the best interest of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve and adopt said schedule of assessments; and that there be, 
and is hereby assessed and levied, as a special tax against and upon each of the lots, parts of lots 
and parcels of land, and the owner or owners thereof liable to assessment for the cost of said 
improvements, the respective sums expressed in figures set opposite to each of the same on account 
of the cost of construction of the said improvements.  Said assessments against said lots and parcels 
of land are hereby declared to be in proportion to the special benefits conferred upon said property by 
said improvements. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that said assessments of $500.00 or more shall be payable 

in five (5) equal installments and shall bear interest at the rate of nine percent (9%) per annum, the 
maximum rate permitted by law, from the date of acceptance of the improvements (March 4, 2024); 
the first installment of each assessment, or total amount thereof, if it be less than $500, with interest 
on the whole assessment from date of acceptance of the work by the Council, shall become due and 
payable with interest on the whole unpaid amount on July 1, 2025; succeeding annual installments, 
with interest on the whole unpaid amount, shall respectively become due on July 1st annually 
thereafter, and shall be paid at the same time and in the same manner as the September semi-annual 
payment of ordinary taxes.  Said assessments shall be payable at the office of the County Treasurer 
of Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby authorized and directed to 

certify said final assessments to the County Treasurer of Black Hawk County, Iowa, to be collected in 
the same manner as property taxes. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of May, 2024. 
 
 

 
       ____________________________________ 
       Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

25

Item 5.



 

 

 

FINAL SCHEDULE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR THE 

2023 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT, 

ZONE 1 

 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

26

Item 5.



Property Owner Mailing Address City St. Zip Location Legal Description Total Due
Jenifer Ward 1504 W. 3rd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1504 W. 3rd 8914-11-258-008 $590.93 X $590.93
Melissa L. Beall 1607 W. 4th St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1607 W. 4th 8914-11-258-014 $1,079.22 X $1,079.22
Randel D. Petersen 2805 Dover Dr. Mckinney TX 75069 1415 W. 2nd 8914-11-253-009 $548.23 X $548.23
Larsen Rentals 220 W Lone Tree Rd. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1405 W. 2nd 8914-11-253-004 $453.08
SINDT Properties LLC 107 Fieldstone Dr. Reinbeck IA 50669 1323 W. 2nd 8914-11-254-007 $473.79 X $473.79
Lori R. Rodgers 1309 W. 2nd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1309 W. 2nd 8914-11-254-005 $791.60
John H. Allan 4129 Thresher Ct. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1304 W. 2nd 8914-11-257-004 $1,365.12 X $1,365.12
Scott A. Green 20298 Y Ave. Burlington Junction MO 64428 1323 W. 3rd 8914-11-257-007 $612.69 X $612.69
Justin L Reardon 1303 W. 4th St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1303 W. 4th 8914-11-260-005 $808.28 X $808.28
Marilyn Andersen 1222 W. 1st St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1222 W. 1st 8914-11-276-030 $969.38 X $969.38
Carly Steiert 1227 W. 2nd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1227 W. 2nd 8914-11-276-015 $808.28 X $808.28
Lawrence M. Lyons 1203 W. 2nd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1203 W. 2nd 8914-11-276-012 $390.99 X $390.99
Brandon Holcomb 1222 W. 2nd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1222 W. 2nd 8914-11-279-017 $948.58
Kasey N. Westley 1215 W. 3rd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1215 W. 3rd 8914-11-279-015 $1,142.53 X $1,142.53
Michael O. Kittleson Trust 1703 220th St. Waverly IA 50677 1216 W. 3rd 8914-11-282-002 $2,145.02 X $2,145.02
Lorraine D. Meyer 1110 W. 3rd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1110 W. 3rd 8914-11-282-007 $558.74 X $558.74
Ashlee M. Mclane 1021 W. 2nd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1021 W. 2nd 8914-11-277-004 $473.79 X $473.79
Sara J. Syhlman 1024 W. 2nd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1024 W. 2nd 8914-11-280-001 $575.99 X $575.99
Schuerman Properties LLC PO Box 214 Cedar Falls IA 50613 1008 W. 2nd 8914-11-280-004 $2,469.34
Lisa S. Proctor 802 N Johnson St Parkersburg IA 50665 216 Catherine 8914-11-280-012 $559.89 X $559.89
Gregory A. Houseal 817 W. 2nd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 817 W. 2nd 8914-12-152-008 $2,027.94 X $2,027.94
Kassie Walton 813 W. 2nd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 813 W. 2nd 8914-12-152-007 $418.59
Dora L. Williams 829 W. 3rd St. Cedar Falls iA 50613 829 W. 3rd 8914-11-281-009 $487.59 X $487.59
Kelly Boeschen 825 W. 3rd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 825 W. 3rd 8914-11-281-007 $487.59 X $487.59
Brad W. Hunter 809 W. 3rd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 809 W. 3rd 8914-12-156-006 $794.48
RENTCF LLC 2501 Falls Ave Waterloo IA 50701 203 Olive St. 8914-12-156-002 $402.64
Christopher Olsen PO BOX 482 Cedar Falls IA 50613 803 W. 4th 8914-12-160-007 $966.93 X $966.93
Mark E. Ludwig 109 Walnut St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 109 Walnut 8914-12-153-004 $644.26 X $644.26
Joshua 24 15 Properties LLC PO Box 304 Cedar Falls IA 50613 121 Walnut 8914-12-153-006 $918.68
Cade D. Kramer 716 W. 2nd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 716 W. 2nd 8914-12-157-002 $471.39 X $471.39
Emily A. Eisenman 202 Olive St. Apt 206 Cedar Falls IA 50613 202 Olive 8914-12-157-001 $904.88 X $904.88
Welsch Investments LLC 6701 Strayer Rd. Cedar Falls IA 50613 209 Walnut 8914-12-157-012 $1,088.58
Zachary Wolf 3725 Southlawn Rd. Cedar Falls IA 50613 723 W. 3rd 8914-12-157-008 $2,152.34 X $2,152.34
Victoria Hoffman 709 W. 3rd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 709 W. 3rd 8914-12-157-006 $574.84
Larry E. Evans 716 W. 3rd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 716 W. 3rd 8914-12-161-002 $1,293.57 X $1,293.57
Robert M. Green 314 Olive St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 314 Olive 8914-12-161-011 $870.53 X $870.53
Lori L. Dove 715 W. 4th St. Waterloo IA 50701 715 W. 4th 8914-12-161-009 $964.38 X $964.38
Alexander J. Lyles 321 Walnut St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 321 Walnut 8914-12-161-013 $3,213.11
Christopher T. Rew 719 W. 5th St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 719 W. 5th 8914-12-302-008 $1,060.23
Casey W. Anderson 122 Walnut St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 122 Walnut 8914-12-154-006 $693.71
Heather Miller 622 W. 2nd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 622 W. 2nd 8914-12-158-001 $1,872.59

PAID

2023 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT

CITY PROJECT NUMBER SW-000-3301

FINAL STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES FOR MATERIAL & LABOR

27

Item 5.



HN Properties LLC PO Box 183 Cedar Falls IA 50613 220/222 Walnut 8914-12-158-010 $932.48 X $932.48
Nathaniel S. Beach 1759 Thrush Dr. Waterloo IA 50701 609 W. 3rd 8914-12-158-008 $872.78 X $872.78
Scott A. Green 20298 Y Ave. Burlington Junction MO 64428 606 W. 2nd 8914-12-158-003 $957.43 X $957.43
Bryce Steiert 2608 Pleasant Dr Cedar Falls IA 50613 621 W. 4th 8914-12-162-010 $1,356.47
Owen and Van Swol Enterprises L 323 Iowa St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 323 Iowa 8914-12-162-007 $2,373.89
Cole Galles 624 W. 4th St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 624 W. 4th 8914-12-303-001 $815.38 X $815.38
CND Properties LLC 5110 Algonquin Dr. Cedar Falls IA 50613 409 Iowa 8914-12-303-005 $512.84 X $512.84
Mary E. Nicol 818 Latham Place Cedar Falls IA 50613 623 W. 6th 8914-12-307-007 $934.78 X $934.78
C and H Holdings LLC 7314 Chancellor Dr. Cedar Falls IA 50613 523 W. 2nd 8914-12-155-018 $1,222.42 X $1,222.42
Joshua S. Harding 523 W. 4th St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 524 W. 4th 8914-12-304-001 $2,817.63
Travis Carolan 5232 Metz Rd. Cedar Falls IA 50613 422 Iowa 8914-12-304-009 $918.68 X $918.68
Carol Wellman 1008 North Sheridan Rd. Waukegan IL 60085 423 W. 2nd 8914-12-177-004 $574.84
Josh Harding 523 W. 4th St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 121 Franklin 8914-12-177-003 $918.68
Jeremy L. Kieffer 322 Tremont St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 322 Tremont 8914-12-185-008 $1,120.78 X $1,120.78
Mark Clay 420 W. 4th St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 420 W. 4th 8914-12-326-001 $473.79
Derick Rogers 2026 Richard Rd. Cedar Falls IA 50613 426 W. 5th 8914-12-331-001 $1,036.93 X $1,036.93
Cedar Falls Historical Society 303 Clay St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 308 W. 3rd 8914-12-186-003 $918.68 X $918.68
Simmer Vollaro LLC 1171 Lawrence Ave. Westfield NJ 07090 307 Clay 8914-12-186-004 $565.03 X $565.03
Simmer Vollaro LLC 1171 Lawrence Ave. Westfield NJ 07090 309 Clay 8914-12-186-004 $991.87 X $991.87
Maka Properties LLC 907 Sheridan Rd. Waterloo IA 50701 501 Clay 8914-12-332-003 $1,159.73
SRE Holdings LLC 2110 Flynn Dr. Cedar Falls IA 50613 403 Washington 8914-12-328-003 $978.33 X $978.33
Chris & Eaulla Saltzman 821 College St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 821 College 8914-11-478-005 $563.29 X $563.29

$63,091.05 $37,715.97

BALANCE DUE $25,375.08

28

Item 5.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager 

 DATE: March 5, 2024 

 SUBJECT: City Code of Ordinances Change Request – Art and Culture 
  
 
 
Attached please find recommended changes to the City Code of Ordinances Chapter 
17, Article VIII. Art and Culture Center and Board.  
 
The document is red-lined so you can easily see proposed updates. Changes were 
made to update center name, update the division name to Tourism - removing the 
Visitors wording, update the department director title, shift the HR function of annual 
evaluations to city staff, and simplify the description of art objects. 
 
These changes have been discussed and approved by the Art & Culture Board and staff 
recommends City Council approval.   
 
 
Cc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 

29

Item 6.



ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

AN ORDINANCE 1) AMENDING SECTION 17-133, ART AND CULTURE BOARD 

ESTABLISHED, TO RENAME THE CENTER FOR THE ARTS; AND 2) AMENDING 

SECTION 17-138, ABSENCE OF MEMBERS FROM BOARD MEETINGS, TO 

CLARIFY ATTENDANCE REQUIREMENTS; AND 3) AMENDING SECTION 17-139, 

DIRECTOR OF MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS AND PROGRAMS TO SERVE AS EX-

OFFICIO MEMBER OF BOARD, TO CHANGE THE CITY STAFF POSITION 

SERVING AND TO CHANGE THE TITLE OF THE SECTION; AND 4) AMENDING 

SECTION 17-140, POWERS AND DUTIES OF BOARD, TO CLARIFY CERTAIN 

DUTIES OF THE BOARD, ALL IN ARTICLE III, ART AND CULTURE CENTER AND 

BOARD, OF CHAPTER 17, PARKS AND RECREATION, OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

               Section 1.  Section 17-133, Art and Culture Center Established, of Article III, Art and Culture 

Center and Board, of Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 17-133, Art and Culture Center 

Established, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 17-133. Art and culture center established. 

There is hereby established a municipal art and culture center, to be known as the James and Meryl Hearst 
Art and Culture Center for the Arts.  

(Code 2017, § 20-156; Ord. No. 2823, § 2, 6-23-2014) 

                    Section 2.  Section 17-138, Absence of Board Members from Board Meetings, of Article III, Art 

and Culture Center and Board, of Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 17-138, Absence of Board 

Members from Board Meetings, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 17-138. Absence of members from board meetings. 

Members of the art and culture board leaving their residence in the city or absent from three consecutive 
meetings on the board or five meetings within one year, except in the case of sickness or temporary absence from 
the city, without due explanation of absence, shall surrender their office. The mayor shall then fill the vacant 
position, with city council approval.  

(Code 2017, § 20-161; Ord. No. 2823, § 2, 6-23-2014) 

                    Section 3.  Section 17-139, Director of Municipal Operations and Programs to Serve as Ex-

Officio Member of Board, of Article III, Art and Culture Center and Board, of Chapter 17, Parks and 

Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety 

and a new Section 17-139, Director of Community Development to Serve as Ex-Officio Member of Board, 

is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

30

Item 6.



Sec. 17-139. Director of community developmentmunicipal operations and programs to serve 

as ex-officio member of board. 

The director of community developmentmunicipal operations and programs shall serve as an ex-officio 
member of the art and culture board, without voting privileges.  

(Code 2017, § 20-162; Ord. No. 2823, § 2, 6-23-2014) 

                  Section 4.  Section 17-140, Powers and Duties of Board, of Article III, Art and Culture Center 

and Board, of Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 17-140, Powers and Duties of Board, is 

enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 17-140. Powers and duties of board. 

The city art and culture board shall have and possess the following powers and duties and such other powers 
as may be incidental thereto as necessary, and such other powers as may be expressly conferred upon it by law:  

(1) To adopt rules and regulations governing the board's organization and procedure as may be deemed 
necessary. All bylaws, rules or regulations shall be consistent with state, federal and local statutes.  

(2) To develop and provide an art and culture program for the citizens of the city based on the level of 
financial support provided by the city council and other entities.  

(3) To determine the operations and programming policy for the city art and culture center, which will be 
administered by the department of community development through the visitors and tourism/cultural 
programs division manager.  

(4) To participate, if requested by the director of community development, in the selection process of the 
visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager.  

(5) Jointly with the director of municipal operations and programs, to evaluate the performance of the 
visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager on a yearly basis.  

(56) To make recommendations to the city council regarding the disposition of all gifts, allocations, devices 
and bequests that may be made in the city for the purpose of establishing, increasing or improving the 
city art and culture program or the development of the art and culture center. However, when any 
such gift, donation, devise or bequest is conditioned on any act of the city, the city council must first 
determine whether such condition can be met.  

(67) To serve as the city's review agency and coordinator of all outside agency and special group requests 
for city financial support related to the provision of art, theater, music or other cultural services.  

(78) On behalf of the city, to accept gifts or purchase works of art and select or make purchases of pictures, 
portraits, statuary and relics, and other objects of art, in the original and in replicas or copies, books, 
periodicals, papers and journals on the subject of art, and furniture, fixtures, stationery and supplies 
for such art.  

(89) To recommend to the city council expenditures by the community development department on behalf 
of the city and board in conformance with the board's program policies.  

(Code 2017, § 20-163; Ord. No. 2823, § 2, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2943, § 4, 6-3-2019) 

 

INTRODUCED: _______________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

31

Item 6.



PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI: _________________________________ 

ADOPTED: ___________________________________________________ 

                                                                                              ____________________ 

                                                                                                Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

32

Item 6.



ORDINANCE NO. 3054 

AN ORDINANCE 1) AMENDING SECTION 17-133, ART AND CULTURE BOARD 

ESTABLISHED, TO RENAME THE CENTER FOR THE ARTS; AND 2) AMENDING 

SECTION 17-138, ABSENCE OF MEMBERS FROM BOARD MEETINGS, TO 

CLARIFY ATTENDANCE REQUIREMENTS; AND 3) AMENDING SECTION 17-139, 

DIRECTOR OF MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS AND PROGRAMS TO SERVE AS EX-

OFFICIO MEMBER OF BOARD, TO CHANGE THE CITY STAFF POSITION 

SERVING AND TO CHANGE THE TITLE OF THE SECTION; AND 4) AMENDING 

SECTION 17-140, POWERS AND DUTIES OF BOARD, TO CLARIFY CERTAIN 

DUTIES OF THE BOARD, ALL IN ARTICLE III, ART AND CULTURE CENTER AND 

BOARD, OF CHAPTER 17, PARKS AND RECREATION, OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

               Section 1.  Section 17-133, Art and Culture Center Established, of Article III, Art and 

Culture Center and Board, of Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 17-133, Art 

and Culture Center Established, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 17-133. Art and culture center established. 

There is hereby established a municipal art and culture center, to be known as the Hearst 
Center for the Arts.  

(Code 2017, § 20-156; Ord. No. 2823, § 2, 6-23-2014) 

                    Section 2.  Section 17-138, Absence of Board Members from Board Meetings, of 

Article III, Art and Culture Center and Board, of Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code 

of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new 

Section 17-138, Absence of Board Members from Board Meetings, is enacted in lieu thereof, as 

follows: 

Sec. 17-138. Absence of members from board meetings. 

Members of the art and culture board leaving their residence in the city or absent from 
three consecutive meetings on the board or five meetings within one year, except in the case of 
sickness or temporary absence from the city, without due explanation of absence, shall 
surrender their office. The mayor shall then fill the vacant position, with city council approval.  

(Code 2017, § 20-161; Ord. No. 2823, § 2, 6-23-2014) 

                    Section 3.  Section 17-139, Director of Municipal Operations and Programs to 

Serve as Ex-Officio Member of Board, of Article III, Art and Culture Center and Board, of 

Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 17-139, Director of Community 

Development to Serve as Ex-Officio Member of Board, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

33

Item 6.



Sec. 17-139. Director of community development to serve as ex-officio member of board. 

The director of community development shall serve as an ex-officio member of the art and 
culture board, without voting privileges.  

(Code 2017, § 20-162; Ord. No. 2823, § 2, 6-23-2014) 

                  Section 4.  Section 17-140, Powers and Duties of Board, of Article III, Art and 

Culture Center and Board, of Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 17-140, 

Powers and Duties of Board, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 17-140. Powers and duties of board. 

The city art and culture board shall have and possess the following powers and duties and 
such other powers as may be incidental thereto as necessary, and such other powers as may 
be expressly conferred upon it by law:  

(1) To adopt rules and regulations governing the board's organization and procedure as 
may be deemed necessary. All bylaws, rules or regulations shall be consistent with 
state, federal and local statutes.  

(2) To develop and provide an art and culture program for the citizens of the city based on 
the level of financial support provided by the city council and other entities.  

(3) To determine the operations and programming policy for the city art and culture 
center, which will be administered by the department of community development 
through the tourism/cultural programs division manager.  

(4) To participate, if requested by the director of community development, in the selection 
process of the tourism/cultural programs division manager.  

(5) To make recommendations to the city council regarding the disposition of all gifts, 
allocations, devices and bequests that may be made in the city for the purpose of 
establishing, increasing or improving the city art and culture program or the 
development of the art and culture center. However, when any such gift, donation, 
devise or bequest is conditioned on any act of the city, the city council must first 
determine whether such condition can be met.  

(6) To serve as the city's review agency and coordinator of all outside agency and special 
group requests for city financial support related to the provision of art, theater, music 
or other cultural services.  

(7) On behalf of the city, to accept gifts or purchase works of art.  

(8) To recommend to the city council expenditures by the community development 
department on behalf of the city and board in conformance with the board's program 
policies.  

(Code 2017, § 20-163; Ord. No. 2823, § 2, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2943, § 4, 6-3-2019) 

 

 

 

34

Item 6.



INTRODUCED:     April 1, 2024     

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   April 1, 2024     

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   April 15, 2024     

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI:         

ADOPTED:            

 

                                                                                                     

                                                                                              Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

      
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

35

Item 6.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager 

 DATE: March 25, 2024 

 SUBJECT: City Code of Ordinances Change Request – Tourism Board 
  
 
 
Attached please find recommended changes to the City Code of Ordinances Chapter 
17, Article VIII. Visitors And Tourism Board.  
 
The document is red-lined so you can easily see proposed updates. Most of the 
changes were made to update the division name to Tourism, removing the Visitors 
wording. 
 
Another change is reducing the number of board members from nine to seven. This 
board has struggled to meet the quorum requirements and recruit the needed number of 
board members. The final change shifts HR functions of hiring and evaluations to city 
staff. 
 
These changes have been discussed and approved by the Tourism board and staff 
recommends City Council approval.   
 
 
Cc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 

36

Item 7.



 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE III, VISITORS AND TOURISM 

BOARD, OF CHAPTER 17, PARKS AND RECREATION, OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA CONSISTING OF 

SECTION 17-299, CREATED; SECTION 17-300, MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD; 

APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS; SECTION 17-301, TERM OF OFFICE OF 

BOARD MEMBERS; SECTION 17-302, COMPENSATION OF MEMBERS OF 

BOARD; SECTION 17-303, ABSENCE OF MEMBERS FROM BOARD 

MEETINGS; SECTION 17-304, DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT TO SERVE AS EX-OFFICIO MEMBER OF BOARD; 

SECTION 17-305, POWERS AND DUTIES OF BOARD; AND SECTION 17-

306, APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS FOR VISITORS AND TOURISM 

SERVICES AND PROGRAMS, BY STRIKING SAID ARTICLE IN ITS 

ENTIRETY AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW ARTICLE III, 

TOURISM BOARD, CONSISTING OF THE SAME SECTIONS WITH THE 

SAME TITLES (EXCEPT TO CONFORM TO THE CHANGE OF NAME) SO 

AS TO CHANGE THE TITLE OF THE VISITORS AND TOURISM BOARD TO 

THE TOURISM BOARD, TO REDUCE THE NUMBER OF MEMBERS FROM 

NINE TO SEVEN; TO CLARIFY BOARD MEETING ATTENDANCE 

REQUIREMENTS; AND TO ELIMINATE BOARD PARTICIPATION IN CITY 

EMPLOYMENT FUNCTIONS. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

                Article III, Visitors and Tourism Board, of Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the 

Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby stricken in its entirety and a new 

Article III, Tourism Board, consisting of Section 17-299, Created, Section 17-300, Membership 

of Board; Appointment of Members, Section 17-301, Term of Office of Board Members, Section 

17-302, Compensation of Members of Board, Section 17-303, Absence of Members From 

Board Meetings, Section 17-304, Director of Community Development to Serve as Ex-Officio 

Member of Board, Section 17-305, Powers and Duties of Board, and Section 17-306, 

Appropriation of Funds for Tourism Services and Programs, is enacted in lieu thereof, as 

follows: 

ARTICLE VIII. - VISITORS AND TOURISM BOARD  

Sec. 17-299. Created. 

There is hereby established in the city a city visitors and tourism board.  

37

Item 7.



(Code 2017, § 20-321; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-300. Membership of board; appointment of members. 

(a) The city visitors and tourism board shall be composed of sevennine members.  

(b) The members shall be qualified by general knowledge or experience in matters related to visitors and 
tourism programs.  

(c) Members shall not hold any elective position in the city.  

(d) The members shall be appointed by the mayor, subject to approval of the city council.  

(e) An effort shall be made to appoint members to the board who represent various segments of the hospitality 
industry, including, festivals, special events, attractions, lodging, dining, the University of Northern Iowa, city 
businesses, and the community at-large while making a good faith effort to maintain gender equity as 
required by state law.  

(f) In so far as reasonably practicable, appointees for membership on the board shall be residents of the city, or, 
if that is not reasonably practicable, shall have a place of employment in the city. Appointees who are 
neither residents of the city nor who have a place of employment in the city may be eligible for appointment 
to the board upon a finding of the unavailability of qualified applicants, as determined by the mayor. Any 
person who is a member of the board on the date of adoption of the ordinance from which this article is 
derived who does not meet the qualifications for membership set forth herein shall continue to be eligible to 
serve as a member of the board until both the expiration of his current term and the member's 
nonreappointment by the mayor to an additional term.  

(Code 2017, § 20-322; Ord. No. 2820, § 1, 6-9-2014; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-301. Term of office of board members. 

The term of office of the members of the city visitors and tourism board shall be three years. Appointments 
to fill vacancies shall be for the unexpired term of any board member.  

(Code 2017, § 20-323; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-302. Compensation of members of board. 

All members of the city visitors and tourism board shall serve without compensation, except for their actual 
expenses, which shall be subject to the approval of the city council.  

(Code 2017, § 20-324; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-303. Absence of members from board meetings. 

Members of the city visitors and tourism board absent from three consecutive or five total meetings of the 
board in a year, except in the case of sickness or temporary absence from the city, without due explanation of 
absence, shall surrender their office. The mayor shall then fill the vacant position, with city council approval.  

(Code 2017, § 20-325; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-304. Director of community development to serve as ex-officio member of board. 

The director of community development shall serve as an ex-officio member of the city visitors and tourism 
board, without voting privileges.  

(Code 2017, § 20-326; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2943, § 4, 6-3-2019) 

38

Item 7.



Sec. 17-305. Powers and duties of board. 

The city visitors and tourism board shall have and possess the following powers and duties and such other 
powers as may be incidental thereto as necessary, and such other powers as may be expressly conferred upon it by 
law:  

(1) To adopt rules and regulations governing the board's organization and procedure as may be deemed 
necessary. All bylaws, rules or regulations shall be consistent with state, federal and local statutes and 
shall be subject to the approval of the city council.  

(2) To develop and provide visitors and tourism programs for visitors to the city based on the level of 
financial support provided by the city council and other entities.  

(3) To enhance the economic development of the city by promoting the city as a visitors destination and as 
a viable setting to hold meetings, conventions, special events and community attractions.  

(4) To determine the operations and programming policy for visitors and tourism events, that will be 
administered by the department of community development through the manager of visitors and 
tourism/cultural programs division.  

(5) To participate, if requested by the director of community development, in the selection process of the 
visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager.  

(6) Jointly with the director of municipal operations and programs, to evaluate the performance of the 
manager of visitors and tourism/cultural programs division on a yearly basis. The board may 
recommend to the director that the manager of visitors and tourism/cultural programs division be 
dismissed for cause, incompetency, inattention to duties or failure to provide satisfactory program 
leadership, following a vote of two-thirds of the board members and compliance with the city's 
personnel policy and procedures.  

(57) To serve as the city's review agency and coordinator of all outside agency and special group requests 
for city financial support related to the use of hotel/motel tax proceeds to support visitors and tourism 
services.  

(68) To recommend to the city council the approval of grants, projects or programs when necessary and 
timely as a part of the city's annual budget process.  

(79) To recommend to the city council for its approval guidelines and policies related to grant application 
processes, procedures and authorizations.  

(810) To recommend to the city council expenditures by the community development department on behalf 
of the city and board in conformance with the board's program policies.  

(Code 2017, § 20-327; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2943, § 4, 6-3-2019) 

Sec. 17-306. Appropriation of funds for visitors and tourism services and programs. 

The city council may annually appropriate a sum of money from the city's share of state hotel/motel tax 
receipts for the payment of a portion of the expense of operating the visitors and tourism/cultural programs 
division and programs.  

(Code 2017, § 20-328; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014)

39

Item 7.



 

INTRODUCED: _______________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI: _________________________________ 

ADOPTED: ___________________________________________________ 

                                                                                               

                                                                                              ____________________ 

                                                                                                Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

40

Item 7.



 

ORDINANCE NO. 3055 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE III, VISITORS AND TOURISM BOARD, OF 

CHAPTER 17, PARKS AND RECREATION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA CONSISTING OF SECTION 17-299, 

CREATED; SECTION 17-300, MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD; APPOINTMENT OF 

MEMBERS; SECTION 17-301, TERM OF OFFICE OF BOARD MEMBERS; 

SECTION 17-302, COMPENSATION OF MEMBERS OF BOARD; SECTION 17-303, 

ABSENCE OF MEMBERS FROM BOARD MEETINGS; SECTION 17-304, 

DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT TO SERVE AS EX-OFFICIO 

MEMBER OF BOARD; SECTION 17-305, POWERS AND DUTIES OF BOARD; AND 

SECTION 17-306, APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS FOR VISITORS AND TOURISM 

SERVICES AND PROGRAMS, BY STRIKING SAID ARTICLE IN ITS ENTIRETY 

AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW ARTICLE III, TOURISM BOARD, 

CONSISTING OF THE SAME SECTIONS WITH THE SAME TITLES (EXCEPT TO 

CONFORM TO THE CHANGE OF NAME) SO AS TO CHANGE THE TITLE OF THE 

VISITORS AND TOURISM BOARD TO THE TOURISM BOARD, TO REDUCE THE 

NUMBER OF MEMBERS FROM NINE TO SEVEN; TO CLARIFY BOARD MEETING 

ATTENDANCE REQUIREMENTS; AND TO ELIMINATE BOARD PARTICIPATION 

IN CITY EMPLOYMENT FUNCTIONS. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

                Article III, Visitors and Tourism Board, of Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the 

Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby stricken in its entirety and a new 

Article III, Tourism Board, consisting of Section 17-299, Created, Section 17-300, Membership 

of Board; Appointment of Members, Section 17-301, Term of Office of Board Members, Section 

17-302, Compensation of Members of Board, Section 17-303, Absence of Members From 

Board Meetings, Section 17-304, Director of Community Development to Serve as Ex-Officio 

Member of Board, Section 17-305, Powers and Duties of Board, and Section 17-306, 

Appropriation of Funds for Tourism Services and Programs, is enacted in lieu thereof, as 

follows: 

• ARTICLE VIII. - TOURISM BOARD  

Sec. 17-299. Created. 

There is hereby established in the city a city tourism board.  

(Code 2017, § 20-321; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-300. Membership of board; appointment of members. 

(a) The city tourism board shall be composed of seven members.  

41

Item 7.



(b) The members shall be qualified by general knowledge or experience in matters related to 
tourism programs.  

(c) Members shall not hold any elective position in the city.  

(d) The members shall be appointed by the mayor, subject to approval of the city council.  

(e) An effort shall be made to appoint members to the board who represent various segments 
of the hospitality industry, including, festivals, special events, attractions, lodging, dining, 
the University of Northern Iowa, city businesses, and the community at-large while making 
a good faith effort to maintain gender equity as required by state law.  

(f) In so far as reasonably practicable, appointees for membership on the board shall be 
residents of the city, or, if that is not reasonably practicable, shall have a place of 
employment in the city. Appointees who are neither residents of the city nor who have a 
place of employment in the city may be eligible for appointment to the board upon a finding 
of the unavailability of qualified applicants, as determined by the mayor. Any person who is 
a member of the board on the date of adoption of the ordinance from which this article is 
derived who does not meet the qualifications for membership set forth herein shall continue 
to be eligible to serve as a member of the board until both the expiration of his current term 
and the member's non-reappointment by the mayor to an additional term.  

(Code 2017, § 20-322; Ord. No. 2820, § 1, 6-9-2014; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-301. Term of office of board members. 

The term of office of the members of the city tourism board shall be three years. 
Appointments to fill vacancies shall be for the unexpired term of any board member.  

(Code 2017, § 20-323; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-302. Compensation of members of board. 

All members of the city tourism board shall serve without compensation, except for their 
actual expenses, which shall be subject to the approval of the city council.  

(Code 2017, § 20-324; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-303. Absence of members from board meetings. 

Members of the city tourism board absent from three consecutive or five total meetings of 
the board in a year, except in the case of sickness or temporary absence from the city, without 
due explanation of absence, shall surrender their office. The mayor shall then fill the vacant 
position, with city council approval.  

(Code 2017, § 20-325; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-304. Director of community development to serve as ex-officio member of board. 

The director of community development shall serve as an ex-officio member of the city 
tourism board, without voting privileges.  

(Code 2017, § 20-326; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2943, § 4, 6-3-2019) 

42

Item 7.



Sec. 17-305. Powers and duties of board. 

The city tourism board shall have and possess the following powers and duties and such 
other powers as may be incidental thereto as necessary, and such other powers as may be 
expressly conferred upon it by law:  

(1) To adopt rules and regulations governing the board's organization and procedure as 
may be deemed necessary. All bylaws, rules or regulations shall be consistent with 
state, federal and local statutes and shall be subject to the approval of the city council.  

(2) To develop and provide tourism programs for visitors to the city based on the level of 
financial support provided by the city council and other entities.  

(3) To enhance the economic development of the city by promoting the city as a visitors 
destination and as a viable setting to hold meetings, conventions, special events and 
community attractions.  

(4) To determine the operations and programming policy for tourism events, that will be 
administered by the department of community development through the manager of 
tourism/cultural programs division.  

(5) To serve as the city's review agency and coordinator of all outside agency and special 
group requests for city financial support related to the use of hotel/motel tax proceeds 
to support visitors and tourism services.  

(6) To recommend to the city council the approval of grants, projects or programs when 
necessary and timely as a part of the city's annual budget process.  

(7) To recommend to the city council for its approval guidelines and policies related to 
grant application processes, procedures and authorizations.  

(8) To recommend to the city council expenditures by the community development 
department on behalf of the city and board in conformance with the board's program 
policies.  

(Code 2017, § 20-327; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2943, § 4, 6-3-2019) 

Sec. 17-306. Appropriation of funds for tourism services and programs. 

The city council may annually appropriate a sum of money from the city's share of state 
hotel/motel tax receipts for the payment of a portion of the expense of operating the 
tourism/cultural programs division and programs.  

(Code 2017, § 20-328; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014

43

Item 7.



INTRODUCED:      April 1, 2024    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:    April 1, 2024    

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:    April 15, 2024    

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI:         

ADOPTED:            

                                                                                               

                                                                                                     

Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

      
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

44

Item 7.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager 

 DATE: March 25, 2024 

 SUBJECT: City Code of Ordinances Change Request – Tourism Board II 
  
 
 
Attached please find recommended changes to the City Code of Ordinances Subsection  
(15) of Section 2-277, Subpart of Subsection (B) of Section 2-654, and Subsection (14) 
of Section 2-655. 
 
Upon approval of the revisions to the previously mentioned City Code of Ordinances 
Chapter 17, Article VIII. Visitors And Tourism Board, we suggest these additional 
updates to keep division and building names consistent throughout the code including 
the references in sections relating to information provided to City Council and duties of 
the Director of Community Development.  
 
The document is red-lined so you can easily see proposed updates. 
 
 
Staff recommends Council approval.   
 
 
Cc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 

45

Item 8.



 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE CHANGING REFERENCES TO THE VISITORS AND 

TOURISM BOARD TO REFERENCES TO THE TOURISM BOARD, BY 

AMENDING THE FOLLOWING: 

SUBSECTION (15), OF SECTION 2-277, INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED 
TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV, 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, OF CHAPTER 2, 
ADMINISTRATION; 

SUBPART 1(b) OF SUBSECTION (B), POWERS AND DUTIES, OF SECTION 
2-654, DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT—GENERALLY, OF 
DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE VI, DEPARTMENT OF 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, OF CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION; 

SUBSECTION (14), OF SECTION 2-655, DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT—DUTIES RELATIVE TO BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND 
COMMITTEES, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE VI, 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, OF CHAPTER 2, 
ADMINISTRATION; 

ALL IN THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

                Section 1.  Unnumbered Subsection (15), of Section 2-277, Information to be 

Provided to Mayor and Council, of Division 1, Generally, of Article IV, Department of Community 

Development, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, is hereby stricken in its entirety and a new unnumbered Subsection (15) is enacted 

in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 2-277. Information to be provided to mayor and council. 

The following boards and commissions of the city, together with any other boards or commissions of the city 
established by the city council from time to time, shall provide the mayor and the city council with the following 
available information as to notice and agenda of official meetings, minutes of all official meetings, financial 
information and reports, as the information is provided to the following boards and commissions:  

                                           [unchanged provisions omitted] 

                          (15) Visitors and Ttourism board.  

 

46

Item 8.



                   Section 2.    Unnumbered Subpart 1(b), of Subsection (b), Powers and Duties, of 
Section 2-654, Director of Community Development—Generally, of Division 1, Generally, of 
Article VI, Department of Community Development, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby stricken in its entirety and a new 
Unnumbered Subpart 1(b) is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 2-654. Director of community development—Generally. 

                                            [unchanged provisions omitted] 

(b) Powers and duties. 

(1) The director of community development shall supervise, direct and manage the conduct of the 
following divisions:  

a. Planning and community services.  

b. Visitors and Ttourism/cultural programs.  

c. Inspection services.  

d. Recreation and community programs.  

 

                    Section 2.    Unnumbered Subsection (14), of Section 2-655, Director of Community 
Development—Duties Relative to Boards, Commissions and Committees, of Division 1, 
Generally, of Article VI, Department of Community Development, of Chapter 2, Administration, 
of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby stricken in its entirety and 
a new Unnumbered Subsection (14) is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 2-655. Director of community development—Duties relative to boards, commissions and 

committees. 

The director of community development or the director's designee shall meet regularly with and furnish such 
assistance and information to the following commissions, boards, committees and other organizations when 
necessary:  

                                        [unchanged provisions omitted] 

               (14) Visitors and Ttourism board.  

 

 

INTRODUCED: _______________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI: _________________________________ 

ADOPTED: ___________________________________________________ 

                                                                                               

47

Item 8.



                                                                                              ____________________ 

                                                                                                Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

48

Item 8.



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 3056 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING DIVISION 3, VISITORS AND 

TOURISM/CULTURAL PROGRAMS DIVISION, OF ARTICLE VI, 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, OF CHAPTER 2, 

ADMINISTRATION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, CONSISTING OF SECTION  2-715, CREATED; 

SECTION 2-716, POWERS AND DUTIES; SECTION 2-717, MANAGER; AND 

SECTION 2-718, ACTING MANAGER BY STRIKING SAID DIVISION IN ITS 

ENTIRETY AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW DIVISION 3, 

TOURISM/CULTURAL PROGRAMS DIVISION, CONSISTING OF THE SAME 

SECTIONS WITH THE SAME TITLES, SO AS TO CHANGE THE NAME OF 

THE DIVISION. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

Division 3, Visitors and Tourism/Cultural Programs Division, of Article VI, Department of 

Community Development, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby stricken in its entirety and a new Division 3, Tourism/Cultural 

Programs Division, consisting of Section 2-715, Created, Section 2-716, Powers and Duties, 

Section 2-717, Manager, and Section 2-718, Acting Manager, is enacted in lieu thereof, as 

follows: 

DIVISION 3. TOURISM/CULTURAL PROGRAMS DIVISION1 Sec. 2-715. Created 

The tourism/cultural programs division of the department of community development for 

the city is hereby created. 

(Code 2017, § 2-581; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2940, § 1, 6-3-2019) 

Sec. 2-716. Powers and duties. 

(a) It shall be the duty of the tourism/cultural programs division of the department of 
community development to provide tourism programs and services for the visitors and 
tourists to the city that promote overnight lodging, purchase of goods and services from city 
businesses, and promote special events, festivals, and attractions in the city; and to 
provide cultural programs for the citizens of the city, including fine arts, performing arts, 
spectator arts and crafts.  

(b) The division shall have the power to operate and maintain the tourism/cultural programs 
services offices, in compliance with the operations and programming policy prescribed by 
the city tourism board, the director of community development, and the city council; and to 

49

Item 8.



operate and maintain the Hearst Center for the Arts, in compliance with the operations and 
programming policy prescribed by the city art and culture board, the director of community 
development, and the city council.  

(Code 2017, § 2-582; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2940, § 1, 6-3-2019)  

 

Sec. 2-717. Manager. 

(a) Appointment. A tourism/cultural programs division manager shall be appointed by the 
director of community development. Such appointment shall be in accordance with all 
statutory civil service procedures.  

(b) Powers and duties. The tourism/cultural programs division manager shall supervise, direct 
and manage the tourism/cultural programs division. The manager's powers and duties shall 
be as follows:  

(1) To promulgate orders, rules and regulations for the conduct and guidance of the 
members of the tourism/cultural programs division within the parameters of city, 
departmental, tourism board policies, and art and culture board policies.  

(2) To make an annual report of the activities of the division for each fiscal year, to be 
filed with the community development director, the tourism board, the art and culture 
board, and the city council.  

(3) To assign the personnel of the tourism/cultural programs division as deemed 
necessary to carry out the functions of the tourism/cultural programs division, and to 
prescribe rules and regulations for the conduct and management of the division 
consistent with city and departmental policies, tourism board policies, and art and 
culture board policies.  

(4) To perform or cause to be performed any other duties as directed by the director of 
community development.  

(5) To manage the tourism offices, programs and projects in accord with operations and 
programming policies established by the city tourism board, the director of community 
development, and the city council; and to manage the Hearst Center for the Arts, in 
compliance with operations and programming policies established by the city art and 
culture board, the director of community development, and the city council.  

(6) To implement a full range of tourism programs for the city within the financial 
constraints and program offerings recommended by the tourism board and authorized 
by the city council.  

(7) To implement a full range of art and cultural programs for the city within the financial 
constraints and program offerings recommended by the art and culture board and 
authorized by the city council.  

(8) To maintain for the city tourism board and for the art and culture board:  

a. Full and complete records of all proceedings.  

b. Full and complete records of all receipts and disbursements in conjunction with the 

financial services division.  

c. Full and complete records of all donations, devices and bequests received and 

disbursed, or placed in special accounts in conjunction with the financial services 

division.  

50

Item 8.



d. An inventory of all pictures, paintings, statues, relics, books, papers, journals, 

supplies, equipment, and other property held by the division in the city's name in 

conjunction with the financial services division.  

(Code 2017, § 2-583; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2940, § 1, 6-3-2019) 

Sec. 2-718. Acting manager. 

Whenever the tourism/cultural programs division manager is out of the city or is unable to 
act on account of sickness or for any other reason, including those periods of time when the 
director of community development has not appointed a tourism/cultural programs division 
manager, the tourism/cultural programs division manager or the director of community 
development shall appoint a designee who shall have and exercise all the powers and duties of 
the tourism/cultural programs division manager.  

(Code 2017, § 2-584; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2940, § 1, 6-3-201 

Secs. 2-719—2-741. Reserved. 

 

INTRODUCED:     April 1, 2024    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   April 1, 2024    

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   April 15, 2024    

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:        

ADOPTED:           

                                                                                               

 

                                                                                              _____________________________ 

                                                                                                Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

51

Item 8.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager 

 DATE: March 25, 2024 

 SUBJECT: City Code of Ordinances Change Request – Tourism Board III 
  
 
 
Attached please find recommended changes to the City Code of Ordinances Division 3, 
Visitors And Tourism/Cultural Programs Division, of Article VI, Department of 
Community Development, Chapter 2, Administration. 
 
Upon approval of the revisions to the previously mentioned City Code of Ordinances 
Chapter 17, Article VIII. Visitors And Tourism Board, we suggest these additional 
updates to keep division and building names consistent throughout the code including 
the references in sections relating to information about the division and its manager.  
 
The document is red-lined so you can easily see proposed updates. 
 
 
Staff recommends Council approval.   
 
 
Cc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 

52

Item 9.



 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING DIVISION 3, VISITORS AND 

TOURISM/CULTURAL PROGRAMS DIVISION, OF ARTICLE VI, 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, OF CHAPTER 2, 

ADMINISTRATION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, CONSISTING OF SECTION  2-715, CREATED; 

SECTION 2-716, POWERS AND DUTIES; SECTION 2-717, MANAGER; AND 

SECTION 2-718, ACTING MANAGER BY STRIKING SAID DIVISION IN ITS 

ENTIRETY AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW DIVISION 3, 

TOURISM/CULTURAL PROGRAMS DIVISION, CONSISTING OF THE SAME 

SECTIONS WITH THE SAME TITLES, SO AS TO CHANGE THE NAME OF 

THE DIVISION. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

                Division 3, Visitors and Tourism/Cultural Programs Division, of Article VI, Department 

of Community Development, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby stricken in its entirety and a new Division 3, Tourism/Cultural 

Programs Division, consisting of Section 2-715, Created, Section 2-716, Powers and Duties, 

Section 2-717, Manager, and Section 2-718, Acting Manager, is enacted in lieu thereof, as 

follows: 

DIVISION 3. VISITORS AND TOURISM/CULTURAL PROGRAMS DIVISION1 

Sec. 2-715. Created. 

The visitors and tourism/cultural programs division of the department of community development for the 
city is hereby created.  

(Code 2017, § 2-581; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2940, § 1, 6-3-2019) 

Sec. 2-716. Powers and duties. 

(a) It shall be the duty of the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division of the department of community 
development to provide visitors and tourism programs and services for the visitors and tourists to the city 
that promote overnight lodging, purchase of goods and services from city businesses, and promote special 
events, festivals, and attractions in the city; and to provide cultural programs for the citizens of the city, 
including fine arts, performing arts, spectator arts and crafts.  

(b) The division shall have the power to operate and maintain the visitors and tourism/cultural programs 
services offices, in compliance with the operations and programming policy prescribed by the city visitors 
and tourism board, the director of community development, and the city council; and to operate and 
maintain the James and Meryl Hearst Art and Culture Center for the Arts, in compliance with the operations 

 

 

53

Item 9.



 

 

and programming policy prescribed by the city art and culture board, the director of community 
development, and the city council.  

(Code 2017, § 2-582; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2940, § 1, 6-3-2019) 

Sec. 2-717. Manager. 

(a) Appointment. A visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager shall be appointed by the director 
of community development. Such appointment shall be in accordance with all statutory civil service 
procedures.  

(b) Powers and duties. The visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager shall supervise, direct and 
manage the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division. The manager's powers and duties shall be as 
follows:  

(1) To promulgate orders, rules and regulations for the conduct and guidance of the members of the 
visitors and tourism/cultural programs division within the parameters of city, departmental, visitors 
and tourism board policies, and art and culture board policies.  

(2) To make an annual report of the activities of the division for each fiscal year, to be filed with the 
community development director, the visitors and tourism board, the art and culture board, and the 
city council.  

(3) To assign the personnel of the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division as deemed necessary to 
carry out the functions of the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division, and to prescribe rules 
and regulations for the conduct and management of the division consistent with city and departmental 
policies, visitors and tourism board policies, and art and culture board policies.  

(4) To perform or cause to be performed any other duties as directed by the director of community 
development.  

(5) To manage the visitors and tourism offices, programs and projects in accord with operations and 
programming policies established by the city visitors and tourism board, the director of community 
development, and the city council; and to manage the James and Meryl Hearst Art and Culture Center 
for the Arts, in compliance with operations and programming policies established by the city art and 
culture board, the director of community development, and the city council.  

(6) To implement a full range of visitors and tourism programs for the city within the financial constraints 
and program offerings recommended by the visitors and tourism board and authorized by the city 
council.  

(7) To implement a full range of art and cultural programs for the city within the financial constraints and 
program offerings recommended by the art and culture board and authorized by the city council.  

(8) To maintain for the city visitors and tourism board and for the art and culture board:  

a. Full and complete records of all proceedings.  

b. Full and complete records of all receipts and disbursements in conjunction with the financial 

services division.  

c. Full and complete records of all donations, devices and bequests received and disbursed, or 

placed in special accounts in conjunction with the financial services division.  

d. An inventory of all pictures, paintings, statues, relics, books, papers, journals, supplies, 

equipment, and other property held by the division in the city's name in conjunction with 

the financial services division.  

(Code 2017, § 2-583; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2940, § 1, 6-3-2019) 

54

Item 9.



 

 

Sec. 2-718. Acting manager. 

Whenever the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager is out of the city or is unable to act on 
account of sickness or for any other reason, including those periods of time when the director of community 
development has not appointed a visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager, the visitors and 
tourism/cultural programs division manager or the director of community development shall appoint a designee 
who shall have and exercise all the powers and duties of the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division 
manager.  

(Code 2017, § 2-584; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2940, § 1, 6-3-201 

 

 

 

 

Secs. 2-719—2-741. Reserved. 

 

INTRODUCED: _______________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

ADOPTED: ___________________________________________________ 

                                                                                               

                                                                                              ____________________ 

                                                                                                Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

 

55

Item 9.



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 3057 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING DIVISION 3, VISITORS AND 

TOURISM/CULTURAL PROGRAMS DIVISION, OF ARTICLE VI, 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, OF CHAPTER 2, 

ADMINISTRATION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, CONSISTING OF SECTION  2-715, CREATED; 

SECTION 2-716, POWERS AND DUTIES; SECTION 2-717, MANAGER; AND 

SECTION 2-718, ACTING MANAGER BY STRIKING SAID DIVISION IN ITS 

ENTIRETY AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW DIVISION 3, 

TOURISM/CULTURAL PROGRAMS DIVISION, CONSISTING OF THE SAME 

SECTIONS WITH THE SAME TITLES, SO AS TO CHANGE THE NAME OF 

THE DIVISION. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

Division 3, Visitors and Tourism/Cultural Programs Division, of Article VI, Department of 

Community Development, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby stricken in its entirety and a new Division 3, Tourism/Cultural 

Programs Division, consisting of Section 2-715, Created, Section 2-716, Powers and Duties, 

Section 2-717, Manager, and Section 2-718, Acting Manager, is enacted in lieu thereof, as 

follows: 

DIVISION 3. TOURISM/CULTURAL PROGRAMS DIVISION1 Sec. 2-715. Created 

The tourism/cultural programs division of the department of community development for 

the city is hereby created. 

(Code 2017, § 2-581; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2940, § 1, 6-3-2019) 

Sec. 2-716. Powers and duties. 

(a) It shall be the duty of the tourism/cultural programs division of the department of 
community development to provide tourism programs and services for the visitors and 
tourists to the city that promote overnight lodging, purchase of goods and services from city 
businesses, and promote special events, festivals, and attractions in the city; and to 
provide cultural programs for the citizens of the city, including fine arts, performing arts, 
spectator arts and crafts.  

(b) The division shall have the power to operate and maintain the tourism/cultural programs 
services offices, in compliance with the operations and programming policy prescribed by 
the city tourism board, the director of community development, and the city council; and to 
operate and maintain the Hearst Center for the Arts, in compliance with the operations and 

56

Item 9.



programming policy prescribed by the city art and culture board, the director of community 
development, and the city council.  

(Code 2017, § 2-582; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2940, § 1, 6-3-2019)  

 

Sec. 2-717. Manager. 

(a) Appointment. A tourism/cultural programs division manager shall be appointed by the 
director of community development. Such appointment shall be in accordance with all 
statutory civil service procedures.  

(b) Powers and duties. The tourism/cultural programs division manager shall supervise, direct 
and manage the tourism/cultural programs division. The manager's powers and duties shall 
be as follows:  

(1) To promulgate orders, rules and regulations for the conduct and guidance of the 
members of the tourism/cultural programs division within the parameters of city, 
departmental, tourism board policies, and art and culture board policies.  

(2) To make an annual report of the activities of the division for each fiscal year, to be 
filed with the community development director, the tourism board, the art and culture 
board, and the city council.  

(3) To assign the personnel of the tourism/cultural programs division as deemed 
necessary to carry out the functions of the tourism/cultural programs division, and to 
prescribe rules and regulations for the conduct and management of the division 
consistent with city and departmental policies, tourism board policies, and art and 
culture board policies.  

(4) To perform or cause to be performed any other duties as directed by the director of 
community development.  

(5) To manage the tourism offices, programs and projects in accord with operations and 
programming policies established by the city tourism board, the director of community 
development, and the city council; and to manage the Hearst Center for the Arts, in 
compliance with operations and programming policies established by the city art and 
culture board, the director of community development, and the city council.  

(6) To implement a full range of tourism programs for the city within the financial 
constraints and program offerings recommended by the tourism board and authorized 
by the city council.  

(7) To implement a full range of art and cultural programs for the city within the financial 
constraints and program offerings recommended by the art and culture board and 
authorized by the city council.  

(8) To maintain for the city tourism board and for the art and culture board:  

a. Full and complete records of all proceedings.  

b. Full and complete records of all receipts and disbursements in conjunction with the 

financial services division.  

c. Full and complete records of all donations, devices and bequests received and 

disbursed, or placed in special accounts in conjunction with the financial services 

division.  

57

Item 9.



d. An inventory of all pictures, paintings, statues, relics, books, papers, journals, 

supplies, equipment, and other property held by the division in the city's name in 

conjunction with the financial services division.  

(Code 2017, § 2-583; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2940, § 1, 6-3-2019) 

Sec. 2-718. Acting manager. 

Whenever the tourism/cultural programs division manager is out of the city or is unable to 
act on account of sickness or for any other reason, including those periods of time when the 
director of community development has not appointed a tourism/cultural programs division 
manager, the tourism/cultural programs division manager or the director of community 
development shall appoint a designee who shall have and exercise all the powers and duties of 
the tourism/cultural programs division manager.  

(Code 2017, § 2-584; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2940, § 1, 6-3-201 

Secs. 2-719—2-741. Reserved. 

 

INTRODUCED:     April 1, 2024     

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   April 1, 2024     

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   April 15, 2024     

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:         

ADOPTED:            

                                                                                               

 

                                                                                                    

                                                                                             Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

58

Item 9.



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Legal Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Laudick, City Council 

 FROM: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

 DATE: April 17, 2024 

   SUBJECT:   CFU Board of Trustees Pay Adjustment 
 
 

Please find attached a letter dated March 13, 2024, from Steven Bernard, General 

Manager/CEO of CFU to Mayor Laudick regarding a proposed ordinance amendment to adjust 

Board of Trustees pay. 

 

Also attached please find the proposed ordinance amendment.  Note that the amendment is 

slightly different than stated in Mr. Bernard’s letter, but the changes are for clarification purposes 

only and dates and amounts were not changed from the original request.  CFU has approved 

this version. 

 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.   

 

Thank you.  

59

Item 10.



60

Item 10.



 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 
 

       AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 2-451, COMPENSATION, OF DIVISION 6, 
UTILITIES BOARD OF TRUSTEES, OF ARTICLE IV, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS, OF 
CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW SECTION 2-451, 
COMPENSATION, FOR THE PURPOSE OF ADJUSTING THE COMPENSATION OF 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARDS OF TRUSTEES. 

 
       BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
       1.     Section 1.  Section 2-451, Compensation, of Division 6, Utilities Board of Trustees, of 

Article IV, Boards and Commissions, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a 
new Section 2-451, Compensation, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 2-451. Compensation. 

Trustees of the board of trustees shall each receive the sum of $68.75$50.00 per month as 
compensation from each of the water, electric, gas and communication utilities, beginning July 
1, 2024.  Beginning March 1, 2025, a compensation adjustment shall be awarded equal to the 
percent change in the federal consumer price index for the prior calendar year that precedes the 
effective date of the adjustment, to be applied monthly for the ensuing year.  The index used 
shall be the Historical Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers, (CPI-U) U.S. city 
average, All items – December annual average percent change from the previous year as 
published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics.  If the percent change is negative, no 
adjustment shall be awarded.  

(Code 2017, § 2-300; Ord. No. 2773, § 1, 7-23-2012) 

 

INTRODUCED: ________________________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: __________________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: __________________________________________ 

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION: __________________________________________ 

 
                                                                               ______________________________ 
                                                                               Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

61

Item 10.



 

ORDINANCE NO. 3058 
 

       AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 2-451, COMPENSATION, OF DIVISION 6, 
UTILITIES BOARD OF TRUSTEES, OF ARTICLE IV, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS, OF 
CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW SECTION 2-451, 
COMPENSATION, FOR THE PURPOSE OF ADJUSTING THE COMPENSATION OF 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARDS OF TRUSTEES. 

 
       BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
       1.     Section 1.  Section 2-451, Compensation, of Division 6, Utilities Board of Trustees, of 

Article IV, Boards and Commissions, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a 
new Section 2-451, Compensation, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 2-451. Compensation. 

Trustees of the board of trustees shall each receive the sum of $68.75 per month as 
compensation from each of the water, electric, gas and communication utilities, beginning July 
1, 2024.  Beginning March 1, 2025, a compensation adjustment shall be awarded equal to the 
percent change in the federal consumer price index for the prior calendar year that precedes the 
effective date of the adjustment, to be applied monthly for the ensuing year.  The index used 
shall be the Historical Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers, (CPI-U) U.S. city 
average, All items – December annual average percent change from the previous year as 
published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics.  If the percent change is negative, no 
adjustment shall be awarded.  

(Code 2017, § 2-300; Ord. No. 2773, § 1, 7-23-2012) 

 

INTRODUCED:      April 15, 2024    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:    April 15, 2024    

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:         

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:         

 
                                                                               ______________________________ 
                                                                               Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

62

Item 10.



MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

City Hall, 220 Clay Street 

April 15, 2024 

 

Committee of the Whole:  

Mayor Laudick called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Committee of the 

Whole Agenda, Discussion on Regular Council Meetings to be held on Tuesdays. Jennifer 

Rodenbeck, Finance and Businesses Operations Director brought forth information to respond 

to the request made at the March 4th, 2024 Council Meeting. Director Rodenbeck gave an 

overview of other towns’ council meeting schedules and stated the potential conflicts for Cable 

TV staff and productions, and questioned if this would change the packet submission deadline 

to Thursdays instead of Wednesdays. Councilmembers discussed the conflict that could arise 

for viewing due to event overlap, being able to address requests sent in over the weekend prior 

to the meeting, other meeting schedules and staffing concerns, and personal conflicts. The 

Council unanimously decided to leave meetings on Monday nights. No motion needed.  

 

The meeting adjourned at 6:36 p.m. 

 

Minutes by Shianne Bellinger, Administrative Assistant 

 

 

 

63

Item 11.



 MAYOR DANNY LAUDICK 
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 
 www.cedarfalls.com  
 

 

 

 FROM:  Mayor Danny Laudick 

 TO:  City Council 

 DATE:  May 6, 2024 

 SUBJECT:  Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission – Initial Member Appointments 

 REF:  (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls, Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission 

   (b) CFD 9101: Appointment Process for Boards and Commissions 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a) and (b), I 
hereby nominate the following community members for appointment to the new Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Commission for staggered terms beginning immediately. 
 

a. Elyse Platt - for a vacancy of a term expiring 9/30/2027 
b. Gretchen Harken – for a vacancy of a term expiring 9/30/2028 

 
2. In accordance with the Committee of the Whole decision on December 5, 2022, the 

candidates will not be required to attend another formal interview with council, but will 
instead be invited to attend the council meeting to be recognized and to answer any council 
questions before their confirmation vote, as desired by Council. 

 
Encl: Applications for Elyse Platt and Gretchen Harken.  
 
xc:   City Administrator 
  Director of Community Development 
   
 

### 
 
 

64

Item 12.



l~I GENERAL APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO CITY BOARDS & COMMISSIONS I :Bl Thank you for your interest in volunteer civic service. Complete all sections of this application; please contact City Hail 
- at (319) 273-8600 with questions. The City of Cedar Falls is committed to providing equal opportunity for citizen Involvement. 

·~.,-1 
Elyse 

Name: ....... .... ........ . ....................... . 
Platt F 10/1/2023 

Gender: .... .... .... Date: .. _ .......... .. .... .... . . 
First Ml Last 

Home Address: .... ... .. ... . ........... ........ ........ ... ... .... .. . .... ......... .... .... ..... . Home Phone: ....... .......... ..... .. .. ... .... ............ .... .. 

Work Address: ... ..... . ...... .... ...... .•........ .. .. .. .. .. .. .... ...... ..... . .... ..... .... ..... Work Phone: .... ..... ..... ... ...... .. ............. .. ... ... ... . 

E-mail Address: .. ... ... ......... .. . .. .... .. .. .. . . . . . .. ...• .... .. .. .... . ..... ... Cell Phone: .............. .. .... ....... .......... ....... .. ... . 

CUNA Mutual I TruStage . . Continuous Improvement Coach 
Employer: ... ...... .. .. .. .. .. ..... ........ . ......... ...... .. ........ .... ..... Pos1t1on/Occupatlon: . ......... .................. ................................ . 

If Cedar Falls resident, length of residency: . ~~ -~~~.~~ ... ... ............... City Ward: .............. . 0 I have a Linkedln Profile 

DESIRED NOMINATIONS: Check or fill in boxes for all that apply; view detailed descriptions at https:llbit.lylcf-boards 

0 Art and Culture Board D Board of Rental Housing Appeals D Human Rights Commission 
D Board of Adjustment O Civil Service Commission D Library Board of Trustees 
D Board of Appeals 0 Community Center & Senior Services Board ll Parks & Recreation Commission 

_____ ___ _ O_Board of.Electric.Examiners &Appeals elHealth. Trust Fund Board __ _ _____ - · g Pla.nning.& Zoning Commission ·--
D Board of Mechanical Examiners & Appeals 0 Historic Preservation Commission 0 U61ities Board of Trustees 
O Board of Plumbing Examiners & Appeals O Housing Commission B Visitors & Tourism B~rd ;_ 1,.-

,,, A~ • L-\.V1."1.:>"i,~ 
.. ~' (,'l c..\...:. °'"" •. e. ~= '"""'- ~ 

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT: Please describe past and present involvement in the community, incluiilng voluntary, social, cicy, 
religious, school, business and professional (include dates and offices held, if applicable). <::.-1......\.. ·,...... L.=k l.oo 

~<'..>'{"'=> -..Jl &=, ~\~ 
l..,__ ~ \)~?\, I 7e..,...,ej ""-'7 ""' '""'~~ .... c;....~ ~ C.da.-' r:c:.ll"!> . .It....>-=-~ 

I • f-----o Le~, dr l:1""C:..:.\"" £fe-e-.+"""1.1 'l-
0.~ ~\.\ ~~ ~O"'-GIA'"') - - \ ) I \ ue..\\e\.( Le.c..JJe---~ ·,f 
A ~ ...... ~e.... o\ ~ GIR~ ,c·<=-k_, l.J""-''-e'i CVL' r.._Le..,J1&J I 

'\ - \ • i \......._ \....-. ...,,,·t'(\,. ~ c.&ic...r (k,,9 
:C,,_..,.+_>n.,..-l..c J Z.C>\°\ c::.-\c-."::>":>. ~ c°"""""''-""e-- = Uo - ~ eve.v-~ 
\\v.""" .,._.,._ ?eoc-;e,-h_l ~.,_ \,,..o~"'"> --\z..'-::>k~ c::..lr- ~ ~\.p u~ \.\ell"' -\_.a..,.... ~ 

QUALi Fl CATIONS: Please list any special quoliflcotions for board service, including skills, training and certt cations. ''"-~ ~s~ , _ · 
?\'\ ~'"""'""' .; -S, 'v,.

0
\f).. ,,,._ ~-e.\e ... .:"':> J~.::.<Z- \-.... ~s·, ........... s~ A:Q....:,-s-\-.-~. -p .... e.~ \' +u..r' 

~ rU..... c,:,.l-. . !r- l.o"s. A __ c..le.~ \::=.~ ..... e. ~c..--5·, d.e.-..- ..e.Jl 
I ~o-r"-eJ. "i\>-" '\ c- . ::1\.\ -v<::,.,c;..::.cJ2. '"'"' Al.A- r'?o.,,_ ... .J. 
"'-· _ · +o C ed!o...-- l=.:::\\s c-.J c.,..,.... 
r V'£C>V' ""', 

~ ~Jo--dl. ~ce.-s~s ct ~~V\-Q-.\- . 
MOTIVATION: Why do you desire to serve on city boards and commissions, and wh$contributions do you believe you can make? 
~ !Qe... v-eJ.c .. \:.ve:.l'-( IAl!!-~e..... ~ O::::cdh.- l-=\\.s. 4\......--.... ~-- ~p\;c...c.-.-\s, 
J._ ~'( 4 ·,"::;> h~s 'oe.. ~.e.. n,,.'1 i-...o~G?;. c::<.-J/. \ .:::;..,...... -eP-.'\e.r . -1'b . ~CA.c.-4' 
~v-_ {1 , at- l'\o--vl ~<.A .... :+... ~\...,\e... ""="'-""""") <Aet..v c.0 .... ...__e..::.-+:.°""~. (\l'.'1 . 
q~ ~ ... e:.. l • , { \- • oA_,,,_-\ - l=o\::\""'"\ ,,,;,...J... ~,,,.... ...... ~ 

('-- . I _ l · t <:::> \ II'\. CO"--"""' ...... C'-" C::. I vir-.D~U e..v ..............- . I 
~C>.>,-c:--;::,~1~ e.')(.~cz...v-<'\"S>e.- • \~ \ \o £..<_...e\""\\....,.....,.,,_ 
~ ch~e...-~:r (?~~pc=\.lvc:.-~ =..-.9 e.l..,k:>.\. ... .c:...\.:.--..~ ~ !..>""' u '1 ,\;.. \l 

POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTERES1: Please list orggnizations and relationships which could pose a potential conflict of ~ """ 0 
interest duringyour service on a city board or commission. Civic leaders are expected to have many ties to community organization 'v;e.....a~ ..\- c;...,..~ 
and people; this listing does not preclude appointment but Is Intended to provide transparency and accountability for board serv . \e..fJ. 

e.:i<.r~c-

NIA e~.,....l.: /co~..\ 

Please e-mail completed this application to boards@cedarfalls.com 

or Mail to Mayor, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
You wlll be contacted to submit a Candidate Questionnaire when a board vacancy occurs. 

VV'l) cJ~=~ 

\)v't.>k%\~o-- \ e..:><.pe-v~ e..<A: 

. u ""'- \. 0-..j,_ ~ e.~.,...-c:..., 
VI"-' ~c;A. ./e ,. 
~ ~._,e,. ~ c.oi--.,.......;~ 

lf\At'. la., ~ 0- )= \ 

u .... J>1oU-e--, 

65

Item 12.



CFO 9610 - Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission - Candidate Questionnaire CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA I Page 1 of 2 

BICYCLE & PEDESTRIAN COMMISSION CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRE 

Name: Elyse Platt Date: 3/19/2024 

Can you regularly attend Commission meetings on the 1st Tuesday of the month at 5:15pm at City Hall? ~ Yes D No 

1. Why are you interested in serving on the Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission? 

I grew up in Southern California during a time when not everything was paved over and extensive paved and 

dirt trails connected neighborhoods, open spaces, and shopping centers. I spent many hours over the years 

enjoying the outdoors through biking these areas; it's a fond memory. Now, I rarely use the trails; I stay within 

the downtown area (close to home) because it seems safer in the more populated/heavily traveled area. I 

would like to serve to see that change - to better understand why I don't see many people when I have 

ventured to the trails and to ensure we can bring biking/walking/running solutions that meet the needs of the 

community. 

2. What is your background and experience with bicycle and pedestrian issues? 

I am just a member of the community who enjoys staying active -you'll see me mostly year-round riding my 

bike or walking the dog throughout the area. 

3. What goals/policies/activities would you like the Commission to work toward? 
I know there was a recent accident between a vehicle and bicyclist on 12th St. While protection from drivers 
is important, especially on the shared road trails, I wonder how common this concern is compared to those 
of suspicious individuals and person-to-person incidents on the dedicated trails. Personally, I have 
experienced and heard about more concern with individuals worried about utilizing the dedicated trails 
while alone. I would like more focus on safety of dedicated trails such as ensuring adequate lighting for 
early morning or evening use and gaining understanding of how much of the community actually frequents 
the trails and why/why not so that everyone is comfortable getting out there. 

4. What do you believe is the purpose and value of the Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission? 
I believe this commission can influence our community with safe alternatives to motor vehicle transport for 
daily commuting as well as thoughtful recreational plans that enable more time spent away from screens 
and enjoying the simplicity and beauty of the space available to us. 

5. What resources, tools or activities would you use to be an informed and engaged member of the Bicycle 
and Pedestrian Commission? 
In my profession as a Continuous Improvement Consultant/Coach, I am proficient with various tools and 
approaches for better understanding how to change or improve a situation - this includes surveying, deploying 
pilot programs, finding lost-cost high-benefit solutions, and conducting root cause analysis. I am dedicated to 
contributing to my community and I believe that together we can (1) understand what the community wants 
and (2) improve usage of the resources available. 

Please send this completed Candidate Questionnaire by the published deadline to: 
City of Cedar Falls, Boards & Commissions, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, fax to (319) 268-5126, 
or e-mail to boards@cedarfalls.com. You will be notified shortly if selected as a Finalist for the appointment. 
This application is a public document and is available to be viewed, reproduced, or distributed to the public, other than 
information the City deems to be confidential. 

66

Item 12.



67

Item 12.



68

Item 12.



69

Item 12.



 MAYOR DANNY LAUDICK  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

  

 FROM: Mayor Danny Laudick  

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: May 6, 2024 

 SUBJECT: Board of Rental Housing Appeals Re-Appointment 

 REF: Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §11-301: Board of Rental Housing Appeals 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), I hereby 

nominate the following member of the Board of Rental Housing Appeals for reappointment 

to an additional four-year term: 

 

 Cindy Wiles, term ends 5/1/2028 

 

2. This member has been recommended for reappointment by staff, and has carried out their 

responsibilities as a board member successfully. 

 

 

xc:   City Administrator 

  Director, Community Development 

 

### 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

70

Item 12.



MAYOR DANNY LAUDICK 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com 

TO: City Council 
 FROM: Mayor Danny Laudick   

 DATE: May 6, 2024 

 SUBJECT: Appointment of Human Rights Commissioner 

REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §12-27: Human Rights      

  Commission 

(b) CFD 1201.22b: Appointment Process for City Boards and Commissions 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a)
and my process outlined in reference (b), I hereby nominate the following citizen for
appointment to the Human Rights Commission:

• Eryn Hamann, term ends 7/1/2025

2. This nominee has been interviewed by the Selection Committee and has been
determined to be the most qualified candidate for appointment; their General
Application and Candidate Questionnaire is attached for your consideration.

Encl:  (1) General Application and Candidate Questionnaires for nominee 

xc: City Administrator 
Director, Finance and Business Operations 
Staff Liaison 

### 

71

Item 12.



72

Item 12.



73

Item 12.



74

Item 12.



75

Item 12.



 MAYOR DANNY LAUDICK  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 

FROM: Mayor Danny Laudick  

TO:  City Council 

DATE: May 6, 2024 

SUBJECT: Re-Appointment to Cedar Falls Utilities Board of Trustees 

REF:  (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §2-448: Utilities Board of  

                              Trustees 

 

1. In accordance with reference (a), I hereby nominate Marabeth Soneson for 

reappointment to the Cedar Falls Utilities Board of Trustees for a six-year term 

beginning on August 31, 2024 and ending on August 31, 2030.  

 

2. In considering re-appointment, I note that Marabeth Soneson’s attendance has 

been satisfactory, and they have been an active and informed member of the 

board. 

 

3. Please contact me with any additional questions you have about this re-

appointment. 

 

xc:   City Administrator 

  CFU General Manager 

   

  

### 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

76

Item 12.



“OUR CITIZENS ARE OUR BUSINESS” 

 OFFICE OF CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 
 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council Members 

 FROM: Ron Gaines, City Administrator 

 DATE: April 29, 2024 

 SUBJECT: Departmental Quarterly Reports Submission – January-March 2024 

 
Please contact Administrator Gaines with any questions about the accomplishments of city staff 
contained in this quarterly report. 
 

Encl: (1) City of Cedar Falls Departmental Quarterly Reports. 

### 
 

77

Item 13.



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
DEPARTMENTAL QUARTERLY REPORTS 

 

JANUARY – MARCH 
2024 

78

Item 13.



JANUARY – MARCH 2024 QUARTERLY REPORTS 
Table of Contents 

 
Finance & Business Operations 
 

Financial Services Division……………………………………………………………….1 
 

Human Resources Division……………………………………………………………….3 
 
Information Systems Division…………………………………………………………….5 
 
Legal Services Division…………………………………………………………………...8 
 
Public Records Division…………………………………………………………………..9 
 
Cedar Falls Library & Community Center………………………………………………10 
 

 
Community Development 
 

Inspection Services Division…………………………………………………………….11 
 
Code Enforcement……………………………………………………………………….13 
 
Planning & Community Services Division………………………………………………15 
 
Recreation & Community Programs……………………………………………..………19  
 
Visitors & Tourism and Cultural Programs……………………………………………...21 

 
 
Municipal Operations & Programs 
 

Engineering Division…………………………………………………………………….24 
 

Public Works & Parks Division………………………………………………………….27 
 
Water Reclamation Division……………………………………………………………..28 
 
 

 
Public Safety Services 
 

Police/Fire Operations…………………………………………………………………...30 
 
 

79

Item 13.



FINANCIAL SERVICES 
1st Quarter – Jan-Feb-Mar 2024 

 
 
Treasury  

Financial Services is responsible for maintaining accounting and cashflow as it relates 
to the city treasury, monitoring securities held by the City and investing idle cash to 
provide safe investments while maximizing interest earnings.  Currently, the City has 
$96,243,370 invested in CD's and $300,000 in a liquid money market. 
 
Investments                                        Transactions                   Amount 
CD's Matured 9 $34,254,370.00 
CD's Purchased                                                 11 38,754,370.00 
PFMM Deposit 0 0.00 
PFMM Withdrawal 0 0.00 
CD/Investment Interest     $1,929,217.41 

 
FY25 Budget 

During January and February, the preliminary FY2025-2027 Financial Plan was 
prepared for the Council.  The Financial Plan includes various financial information and 
charts illustrating the City’s proposed expenditures and revenues for FY2025 and 
projections for FY2026 and FY2027.  A budget presentation was given at the February 
19th Committee of the Whole meeting.  Staff forwarded the maximum proposed total rate 
that the Council set to the County in order to send a letter to all taxpayers which includes 
the maximum proposed total rate and the date of the special hearing. (New requirements 
under HF718) The first special public hearing, as required by HF718, will be held on 
April 1st with the required notices happening prior to that date. The second public hearing 
to approve the budget will likely be set for April 15th and again the required notices will 
occur prior the hearing.  The final FY2025-2027 Financial Plan will be completed after 
that date. 
The state required budget forms will be completed in April.  The state budget forms 
include the FY2025 budget figures as well as the FY2023 actual figures and the FY2024 
projected figures. 
 

FY25 Capital Improvements Plan 
The Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) was presented to Council at the January 2nd 
Finance and Business Operations Committee meeting. City Council approved the CIP 
at the January 16th public hearing.   

 
FY24 Budget 

Departmental amendments to the FY24 Budget were sent out to the departments in 
March and the submission of changes will be in April.   
 

1 80

Item 13.



 
Miscellaneous Financial Activities 

For January, February and March a total of 81 payroll checks and 2,073 direct deposits 
were processed. Accounts receivable processed and mailed 284 invoices to our customers 
for the quarter.  4,541 transactions for accounts payable were processed and approved by 
the City Council for payment and 1,505 checks were mailed out to vendors for the quarter. 
For calendar year 2023, 590 W-2s for employees of the City of Cedar Falls checked for 
accuracy and printed. They were distributed to employees prior to the January 31st deadline.  
Also included with each W-2 was a 2023 Benefit Summary for each employee.  The 
summary outlined all benefits paid by the City on behalf of the employees.  These benefits 
included health insurance, life insurance, long-term disability benefits, IPERS, 411 pension, 
Social Security, and Medicare.  All full-time employees and certain covered retirees 
received form 1095-C health insurance tax document to comply with coverage requirements 
of the Affordable Care Act. In addition, all required 1099s were printed and distributed to 
various vendors in January.   
The Cedar Falls Community Foundation audit was performed in February by Bergan, KDV. 
 
 

2 81

Item 13.



FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
Jan-Mar 2024 Quarterly Report 

 
SUMMARY OF PROJECTS, TRAINING & STAFF ACTIVITIES 

• Risk Management Committee meetings held 1/17, 2/7, 2/21, 3/6, 3/20   
• Review of 17 contracts/agreements for required insurance 
• Review and follow-up of 21 public event permit 
• Completion of annual MVR review 
• On-going annual Firefighter physicals 
• Job Classification/Recruitment/Employment tasks related to:  

o FT positions: Aquatics-Recreation Programs Supervisor, Assistant Equipment 
Mechanic, Civil CAD/GIS Technician, Construction Projects Manager, Engineering 
Technician I, Financial Technician, Fitness Coordinator, Planner II, Principal 
Engineer, Public Safety Officer, Public Safety Supervisor-Capt., Public Safety 
Supervisor-Lt., and Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator II 

o PT positions: Administrative Assistant, Community Service Officer, Hearst 
Education Office Assistant, Hearst Front Desk, Laborer, Maintenance Worker 
(Refuse), Office Assistant-Recreation Center, Police Reserve (external and 
internal/POC paid on call), and Tourism Intern 

o Seasonal/Special Purpose/Misc. positions: Aquatics, Hearst and Recreation 
Instructors, Recreation Front Desk and Programming, Seasonal Laborers, 
Administrative and Engineering Interns, and contracted Custodians 

• Revisions to the employment application were finalized and implemented for applicant 
use.  A web-based application was also prepared for spring/summer implementation. 

• The second annual City Career Fair coordinated and represented by all departments was 
held Mar. 23 and attended by 50-60 individuals. Employment applications were provided 
and received for a variety of positions. Position materials and applications were also 
provided for consideration and return. 

• Staff registered Engineering Division staff to attend the Iowa State and University of Iowa 
Engineering Career Fairs for open engineering positions 

• Discussion continued with staff and legal regarding PERM/Green Card processing 
• Distribution of 2023 annual performance evaluation forms and information to leadership 

with a due date for completed evaluations in April 2024 
• Review and preparations of an advertising agreement with the Courier for city council 

approval on Feb. 5 
• Revisions made to 17 personnel policies for city council consideration in May 
• Creation of a Background Check Procedure Administrative Policy that reflects and adds 

on to current practice  
• Creation and implementation of a City of Cedar Falls online complaint form 
• Several HR staff involved in a volunteer cohort with Volunteer Iowa with the first session 

held on Mar. 26 to improve volunteer efforts within the City 
• Meetings held with all departments to discuss goal progress from the 2022 employee 

climate survey 
• Provided a presentation to city council during a March committee of the whole meeting 

regarding current conflict-of-interest procedures and forms, and received council feedback 
on revisions to the conflict-of-interest form for elected officials with a revised form 
anticipated to be presented back to council in May 

• Various staff met with Tracey Bradley of Iowa DOT to review Title VI and ADA compliance 
on Jan. 22 

3 82

Item 13.



• DEI Committee formed and held the following regular monthly meetings: Jan. 24.; Feb. 
21; and Mar. 27 

• DEI specialist attended the quarterly Advancing Equity in the Cedar Valley meeting on 
Jan. 16 

• DEI specialist participated as a panelist for VGM’s International Women’s Day event in 
March 

• ADA team completed the following ADA assessments: Community Center on Jan. 31; 
Visitor Center and Public Works on Feb. 14; Rec Center on Mar. 4; and Pheasant Ridge 
Golf Course pro shop on Mar. 21 

• Provided a DEI update to City Council at the Committee of the Whole meeting on Mar. 4 

 
BENEFITS & COMPENSATION 

• Staff met in person with PDCM and was provided with initial health plan renewal numbers 
for FY25 plan year including alternative plan changes for the City to consider. They also 
presented the plan’s performance to date. Final rate information will be provided later in 
the spring.  

• Staff sent out email reminders of the flex spending and HRA prior to their corresponding 
deadlines in March.  

• Staff completed and sent in the annual reporting form for the Iowa Individual Health Benefit 
Reinsurance Association. 

• HR Staff submitted a form with required information about the City’s health plan to Express 
Scripts that is required to be submitted annually going forward as a part of the 
Consolidated Appropriations Act (CAA). 

• Staff continued to update employee Sharepoint with updates to various insurance related 
forms.  
 

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION 

• Preparations for and follow up to the following meetings were completed:  Jan. 10 & 31, 
Feb. 14, and Mar. 13 & 27.  Action items included testing related approvals, candidate 
approvals to test or interview, and hiring list certifications for most of the full-time positions 
previously noted. 

• Revisions to Appendix B of the Cedar Falls Civil Service Rules & Regulations were also 
prepared and approved 

• Staff informed commissioners of pending legislation related to potential changes to Iowa 
Code Chapter 400 

 

HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION  
• Preparations for and follow up to the Jan. 8, Feb. 12, and Mar. 11 regular commission 

meeting were completed. 
• Preparations for and follow up to the Jan. 31, Feb. 28, and Mar. 27 executive committee 

meeting were completed.  
• Preparations for and assistance with a Susie Clark story time event at the library on Mar. 

16 honoring both Women’s History and Black History months. 
• Preparations for and assistance with a Community Peace Meeting at the Public Safety 

Center on Mar. 23 
• Preparations for and assistance with Women’s History Night at the library on Mar. 27.  

 

4 83

Item 13.



Finance and Business Operations 
Information Systems Division 

First Quarter January – March 2024 
 
Summary of projects, training and staff activities 

• We continued work on the new County Wide Dispatch project working on TraCS 
import with the Waterloo Police Department, Black Hawk County Sheriff’s office 
and Central Square vendor.  

• The Body & Car Camera project was implemented this quarter, the Police 
Division worked with the IT department and Axon vendor to incorporate the new 
system in our security requirements, training was held.  

• Hardened Security Configurations were rolled out to the most divisions, making 
our work centers compliant to the Center of Internet Security baseline Security 
Controls.  

• The library went live with their new Koha ILS system and new configurations 
were needed for multiple workstations and software to integrate with it.  

• We have kicked off our migration to Windows 11 by having volunteers be in our 
test group.  

• We are currently working on a project schedule and kickoff meeting for the new 
financial ERP system.  

• We did maintenance in our server room installing new batteries for our UPS unit, 
and replaced our core network switch stacks, we ran cable and installed new 
network equipment and cameras at the Rec Center, upgraded network 
equipment at the library, and we upgraded the Public Works Large Conference 
room with the ability to have HDMI over ethernet.   

• We remediated the three issues found in our annual Penetration Test 
• Work continues on implementing the Standard Municipal Index SharePoint site 

and website, we completed a soft roll out of the new Public Records Portal on our 
website.  

• We rolled out quarterly security awareness training for all users and administered 
harassment training campaign for all users.  

• Create a new user checklist for new employee IT onboarding process.  
• New/replacement cell phones, tablets, laptops, mini-PCs, and desktops were 

installed for multiple users.  
Graphic Design Activities  

• Hearst Center: Friends mailer, event posters, event and exhibition postcards, 
exhibition vinyl, filers, social graphic, spring brochure book, ad 

• Tourism: new logo revisions, venue flier, window cling, TC booklet 
• Other: website updates, social media maintenance/graphics/series, business 

cards, Cable TV graphics, promotional/communications graphics, laminating, 
name plates, coin inserts, Cedar River Rec Donor sign, clothing poster, PW logo 
reproduction, storm water flier, Courier ad graphics, grant cover update, fire 
award certificates, fire training books, parking study materials, Hello CF graphics, 
Currents, career fair materials, Public Safety recognition program, Recreation 
flier updates, HPC logo and brochure template, DEI table cards, Public Safety 
logo files and promo design, HRC event fliers and certificates, Earth week 

5 84

Item 13.



materials, PS brochure, Business & Industry materials, TIF sheets 
Channel 15 Programming Activities 

• Cable TV Summary of projects 
• This quarter we produced 19 public meetings and produced 1 Currents Up 

Close new studio show, 15 High school sporting events, 3 Junior High games, 
6 UNI Sporting events, 4 City News Shows, and one awards ceremony.   

• Public Access church services were encoded and programmed for 8 different 
church services.  

• 12 Drone Flights were taken to capture film for the Cedar River Recreational 
Project, the new Cedar Falls High School campus, Construction on: W27th 
Street, South Main and Greenhill Roundabout, Main Street.   

• City News Stories included:  
• Jacque Danielsen retirement 
• Outgoing Mayor Rob Green and Councilors Sires, Harding and DeBuhr 

recognition. 
• New Mayor Danny Laudick takes office 
• Cedar Falls Inauguration Ceremony: new mayor and council members 
• Pickleball court expansion project 
• Rec Center new workout equipment in weight room 
• Rec Center promotes fitness for the new year 
• Rec Center Indoor Park open through mid-April 
• Main Street reopens for the remainder of winter 
• West 27th Street Road Construction update 
• Road Construction: Technology Parkway Expansion in CF Industrial Park 
• Cedar River Recreational Project January update 
• Downtown Parking Discussion & Parking Study/Survey 
• Hearst Center for the Arts unveils master plan for future 
• Hearst Center for the Arts exhibitions: 
• Everyday Art; the Evolution of Street Photography 
• David Allen Assembled Portraits 
• Hearst Photo Club: Through My Lens 
• Cedar Falls Tourism Panthers on Parade preview 
• Hartman Reserve Maple Syrup Festival preview 
• Cedar River Recreational Project February update 
• Seasonal Compost Site Hours 
• Yard waste pickup update 
• Cedar River Recreational Project March update 
• Hearst Center for the Arts Sculpture Garden 

GIS Summary of projects 
• GIS & related projects 

• Panthers on Parade 
• Major Thoroughfare update 
• Industrial Park expansion annexation 
• Year-end reporting for cemeteries  

6 85

Item 13.



• Solid waste route updates 
• Commercial licensing inspections 
• Updated road projects from previous construction season 
• Downtown parking structure committee 
• Import process for LAMA 
• Technology Park land acquisition issue with Prairie Lakes Park 
• New ODBC connection for CIMS cemetery and burial updates 
• SSL certificates for CF1Stop and library 
• New mobile worker licenses for web map editing 
• Sewer network flowline data backfill 
• Fire district response boundaries 
• Downtown storm sewer network project 
• Private ash tree removals 
• Public Art finder app 
• Converted multiple plan sets for integration 
• Continued converting existing GIS project files to new desktop platform 
• Continued converting web applications to new platform 
• Linked pdf web maps 
• Script updates for gis data exports 
• Civil CAD/GIS Technician scoring 
• USPS & Waterloo addressing issues on Leversee Rd 
• Regional GIS group topic discussion and possible collaborations 

• Web/Db activities (24) for (5) departments 
• Data requests (27) for (6) entities 
• Completed required training for sexual harassment 
• Maps (41) for (6) departments. 
• Address changes/adds (21) 

 

7 86

Item 13.



FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
LEGAL SERVICES 

QUARTER 1 – JANUARY-MARCH 2024 
 
 
 
REPORT FROM SWISHER & COHRT – SAM ANDERSON AND AUSTIN MCMAHON: 
 

Traffic Court:   
 

City Cases Filed: 332 (this number includes both City and State tickets) 
 

Cases Set: 12 (Traffic) 7 (Code Enforcement)  
 

Trials Held: 3 (Traffic) 0 (Code Enforcement) 
 

 
REPORT FROM KEVIN ROGERS, CITY ATTORNEY 
 

• Review, revise, drafting or advice on 30 agreements 
• Work on electronic signature project 
• Research and advise on enforcement of environmental ordinances, 

regulations and statutes 
• Draft animal and skateboard ordinance amendments 
• Draft MOU for railroad grant program 
• Advice and drafting of Council Committee policy 
• Research and advise on regulation of certain businesses  

 
 

8 87

Item 13.



FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
PUBLIC RECORDS 

January - March 2024 
 
Public Records Activity 

Staff prepared agendas, minutes, and electronic packets for six Regular City Council meetings, 
three Committee of the Whole meetings, two Standing Council Committee meetings, and one 
Work Session meeting, three Planning & Zoning Commission meetings, and five Technical 
Review meetings. Meeting follow-up communications, minutes and legal documents were drafted, 
processed, recorded, and filed. 
 
Responded to thirty (30) requests for public records. 
 
Licenses / Permits Processed & Issued 

 455 Pet licenses 
 73  Annual Paw Park permits 
 13 Poultry licenses 
 15 Public Event permits 
 5 Sidewalk Café permits 
 2 Table & Chairs permits 
 4 Mobile Merchant permits 
 6 Tree Trimmer Licenses 
 0 Dumpster Permits 
 17 Cemetery Interment Rights 
 35 Liquor licenses and beer/wine permits 
 2 Tobacco/Nicotine permit  
  

The unemployment rates for the month of December 2023 were 2.7% for the Waterloo-Cedar 
Falls Metropolitan Area, 3.2% in Iowa, and 3.5% in the U.S. 
 
The unemployment rates for the month of January 2024 were 3.7% for the Waterloo-Cedar Falls 
Metropolitan Area, 3.0% in Iowa, and 4.1% in the U.S. 
 
The unemployment rates for the month of February 2024 were 3.2% for the Waterloo-Cedar Falls 
Metropolitan Area, 2.9% in Iowa, and 4.2% in the U.S. 

 
January - March 

• Coordinated Cedar Falls Mayor and Council Inauguration Ceremony. 
• Staff attended in-house Sexual Harassment Prevention training, supervisors and staff 

attended on-line Iowa Municipal Professionals Institute classes and the City Clerk 
attended an on-line Clerk Study Hall. 

• Downtown Parking Feasibility Studies were conducted on February 26 & 27 at the Public 
Library. 

• Reviewed application materials, interviewed candidates, and hired a part-time 
administrative assistant to fill a vacant position. 

• Prepared and administered staff evaluations. 
 
Parking Activity 
Enforcement  

2,894 Parking citations issued. 
  $26,361.00 Citations paid. 

  
Collection Efforts  

  $3,562.95 Collections from delinquent parking accounts. 
  $2,250.00 Vehicle immobilizations (45 vehicles). 

  
Permits  

   $8,240.00 Parking permits issued (146). 
  

Meter Collections  
$4,412.42 Paid parking. 

 
9 88

Item 13.



FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
LIBRARY & COMMUNITY CENTER 

JANUARY-MARCH 2024 
 

Library Activity 
 

Usage Statistics January 2024 February 2024 March 2024 
Customer Count 12,962 14,550 16,152 
Circulation 34,808 31,106 31,120 
Event 
Attendance 

1,026 1,258 1,567 

 
A few of the special library programs in January through March included the following: 

● Introduction to Collage maker program 
● Local author talk: Sheriff Tony Thompson discussed his book Anyplace but Here: The 

Uncomfortable Convergence Between Mental Illness and the Criminal Justice System 
● Marvelous Marshmallows, a youth program in collaboration with the ISU Extension 

Office 
● A black light puppet show for families 
● Teen Soup Nights: cooking programs using the library’s Charlie Cart, a portable kitchen 

for food education 
● Lord of the Rings Trivia 

 
Community Center Activity 
Programs at the Community Center during the first quarter of 2024 included a craft in 
collaboration with the Hearst Center for the Arts, a blood drive, line dancing, open art studio, 
cards, billiards, senior fitness classes, live music, ceramics, and a song share during which local 
musicians perform covers and their own original compositions.  Rentals included a Bible talk 
meeting, a swim team party, and a memorial service. 

10 89

Item 13.



$25,601,743.00

$74,253,809.00

$1,385,388.00
$59,034,709.00

Issued
Dwelling 

Units
Valuations Fees

Working W/O 
Permit Fees

Re-inspection Fees Issued
Dwelling 

Units
Valuations Fees

Working W/O 
Permit Fees

Re-
inspection 

Fees

Single Family New 
Construction

19 0 $5,326,755.00 $40,585.45 $0.00 $0.00 57 0 $20,799,298.00 $139,758.25 $0.00 $0.00

Multi-Family New 
Construction

Res Additions and 
Alterations

175 0 $3,521,570.00 $50,533.40 $0.00 $0.00 677 0 $10,766,936.00 $167,492.40 $0.00 $0.00

Res Garages 6 0 $303,713.00 $3,507.40 $0.00 $0.00 32 0 $789,462.00 $11,094.20 $0.00 $0.00

Commercial/Industrial New 
Construction

1 0 $14,674,799.00 $62,866.25 $0.00 $0.00 10 0 $32,540,799.00 $148,839.15 $0.00 $0.00

Commercial/Industrial 
Additions and Alterations

24 0 $880,406.00 $9,823.20 $0.00 $0.00 85 0 $7,671,651.00 $57,666.80 $0.00 $0.00

Commercial/Industrial 
Garages

1 0 $5,000.00 $160.00 $0.00 $0.00 2 0 $6,875.00 $272.00 $0.00 $0.00

Churches 3 0 $864,500.00 $6,135.40 $0.00 $0.00 4 0 $866,500.00 $6,160.40 $0.00 $0.00

Institutional, Schools, Public, 
and Utility

3 0 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 11 0 $777,288.00 $3,888.40 $0.00 $0.00

Agricultural/Vacant 1 0 $35,000.00 $503.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plan Review 20 0 $0.00 $48,432.45 $0.00 $0.00 66 0 $0.00 $132,036.45 $0.00 $0.00

Total 252 0 $25,601,743.00 $222,043.55 $0.00 $0.00 945 0 $74,253,809.00 $667,711.05 $0.00 $0.00

Total Same Month - LAST YEAR
Total for Fiscal Year - LAST YEAR

Quarterly Summary Yearly Summary

Construction Type

City of Cedar Falls
Community Development
Inspection Services Division
Monthly Report for: January 1, 2024 - March 31, 2024

Total for Quarter
Total for Fiscal Year

11 90

Item 13.



Issued
Dwelling 

Units
Valuations Fees Issued

Dwelling 
Units

Valuations Fees

Electrical 131 0 $0.00 $12,751.10 $0.00 $0.00 469 0 $0.00 $45,866.70

Mechanical 176 0 $0.00 $15,885.00 $0.00 $0.00 682 0 $0.00 $60,219.00

Plumbing 231 0 $0.00 $16,310.50 $100.00 $0.00 661 0 $0.00 $49,714.50

Refrigeration 3 0 $0.00 $435.00 $0.00 $0.00 5 0 $0.00 $940.00

Total 541 $45,381.60 $100.00 $0.00 1817 $156,740.20

Issued
Dwelling 

Units
Valuations Fees Issued

Dwelling 
Units

Valuations Fees

Electrical 3 0 $0.00 $450.00 8 0 $0.00 $1,200.00

Mechanical 1 0 $0.00 $150.00 3 0 $0.00 $300.00

Plumbing 3 0 $0.00 $450.00

Refrigeration

Total 4 $600.00 14 $1,950.00

Building Totals 252 0 $25,601,743.00 $222,043.55 945 0 $74,253,809.00 $667,711.05 $0.00 $0.00

Grand Total 797 0 $25,601,743.00 $268,025.15 2776 0 $74,253,809.00 $826,401.25 $0.00 $0.00

Monthly Report for: January 1, 2024 - March 31, 2024

Constractor 
Registrations

Quarterly Summary Yearly Summary

Construction Type
Quarterly Summary Yearly Summary

City of Cedar Falls
Community Development
Inspection Services Division

12 91

Item 13.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com Code Enforcement Quarterly Report 

Inspection Services Division 

 DATE: April 3, 2024 

 SUBJECT: 3rd Quarter FY2024 Code Enforcement Report 
January 1, 2024-March 31, 2024 

Violations: 

FY23 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 FY24 
Total 723 262 306 396 964 
Grass 288 89 20 1 110 
Building Maintenance 55 42 17 12 71 
Snow and Ice 143 0 13 129 142 
Exterior Storage 45 28 111 91 230 
Inoperable/abandoned 
Vehicles 

7 6 7 7 20 

Refuse container 23 3 28 64 137 
Materials in ROW 55 36 30 23 89 

Abatements completed by a City Contractor (mowing, snow removal, court order):  

FY23 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 FY24 
Total 102 14 2 11 27 

Citations Issued: 

FY23 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 FY24 
Total 5 0 2 2 4 

Total Number of Properties assessed Landlord Accountability Points:  

FY23 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 FY24 
Total 250 47 36 20 103 

*Due to the change in snow ordinance Landlord accountability points were not issued in FY24
for snow and ice violation 

13 92

Item 13.



Proactive Enforcement (walking neighborhoods): 
 
 FY23 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 FY24 
Properties Viewed Not 

documented 
656 235 114  1661 

Properties with 
violations 

Not 
documented 

46 22 1  69 

 
 
Map of area walked this quarter: 
 

 

14 93

Item 13.



PLANNING & COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION 
QUARTERLY REPORT 

Q1 - 2024 
 
CASES: 
 
Planning & Zoning Commission – Meetings were held on January 10, January 24, February 
28, and March 27.   
 

 

Project Name / Owner Case 
Number(s) 

P&Z Discussion/ 
Actions 

Approval/Denial 
by Council 

Rezoning and Land Use Map 
Amendment - approx. 2.7-acre parcel 
formerly known as 3225 W. 1st Street 
Applicant: Amina Begic 
Owner: Howard Mark and Marilyn Joyce 
Trunnell Revocable Trust 

LU24-001 
RZ24-001 

Introduction on 
1/24/24 but case 
withdrawn by 
applicant prior to 
public hearing.  

N/A 

Plat - Pinnacle Prairie Commercial South 
Phase VI 
Owner: Greenhill Estates, Inc & Oster 
Family Limited Partnership 

PP23-004 
FP23-002 

Introduction/ 
Approval 1/24/24 

Approved on 
4/15/24 

Zoning Code Text Amendment - 
Updates to the Floodplain Regulations to 
adopt the new Flood Insurance Rate 
Maps from FEMA 

TA24-001 Introduction/ 
Approval 2/28/24 

Approved on 
4/15/24 (3rd 
Reading) 

Preliminary Plat- Panther West Additions 
 
Owner: Panther Farms LLC 

PP23-009 Introduction 
3/27/2024 
Approval 4/10/24 

Decision 
anticipated on 
5/06/24 

Rezoning – 2300 Main Street, 2216 Main 
Street, and 127 E 23rd Street; West of 
Main Street; North of E Seerley Blvd. 
 
Owner: Seven D LLC 

RZ24-002 Introduction 
3/27/2024 
Approval 4/10/24 

Anticipated: 
Set date of public 
hearing on 
5/06/24.  
Public hearing: 
5/20/24 

 
 
Residential Rental Reviews: 
 

Address Units 
Requested 
Occupancy 

Approved 
for GRC BRHA 

910 Washington 1 4 3 1/2/2024 NA 
4005-07 Heritage 1 4 3 1/2/2024 NA 

15 94

Item 13.



420 W 12th 1 3 3 1/16/2024 NA 
1403 Clay 1 4 3 1/16/2024 NA 

904 Columbia 1 4 4 2/6/2024 NA 
1003 College 2 4 3 2/6/2024 NA 

714 Spruce Needle 1 4 3 2/20/2024 NA 
809 W 14th 1 4 4 2/20/2024 NA 

1319-21 Walnut 2 2/unit 2/unit 2/20/2024 NA 
1522 College 1 3 3 2/20/2024 NA 

2208 Coventry 1 4 4 2/20/2024 NA 
3422 Tucson 1 4 3 2/20/2024 NA 
3328 Cypress 1 1 2 3/5/2024 NA 
1321 W 12th 1 6 4 3/5/2024 NA 

 
 
Other Commissions, Board Meetings & Staff Liaison Responsibilities: 

 Meeting 
Dates 

Agenda Items Discussed 

Board of Adjustment 3/19/24 • Election of Officers 
 

Housing Commission 
 

2/21/24 
3/20/24 

  

• Developing Housing Trust Fund 
• Approved SAFMR payment standards for 

HCV (Section 8) program 
• Housing Commission goals 
• CDBG projects- rehab and agency 

College Hill Partnership 1/11/24 
2/8/24 

3/14/24 

• Hannah Crisman resigned as President and 
Chris Martin appointed 

• Donation to the Neighborhood Trees Initiative 
• Donation to Seerley Park fund 
• Planning for Soapbox Derby 
• $10,000 Marketing grant approved by CF 
• Discussion of ending College Hill Partnership 

and splitting into CH Neighborhood Assoc. 
and a new CH Merchants/Business 
Association 

• Planning for Annual meeting in April 
Historic Preservation 
Commission 

1/25/24 
2/13/24 
3/12/24 
4/9/24 

• Educational project re: history of North Cedar 
Neighborhood in partnership with North 
Cedar Neighborhood Association. Event 
scheduled for June 14, 2024  

• CLG Grant for recon survey of the Overman 
Park Neighborhood area was approved by 
State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO).  

Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Commission 

1/2/24 
2/6/24 
3/5/24 

• Reviewed and approved Annual Report. 
• Working on eBike safety education 

campaign. 

16 95

Item 13.



 
PERMITTING 
• 198 land use permits were issued.  
 
OTHER PROJECTS FOR Q1 2024: 
• The Federal Rail Administration is expected to publish another notice of funding opportunity 

in May 2024 for the Railroad Crossing Elimination Grant which the City last applied for in Fall 
2022. Preparations are underway to update our application, include additional partners, and 
to resubmit by the anticipated deadline. 

• Ongoing effort to address enforcement of rental paving ordinance. 
• Working on the Major Thoroughfare Plan and related street standards and associated 

subdivision code street connectivity standards.  
• Various enforcement actions related to zoning and rental code violations.  
• Drafting an RFP for the Parks Master Plan in coordination with PW and Recreation Services. 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT: 
• Coordination with consultant for the expansion of the West Viking Road Industrial Park. 
• Met with an existing business regarding expansion plans in the Cedar Falls Industrial Park. 
• Attended monthly Cedar Falls EDC board of directors meetings. 
• Attended Good Morning Cedar Valley hosted by Grow Cedar Valley. 
• Attended Grow Cedar Valley Annual Awards banquet at the Waterloo Convention Center. 

• Trail and related projects to potentially fund 
with INRCOG administered grants. 

• Big Woods camping expansion. 
• Council goals re: Bike/Ped 
• Crossing @ Viking and Prairie. 
• Snow clearing of trails and sidewalks 
• Events for May Bike Month 

Community Main Street 
Design Committee 

2/16/24 
3/22/24 

• Discussed proposed façade changes to 317 
Main St, and some possible façade grant 
projects. 

• Discussed “The Space” building at 109 E. 2nd 
Street. The Committee provided feedback 
and ideas to the owner and were appreciative 
that the restoration of building is the first 
priority for the owner. 

North Cedar Neighborhood 
Association (NCNA) 

1/8/24 
2/12/24 
3/12/24 

• Updates on the Historic tour of North Cedar 
this summer 

• Committee formed to brainstorm on new 
uses in the North Cedar Fire Station, led by 
Council Member Schultz  

• Discussed speed limit on Cedar St between 
Clair to Lone Tree Road. 

• PW provided updates on Island Park and Big 
Wood Park. 

Parking Tech Committee N/A • No new meetings for this year. 
 

17 96

Item 13.



• Provided industrial park site information for an out-of-state company  
• Prepared a development agreement for a project in the West Viking Road Industrial Park. 
• Met with a developer interested in doing a project in the Cedar Falls Industrial Park. 
• Met with an out of state business interested in the Cedar Falls market. 
• City Council approved a development agreement for a new industrial project in the West 

Viking Road Industrial Park. 
• City Council approved an amended development agreement with McDonald Construction & 

Remodeling, LLC for a new project in the Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park. 
• City Council approved an amended development agreement with CV Commercial, LLC for a 

mixed-use development on College Street. 
• City Council approved asbestos testing contract for the testing of asbestos materials on 3 

houses the City recently acquired adjacent to the West Viking Road Industrial Park. 
 
CDBG 
• Working with Waterloo on HOME projects – home rehabilitation projects. 
• Working on 5-year Consolidated Plan, partnering w/Waterloo as a consortium, as required 

by HUD.   
• Four contracts awarded to service agencies; agencies to attend HC on 4/17/24 to report. 
 
HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER PROGRAM   
 
Units under Contract 229 New Applications 84 
Vouchers Issued 15 Waiting List (Preference 1)*  134 
Top of List Letters 35 Waiting List (Total) 837 

*Preference 1 = elderly, disabled, Cedar Falls families with dependent children   
    
ADD A DOLLAR REPORT 
There were no applications received for utility assistance in Q1 2024. There was a balance of 
$70,374.614 as of March 31, 2024. 

18 97

Item 13.



RECREATION & COMMUNITY PROGRAMS 
Quarterly Report for January - March 2024 

 
 
Administrative: 

 
• Office Assistants and Front Desk Staff completed training with Public Safety on 

tips and tricks dealing with difficult patrons and when/how to call 911.  
• We had two new Front Desk Staff start.  
• Updated training checklist for Front Desk Staff. 
• Our BBPOS Credit Card System was updated taking full advantage of all the 

options to save Front Desk Staff time and ease in operation. 
• Rental numbers for our facility continue to rise, opening rental times for private 

pickleball rentals have proven to make good use of unused time slots. 
 
Rec & Fitness Center 2024 2023 
Rec Center Daily Admission  $21,551.79 $24,226.10 
Rec Memberships Sold 
Daily Member Check In 

$112,977.19 
38,706 

$105,924.94 
39,884 

Indoor Park 630 735 
Child-Care 210 638 
Concessions Sold $1,250.15 0 
Rec Center Rentals 169 78 
Ballfield Rentals 58 31 

 
 
Aquatics: 
 

• In January two Recreation Division staff members completed the annual CPO 
CEU class in Cedar Falls. 

• Aquatic Supervisor completed the bridging and upgrade to their Lifeguarding-
v24, Lifeguarding Instructor-v24 Certifications. 

• The hiring process for summer positions began with 111 applicants. 
• Infant, Toddler, Preschool Lessons began in February with 103 registered 

participants. 
• Group 4 through Group 8 Lessons began in March with 103 registered 

participants. 
• Lifeguarding Course was held March 22 through the 24th with 16 participants 

certifying.  
 
Aquatics Participation  Indoor 

2024  
 

2023  
Falls 
2024 

 
2023 

Swim Passes Sold  3  1  107 0 
Open Recreational Swimming/Lap Swimming  1,376  1,637  

  

Aquatic Program Usage   4,112  4,011  
  

19 98

Item 13.



Recreation Programs: 
 

• Spring Sports/Summer Camp Program registration kicked of Jan 15  
- Camp CF Sold out in 18 hours.    

• Started conversation with Iowa Sports Foundation for new community activity.  
• Summer program Registration began March 1  
• 83 hours of ballfield usage rentals  
• Launched Registration for new Parent coach Evening T-ball Program.   

 
Program  Enrolled/ est. 

team members 
Meetings 
/Games 

2024 
Contacts  

2023 
Contacts 

Adult Basketball  8 24 192 400 
Adult Pickleball League 2 96 192 326 
Racquetball League 12 10 120 143 
Basketball 1st & 2nd Boys 120 6 720 720 
Basketball 1st & 2nd Girls  30 6 180 192 
Basketball 3rd & 4th Girls 30 6 180 186 
Basketball 5th & 6th Boys 46 17 782 690 
Basketball 5th & 6th Girls 20 6 120 174 
Volleyball Adult Mix Mon 8 66 528 1,016 
Volleyball Adult Mix Wen 8 27 216 524 
Volleyball Adult Women’s  8 28 224 486 

 
Fitness/Wellness: 
 

• We kicked the new year off with some new programs, challenges, and class 
offerings! 

• Our new “Yoga Beginner Basics” classes for new participants were well-received 
and appreciated! 

• By popular demand, we were able to bring back Tai Chi classes! 
• We offered an “Easy Riders” cycling class for active agers and beginner riders. 
• We are currently running a fun, new cycling challenge to encourage participants 

to attend 50 classes over 17 weeks. The challenge has generated excitement 
and growth for our cycling programs. Participants also received a challenge-
themed t-shirt! 

• For National Puppy Day, we collected pictures of patrons’ puppies and created a 
slideshow for members to watch during class while they cycled. This created a 
sense of like-minded camaraderie and community for our members. 
 

Fitness/ Wellness 2024 Participation 2023 Participation 
Fitness Classes Offered  706 737 
Fitness Class Attendance 8,521 8,144 
Personal Training Sessions 292 361 
Massages: 203 214 

 

20 99

Item 13.



TOURISM 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

January – March 2024 
 

MEETINGS/CONFERENCES/SPORTS/GROUPS 

• Cedar Falls hosted 7 conferences, 4 sporting events, and 4 tradeshows for an estimated economic 
impact of over $6,695,935 for January-March events that had Cedar Falls Tourism staff 
engagement. These events generated 4,619 hotel room nights and had over 55,000 attendees. 
Notable events include: NWCA National Duals, UNI Overseas Recruitment Fair, USA Wrestling 
Folkstyle Nationals, and FIRST Robotics Competition. 

• Secured twelve events for 2024-2025. 

• Generated seven new leads, hosted six event planners for site visits, and submitted eight 
proposals for potential future events.  

• Staff arranged volunteers to assist with Iowa High School State Bowling. 

• Staff worked with three motorcoach planners on trips for summer 2024 and 2025. 
 

LEISURE TOURISM 

• A digital ad campaign promoted a Cozy Winter Getaway campaign in January and Spring biking 
getaways began in March targeted in Minnesota and Wisconsin. 

• Staff promoted outdoor recreation and the new river recreation project at the Iowa Bike Expo 
(Jan.), Omaha Boat and Travel Show (Feb.) and Canoecopia in Madison, WI (Mar.) 

• Volunteers shared Cedar Falls information at the Eastern Iowa Sportshow, Hawkeye Farm Show, 
and at two UNI Visit Days. 

• 26 new TC mascots were delivered to artists working on Panthers on Parade. 

• Cedar Falls Visitor Center welcomed visitors from IA, CO, IL, MN, SC, VA, WV, WI, and Germany. 

 
COLLABORATION 

• Staff was part of an Iowa Tourism Conference panel on tourism data and its uses. 

• Attended Iowa Travel Industry Partners Legislative Evening. 

• Revamped and reprinted metro map with Experience Waterloo. 
• Revamped all newsletters, now producing All Access - a monthly calendar for all, Weekender 

leisure tourism news for visitors, and Tourism on Tap – a quarterly update for tourism partners. 

• Processed 11 Special Trails Registrations – notifying jurisdictions and working with applicants. 

• Staff is assisting with Great American Rail Trail 5th Anniversary events for May. 
 

 Jan-Mar 2024 Jan-Mar 2023 

Visitor Center Traffic 1,140 779 

Website Traffic + CV365.com 25,717 23,390 

Facebook  11,802 9,964  

Instagram 2,773 2,494  

LinkedIn  845 539  

Visitor Guide Distribution 9,245 8,786 

Ad Campaign Impressions 130,412 1,167,568  

Volunteer Hours 152 299 

 

21 100

Item 13.



CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
CULTURAL PROGRAMS, THE HEARST 

Quarterly Report | Jan – Mar 2024 

Cory Hurless (she/her), Cultural Programs Supervisor 

HEARST HIGHLIGHTS 
• Everyday Art: The Evolution of Street Photography, on loan from the Syracuse University Art

Museum, was on display in our large gallery along with Assembled Portraits: David Van Allen
in the small gallery February through March.  We hosted student tours of these exhibitions
from UNI and Hawkeye CC, along with receptions, a tintype workshop and artist lecture
featuring Iowa University alum Rudy Selgado and Red House Artist Taylor Hansen.  650+
visitors attended the tours, receptions, and events around these exhibits.

• The Hearst Photo Club held a group exhibition in our newly refreshed lower-level gallery in
February and March entitled: Through My Lens.  The exhibition featured 6 local
photographers, and their reception event February 17 had an attendance of 72.

• The Hearst’s first ever BIG IDEAS: tiny art competition kicked off March 1, inviting the
community to submit tiny artworks for a show at the end of May.

• Melody Parker reported on the Hearst’s Everyday Art, Assembled Portraits, and Through My
Lens exhibits, along with BIG IDEAS: tiny art in the WCF Courier in February & March.

• The Red Herring Theatre presented POTUS: or Behind Every Great ******* are Seven Women
Trying to Keep Him Alive to a packed Mae Latta Hall on January 30 with an attendance of
106. 

• February 15 was our Valentine’s Day Concert by Cedar Valley Chamber Music, full
registration.

• Youth Classes: Art Day Away – day camp February 16, full registration.  Create During Break
– spring break art afternoons March 12-15, full registration.  Messy Mornings, Teen Art Club,
continued their sessions January – March with full registrations. Cultivating Creativity 
Saturday sessions took place January – March each month full registrations. 

• Empty Bowls free family workshops and Community Development workshops took place in
January – the public making over 60 bowls for the Northeast Iowa Food Bank.

• Adult Classes: Embroidery, Mocha Mugs, Crochet, Watercolor, Charcoal, and Mindful Art
Creativity workshop took place January – March with full registrations.  All wheel ceramics
classes were full registration.

• CAFÉ Outreach efforts continued in January - March with art activity sessions conducted for
Northstar, the Community Center, and Pathways Behavioral Services.  The CAFÉ program
piloted a grief art workshop at Unity Point Hospice on January 26, and a clay activity for
Balance Autism in Waterloo on March 8.  We also piloted a monthly art session for the local
Homeschool Cedar Falls network Jan – Mar.

• Hearst Education Staff partnered with Scheels on their annual Spring Expo at the UNIdome
March 30, providing art activity services to over 250 kiddos from the community.

22 101

Item 13.



Hearst By The Numbers 

Hearst Center for the Arts Activity Report 
January February March 

OVERALL ATTENDANCE 
# of Days Open to Public 25 25 24 
Door Counter +  any virtual events 879 1291 1480 
Sculpture Garden (est.) 200 200 250 
Average visits per day 40.76 58.24 63.04 
FREE SERVICES - ATTENDANCE DETAIL 
Exhibition (walk-in) 148 193 274 
Special Events (lectures, concerts, film, performance, free workshops) 215 273 113 
Regular Monthly Public Programs 31 61 79 
Community Meetings 18 24 12 
Thursday Painters + Majong 97 167 120 
Tours 0 16 34 
Total Free Services Attendance 509 734 632 
OUTREACH & VOLUNTEER SVC. 
Volunteers (total number) 2 4 4 
Volunteer Hours 18 9.25 11 
Offsite Outreach Attendance 39 41 309 
Offsite Outreach Number of Events 4 4 3 
PAID SERVICES - ATTENDANCE DETAIL 
Family Workshops 64 0 0 
Youth Classes 95 184 109 
Adult Classes 102 181 134 
Messy Mornings/ AM Kiddo Krafts 55 86 65 
Camps 0 28 151 
Rentals 0 0 46 
Ceramics Lab 15 37 34 
Total Paid Services Attendance 331 516 539 
MEMBERSHIPS 
Total Friends Memberships 196 221 230 
New/Renewed this month 39 34 11 
Total Revenue from New Memberships $5,135 $12,870 $1,075 
DIGITAL TRAFFIC 
E-News Subscriptions 1,104 1,111 1,118 
Facebook Followers 3,522 3,609 3,631 
Instagram Followers 1,216 1,230 1,233 
Web views 1,170 1,331 865 
PRESS, # OF OCCURENCES 
Newspaper article 2 1 3 
Radio interviews 2 0 0 
Press Releases 0 1 1 
Social Media Paid ads 1 3 3 

23 102

Item 13.



Type Project No. Project Description Status Budget Contractor/ Developer
Alley/Storm 
Water RC-000-3268 2022 Alley Reconstruction Reconstruction Finaled Out $508,133.06 Engineering Division /Owen 

Contracting
Bridge BR-000-3259 2024 Bridge Inspections Inspections Underway $40,000 Foth
Bridge BR-106-3215 Olive Street Box Culvert Box Culvert Construction Underway $1,160,000 AECOM 
Flood FL-033-3088 Cedar River Safety & Recreation Recreation Construction Underway $50,000 Engineering Division 
Parking TBD College Hill Parking Resurfacing Final Out Remains $150,000 Engineering Division 

Parks PI-000-3331 Orchard Hill Park Pickleball Court 
Expansion Project New Construction Bidding $500,000 Engineering Division

Sanitary SA-002-3182 Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Sanitary Sewer Construction Underway $800,000 Water Reclamation/ Snyder 
Santiary SA-000-3316 2023 Santiary Sewer Rehab Sanitary Sewer Construction Underway $250,000 Engineering/Water Rec
Santiary SA-000-3325 2024 CDBG Santiary Sewer Rehab Sanitary Sewer Construction Underway $140,000 Engineering/Water Rec
Sidewalk RT-000-3217 2021 CDBG INFILLS Sidewalks & Trails Final Out Remains $181,492 OEL/Engineering Division
Sidewalk SW-000-3266 2021 Sidewalk Repair and Infill Sidewalks & Trails Finaled Out $157,876 Cobalt/Engineering Division       
Sidewalk SW-000-3293 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Sidewalks & Trails Finaled Out TBD Engineering Division       
Sidewalk SW-000-3217 Union Road Trail Sidewalks & Trails DOT Final Out Remains $510,299 Engineering Division/Snyder       
Sidewalk SW-000-3293 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Sidewalks & Trails Finaled Out $49,143.69 Iowa Flatworks 
Storm Water ST-115-3147 University Ave Biocell Storm Water Final out Remains $108,647 Benton's Sand and Gravel
Streets RC-000-3272 2021 Street Construction Street Repair Final Out Remains $4,030,000.00 Engineering Division      PCI
Streets RC-000-3230 2022 Street Construction Street Repair Complete $3,266,000.00 Engineering Division      PCI
Streets RC-000-3299 2023 Street Construction Street Repair Punch List Remains $2,664,055.20 Engineering Division      PCI
Streets RC-000-3230 2024 Street Restoration Street Repair Punch List Remains $1,023,036.30 Engineering Division      PCI
Streets SC-000-3339 2024 Seal Coat Resurfacing Design $200,000 Engineering Division

Streets RC-000-3171 Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction Street Repair Final Out Remains $6,000,000 Snyder

Streets RC-000-3242 Downtown Street-Scape & 
Reconstruction Phase II Reconstruction Punch List Remains $2,450,000 Snyder/ K. Cunningham 

Streets RC-173-3228 Greenhill Road & South Main 
Intersection Improvements Reconstruction Construction Underway $3,400,000 Shive Hattery

Streets TS-000-3294 Hudson Road & Various Int Final Out Final Out Remains $730,000 K&W / Snyder
Streets HWY 58 & Ridgeway Reconstruction Construction Underway AECOM / Iowa DOT

Streets RC-000-1963 W. 1st Street Reconstruction Reconstruction Final Out Remains $6,500,000 Engineering Division 
Snyder & Associates

Streets RC-362-3212 W. Viking Road Recon Reconstruction Bidding $7,800,000 Snyder
Streets RC-000-3240 27th Street Improvements Reconstruction Construction Underway TBD AECOM 
Streets MC-000-3206 Center Street Street Scape Recon Final Out Remains TBD Engineering Division       Foth 
Subdivision SU-364-3189 W. Viking Industrial Park New Construction Final Out Remains $8,700,000 Snyder

ENGINEERING DIVISION

24 103

Item 13.



Project No. Project Title Description Status Contractor/ Developer
SU-330-3312 Arbors Fifth Addition New Subdivision Construction Underway Skogman/CGA
SU-442-3165 Autumn Ridge 10th Addition New Subdivision Construction Underway BNKD Inc./CGA

Hidden Pines New Subdivision Construction Underway Dave Schmitt/LGC/Fehr Graham

SU-445-3021 Greenhill Village Estates New Subdivision Maintenance Bond Nelson Construction & Development 

SU-413-3199 Terraces at West Glen, New Aldea West 
Campus, 1st Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond New Aldea/Fehr Graham

SU-413-3199 Terraces at West Glen, New Aldea West 
Campus, 2nd Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond New Aldea/Fehr Graham

TBD West Fork Crossings New Subdivision Maintenance Bond Panther Farms/ISG
SU-454-3257 Wild Horse 5th Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond Panther Farms/CGA
SU-454-3257 Wild Horse 6th Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond Panther Farms/CGA
SU-440-3239 Autumn Ridge 9th Addition New Subdivision Preliminary Plat CGA

SU-184-3160 Greenhill Village                 Townhomes II New Subdivision Preliminary Plat Panther Farms/CGA

TBD North Cedar Estates Jim Sands Preliminary Plat Jim Sands/VJ Engineering

TBD

Panther West Panther Farms Preliminary Plat Panther Farms/Brewer Engineering

TBD

Paririe Winds 6th Panther Farms Preliminary Plat Panther Farms/Brewer Engineering

ENGINEERING DIVISION
      

25 104

Item 13.



Project Description SWPPP Status
Detention 

Calcs 
Status

Developer/ Engineer Project 
Status

918 Viking Road 918 Viking Road Approved ---------- Dahlstrom Active
Community United Child Care

Nordic Drive Approved Approved CUCCC Active

D&D Midwest Investments 5630 Westminster Drive Approved Approved VJ Active
Creekside Condos 

Cedar Heights/Valley High Approved Approved Larson/Fehr Graham Pending

Greenhill Village Estates 4705 Algonquin Drive Approved Approved Peters/Axiom Complete
High School W 27th Street Approved Approved City of Cedar Falls/AECOM Active

McWing Storage Units 3015/3035 Capital Way Approved Approved Owner Complete
Mercy Health OBGYN Bluebell Rd Approved Approved Mercy/CGA Complete

Midway Drive Storage Units 3717 Midway Drive Approved ---------- Owner/VJ Active
Pinncle Prairie Senior Living Prairie Parkway Approved Approved Nelson/Axiom Active

River Rec Area Cedar River Approved ---------- City of Cedar Falls Active
The Cove at Spruce Hills Spruce Hills Dr Approved ---------- Owner/Snyder Active

Veridian Credit Union Brandilynn Boulevard Approved ---------- Veridian Complete

ENGINEERING DIVISION
        

26 105

Item 13.



Operations and Maintenance Division  
Department of Public Works 

January – March 2024  
Streets Section: 

• Snow and Ice control duties on various occasions 
• Street maintenance included pothole repair and a storm sewer manhole replacement. 
• Annual deep cleaning and preparation of construction equipment was performed. 
• Brush and tree removal took place along sections of Dry Run Creek and various waterways. 
• Work Zone safety training was completed by several street section staff. 

 
Traffic Operations: 

• 469 traffic control signs and labels were repaired or replaced 
• 62 signal repairs were conducted throughout the month 
• Relocated electrical to new shelter at Orchard Hill Park 
• Prepared and sent out bid documents for annual street marking contract. 
• Attended webinar training on MUTCD updates. 

 
Fleet Maintenance: 

• 3,111 transactions were recorded through the City’s fuel dispensing sites 
• Used 43,439 gallons of fuel 16,709 ethanol, 26,730 diesel 
• 247 work orders were processed through the fleet section for the 1st quarter of the year  
• Prepared equipment for summer use 
• Assembled a committee to prepare specifications for replacement of FD511 aerial truck 

 
Public Buildings: 

• Completed cleaning inspections and addressed deficiencies 
• Installed dehumidification system in the Island Park Beach House 
• Energy efficiency lighting upgrades were made at the public library.  
• Inspections and upgrades for ADA compliancy were conducted. 

 
Parks: 

• 47 hazard trees on City right of way were removed, 84 trees were trimmed 
• Installed boat docks and disc golf launch pads at Island Park 
• Removed dead ash trees from area of Washington Park 
• Cleared invasive vegetation around Big Wood Recreation area 
• Performed prairie burn at Prairie Lakes and select pollinator locations 

 
Cemetery: 

• Performed twenty three (23) interments; Thirteen (13) at Greenwood Cemetery, ten (10) at 
Fairview Cemetery and two (2) at Hillside 

• Six (6) cremations; Five (5) Saturday services  
• Spaces sold; nineteen (19)  Five (5) at Greenwood, Ten (10) at Fairview, four (4) at Hillside 

Cemetery 
 

Refuse: 
• 1,945.5 tons of residential solid waste was collected. 397 three-yard container dumps were 

recorded. Crews responded to 56 residential bulk item collections. 
• Crews collected 10 tons of yard waste from curbside collection, 255 carts were serviced. 
• The Transfer Station hauled 209 loads of solid waste to the County Landfill totaling 2,934 tons. 
• A total of 458 tons of household recyclable material was collected for the quarter 
• 120 tons of e-waste, scrap metal, tires and appliances were recycled  27 106

Item 13.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
WATER RECLAMATION DIVISION 

JANUARY – MARCH 2024 
 
PLANT OPERATIONS  
 
The Water Reclamation Facility performance was very good for the quarter with no Effluent 
permit violations. Flows to the facility continue to be abnormally low due to the ongoing drought 
in the area leading to low Inflow and Infiltration rates. Total flow to the facility was 320 million 
gallons for the quarter, with a daily average of 3.52 million gallons per day (MGD). This daily 
average flow is well below last year’s daily average of 4.82 MGD as well as the five-year 
average of 5.15 MGD. 
 
PLANT UPGRADES PROGRESS 
 
A Kickoff meeting was held in February with our design consultant, Strand Associates, Inc. The 
initial phase of this process is a wastewater characterization study to help determine which 
potential technologies could fit our community’s unique needs. 
 
PROJECTS – TREATMENT PLANT 
 
The Ultraviolet Disinfection system was brought online on February 29th for the season. This 
process is only required from March 15th through November 15th. This was started early this 
year as new bulbs were installed this winter and wanted to ensure the system was 100% 
operational. 
 
Final Clarifier #2 was taken down to fix a broken sludge valve.  
 
Plumb Tech was hired to fix a water main break feeding the Grit Building. 
 
PROJECTS – COLLECTION SYSTEM 
 
Pump and Motor #2 was reinstalled at 17th Street Lift Station after being refurbished by Hupp 
Electric Motor. 
 
Pump and Motor #4 were then pulled at 17th Street Lift Station and sent to be refurbished. This 
is the third of the four pumps to be refurbished. Cedar Falls’s largest, most important pump 
station, 17th Street handles roughly 70% of our wastewater daily.  
 
One pump was also replaced at Timber Lift Station, and another rebuilt by WRF staff at Tourist 
Park Lift Station.  
 
Automatic Systems, of Ames Iowa, troubleshot and updated the PLC at Tourist Park Lift Station. 
 
BIOSOLIDS  
 
The annual Biosolids Report was submitted to the EPA and IDNR on February 8th. This is a 
summary report of our Biosolids processing and disposal that is due each year on February 
19th. 
 

28 107

Item 13.



A 3-year lease was signed in February with Century Farms of Shell Rock, Iowa for 390 acres of 
farmland just west of town on 12th Street. 320 acres will be planted each year by the tenant 
farmer and 70 acres is set aside for year-round Biosolids disposal by WRF staff.  
  
We were able to haul 124,000 gallons of liquid biosolids to local farm fields and another 242,000 
gallons were dried through our dewatering system and put into storage. 
 
With the continued nice weather, WRF staff hauled additional Biosolids to the Sartori Farm 
making additional room for summer storage at the Water Reclamation Facility.  
 
10.47 tons of inorganic material were hauled to the landfill for disposal this quarter. This is 
below the five-year average of 19.8 tons and likely correlates with lower-than-normal flows.  
 
SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM CALLS & SERVICES 
 
We received 554 sewer locate requests from the Iowa One Call system, 134 of which required 
field locating by WRF staff. These requests will increase dramatically in the next few months as 
construction season kicks off.  
 
19 residential sewer problem calls were received. All but one were issues with private plumbing. 
 
At around 8:00 AM on Sunday, January 28th an overflowing manhole was reported near 6507 
University Avenue. On-call sewer staff spent several hours that day opening a blocked sewer 
main and cleaning up. The IDNR was notified, and a follow-up 5-day report was submitted as 
required.  
 
There were six after-hour emergency calls for lift station issues. All of which were resolved 
without major incident.  
 
WRF staff cleaned a total of 26,107 feet (4.94 miles) of sanitary sewer mains this quarter. This 
is below last year’s 6.74 miles but above the five-year average of 4.26 miles.  
 
WRF staff also televised 7,526 feet (1.43 miles) of sanitary sewer lines this quarter. This was 
just below last year’s 1.6 miles and above the 5-year average of 1.1 miles.  
 
INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT 
 
All required Bi-annual Compliance Reports were submitted from all regulated industrial facilites. 
Upon reviewing these documents, one Infrequent Non-Compliance Violation was issued to 
Viking Pump for a missed sampling in the second half of 2023. A follow-up meeting was 
scheduled with VP staff to ensure these minor violations do not become recurring.  
 
The annual Pretreatment Report was submitted to the IDNR on February 23rd. This is a 
summary report of the Pretreatment Program due each year on March 1st.  
 
STAFF AND TRAINING 
 
Joe Tegtmeier was promoted to WWTP Operator I in January. 
 
Jeremy Northrup and John Koch were promoted to WWTP Operator II in February.  

29 108

Item 13.



 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 
MONTHLY REPORT 
  1ST QUARTER 2024 

CEDAR FALLS POLICE SHIFT STATS 
Police Statistics First Shift Second Shift Third Shift Total 
Calls for Service 1049 1189 559 2797 
Traffic Stops 95 433 569 1097 
Arrests 22 40 56 118 
Accidents 103 116 26 245 

CEDAR FALLS FIRE   
Fire Calls For Service Statistics 
Fire 26 
Rescue/Medical 240 
Service Call       18 
Good Intent       40 
False Alarm/Call       79 
Special Incident 1 
Hazardous Condition/Spec 27 

POLICE CALLS FOR SERVICE 

Type of Incident (Monthly)  Jan 
‘24 

Feb 
‘24 

Mar 
‘24 

Apr 
‘24 

May 
‘24 

Jun 
‘24 

Jul 
‘24 

Aug 
‘24 

Sep 
‘24 

Oct 
‘24 

Nov 
‘24 

Dec 
‘24 

Group A Serious Crimes 87 82 82 
Group B Other Crimes 31 58 47 
Traffic Accidents 157 68 105 
Animal Calls 32 59 56 
Other Calls 1332 1188 1319 
CFS Totals 1639 1455 1609 

Type of Incident (per year) 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 
Group A Serious Crimes 1469  1702 1467 1437 1407 1681 1548 1479 
Group B Other Crimes 579 613 683 661 565 745  741 895 
Traffic Accidents 790 720 774 613 228 1030 1231 1008 
Other Calls 12,573 13,244 13,936 14,819 14,590 15,856  16,631 20,181 
CFS Totals 15,411 16,279 16,860 17,530 16,790 19,312  19,917 21,189 

FIRE RESCUE CALLS FOR SERVICE 

Type of Incident     (Monthly) Jan 
‘24 

Feb 
‘24 

Mar 
‘24 

Apr 
‘24 

May 
‘24 

Jun 
‘24 

Jul 
‘24 

Aug 
‘24 

Sep 
‘24 

Oct 
‘24 

Nov 
‘24 

Dec 
‘24 

Medical & Rescue 137 89 134 
Cancelled, False Alarms, 
Good Intent 33 37 45 

Fire, Heat, Hazard, Weather 
Related & Other 21 26 29 

Totals 191 152 208 

Type of Incident (per year) 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 
Non-Medical CFS   911 900 772  841 783 758   917 830 
Rescue / EMS Related 1570 1437 1022 1272 1328 1541  1509 1506 
Totals 2481 2337 1794 2113 2111 2299  2426 2336 

0

500

1000

1500

Police Calls for Service

Fire Calls For Service

Fire
Rescue/Medical
Service Call
Good Intent
False Alarm
Hazard
Special Incident

30 109

Item 13.



 
 
  POLICE STATISTICS: Quarter 1 Total 2024 

   
   

Group A Crimes   
Murder/NonNeg Manslaughter 0 0 
Kidnapping/Abduction 0 0 
Forcible Rape/Sodomy/Fondling 3 3 
Robbery 1 1 
Assault 36 36 
Arson                                    0 0 
Extortion/Blackmail 1 1 
Burglary/B&E                                        13 13 
Theft 100 100 
Motor Vehicle Theft 2 2 
Counterfeit/Forgery 6 6 
Fraud 27 27 
Embezzlement 0 0 
Stolen Property 2 2 
Vandalism 31 31 
Drug Offenses  27 27 
Incest 0 0 
Porno/Obscene Material 2 2 
Op/Pro/Asst. Gambling 1 1 
Weapon Law Violation 1 1 

   

Group B Crimes   
Disorderly Conduct 7 7 
Driving Under Influence 31 31 
Drunkenness 19 19 
Non-Violent Family Offense 3 3 
Liquor Law Violation 0 0 
Runaway 2 2 
Trespassing 5 5 
All Other Offenses                                              69 69 

Group A Total: 251 251 
Group B Total: 136 136 
Total Reported Crimes: 387 387 
   

Traffic Accidents   
Fatality                                                               0 0 
Personal Injury                                   39 39 
Hit and Run 46 46 
Property Damage                                                 245 245 

Total reported Accidents 330 330 
   

Calls for Service 2797 2797 
Total Arrests       118 118 

31 110

Item 13.



  

 

Medical
8%

Cancelled, False 
Alarms, Good 

Intent
3%

Fire, Heat, Hazard, 
Weather Related

2%

Reportable Crimes
12%

Traffic Accidents 
and Stops

44%

Non-Reportable 
Crimes, Alcohol, 

Parking, 
Disorderly, All 

Other
31%

Cedar Falls Public Safety Response Summary 
(Quarter 1 2024)

FIRE POLICE

 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

 

 
  

 

32 111

Item 13.



112

Item 14.



     ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: April 22, 2024 

SUBJECT:      FY24 Report by Community Main Street 
    
 
As you may recall, starting in FY09 we signed formal agreements with those outside 
agencies that receive funding from the City of Cedar Falls. As part of those agreements, 
these agencies were required to submit reports and documentation on how those funds 
were used. 
 
Attached is the bi-annual report for FY24 filed by Community Main Street. The second 
½ payment for their SSMID funding and the Second ½ payment for their Tourism 
Activities & Economic Development Services funding are therefore listed on the council 
bills to be processed. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 
 Stacy Braun-Wagner, Finance Clerk 
 Paul Kockler, Accountant 
      

113

Item 15.



April 12, 2024

Mayor Laudick and Council Members
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
RE:  SSMID, Tourism Activities & Economic Development Services Funds

Attached please find the Bi-annual Report from Community Main Street delineating the current
status and recent progress of the organization’s pursuit of “economic vitality in the context of
historic preservation.”

In this report you will find a summary of the activities outlined in the grant contract(s). These are
found through our Main Street Iowa quarterly reports as well as our Board minutes.
These activities are in the areas of:

Design and historic preservation
Business development and retention
Promotion and marketing
Member development, training and communication
Summary of investments
FY2024 program of work

The following required attachments are also included:
Board Roster
Summation of ways we promoted the District
Financial Statements
Support documents

We are grateful for the support that the City of Cedar Falls has provided over the years and the
collaborative effort by many groups and individuals in creating a Downtown District with appreciated
real estate values, a reputation as a great destination and as a source of community pride. We will
continue to do our part to help move the Cedar Falls Downtown District forward in a positive light.
With submission of this report, we respectfully request the disbursement of funds to Community
Main Street of collected SSMID monies and of the previously awarded Tourism Activities & Economic
Development Services Grant for the continuation of this pivotal community program. We would be
pleased to provide any additional information that you may require to process the release of funds.

Kind Regards,  

C E D A R  F A L L S  C O M M U N I T Y  M A I N  S T R E E T ,  I N C .  I S  A  V O L U N T E E R - D R I V E N ,  N O N - P R O F I T
O R G A N I Z A T I O N  E S T A B L I S H E D  T O  F O S T E R  E C O N O M I C  V I T A L I T Y ,  A N D  T O  P R E S E R V E  A N D

P R O M O T E  T H E  H I S T O R I C  I M A G E  A N D  C H A R A C T E R  O F  T H E  D O W N T O W N ,  W H I L E
I M P R O V I N G  T H E  Q U A L I T Y  O F  L I F E  I N  C E D A R  F A L L S .

3 1 0  E .  4 T H  S T R E E T ,  C E D A R  F A L L S ,  I A  5 0 6 1 3       
D I R E C T O R @ C O M M U N I T Y M A I N S T R E E T . O R G  -  3 1 9 . 2 7 7 . 0 2 1 3

Kim Bear
Executive Director
Community Main Street 

2 0 2 3 - 2 0 2 4
B O A R D  O F  
D I R E C T O R S :

B R E N T  J O H N S O N ,  P R E S
K A T E  D U N N I N G
A N N  E A S T M A N
W Y N E T T E  F R O E H N E R
L E X I E  H E A T H
D E A N N A  H O F F M A N N
C O R Y  K E N T
J E N N Y  L E E P E R
D A N  L Y N C H
E M I L E E  N E D O B A
H E L E N  P E A R C E
L A U R E N  R I E N S C H E
S T E P H A N I E  S H E E T Z
M A R K  S H O W A L T E R
B R A D  S T R O U S E

114

Item 15.



Funding
Opportunity:

 69444-Main Street Iowa Communities

Program Area:  Downtown Resource Center

Status:  Approved

Status Report
Number:

 105

Status Report
Type:

 Quarterly Economic Impact

Reporting Period:  10/01/2023 - 12/31/2023

Initial Submit
Date:

 Jan 12, 2024 11:58 AM

Initially Submitted
By:

 Kim Bear

Last Submit Date:

Last Submitted
By:

Approved Date:  Feb 2, 2024 2:45 PM

Primary Contact Information

First Name*: Kim
First Name

 Middle Name  Bear
Last Name

Title: Executive Director

Email*: director@communitymainstreet.org

Address*: 310 East 4th Street

3815 Union Road

CEDAR FALLS
City

 Iowa
State/Province

50613
Postal Code/Zip

Phone*: (319) 277-0213
Phone
###-###-####

 Ext.

Fax: ###-###-####

Organization Information

Name*: Community Main Street, Inc.

Organization
Type*:

Non-Profit Organization

DUNS: ##-###-####

Tax Id:

Unique Entity
Identifier (UEI):

Organization
Website:

http://communitymainstreet.org

Address*: Community Main Street

310 E 4th St

Cedar Falls
City

 Iowa
State/Province

50613
Postal Code/Zip

Phone*: (319) 277-0213
###-###-####

 Ext.

Fax: ###-###-####

1987-MS-001 - Cedar Falls - 1987
Status Report Details

Contact Information

Quarterly Economic Impact Report

Investments in the Main Street District

Project Type*: Rehab Existing Building

Building/Business Name: Tandem Tire
115

Item 15.

mailto:director@communitymainstreet.org
http://communitymainstreet.org/


Address: 122 W. 1st Street

Private Amount Invested: $2,000.00
Amount Invested

Include city, county, local utility, etc.

Public Amount Invested: $0.00
Amount Invested

Include state, federal, and other grant funds invested.

Grant Amount Invested: $0.00
Amount Invested

Total Amount Invested: $2,000.00

Comments:

Project Type*: Rehab Existing Building

Building/Business Name: Hurling Hatchet

Address: 100 E. 2nd Street

Private Amount Invested: $2,300.00
Amount Invested

Include city, county, local utility, etc.

Public Amount Invested: $0.00
Amount Invested

Include state, federal, and other grant funds invested.

Grant Amount Invested: $0.00
Amount Invested

Total Amount Invested: $2,300.00

Comments:

Project Type*: Rehab Existing Building

Building/Business Name: Cedar Falls Historical Society

Address: 315 Clay Street

Private Amount Invested: $425,000.00
Amount Invested

Include city, county, local utility, etc.

Public Amount Invested: $0.00
Amount Invested

Include state, federal, and other grant funds invested.

Grant Amount Invested: $0.00
Amount Invested

Total Amount Invested: $425,000.00

Comments:

Buildings Sold in the Main Street District

Business Changes in the Main Street District

Business Name*: The Nook

Address: 216 Main Street

Business Status: New

Business Type: Retail
116

Item 15.



Enter only positive, whole numbers for the number of jobs affected. The reporting system will automatically calculate jobs based on the business
status and will correctly calculate full- and part-time jobs.

# of FT Jobs: 2

# of PT Jobs: 1

Business Name*: Grid Lounge

Address: 100 E. 2nd Street

Business Status: New

Business Type: Service

Enter only positive, whole numbers for the number of jobs affected. The reporting system will automatically calculate jobs based on the business
status and will correctly calculate full- and part-time jobs.

# of FT Jobs: 2

# of PT Jobs: 2

Business Name*: Big Foot Betty's

Address: 419 Main Street

Business Status: New

Business Type: Food Establishment

Enter only positive, whole numbers for the number of jobs affected. The reporting system will automatically calculate jobs based on the business
status and will correctly calculate full- and part-time jobs.

# of FT Jobs: 4

# of PT Jobs: 6

New Housing in the Main Street District

Main Street Events & Activities

Event/Activity Name*: Upstairs Downtown

Date: 10/24/2023

Event/Activity Type: Image

Event/Activity Name*: Holiday Hoopla Kickoff

Date: 11/24/2023

Event/Activity Type: Special Event

Event/Activity Name*: Trick or Treat in the District

Date: 10/31/2023

Event/Activity Type: Special Event

Event/Activity Name*: Downtown Ingredients

Date: 11/9/2023

Event/Activity Type: Retail

Event/Activity Name*: Deck the Falls

Date: 11/14/2023

Event/Activity Type: Volunteer Development
117

Item 15.



Event/Activity Name*: Shop Small Saturday

Date: 11/25/2023

Event/Activity Type: Retail

Event/Activity Name*: Reindeer Games

Date: 11/30/2023

Event/Activity Type: Special Event

Event/Activity Name*: Breakfast at the North Pole

Date: 12/2/2023

Event/Activity Type: Fundraising

Event/Activity Name*: Jingle & Mingle

Date: 12/7/2023

Event/Activity Type: Retail

Event/Activity Name*: Trolley Rides & Santas Workshop

Date: 11/30/2023

Event/Activity Type: Image

Event/Activity Name*: Santa 50613

Date: 11/30/2023

Event/Activity Type: Image

Event/Activity Name*: Baby It's Cold Outside

Date: 12/21/2023

Event/Activity Type: Special Event

Event/Activity Name*: Partner Thank you

Date: 11/21/2023

Event/Activity Type: Image

Event/Activity Name*: Eat Drink & Be Merry

Date: 12/14/2023

Event/Activity Type: Special Event

Event/Activity Name*: Movie Magic

Date: 12/16/2023

Event/Activity Type: Special Event

Event/Activity Name*: Girls' Night Out

Date: 10/5/2023

Event/Activity Type: Retail

Event/Activity Name*: District Enhancement Grant
118

Item 15.



Date: 10/09/2023

Event/Activity Type: Image

Event/Activity Name*: Business Owner Santa Night

Date: 12/5/2023

Event/Activity Type: Image

Volunteer Hours Invested in Main Street

Volunteer Hours*: Yes

Total Volunteer Hours: 3561.00

Commentary

Design Commentary/Updates:

Deck the Falls is always a wonderful time making sure Downtown is beautiful for the holidays. We had beautiful weather with
everyone in sweatshirts and its amazing how volunteers show up when it is night out. We also continue to see Facade Grant
applications coming in and so the most recent conversation was with Humble Travel and updating their awning for their corner spot.
It is currently in the works.

Economic Vitality/Business
Improvement Commentary/Updates:

Economic Development committee rolled out the first round of our District Enhancement grant. This has been a labor of love for this
crew, trying to determine how best to structure it, who the intended audience is and how the funds can be the most helpful. We
learned quite a bit from the first round of grants and will continue to learn as we support the stakeholders of the Downtown District.

Promotion Commentary/Updates:

Our new website is finally live after a year of work and it still continues to be a work in progress as we evaluate our needs. Our "How
do you downtown?" campaign will continue through the spring that will then roll into a targeted volunteer recruitment campaign. We
still have two more videos to roll out but it has been a fun project thus far and the videos will continued to be used for more fun. The
promotions committee is also working on a marketing grant to help small businesses with some new marketing strategies that will
also include an educational component.

Organization Commentary/Updates:

Our organization volunteers were and are always busy planning. We were able to hold a successful Upstairs Downtown again for
the first time since before COVID and everyone enjoyed a lovely Tuesday evening wandering around the District. We have so many
AirBNB's now that people weren't aware of that it is fun to show them off. We also had another successful Partner Thank You with
an abundance of treats and treat trays to deliver to our partners, delivering is a favorite of a lot of committee members because
everyone is so appreciative. The committee went through Main Street Iowa awards and determined what we feel like we should
nominate this year and also our Volunteer of the year. Last but not least it is time to start planning for our Volunteer Appreciation
party where we will be leaping for our volunteers on February 29th... get it!

Program Commentary/Updates:

We survived 4th quarter with the amazing help of our core volunteers who continue to show up over and over again. The Hoopla
season can be overwhelming but also so rewarding. We saw record crowds every Thursday night due to mother nature being our
very best friend and because everyone loves Santa. We always learn about things we can do differently. We were also busy in the
office with selling gift certificates, between Thanksgiving and Christmas we sold just over $60,000 which doesn't include all the
financial institutions that sell them for us. We also had a request to add a

Suggestions for state staff:

N/A
List suggestions & questions on services, training topics, (for MSI communities and/or local needs)
new resources, speakers you would recommend, etc.

119

Item 15.



Funding
Opportunity:

 69444-Main Street Iowa Communities

Program Area:  Downtown Resource Center

Status:  Editing

Status Report
Number:

 107

Status Report
Type:

 Quarterly Economic Impact

Reporting Period:  01/01/2024 - 03/31/2024

Initial Submit
Date:

Initially Submitted
By:

Last Submit Date:

Last Submitted
By:

Approved Date:

Primary Contact Information

First Name*: Kim
First Name

 Middle Name  Bear
Last Name

Title: Executive Director

Email*: director@communitymainstreet.org

Address*: 310 East 4th Street

3815 Union Road

CEDAR FALLS
City

 Iowa
State/Province

50613
Postal Code/Zip

Phone*: (319) 277-0213
Phone
###-###-####

 Ext.

Fax: ###-###-####

Organization Information

Name*: Community Main Street, Inc.

Organization
Type*:

Non-Profit Organization

DUNS: ##-###-####

Tax Id:

Unique Entity
Identifier (UEI):

Organization
Website:

http://communitymainstreet.org

Address*: Community Main Street

310 E 4th St

Cedar Falls
City

 Iowa
State/Province

50613
Postal Code/Zip

Phone*: (319) 277-0213
###-###-####

 Ext.

Fax: ###-###-####

1987-MS-001 - Cedar Falls - 1987
Status Report Details

Contact Information

Quarterly Economic Impact Report

Investments in the Main Street District

Buildings Sold in the Main Street District

Building/Business Name: Talk to Me Technologies Building
120

Item 15.

mailto:director@communitymainstreet.org
http://communitymainstreet.org/


Address*: 517 Washington Street

Current Use: Vacant

Future Use: Unknown

Amount of Sale: $592,000.00

Business Changes in the Main Street District

Business Name*: Stone Feather Road

Address: 218 Main Street

Business Status: Relocated Out of Main Street District

Business Type: Retail

Enter only positive, whole numbers for the number of jobs affected. The reporting system will automatically calculate jobs based on the business
status and will correctly calculate full- and part-time jobs.

# of FT Jobs: 2

# of PT Jobs: 1

New Housing in the Main Street District

Main Street Events & Activities

Event/Activity Name*: Spring Shop Hop

Date: 3/28/2024-3/30/2024

Event/Activity Type: Retail

Event/Activity Name*: Downtown Delights

Date: 2/10/2024

Event/Activity Type: Retail

Event/Activity Name*: Volunteer Appreciation Party

Date: 2/29/2024

Event/Activity Type: Volunteer Development

Event/Activity Name*: January Blowout Sales

Date: 1/4/2023

Event/Activity Type: Retail

Volunteer Hours Invested in Main Street

Volunteer Hours*: Yes

Total Volunteer Hours: 228.00

Commentary

Design Commentary/Updates:

The Design committee and folks involved in Design have been busy. We have been exploring some new kiosk options; adding and
replacing our current one and have some good ideas for what that could look like. Hope to get something installed this summer yet
provided everyone agrees.
Many committee members as well as board members have been involved in discussions and providing resources to a building
owner who is facing possible condemnation. Kendalle was made the executer of the estate after the passing of the long time owner

121

Item 15.



of the 109 E. 2nd Street building and had no idea it was in the disrepair upstairs that it is. The City became involved because a
wellness check occurred when those close to John (owner) couldn't get a hold of him. It was at that time the paramedics and public
safety became aware of his living conditions. During a February Council meeting there was the initial hearing giving Kendalle a
deadline to come up with a plan. So far they have spent one weekend cleaning out the space with mulitple dumpster loads and plan
to do another one. We have provided Kendalle with numerous resources whether they be people or grant opportunities. They have
continued to run into barriers for various reasons but Kendalle is looking into all the options of continuing the work, a selling option or
moving what was an art gallery on the main floor. You can tell that she is passionate about carrying on John's legacy but this is a
huge undertaking. We continue to be a resource to her in whatever capacity she needs.
Design also looked at Patton (new restaurant) signage and exterior changes that they will be making.
The design committee also provided feedback for the preliminary plans for a new building at 3rd and State but we have no yet seen
final plans.
Making plans for a District wide Earth Day clean up on March 22nd as well as preparing for the flowers to be delivered in May.

Economic Vitality/Business
Improvement Commentary/Updates:

Economic Vitality has also helped to explore options for the 109 E. 2nd Street building as one of our committee members is a part of
the SBDC and has been a wonderful resource to Kendalle. Economic Vitality will continue to work on the Enhancement Grant. So
far we have seen one project complete with two more to be completed in the next couple of months. It will be great to share
before/after pictures of projects and how CMS was able to help with the projects. This committee is also looking for new members to
expand our reach.

Promotion Commentary/Updates:

The promotion committee has spent months working on our MAGIC (Marketing Assistance Grant for Inspiring Commerce) Grant.
We are excited to officially roll it out in May.
Bar/Restaurant group is working on Restaurant Week to occur in April and there are so yummy things being included and presented
by the restaurants. Can't wait!
We will also be rolling out our last 3 videos for "How Do You Downtown?" in the second quarter.
Conversations have started with the Farmers Market to be better partners with them in the hopes that we can help each other with
the great traffic that they bring to the Downtown District.
We have also been working on our calendar of events and getting things rolling with all of our sponsors for ARTapalooza, District
Street Party and Holiday Hoopla. Our summer will be short on events without Movies Under the Moon but a lot of new things in the
brainstorming session as we have had some different business wanting to get involved. Stay tuned...

Organization Commentary/Updates:

Organization spent first quarter helping to plan the Volunteer Appreciation Party as well as helping to pull together the District Street
Party award nomination. Org has also started brainstorming different ways to recruit and train new volunteers and we think we have
some exciting options to roll out in 2024.

Program Commentary/Updates:

First quarter flew by with lots of planning for the remainder of 2024. We have been having exciting conversations with new folks in
the District who want to get involved and also have been challenging us to look at events differently. There definitely feels like there
is a shift away from any sort of "drinking" event and more quality of life events which isn't a bad thing but something we just need to
shift towards.
A lot of collaboration happening in the Cedar Valley through new ventures with Sturgis Falls, the River Project and UNI homecoming.
The City is restricting who and how Main Street can be closed for events which came out of lots of conversations with our exec
board and the City. While we understand why Main Street is an attractive venue, it is also inexpensive from the fees perspective but
not all street closures are good for the businesses.

Suggestions for state staff:

N/A
List suggestions & questions on services, training topics, (for MSI communities and/or local needs)
new resources, speakers you would recommend, etc.

122

Item 15.



A	summary	of	new	investment	and	job	creation/retention	figures	for	the	applicable	
reporting	period		
 
 

Business/Job	Changes		 
October	2023	through	March	2024 

	 New	
Business	
Opening	 

	 
Net	Jobs	
Created	 

Businesses	
Closing	or	
Moving	
out	 

FTE	 
Jobs	
Lost	 

Businesses	
Relocating/Expanding	

Downtown	 

Net	FTE	Jobs	
Created	with	 

Expand/Relocate	 

October-	
December	
2023 

3	 8 0 0 0 0 

January-
March	
2024 

0	 0 1 2 0	 0	 

Totals	 3*	 8**	 1*	 2**	 0	 0 
*Business	opening	(3)	–	business	closing	(1)	=	net	(2)	 
	 
	
	 

Rehabilitation,	Renovation	&	New	Construction		 
October	2023	through	March	2024 

	 Projects	 Investment	Value	 
October	2023-December	2023 3 $429,300 
January	2024-March	2024 	  
Total 10 $429,300 
	 
	 
	 

Buildings	Sold	 
October	2023	through	March	2024 

	 Quantity	 Investment	 
October-December	2023 0 0 
January-March	2024 1 $592,000 
Total		 0	 $592,000	 
	 
	 
	 

Volunteer	Hours		 
October	2023	through	March	2024 

October-December	2023 3561	 
January-March	2024 228	 
Total		 3,789 
  

123

Item 15.



CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY MAIN STREET 
“ONE-SHEET” 

March 2024 

FY2024 

BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE 

DESIGN COMMITTEE ORGANIZATION 
COMMITTEE 

PROMOTIONS 
COMMITTEE 

RETAIL/NIGHTLIFE 
PROMOTIONS 

Focus: 
• Attend city council 

meetings 
• Program of work 
• Deliberate business 

visitation program 
• April Bi-Annual 

report 
• MSI Quarterly 

reports (2) 
• Staff review 
 
 
Done:  
• Budget 
• Main Street America 

Accreditation 
• City funding request 
• October bi-annual 

report 
• MSI Pulse Poll 
• MSI Quarterly 

reports (2) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Focus: 
• Celebrate 

anniversaries (5, 10, 
15) 

• Promotional 
materials in vacant 
spaces -> create and 
move to promotions 
silo 

• Schedule bi-annual 
landlord/property 
owner meetings 

• Continue 
conversations 
between 
stakeholders and the 
board regarding 
parking 

• District 
Enhancement Grant 

• MSI annual checklist 
• Quarterly New 

business visits (10x) 
• Advocate for the 

implementation of 
the parking plan or 
requests made by 
stakeholders 

• Topical trainings  
 
Done:  
• Challenge Grant 

FY23  
• District 

Enhancement Grant 
round 1 
 

Focus: 
• Wayfinding within 

District 
• Parking lot 

cleanliness & 
maintenance 
program 

• MSI annual checklist 
• Seasonal 

beautification 
• Spring clean up  
• Façade grant 

reviews 
 

 
Done: 
• Challenge Grant 

FY23 
• Fall Clean-up 
• Seasonal 

beautification  
 

Focus: 
• MSI annual checklist 
• Friends campaign 

(100% board 
participation) 

• Volunteer 
recruitment piece 

• Program awareness 
through community 
outreach 

• Flower fundraiser 
• Annual meeting 
 
Done:  
• Upstairs Downtown 
• Partner Thank you 
• Volunteer 

Appreciation 
• Main Street Iowa 

award nominations 
 
 

 
 

Focus: 
• Newsletter (3) 
• Kiosk maps/fliers 
• Social Media 

engagement 
• Calendar of events 

mailing (x1) 
• MSI annual checklist 
• Visitor 

Guide/Tourism coop 
• Hops 
• Holiday Hoopla 

o Sturgis Falls Parade 
Done: 
• Movies Under the 

Moon (3) 
• Newsletter (9) 
• ARTapalooza 
• Street Party 
• Website update 
• Trick or Treat 
• Holiday Hoopla 

Kickoff 
• Calendar of events 

mailing  
• Holiday Hoopla 

o Reindeer Games 
o Jingle & Mingle 
o Breakfast with Santa 
o Hoopla Cheer/bar crawl 
o Baby It’s Cold Outside 
o Movie Magic 
o Coloring Contest 
o Trolley Rides 
o Letters to Santa  
o Window Contest 

Focus: 
• Spring Girls Night 

Out 
 
Done:  
• Fall Girls’ Night Out 
• Downtown 

Ingredients 
• Small Business 

Saturday 
• Jingle & Mingle 
• January Blowout 

Sales 
• Downtown Delights 
• Spring Shop Hop 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

124

Item 15.



Promotion
Organization &
Development

Economic
Development &

Design

125

Item 15.



OUR MISSION & 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc.
is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization

established to foster economic vitality, and 
to preserve and promote the historic image

 and character of the downtown, 
while improving the quality of life in Cedar Falls.

126

Item 15.



INTRODUCING
OUR BEST TEAM

Creator of the best content
Retail event expert 
Brainstorming extrodinnaire 

KASSIDY TESSENDORF
EVENTS & PROMOTIONS COORDINATOR

Gift certificate administrator
Oversees all income coming
and expenses going out

HEATHER MORITZ
OFFICE COORDINATOR

Chaos coordinator
Lover of all things Downtown
Oversee the execution,
documentation and conduct of
the Downtown program

KIM BEAR
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

127

Item 15.



What have we been up to?
October 2023   - Hosted Upstairs Downtown

Be sure to check out our
amazing Downtown District

restaurants, bars and
shops after the event! 

& Stay up to date on
our other events!

Scan here!

October 24th, 2023 
5:30-7:30pm 

Welcome & Enjoy!
Please begin your 
tour in this order: 

Thank you for coming!

-123 Main Street
 AirBNB above Harry’s

-212 Main Street
Masonic Lodge

-219 Main Street #5 & #6
Main Street Apartments

-305 Main Street
Wine Shop Apartment

-317 Main Street
AirBnB

-250 State Street #307 & #201
State Street Apartments

-503 Washington Street
Little Light Studio

-115 Main Street
The Black Hawk Hotel Room

-115 E. 4th Street
Woolverton Building

128

Item 15.



-Girls Night Out Specials-

Main Street
Exchange:

20% off 
your most
expensive

item. Limit 1.

Here’s 
What’s 
Poppin: 

Buy 3 bags,
get 1 free.

The Cob
Mercantile/

World’s
Window: 

Cobtoberfest
Bingo Beer &

Pretzels

Bambinos:
$5 Ladies

Sweet
Shareable
Sampler

dessert box. 

Driftless Style:
10% off $50
purchases,

20% off
purchases
over $150.

Pump Haus:
 Treat table,

$4 wines and
$4 seltzers.

Spotlight Style
Boutique & 

Salon:
$10 Jewelry

Basket of 
Daisies: 

20% off one
regular priced

item. Some
exclusions apply.

Lantern
decorating class.

LR Jewelers: 
Stam

chocolates
available for
customers to

enjoy

Hatchlings &
Hens: 
$5 in

Hatchlings &
Hens cash for

every $25
spent.

Main Street
Sweets: Receive a
free "Main Street

Sweets" Pura
Vida bracelet

with any
purchase.

LBL:
 Free gift with
purchase over
$45 - Limited

quantity
available.

George’s
Local:
Frozen 

Apple Cider
Marg $7

Stam: 
BOGO gelato

of equal or
lesser value

The Other 
Place: 
$4.00 

Seltzers

Pepper 
Boutique:

15% off
storewide

Jiva
Salonspa:

Save 20% off
your Aveda

favorites when
you purchase 1

or more limited-
edition gift sets.

Peekaboo: 
for every $50
spent you get
entered into a

drawing to win
a $50 gift card

Pretty Good Co:
wine samples
and 15% off

purchases of
$20 or more.

Funky Zebras:
20% 
off 
one 
item

Vintage Iron: 
$5 store cash

with every $25
purchase. Food

samples & a $100
store giftcard

giveaway!

Hurts Donut:
Margarita
Donuts and
Donut Hole
Sampling 

Palace 
Clothiers: 
Wine and
Chocolate 
sampling

Runner’s
Flat:

35% off
select 

apparel
sale

Girls Night Out
Participating Locations
-PUMP HAUS (311 MAIN)

-HERE'S WHAT'S POPPIN (220 MAIN)
-MAIN STREET EXCHANGE (303 MAIN)

-HATCHLINGS & HENS (109 MAIN)
-LBL (321 MAIN)

-VINTAGE IRON (104 MAIN)
-WORLDS WINDOW (214 MAIN)

-PEEKABOO (108 MAIN)
-CHOCOLATERIE STAM (122 MAIN)

-BASKET OF DAISIES (116 MAIN)
-JIVA (223 MAIN)

-THE FUNKY ZEBRAS (100 E. 2ND, SUITE 104)
-DRIFTLESS STYLE (106 MAIN)

-PRETTY GOOD CO. (226 MAIN)
-PEPPER BOUTIQUE (213 MAIN)

-THE COB MERCANTILE (212 MAIN)
-PALACE CLOTHIERS (309 MAIN)
-THE OTHER PLACE (209 MAIN) 

-BAMBINOS (401 MAIN) 
-HURT DONUT COMPANY (100 E 2ND)

-GEORGE'S LOCAL (108 E. 4TH)
-LR JEWELERS (323 MAIN)

-RUNNERS FLAT (120 MAIN)
-MAIN STREET SWEETS (307 MAIN)

-SPOTLIGHT STYLE 
BOUTIQUE & SALON (112 W. 3RD)

Thank you for supporting local!

Girls
 Night 

Out 
Girls
 Night 

Out 

October 2023   - Retail Hosted Girls’ Night Out

129

Item 15.



October 2023   - Main Street American and got to
show off our wonderful Cedar Falls Downtown District

130

Item 15.



October 2023   - Launched our new website... 
Check it out! 

131

Item 15.



IN OCTOBER WE ROLLED OUT THE
NEW
DISTRICT
ENHANCEMENT

Check out details here

132

Item 15.



November 9th-11th, 2023
Grab all the right ingredients for your holiday season, pick
up gifts, decor and more during Downtown Ingredients! As
you eat, drink and shop you will pick up a recipe card from
participating merchants and go home with your very own

Cedar Falls Downtown District cookbook. We truly have all
the ingredients for your holiday in the District.

Deck the Falls- Help us get
downtown ready for the holidays!
November 14 & 15: Scan this QR

code to sign up!

8th Edition | 2023

Mark your

calendars for

our upcoming

events!

Holiday Hoopla Kickoff- Santa Claus is
coming to the Cedar Falls Downtown

District! Don’t miss his grand entrance on
Friday, November 24th, 6-8pm!

Small Business Saturday-
November 25: Shop your

 favorite Downtown District 
small businesses!

November - was filled with two retail events in
Downtown Ingredients and 

Small Business Saturday

133

Item 15.



November 2023 - we Decked the Falls

Deck 
the 

Falls
And Santa came on a giant Rocking Horse named Stan in

front of thousands!!

134

Item 15.



hosted:
jingle & mingle
Breakfast at the north pole
trolley rides on Thursdays
Santa in his workshop every
Thursday and Saturday
Eat, drink & Be merry
movie magic at the Oster
coloring contest
Santa letters
baby it’s cold outside
reindeer games

135

Item 15.



This year of Holiday Hoopla was YEAR 15 and just in
case anyone every asks this is how Santa has arrived
each year!

We also used an updated logo for the Hoopla season

136

Item 15.



January 2024 -  ARTapalooza applications went live
for the 18th annul event!

APPLICATIONS
NOW LIVE!!

137

Item 15.



JANUARY BLOWOUT SALES
VISIT EACH LOCATION TO COMPLETE YOUR PUNCH CARD TO BE ENTERED TO WIN COMMUNITY MAIN STREET GIFT CERTIFICATES! 

turn in your completed card to any participating business!

PEPPER

VINTAGE IRON

PALACE
CLOTHIERS

PEEKABOO

PUMP HAUS

JIVA
salonspa

FUNKY
ZEBRAS

GEORGE’S
LOCAL

PRETTY
GOOD CO.

THE COB
mercantile

SPOTLIGHT
 style boutique 

& salon

FABFINDS
SHOPPE

BASKET OF
DAISIES

WORLD’S
WINDOW

HERE’S WHATS
 POPPIN

MAIN STREET
EXCHANGE

LBL

50% OFF
CHRISTMAS +

SPECIAL TABLE
SALE

10% OFF STORE
+ 50% OFF
CHRISTMAS

BUY ANY 3
ITEMS,

GET ONE FREE
$10 OFF

$50 PURCHASE
20% OFF STORE +

50% OFF
CHRISTMAS

VARIOUS
MARKDOWNS

20% OFF
STOREWIDE

25% OFF
HOLIDAY

BUY 3 BAGS OF
POPCORN, GET 1

FREE

SAVE ADDITIONAL
25% OFF SELECT

GIFT SETS

10% OFF STORE
(EXCLUDES CLEARANCE)

25% OFF $30 25% OFF
CLOTHING

25% OFF
ONE ITEM

25%
OFF

MERCH

50% OFF STORE
EXCLUSIONS APPLY

BUY $25 GIFT
CARD

FOR $20

30-50% OFF SELECT
APPAREL, 10% OFF

BOOTS, $15 OFF IN STOCK
WIGS/SPECIAL ORDER,
FREE COSMETIC TOTE
WITH WIG PURCHASE

BUY $25 GIFT CARD
FOR $20 + 10% OFF

CHRISTMAS

driftless style

Name & Phone

Your Info here!

January 2024 - Our retail locations hosted 
January Blowout Sales

138

Item 15.



 February 2024 - Our Retail locations hosted
Downtown Delights

Shop and dine the Cedar Falls Downtown
District while enjoying complimentary wine &

chocolate at participating locations!

FEBRUARY 10TH 

Downtown

Participating Locations:
Vintage Iron - Driftless Style - Peekaboo- Stam- The OP- Basket of Daisies - The Funky Zebras- Hurts Donut-The Cob Mercantile- Pepper Boutique 
World’s Window- Here’s What’s Poppin- Jiva Salonspa Pretty Good Co.- Spotlight Style Boutique & Salon - Main Street Exchange- Palace Clothiers- 

Pump Haus The Nook- LBL- LR Jewelers- Runners Flat - Main Street Sweets- George’s Local - FabFinds Shoppe- Bambinos

Delights
Wine & Chocolate Walk

it’’s 
back!

139

Item 15.



 February 2024 - Celebrated our wonderful
volunteers, including our volunteer of the year, 

Helen Pearce!

V
O

LU

NTEER OF THE YEA
R

HELEN PEARCE
WHETHER YOU ARE DOWNTOWN AT 6:00AM OR AT ANY EVENT YOU WILL SEE
HELEN. SHE WATERS OUR BEAUTIFUL FLOWERS AT LEAST ONCE A WEEK, SUBS

FOR WHOMEVER NEEDS IT, SERVES ON THE BOARD AND ANYTIME A VOLUNTEER
SIGNUP GOES OUT SHE IS THE FIRST TO ADD HER NAME TO IT. EVER SINCE

HELEN RETIRED FROM A DOWNTOWN BUSINESS, SHE HAS CONTINUED TO FILL
HER TIME WITH DOWNTOWN SERVICE AND WE LOVE HER FOR IT.  

WE ARE

LE IA NG
WITH JOY THAT YOU ARE

OUR VOLUNTEERS! 

PLAP NE I G
Communi ty  Ma in  S t ree t

wants  to  honor  YOU  
fo r  your  vo lunteer ing !  

Jo in  us  fo r  p i z za  and  t rea ts !  
P lease  s top  by  the  

Communi ty  Ma in  S t ree t  O f f ice
anyt ime  between  4 :30-6 :30PM 

February  29th ,  2024
P lease  RSVP  by  
February  23rd  to

 events@communi tymainst reet .o rg  
or  by  ca l l ing  the  o f f ice

 3 19 -277-0213 .  

C o m m u n i t y  M a i n  S t r e e t
3 1 0  E .  4 t h  S t r e e t
C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a  5 0 6 1 3

140

Item 15.



March 2024 -  Our retail locations hosted their 
Spring Shop Hop event

Cedar Falls Downtown District

Eggs at each
participating

location are filled
with gift

certificates,
deals, candy, and

more!
See you in the

Downtown
District!

GUESS 
WHERE 

THE
EGG 
IS???

141

Item 15.



WE HAVE BEEN HAVING SO MUCH FUN WITH
OUR “HOW DO YOU DOWNTOWN?”

CAMPAIGN AND THIS ONE 
IS ONE OF OUR FAVORITES...

MEET THE SCHMIDTS

142

Item 15.



communitymainstreet.org

From coffee to
cocktails, shopping to
entertainment, dinner

to dessert- there is
something for

everyone in the 
Cedar Falls 

Downtown District! 
We just have one

question...

143

Item 15.



communitymainstreet.org

It has been a busy six
months but we look

forward to what the next
six months bring in the

District!!

144

Item 15.



Community Main Street 
FY2024 
 
 

 Printed April 12, 24 

2023-2024 CMS Board of Directors 
 
Executive Committee:        
Brent Johnson, President 
Dan Lynch, Treasurer 
Emilee Nedoba, Secretary 
Jenny Leeper, Past President   
    
On-going Ex-Officio Representatives:   
CFU: Wynette Froehner (began term July 2017)    
City of CF:  Stephanie Sheetz (began term January 2016)  
CFLaw: Brad Strouse (began term July 2017)  
  

Class of 2024 (ends June 30, 2024) 
Mark Showalter2 

 
Class of 2025 (ends June 30, 2025) 
Helen Pearce1 
Ann Eastman1 
Lexie Heath2 
 

Class of 2026 (ends June 30, 2026) 
Cory Kent1 
Emilee Nedoba1 
Brent Johnson1 
Dan Lynch1 
Kate Dunning1 

 

Class of 2027 (ends June 30, 2027) 
Jenny Leeper2 
Lauren Riensche1 
Deanna Hoffmann1 
    
Liaisons: 

Black Hawk County Supervisors: Linda Laylin 
CF Historical Society:  Carrie Eilderts   
CF Police Dept: Mark Howard 
CF Public Library: Kelly Stern   
GCV Alliance & Chamber: Cary Darrah     
College Hill Partnership:  
Main Street Waterloo: Jessica Rucker/Nick Hedrick 
Cedar Falls Community Theatre: Greg Holt 
Cedar Falls City Council Ward 1: Gil Schultz 
 
 

145

Item 15.



Minutes, Community Main Street, Inc.  
Board of Directors Mee8ng 

Tuesday, October 10, 2023 @ 12:00pm 
CMS Office 

Board Members Present:  Jenny Leeper-Past President; Dan Lynch-Treasurer; Emilee Nedoba-
Secretary; Kate Dunning; Ann Eastman; Cory Kent; Lexie Heath; Deanna Hoffman; Helen Pearce; 
Lauren Riensche; Stephanie Sheetz, Liaisons Present:  Gil Schultz; Carrie Eilderts, Staff present:  
Kim Bear; Kassidy Tessendorf, and Heather Moritz. 
 

1. Welcome, Call to Order – by Leeper  
 

2. Approval of Minutes – MoSon to approve September minutes, approved by Dan and 
seconded by Lexie, all approved.  
 

3. Financial Report – by Lynch 
September Event Income and Event Expenses were what we expected. Expenses 
included ARTapolooza and District Street party.  Income included ARTapolooza, Holiday 
Hoopla and District Street Party, we ended the month ahead. Next month we will be in 
receipt of SSMID income.  Our large CD matured in September; half was deposited to 
savings with the other half reinvested in an addiSonal CD.  MoSon to approve financials 
so moved by Deanna, seconded by Helen, all approved.  

 
4. City Updates – Sheetz 

PCI is working on storm sewer at Seerley and Main. The paving contractor is working on 
8th to 11th street, as well as 21st to Seerley.  
The flow of project is to focus on underground construcSon of main corridor, then all 
paving completed, with aestheScs to be the last part off project and esSmated to be 
complete in the spring of 2024.   Stephanie is following up with city for more exact 
compleSon dates.  
The River project is coming along, the boulders are being placed and the effect of the 
boulders was discussed. Gateway parking is closed for a year nor can shelter be used 
during that Sme.  Regarding the Railroad grant, it’s up to the council for 
resubmission.   The exact date of resubmission is not currently known.  Councils’ 
reapplicaSon may be for a regional grant, to include Butler County.  Regional grants are 
more favorable.   
 

5. President’s Report – Bear   
a. The 990-tax form is complete and Board members may review during the next 

week. The form is due to IRS November 15, 2023 with Brent’s signature. 
b. The Board was reminded of the October 16 meeSng with Jackie from Main Street  

America.  Jackie will be touring during the morning and meeSng with Board 
members at 1:30pm in the First Bank large conference room. A minimum of ten 

146

Item 15.



Board members need to adend the aeernoon meeSng, if you have not already, 
please contact Kim with your intenSons. Jackie wants this to be an engaging 
meeSng so please bring quesSons with you.  We are visited by someone from 
Main Steet America every other year and the off years Main Street Iowa will visit.    

 
6. Staff Report – Bear 

a. Kim shared the recap video that Pixel took of District Street Party, Board 
members were pleased, Kim reminded staff this rolls into the campaign of “How 
do you Downtown, This is how we Downtown.”  Cory reported that for the most 
part he has received nothing but posiSve feedback from businesses, adendees, 
and police.  Many posiSve remarks have been made about how family friendly 
the District Street Party was.  Discussion ensued regarding feedback and 
happenings of the day and evening.  The recap Commidee will be meeSng the 
week of October 16 to review the event in preparaSon for hosSng the event 
again next year.  Volunteers were encouraged to provide feedback.  The success 
of this year’s event is expected to increase adendance and sponsorships for next 
year. The event was most certainly a source of pride and profitable for 
Downtown.  

 
 
7. Commidee Reports 

a. Kim is working on a comprehensive work plan for Community Main Street 
staff/reports/commidees and events.  Main Street America is encouraging we 
 have a document that outlines all staff responsibiliSes in the case staffing 
changes. The work plan is  not complete but conSnues to be worked on. The 
Board will receive a copy of the work plan each month to keep everyone aware 
of its progression.  The PromoSons Commidee is reaching out to Waterloo Main 
Street for their event matrix to help determine what events support our mission 
and if we should conSnue with all events.  Waterloo’s matrix takes the emoSon 
out of it.   The Board complimented Kim and Kassidy on all their Sme and effort 
invested in organizing and execuSng Community Main Street Events. 

b. This month’s Board agenda included a link to volunteer sign-up sheet for 
November 14 & 15 Deck the Falls.  Please sign up if there is a Sme you’d like to 
help decorate.  

c. The agenda also included a link to the Partner Thank You.  This is Community 
Main Streets annual Thank You to financial InsStuSon and almost every city 
office.  Each business is taken goodie tray full of cookies/brownies/candies. 
Please sign-up if you would like to contribute to the cause.  

d. The Retail Commidee is working on ideas to capitalize on Small Business 
Saturday.   Several ideas were discussed such as envelopes that would include 
discounts, or scratch off Sckets that would be dispersed during Holiday Hoopla.   

e. October 24 Upstairs Downtown event will include eleven tour locaSons. Tickets 
for the tour can be purchased on Community Main Streets web site, at the 
Community Main Street office or the day of event.  

147

Item 15.



f. The OrganizaSonal Commidee is nominaSng the District Street Party for the 
Special Event Main Street Iowa Award. The Board was asked to look at 317 Main 
to see what building remodeling has unveiled. The original Lawn City Bakery sign 
can now be seen.  Cory provided a brief history of building and how it got its 
name as well as why they have chosen Padons to be the name of their new 
restaurant. Cory is expecSng Padons to open March of April 2024. 

 
8. Liaison Reports 

a. The Cedar Falls Historical Society will be hosSng a Historic Churches Tour on 
Sunday October 15th from 1pm – 5pm, cost is $15.00 per person. Tickets are 
available on Historical SocieSes website and the day of tour.  This Saturday will be 
the last day of the season the ice house and school house to be open.  

b. Gill suggested that Ty Graham adend a Board meeSng to give a more detailed 
report of the River Improvement Project.  

c. Cary Darrah will be reSring in the spring.  
d. Jenny moSon to omit the November Board meeSng due to Holiday Hoopla 

preparaSon.  Dan seconded, all approved.  
e. Jenny reminded city council, mayoral, and school board elecSons are being held 

in November.  Debates via YouTube will be available later this week.  
 
9. Good of the Order  

a. Agenda includes dates of events, drawing the Boards adenSon to the October 
16: Main Street America visit.  Each Board and. Commidee member has been 
invited to the meeSng to be held at First Banks large conference room.  

 
10. MoSon to adjourn moSoned by Lauren, seconded by Ann, all approved.   

 
 

Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organizaCon 
established to foster economic vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image and 
character of the downtown, while improving the quality of life in Cedar Falls.  
 

 
  
 

148

Item 15.



Minutes, Community Main Street, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 

 Tuesday, December 12, 2023 @ 12:00pm 

  CMS Office 

 

Board Members Present: Brent Johnson- President; Dan Lynch – Treasurer; Emilee Nedoba- 
Secretary; Lexie Heath; Deanna Hoffman; Cory Kent; Helen Pearce, Lauren Riensche; 
Wynette Froehner. 

Liaisons Present: n/a 

 Staff Present: Kim Bear; Kassidy Tessendorf; Heather Moritz 
 

 

1) Welcome, Call to Order – By Johnson 
 

2) Approval of Minutes – Motion to Approve October minutes, approved by Dan, second 
by Deanna, All Approved. 
 

3) Financial Report – By Lynch  
a) Mr. Lynch shared these budget statistics; We have $112,179 in Six-month 

reserves; a $30,000 balance in the Hoopla account; a Capitol Improvement 
balance of $17,347, a $5000 balance in the Whitewater account; we have 
$66,000 set aside for Reinvestment Grants; $22,000 for Future Development 
and have made a $15,000 contribution to the Marketing Grant account. Mr. 
Lynch added we have a health reserve balance and when asked about investing 
he reminded the Board there is $250,000 invested in Certificate of Deposits and  
a total cash on hand of $730,000.  Motion to approve financials so moved by 
Deanna, seconded by Helen, All approved.  
 

4) City Updates – By Bear for Sheetz 
a) The company hired by the city has completed their first parking ramp feasibility 

study. The company completed parking counts every two hours on a Thursday, 
Friday and Saturday from 10:00am –8:00pm. Their next study will be during the 
spring or summer 2024, after 2024 budgets have been approved. Discussion 
ensued regarding the timing and specifics of study.  Several Board members 
attended a recent parking meeting and came away feeling very confident with 
the company's experience in performing feasibility studies.   

b) Comments regarding the recent article about Canadian Railroad buying Iowa 
Northern Railroad were discussed. As far as members of the Board know Chris 
with the City feels Iowa Northern Railroad will apply for railroad grant.  

c) There was a brief conversation regarding the walkway planned for the crossing 
of Main Street at 6th and 7th streets.  The project’s completion date is unknown. 

d) The City and DOT have responsibilities to increase the safety of the 1st and 
Union intersections. Members noted the accidents in that location and what may 
make it safer.   

149

Item 15.



  

5) President’s Report – by Bear for Johnson 
a) CAPS Project                                                                                                     

Students were instructed to create a banner for downtown.  The students asked 
about Community Main Street, colors, and branding.  Kim provided the Board 
details of the process students followed to produce banner.  The results of the 
final ten banners were shared with Board members. Discussion ensued 
regarding the students work and designs, and in conclusion Lexie motioned to 
approve, seconded by Dan, All Agreed and banner #9 (barn quilt design) was 
approved.  

                         

b) District Enhancement Grants  

                         Last week the Economic Development Committee met and discussed the grant  
 application process and how to better encourage applications. It was decided  
 grants would be awarded on a quarterly cycle rather than twice a year. This  
 quarter’s approved applicants were The Grid Lounge (only driving simulation  
 driving experience in Iowa), the property owners of the 408-412 building, and  
 Patton restaurant development.  The Committee recommended the Grid Lounge  
 receive a $5000 grant, that the owners of the 408-412 building receive $20,000  
 for  exterior enhancements, and that the Patton project receive a $10,000 grant.   
 The motion to approve grant recommendation so moved by Emillee, and   
 seconded by Deanna, All Approved.   

 

          6) Staff Reports – by Bear 

Kim commented that we are half-way through Hoopla events. She explained the  

process related to the creation of Santa’s grand Holiday Hoopla entrance; all  

volunteers were greatly appreciated for making the night such a smashing  

success.  She and several Board members would like to determine a full proof 

   way of measuring attendance at Hoopla’s opening night.  Kim stated there have 

been several complaints about the route Santa takes through downtown, those 

   complaining would like to see Santa come down Main St. This will be a talking 

   point next year; however, it was mentioned that having Santa come down main  

street is more costly.  

150

Item 15.



 

    Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization 

established to foster economic vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image and 

character of the downtown, while improving the quality of life in Cedar Falls. 

151

Item 15.



Community Main Street, Inc. 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, January 9, 2024 @ 12:00pm 
Virtual Meeting due to inclement weather 

 
Board Members Present: Brent Johnson-President, Emilee Nedoba-Secretary/President-Elect, 
Helen Pearce, Lauren Riensche, Dee Hoffmann, Ann Eastman, Kate Dunning 
Ex-Officio: Stephanie Sheetz, Wynette Froehner 
Liaisons Present: Mark Howard, Carrie Eilderts, Jessica Rucker 
Staff Present: Kim Bear, Kassidy Tessendorf, Heather Moritz 
 

 
 

1. Welcome, Call to Order – Johnson  
 

2. Cedar Falls River Experience – postponed until February Meeting 
 

3. Approval of Minutes – Motion to approve December minutes, approved by Helen, 
second by Lauren, all approved. 
 

4. Financial Report – Lynch  
a. December’s report will be deferred to February’s Board meeting 

 
5. City Updates – Sheetz 

a. The company, hired by the city. has completed the first parking ramp feasibility 
study. The company completed parking inventories throughout December 6th – 
9th. On the 6th – 8th the company completed in person interviews with retail and 
restaurant owners; current and incoming council members; current and incoming 
mayors; executive director of Community Main Street and city parking 
attendants. The company is compiling its findings and will report back at the end 
of February.  All Board members will be made aware of the follow-up meeting 
dates. 

b. Main street is completely open. The bus shelters originally placed along Main 
Street were incorrect, new ones have been ordered and will be installed once 
received. The Main Street entrance arch component will be completed in spring 
of 2024.  Construction at 12th and Main will also begin in the spring. Construction 
along 12th and 18th is being looked at very closely as the time for closing that 
intersection needs to be kept at a very minimum.    

c. Sponsorships for 20 to 25 Panthers on Parade have been secured for May 
through October 2024. Four of the Panthers have been sponsored to be in the 
Downtown District during that time. The City and Community Main Street are 
brainstorming spin off projects related to the Panthers presence and hope to 
have solid ideas by April.   

d. Board members were invited to walk over to view the progress on White Water 
project.  Last week construction began on the other side of the river. Grants 
continue to come in and be disbursed appropriately.  
  

152

Item 15.



6. Presidents Report – Bear for Johnson 
a. Pulse Poll – a completed PDF version will be supplied upon request. The reason 

for the Pulse Poll is to provide a benchmark for where we are from year to year. It 
also provides Main Street Iowa a good idea of those things we do well and those 
we may need some training in. Completion of the Pulse Poll requires input from 
the Board. Below are the Boards comments on several of the Pulse inquiries.   
 

7. Staff Report – Bear  
a. Special presentation – to be presented in February’s meeting 
b. Holiday Hoopla was an extraordinary series of events, Mother Nature was on our 

side! 
c. Rocking Horse Float was been sold and traveled to Milwaukee to his new home 
d. Over $60K in gift certificate sales from the CMS office.  
e. February 29th will be the Volunteer Appreciation party – save the date! 

 
8. Committee Reports – please see staff report for committee updates 

 
9. Liaison reports 

a. Mr. Howard reminded everyone that there will most likely be snow removal from 
Downtown streets on Tuesday and Friday of this week. City Works will 
keep Community Main Street posted of snow removal and then they will 
disseminate information.   As far and police patrolling downtown things are 
normal, he’s expecting an increase in activity when college starts next week.   

b. Carrie Eilderts - Renovation began in November on the Historical Sites 315 Clay 
Street location. The renovation will result in a new classroom that can be used for 
field trips and as a community meeting room.  The Historical Sites main building 
will be closed during the month of January to prepare for the Rosenthal display 
“The Show Must Go On” and there will be a series of programs all year long that 
complement the Rosenthal display.  

c. Jessica Rucker - Waterloo’s Park Avenue bridge is coming along, and it’s hoped 
to reopen in the spring. Main Street Waterloo is working on putting together an 
incentives Program for business recruitment with Waterloo downtown 
businesses.  They have set down with several Cedar Falls downtown business 
owners to benchmark incentives.  It’s surprising that several of the incentives 
differ. Jessica and Kim are planning to review and address the differences.  

 
Motion to adjourn, approved by Helen, seconded by Emilee. All approved. 
 
Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization 
established to foster economic vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image 
and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of life in Cedar Falls.  

153

Item 15.



Community Main Street, Inc. 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 @ 12:00pm 
 
Board Members Present: Brent Johnson-President, Jenny Leeper-Past President, Dan 
Lynch-Treasurer, Emilee Nedoba, Helen Pearce, Dee Hoffmann, Lexie Heath 
Ex-Officio: Stephanie Sheetz, Wynette Froehner 
Liaisons Present: Mark Howard, Carrie Eilderts, Cary Darrah, Gil Schultz 
Staff Present: Kim Bear, Kassidy Tessendorf, Heather Moritz 
 

 
 

1. Welcome, Call to Order – Johnson  
 

2. Cedar Falls River Experience  
a. The Community Main Street Board presented The Cedar River 

Experience with a $30,000 donation. CMS will be contributing $5000 over 
the course of 6 years, so far we have made one contribution to the 
account. 

b. Matt Tolan, the city engineer overseeing the project provided info and we 
will include a link to the information he presented. 

c. In response to several questions: 
i. Throughout the completed project there will be large kiosk style 

signage providing map/directions for park users. 
ii. The current fundraising efforts are for money already needed for 

the project, promised by the fundraising committee in partnership 
with the City of Cedar Falls. 

iii. Completion date is projected for October 2024. 
iv. Structures will be rolled open as completed, and proper 

safety/signage has been installed.  
v. Debris has been removed throughout the project and future debris 

should remain within the main channel.  Should debris find its way 
near structures causing safety concerns debris will be addressed 
immediately. 

 
3. Approval of Minutes – Motion to approve January minutes by Dan, second by 

Lexie, all approved. 
 

4. Financial Report – Lynch  
a. The Board was given December and January financial reports, Mr. 

Lynch’s verbal report came from January’s financials. Cash remains 
strong, Committee expense and event expenses were high but with some 
adjusting they will balance. Debt expenses have been substantially higher 
over the past year as the 2023-2024 budget did not include the Street 
Party, adjustments will be made to the original budget once final numbers 
for the Street Party are calculated.  Community Main Street assumed the 
expenses of garland and lights when in the past the Hoopla budget paid 
for these items. Community Main Street also pays for snow removal when 

154

Item 15.



the city coordinates a snow emergency downtown. We also had another 
expense for an additional salt order. One approved expense from the 
program development line item is for a video series with Pixel Labs. In 
conclusion we are only $1,000 off net income.  Considering budget 
activity, we are in a good position.  

b. Motion to approve financials so moved by Lexie, seconded by Emilee, all 
approved.  

 
5. City Updates – Sheetz 

a. During December Cedar Falls hosted a Soil conference that drew a good 
amount of tourism to downtown. In January the city hosted a wrestling 
tournament that unfortunately did not draw many visitors downtown. 
Stephanie feels this would be a good time to speak with UNI, the sports 
commission and tourism office regarding how we can attract more events 
like the wrestling tournament and in doing so how we can also better 
attract visitors to Downtown.  

b. There will be two public parking meetings held in the second-floor meeting 
room of the library on February 26 at 6:00pm and February 27 at 1:30pm. 
There will be a public survey sent out that will run from February 19th-
March 4th look to the City’s socials for the link or CMS will be sending it out 
via email.  

 
6. Presidents Report – Johnson 

a. Brent reminded and encouraged everyone to attend the January 29 
4:30pm – 6:30pm Volunteer Appreciation dinner at the Community Main 
Street office. Board members typically drop off a bottle of wine to share 
with volunteers, please bring with you or drop off before the event. Brent 
also announced that Kim has invested 1,357 days of service to 
Community Main Street as of December 31st and since she took over as 
Director. She has been with the organization for 8 years on March 2nd.  

 
7. Staff Report – Bear  

a. As part of the Main Street Iowa awards and our local nominations, we 
designate a volunteer of the year each year.  This year’s volunteer 
consistently waters flowers, those that work alongside her always have 
nice things to say about her.  She steps up whenever Community Main 
Street needs volunteers, she is a true blessing as a member of the 
organization's volunteer network. Helen Pearce is the volunteer of the 
year! Congrats Helen!  

b. Kim reminded the Board that Community Main Street will be looking for 
new board members beginning July 1.  If you know of anyone that would 
be a good candidate for the Board, let’s start having conversations now so 
we are well prepared.  

c. Currently the March Board meeting is scheduled during spring break, the 
question was posed if the meeting will be cancelled or rescheduled.  The 
Board decided to add a temporary place holder for a possible March 

155

Item 15.



Board meeting Tuesday, March 19.  As the date draws near the decision 
to have or not to have a meeting will be made. Motion to tentatively 
reschedule the March Board meeting to March 19 motioned by Emillee, 
seconded by Lexie, all approved.  

d. Street Party is set for September 21. There were many dates considered 
but September 21st date seems the most accommodating. ARTapalooza 
applications have gone out with some already being submitted. HOPS is 
scheduled for Thursday April 11th.  

 
8. Committee Reports – please see staff report for committee updates 

 
9. Liaison reports 

a. Carrie Eilderts - The Rosenthal display “The Show Must Go On” is open 
with an opening reception this February 15 from 4:00pm – 6:00pm. 

b. Mark Howard – Last week Cedar Falls hosted training for officers from all 
over the Country. Many of the trainees were very complimentary regarding 
the downtown area. Due to the warmer weather, if you see activity that 
requires patrolling, please contact Kim and police will make their presence 
known.  

c. Cary Darrah – Grow Cedar Valley is hosting a lunch and learn on 
February 29th at Hilton Garden Inn from 11:30am – 1:00pm with the 
subject being Artificial Intelligence. This event is open to the public and 
participants can sign up on the Grow Cedar Valley Website. This lunch 
and learn is directed to small businesses. There will be representatives 
from health care, manufacturing and marketing industries.  The meeting 
will be facilitated by the author of several A.I. books. On March 7th Grow 
will host Good Morning Cedar Valley at the Lost Island theme park. March 
28th is Grow Cedar Valley’s annual celebration, awards will be given to 
several businesses for their contributions to the Cedar Valley.  

d. Gil Schultz – Gil had a constructive conversation with the gentlemen 
heading the study parking. Ideas are welcome as to what to do with Cedar 
City area near the River Project.  Gil spoke in general about working on 
the budget.  

e. The City and CFU will be hosting the Business and Industry awards in 
May and we have been awarded the Tourism and Entertainment Award 
for the 15th Holiday Hoopla celebration.  The presentation of the award will 
be May 2nd at the Hilton Garden Inn. The Board is invited to attend. We 
have invited the “Hoo Herd” committee to attend to accept the award. 

   
The board was presented with a thank you gift from CMS as they left the board 
meeting that was supposed to happen in January. Thanks to the board for their 
support through the holiday season and what better way to say thank you than with 
Bambino’s cookies.  
 
Motion to adjourn, approved by Dan, seconded by Helen. All approved. 
 
Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit 
organization established to foster economic vitality, and to preserve and 

156

Item 15.



promote the historic image and character of the downtown, while improving 
the quality of life in Cedar Falls.  

157

Item 15.



Community Main Street, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, March 19, 2024 @ 12:00 p.m. 

 

Board Members Present:  Brent Johnson – President, Emilee Nedoba – Secretary/Vice President, 

Kate Dunning, Dee Hoffmann, Cory Kent, Helen Pearce, Lauren Riensche 

Ex-Officio:  Stephanie Sheetz, Wynette Froehner 

Liaisons:  Mark Howard, Carrie Eilderts  

Staff:  Kim Bear, Kassidy Tessendorf, Heather Moritz 

___________________________________________________ 

1) Welcome, Call to Order – Johnson 

2) Approval of Minutes – Motion to approve February minutes by Pearce, second by Riensche, all 

approved.  

3) Financial Report – Lynch, no report. 

4) City Updates – Sheetz 

a) CIP (Capitol Improvement Plan) This plan is a five-year plan that the city council updates 

yearly, and reviews on a regular basis. It is a living document that can shift if 

circumstances deem necessary. The projects included in the CIP come from ideas 

within the community and city official needs.  It identifies the costs, potential funding 

sources and due dates of projects.  Something to keep in mind is, the CIP will reflect the 

complete cost of a project for instance, Cedar Falls has committed to three million 

dollars to the fifty-million-dollar Dome renovation project.  The CIP will reflect forty-

seven million coming from investors/grants and will break out the three million coming 

from the city. As funds become available projects will move up the list for funding. The 

CIP is not a budget document; however, it is tool used to help determine the budget. 

Within the CIP there are several quality-of-life projects.  For instance, the five-year plan 

includes the River project (which is scheduled to be open in September 2024), a 

fundraising feasibility study for Hearst Center expansion, study for parks master 

plan/standards, and a consultant to work with College Hill zoning. The feasibility study 

for a downtown parking ramp remains on the CIP as an ongoing project. While it is a 

goal to use the budget for each project, if any funds remain once a project is complete 

those funds go into a one capitol project account.  

5) President’s Report – Johnson, no report 

6) Staff Report – Bear 

a) The Organization committee nominated the 2023 District Street Party for Main Street 

Iowa’s special event of the year for populations over 5000.  Kim learned last week the 

District Street Party won the award. The Main Street Iowa awards are held in Des 

Moines on April 19 where we will receive the award and honor our volunteer of the year 

Helen Pearce.  Everyone is welcome to attend, and more information will be provided.  

7) Committee Reports 

a) Promotions Committee – MAGIC Grant (Lauren Riensche) 

158

Item 15.



The MAGIC (Marketing Assistance Grant for Inspiring Commerce) Grant is a five 

thousand matching marketing grant with two cycles that Downtown District business 

may apply to reinvest in their professional Marketing plan.  The business as to be open 

for at least six months to apply. In a case-by-case situation the grant could also be 

considered for an event that would result in an influx of business to the Downtown 

District.  Applications will open in May, due in July and grant/s awarded in September.  

The funds for the MAGIC grant have been included in Community Main Streets budget.  

As final details of grant are completed more details/documents will be shared with 

Board.   

 

8) Liaison Reports 

a) Carrie Eilderts – Cedar Falls Historical Society 

The Summer at the Schoolhouse program was completely booked the first day that the 

registration opened. Carrie also talked about their 315 Clay Street project and how it is 

all coming together with hopeful completion for later this summer. 

b) Mark Howard – Cedar Falls Police Department 

Chief Howard reported an increase in vandalism over the past couple months, especially 

graffiti within public restrooms.  If you see something, please report it. Traffic has grown 

with the warmer temperatures. Second shift is the busiest and most difficult to staff, 

especially when we are down officers.  Chief Howard suggested that CMS get in touch 

with Captain Smith asap regarding any special event needs for officer coverage as they 

are getting harder to fill.   

 

9) Good of the Order 

a) April 11 – HOPS – SAVE THE DATE, SPREAD THE WORD.  

b) April 19 – 29 – Restaurant Week 

 

 

 

159

Item 15.



COMMUNITY MAIN STREET

Income Statement

December 2023

MONTH ACTUAL MONTH BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 

BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF BUDGET
YEAR TO DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 

BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 

BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF ANNUAL 

BUDGET

YEAR TO DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 

BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 

BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF ANNUAL 

BUDGET

Revenue

   Board Income 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  

   City Funding 0.00  0.00  0.00  10,000.00  6,000.00  4,000.00  166.67% 10,000.00  12,000.00  -2,000.00  83.33%

   Event Income 10,159.12  2,000.00  8,159.12  507.96% 83,259.99  72,000.00  11,259.99  115.64% 83,259.99  81,500.00  1,759.99  102.16%

   Friends/Streetscape 203.71  0.00  203.71  2,544.86  0.00  2,544.86  2,544.86  7,250.00  -4,705.14  35.10%

   Grant & other Income 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  4,000.00  -4,000.00  0.00% 0.00  8,000.00  -8,000.00  0.00%

   SSMID 0.00  20,000.00  -20,000.00  0.00% 145,513.97  150,000.00  -4,486.03  97.01% 145,513.97  300,000.00  -154,486.03  48.50%

Total Revenue $        10,362.83  $          22,000.00  -$     11,637.17  47.10% $    241,318.82  $    232,000.00  $          9,318.82  104.02%  $   241,318.82  $     408,750.00  $    (167,431.18) 59.04%

Gross Profit $        10,362.83  $          22,000.00  -$     11,637.17  47.10% $    241,318.82  $    232,000.00  $          9,318.82  104.02%  $   241,318.82 $     408,750.00  -$     167,431.18  59.04%

Expenditures

   Board Lunch Expense 0.00  0.00  0.00  80.68  0.00  80.68  80.68  0.00  80.68  

   Committee Expense 1,121.59  1,500.00  -378.41  74.77% 16,603.32  9,920.00  6,683.32  167.37% 16,603.32  19,420.00  -2,816.68  85.50%

   Dues and Subscriptions 205.47  500.00  -294.53  41.09% 4,084.66  4,300.00  -215.34  94.99% 4,084.66  7,800.00  -3,715.34  52.37%

   Event Expense 11,060.15  5,000.00  6,060.15  221.20% 64,086.68  28,250.00  35,836.68  226.86% 64,086.68  34,750.00  29,336.68  184.42%

   Grant Expense 0.00  0.00  0.00  2,500.00  2,500.00  0.00  100.00% 2,500.00  5,000.00  -2,500.00  50.00%

   Insurance 0.00  0.00  0.00  508.00  0.00  508.00  508.00  5,339.00  -4,831.00  9.51%

   Miscellaneous 0.00  350.00  -350.00  0.00% 169.59  1,100.00  -930.41  15.42% 169.59  2,000.00  -1,830.41  8.48%

   Office Supplies 98.40  375.00  -276.60  26.24% 2,516.13  2,250.00  266.13  111.83% 2,516.13  4,500.00  -1,983.87  55.91%

   Payroll Expenses 10,689.52  10,333.33  356.19  103.45% 64,829.15  64,499.98  329.17  100.51% 64,829.15  126,499.96  -61,670.81  51.25%

   Postage and Delivery 303.60  200.00  103.60  151.80% 698.55  1,100.00  -401.45  63.50% 698.55  1,900.00  -1,201.45  36.77%

   Professional Fees 0.00  0.00  0.00  3,050.00  3,725.00  -675.00  81.88% 3,050.00  5,725.00  -2,675.00  53.28%

   Repairs 0.00  0.00  0.00  48.14  500.00  -451.86  9.63% 48.14  1,000.00  -951.86  4.81%

   Seasonal Expenses 7,090.86  0.00  7,090.86  11,611.63  6,500.00  5,111.63  178.64% 11,611.63  6,500.00  5,111.63  178.64%

   Snow Removal & Lawn Care 0.00  250.00  -250.00  0.00% 125.00  850.00  -725.00  14.71% 125.00  2,500.00  -2,375.00  5.00%

   Telephone 362.07  200.00  162.07  181.04% 1,433.69  1,200.00  233.69  119.47% 1,433.69  2,400.00  -966.31  59.74%

   Travel & Training 100.00  1,000.00  -900.00  10.00% 933.89  2,150.00  -1,216.11  43.44% 933.89  4,500.00  -3,566.11  20.75%

   Utilities 375.00  375.00  0.00  100.00% 2,270.00  2,250.00  20.00  100.89% 2,270.00  4,500.00  -2,230.00  50.44%

Total Expenditures $        31,406.66  $          20,083.33  $       11,323.33  156.38% $    175,549.11  $    131,094.98  $        44,454.13  133.91% 175,549.11 234,333.96 (58,784.85) 74.91%

Net Operating Revenue ($21,043.83) $1,916.67 ($22,960.50) -1097.94% $65,769.71 $100,905.02 ($35,135.31) 65.18% 65,769.71 174,416.04 (108,646.33) 37.71%

Other Revenue & Expenditures

   Website Expense 0.00  0.00  0.00  6,249.00  8,332.00  -2,083.00  75.00% 6,249.00  8,332.00  -2,083.00  75.00%

   Whitewater Contribution 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  5,000.00  -5,000.00  0.00%

   District Reinvestment (15% of SSMID) 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  22,500.00  -22,500.00  0.00% 0.00  45,000.00  -45,000.00  0.00%

   Marketing Grant (10% of SSMID) 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  15,000.00  -15,000.00  0.00% 0.00  30,000.00  -30,000.00  0.00%

   Program Development (5% of SSMID) 2,399.98  0.00  2,399.98  8,649.98  7,500.00  1,149.98  115.33% 8,649.98  15,000.00  -6,350.02  57.67%

   Interest Income 1,145.65  217.47  928.18  526.81% 4,614.77  871.24  3,743.53  529.68% 4,614.77  1,917.47  2,697.30  240.67%

   Other Income 0.00  0.00  0.00  -2,062.50  0.00  -2,062.50  -2,062.50  0.00  -2,062.50  

Net Other Revenue & Expenditures  $         (1,254.33)  $               217.47  $       (1,471.80) -576.78%  $     (12,346.71)  $    (52,460.76)  $        40,114.05 23.54%  $    (12,346.71)  $    (101,414.53)  $        89,067.82 12.17%
Net Revenue ($22,298.16) $2,134.14 ($24,432.30) -1044.83% $53,423.00 $48,444.26 $4,978.74 110.28% $53,423.00 $73,001.51 ($19,578.51) 73.18%

MONTHLY BUDGET - December MONTHLY BUDGET - JULY TO December ANNUAL BUDGET - FY2024

160

Item 15.



161

Item 15.



COMMUNITY MAIN STREET

Income Statement

MARCH 2024

MONTH ACTUAL MONTH BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 

BUDGET 

VARIANCE

YEAR TO DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 

BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 

BUDGET 

VARIANCE

YEAR TO DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 

BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 

BUDGET 

VARIANCE

Revenue

   Board Income 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  

   City Funding 0.00  0.00  0.00  10,000.00  6,000.00  4,000.00  10,000.00  12,000.00  -2,000.00  

   Event Income 547.12  500.00  47.12  86,242.11  73,000.00  13,242.11  86,242.11  81,500.00  4,742.11  

   Friends/Streetscape 1,929.98  3,500.00  -1,570.02  4,886.50  7,000.00  -2,113.50  4,886.50  7,250.00  -2,363.50  

   Grant & other Income 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  4,000.00  -4,000.00  0.00  8,000.00  -8,000.00  
   SSMID 0.00  0.00  0.00  145,513.97  150,000.00  -4,486.03  145,513.97  300,000.00  -154,486.03  

Total Revenue $           2,477.10  $            4,000.00  -$        1,522.90  $    246,642.58  $    240,000.00  $          6,642.58   $   246,642.58  $      408,750.00  $    (162,107.42)

Gross Profit $           2,477.10  $            4,000.00  -$        1,522.90  $    246,642.58  $    240,000.00  $          6,642.58   $   243,701.77 $      408,750.00  -$     165,048.23  

Expenditures

   Board Lunch Expense 0.00  0.00  0.00  80.68  0.00  80.68  80.68  0.00  80.68  

   Committee Expense 1,435.92  500.00  935.92  19,205.09  13,420.00  5,785.09  19,205.09  19,420.00  -214.91  

   Dues and Subscriptions 443.04  1,000.00  -556.96  6,641.02  6,300.00  341.02  6,641.02  7,800.00  -1,158.98  

   Event Expense 1,219.54  1,500.00  -280.46  70,913.37  29,750.00  41,163.37  70,913.37  34,750.00  36,163.37  

   Grant Expense 0.00  0.00  0.00  2,500.00  2,500.00  0.00  2,500.00  5,000.00  -2,500.00  

   Insurance 0.00  0.00  0.00  508.00  0.00  508.00  508.00  5,339.00  -4,831.00  

   Miscellaneous 0.00  150.00  -150.00  666.91  1,400.00  -733.09  666.91  2,000.00  -1,333.09  

   Office Supplies 438.14  375.00  63.14  3,809.68  3,375.00  434.68  3,809.68  4,500.00  -690.32  

   Payroll Expenses 11,677.77  10,333.33  1,344.44  97,940.89  93,866.64  4,074.25  97,940.89  126,499.96  -28,559.07  

   Postage and Delivery 156.14  100.00  56.14  1,113.64  1,500.00  -386.36  1,113.64  1,900.00  -786.36  

   Professional Fees 0.00  1,000.00  -1,000.00  3,375.00  4,725.00  -1,350.00  3,375.00  5,725.00  -2,350.00  

   Repairs 0.00  0.00  0.00  48.14  750.00  -701.86  48.14  1,000.00  -951.86  

   Seasonal Expenses 0.00  0.00  0.00  11,611.63  6,500.00  5,111.63  11,611.63  6,500.00  5,111.63  

   Snow Removal & Lawn Care 0.00  250.00  -250.00  3,778.00  2,100.00  1,678.00  3,778.00  2,500.00  1,278.00  

   Telephone 482.90  200.00  282.90  2,282.84  1,800.00  482.84  2,282.84  2,400.00  -117.16  

   Travel & Training 624.46  1,750.00  -1,125.54  1,578.35  4,100.00  -2,521.65  1,578.35  4,500.00  -2,921.65  
   Utilities 375.00  375.00  0.00  3,395.00  3,375.00  20.00  3,395.00  4,500.00  -1,105.00  

Total Expenditures $        16,852.91  $          17,533.33  -$           680.42  $    229,448.24  $    175,461.64  $        53,986.60  229,448.24 234,333.96 (4,885.72)

Net Operating Revenue ($14,375.81) ($13,533.33) ($842.48) $17,194.34 $64,538.36 ($47,344.02) 46,271.23 174,416.04 (128,144.81)

Other Revenue & Expenditures

   Website Expense 0.00  0.00  0.00  6,249.00  8,332.00  -2,083.00  6,249.00  8,332.00  -2,083.00  

   Whitewater Contribution 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  5,000.00  -5,000.00  

   District Reinvestment (15% of SSMID) 0.00  0.00  0.00  5,000.00  22,500.00  -17,500.00  5,000.00  45,000.00  -40,000.00  

   Marketing Grant (10% of SSMID) 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  15,000.00  -15,000.00  0.00  30,000.00  -30,000.00  

   Program Development (5% of SSMID) 0.00  0.00  0.00  13,149.98  7,500.00  5,649.98  13,149.98  15,000.00  -1,850.02  

   Interest Income 266.00  217.47  48.53  7,945.13  871.24  7,073.89  7,945.13  1,917.47  6,027.66  
   Other Income 0.00  0.00  0.00  -2,062.50  0.00  -2,062.50  -2,062.50  0.00  -2,062.50  

Net Other Revenue & Expenditures  $              266.00  $               217.47  $               48.53  $     (18,516.35)  $    (52,460.76)  $        33,944.41  $    (18,516.35)  $    (101,414.53)  $        82,898.18 

Net Revenue ($14,109.81) ($13,315.86) ($793.95) ($1,322.01) $12,077.60 ($13,399.61) $27,754.88 $73,001.51 ($45,246.63)

MONTHLY BUDGET - MARCH MONTHLY BUDGET - JULY TO MARCH ANNUAL BUDGET - FY2024

162

Item 15.



Main Street Iowa - IowaGrants.gov

Participant Status Report Detail

Business
Starts/Relo.
/ Expansion

Net
New
Jobs

Building
Projects*

Private
Investment in

Downtown
Buildings

Sold

Public
Investment in

Downtown

Report Criteria:  Start Date:  01/01/1986, End Date:  12/31/2030

Volunteer
Hours

Report
Number

Report
Status

Cedar Falls (Designated in 1987)

162 563 754 $ 60,618,238139 $0 71,811Base Numbers**

-2 -2 2 $ 592,9311 $0 363July 2014 001 On Time

0 0 1 $ 88,0000 $0 414August 2014 002 On Time

2 4 3 $ 39,2980 $0 441September 2014 003 On Time

-1 -3 3 $ 402,6481 $0 498October 2014 004 On Time

3 45 5 $ 154,0000 $0 1,050November 2014 005 On Time

0 0 5 $ 152,1250 $0 802December 2014 006 On Time

0 0 1 $ 1,275,9002 $0 273January 2015 007 On Time

2 24 1 $ 6000 $0 177February 2015 008 On Time

10 28 7 $ 533,1190 $0 286March 2015 010 On Time

1 2 2 $ 12,4000 $0 353April 2015 011 On Time

1 1 3 $ 266,6970 $0 610May 2015 012 Late

-1 0 0 $ 00 $0 654June 2015 013 On Time

0 0 7 $ 634,4000 $0 552July 2015 014 On Time

2 -2 4 $ 376,6002 $0 771August 2015 015 On Time

1 1 4 $ 15,8000 $0 328September 2015 016 On Time

1 3 3 $ 5,012,0000 $0 454October 2015 017 On Time

3 10 5 $ 161,1850 $0 718November 2015 018 On Time

0 0 1 $ 15,0000 $0 890December 2015 019 On Time

-1 -2 1 $ 780,0000 $0 300January 2016 020 On Time

0 0 0 $ 00 $0 196February 2016 023 On Time

1 -28 4 $ 38,0000 $0 184March 2016 024 On Time

1 3 0 $ 00 $0 309April 2016 025 On Time

1 3 4 $ 272,0000 $0 350May 2016 026 On Time

-1 28 2 $ 45,3500 $0 500June 2016 027 On Time

-1 0 5 $ 1,291,3982 $0 348July 2016 028 On Time

0 0 4 $ 39,5000 $0 604August 2016 030 On Time

0 0 1 $ 15,0000 $0 426September 2016 031 On Time

-1 -2 3 $ 388,4001 $0 769October 2016 032 On Time

0 0 3 $ 62,6150 $0 1,088November 2016 033 On Time

4 14 6 $ 86,2770 $0 982December 2016 034 On Time

0 0 2 $ 5,2000 $0 265January 2017 035 On Time

-1 12 2 $ 166,3000 $0 187February 2017 036 On Time

1 4 3 $ 386,0001 $0 245March 2017 037 On Time

0 0 3 $ 25,5010 $0 388April 2017 038 On Time

1 18 3 $ 372,5180 $0 356May 2017 039 On Time

-1 -4 1 $ 8,6000 $0 1,364June 2017 040 On Time

0 0 0 $ 525,0001 $0 316July 2017 041 On Time

0 1 3 $ 99,8980 $0 595August 2017 043 On Time

0 0 1 $ 6,500,0000 $0 582September 2017 044 On Time

-1 -2 5 $ 362,3500 $0 421October 2017 045 On Time

1 4 2 $ 163,5000 $0 1,048November 2017 046 On Time

6 34 3 $ 15,4750 $0 842December 2017 047 On Time

2 13 2 $ 172,4330 $0 202January 2018 048 On Time

-1 -4 2 $ 49,6020 $0 278February 2018 049 On Time

1 2 4 $ 2,224,3251 $0 178March 2018 050 On Time

-1 -3 2 $ 101,3500 $0 277April 2018 051 On Time

-1 -2 0 $ 5,240,0003 $0 459May 2018 052 On Time

0 2 0 $ 00 $0 496June 2018 053 On Time

1 7 0 $ 1,050,0001 $0 285July 2018 054 On Time

*Totals include investment in projects and acquisition
**Base Numbers represent cumulative numbers reported from the start of local MS designation date until reporting began in the IowaGrants system.

These statistics are used to show the economic impact monitored in Iowa Main Street commercial districts.  Success of the main Street program cannot be measured by numbers alone.
Cumulative figures are condensed from reports submitted by each local Main Street Program.  Each commercial district's size of project area and priorities vary.

Page 1 of 3 2/15/2024 1.00 AM

Main Street Iowa - IowaGrants.gov

Participant Status Report Detail
163

Item 15.



Main Street Iowa - IowaGrants.gov

Participant Status Report Detail

Business
Starts/Relo.
/ Expansion

Net
New
Jobs

Building
Projects*

Private
Investment in

Downtown
Buildings

Sold

Public
Investment in

Downtown

Report Criteria:  Start Date:  01/01/1986, End Date:  12/31/2030

Volunteer
Hours

Report
Number

Report
Status

1 2 1 $ 51,8971 $0 595August 2018 055 On Time

2 8 1 $ 23,9330 $0 431September 2018 056 On Time

-3 -8 4 $ 183,8410 $0 408October 2018 057 On Time

0 6 1 $ 40,7200 $0 1,068November 2018 058 On Time

0 -2 2 $ 333,9190 $0 880December 2018 059 On Time

0 1 0 $ 00 $0 250January 2019 060 On Time

-2 -5 0 $ 00 $103,920 280February 2019 061 On Time

1 1 1 $ 683,8823 $0 233March 2019 062 On Time

-2 -2 2 $ 1,613,3601 $7,000 366April 2019 063 On Time

0 0 1 $ 4,0000 $0 425May 2019 064 On Time

3 24 2 $ 37,8000 $0 364June 2019 065 On Time

1 1 0 $ 00 $0 466July 2019 066 On Time

-1 -2 2 $ 6,254,4000 $0 418August 2019 068 On Time

-1 0 2 $ 51,7750 $0 423September 2019 069 On Time

2 10 2 $ 836,0002 $0 444October 2019 070 On Time

3 64 4 $ 259,8790 $0 1,413November 2019 071 On Time

1 3 4 $ 138,8190 $0 1,423December 2019 072 On Time

3 14 1 $ 3,5000 $0 169January 2020 073 On Time

0 0 0 $ 00 $0 148February 2020 074 On Time

1 2 1 $ 87,5000 $0 218March 2020 075 On Time

0 0 2 $ 562,9601 $0 129April 2020 076 On Time

-2 -3 2 $ 46,5000 $0 115May 2020 077 On Time

0 0 3 $ 505,9980 $0 255June 2020 078 On Time

1 4 0 $ 00 $0 304July 2020 079 On Time

1 2 3 $ 621,9001 $0 270August 2020 080 On Time

3 4 3 $ 48,0560 $0 204September 2020 081 On Time

1 1 0 $ 00 $0 185October 2020 082 On Time

2 2 2 $ 21,5000 $0 802November 2020 083 On Time

2 10 1 $ 15,0000 $0 172December 2020 084 On Time

0 0 0 $ 800,0001 $0 141January 2021 085 On Time

0 0 0 $ 00 $0 86February 2021 086 On Time

-1 -1 0 $ 340,0001 $0 167March 2021 087 On Time

2 4 3 $ 13,391,0990 $0 122April 2021 088 On Time

0 0 0 $ 00 $0 78May 2021 089 On Time

0 0 2 $ 21,0000 $0 334June 2021 090 On Time

0 0 1 $ 107,0000 $0 192July 2021 091 On Time

2 6 6 $ 1,668,3000 $0 230August 2021 093 On Time

3 6 1 $ 8,000,0000 $0 632September 2021 094 On Time

0 0 3 $ 1,537,2670 $0 208October 2021 095 On Time

2 38 1 $ 110,0000 $0 1,105November 2021 096 On Time

1 4 5 $ 1,339,1792 $0 5432022 1st Quarter 097 On Time

5 48 8 $ 1,503,1501 $0 9472022 2nd Quarter 098 On Time

-5 -17 4 $ 3,538,0002 $13,888 8932022 3rd Quarter 099 On Time

2 14 2 $ 623,0001 $0 1,7782022 4th Quarter 100 On Time

-1 -1 1 $ 8,009,7973 $0 610December 2021 101 On Time

3 19 5 $ 2,083,4001 $0 4112023 1st Quarter 102 On Time

0 11 1 $ 1,578,7503 $9,923,556 9832023 2nd Quarter 103 On Time

1 8 3 $ 107,2650 $0 1,2262023 3rd Quarter 104 On Time

3 12 3 $ 429,3000 $0 3,5612023 4th Quarter 105 On Time

Cumulative Total for Cedar Falls 228 1,055 978 $ 148,451,179 $ 10,048,364179 123,393

*Totals include investment in projects and acquisition
**Base Numbers represent cumulative numbers reported from the start of local MS designation date until reporting began in the IowaGrants system.

These statistics are used to show the economic impact monitored in Iowa Main Street commercial districts.  Success of the main Street program cannot be measured by numbers alone.
Cumulative figures are condensed from reports submitted by each local Main Street Program.  Each commercial district's size of project area and priorities vary.

Page 2 of 3 2/15/2024 1.00 AM

Main Street Iowa - IowaGrants.gov

Participant Status Report Detail
164

Item 15.



978228 123,393$ 10,048,3641791,055CUMULATIVE PROGRAM TOTAL $ 148,451,179

165

Item 15.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

  PUBLIC RECORDS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
  319-273-8600 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Laudick and City Council Members 

From:  Kim Kerr, City Clerk 

Date:  April 26, 2024 

Re:  Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor Applications 

Public Records has received applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits. We 
recommend approval of these permits. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Casey’s #1887, 2425 Center Street - renewal. 

b) Casey’s #2630, 5226 University Avenue – renewal. 

c) Casey’s #2865, 5908 Nordic Drive – renewal. 

d) Casey’s #3045, 601 Main Street – renewal. 

e) Casey’s #3610, 1225 Fountains Way – renewal. 

f) Hansen’s Dairy, 123 East 18th Street – renewal. 

g) Happy’s Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue, Suite 5 – renewal. 

h) Hy-Vee Fast and Fresh, 6527 University Avenue – renewal. 

i) Hy-Vee Food Store, 6301 University Avenue – renewal. 

j) Metro Mart #3, 103 Franklin Street – renewal. 

k) The Landmark, 107 Main Street – renewal. 

l) Up In Smoke, 2218 College Street – renewal. 

 

166

Item 16.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Laudick and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Police Chief 

Date:  April 29, 2024 

Re:  Retail Alcohol License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for retail alcohol licenses. We find no records that 
would prohibit these licenses and recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Hurling Hatchet, 100 East 2nd Street, Special Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 

b) Double Tap, 312 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 

c) Famous Dave's, 6222 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol -renewal. 

d) The Other Place, 209 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 

e) Casey's General Store, 2425 Center Street, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 

f) Prime Mart, 2323 Main Street, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 

g) Walgreens, 2509 Whitetail Drive, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 

h) Deringer’s Public Parlor, 314 ½ Main Street, Class C retail alcohol – change in ownership. 

i) Double Tap, 312 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol – change in ownership. 

j) The Stuffed Olive and Roxxy, 314-316 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service 
– change in ownership. 

k) Live to 9, 200 Block of State Street and 100 Block of East 2nd Street including adjacent 
sidewalks, Special Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - six 5-day permits (May 28- 
June 1, June 4-8, June 11-15, July 9-13, July 23-27, and August 6-10). 

167

Item 17.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council Members 

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: April 26, 2024 

 SUBJECT:  Audit Services Agreement Extension and Engagement Letter 

 
The City had solicited proposals for auditing services in the spring of 2021, for fiscal years 
2021, 2022 and 2023 and an agreement with Eide Bailly LLP was approved by Council 
April 19, 2021. The current contract was for three years with the option to extend for three 
additional years 2024, 2025 and 2026.   We are requesting this 3-year extension.   
  
We have been very happy with Eide Bailly, LLP and their experience with local 
governmental audits, staff assigned to the audit engagement, length of time spent on 
engagement at client site, and the proposed fees.   
 
Attached please find Amendment No.1 to our contract with Eide Bailly for a three-year 
extension for the period of July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2026.  Also attached is the Planning 
Communication letter and the Audit Engagement letter.  The Audit Engagement letter 
acknowledges the work that is to be performed. 
 
If you have questions regarding the contract or the engagement letter, please feel free 
to contact me.  
 
CC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
 
 
 
 

168

Item 19.



What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
1545 Associates Dr., Ste. 101  |  Dubuque, IA 52002-2299  |  T 563.556.1790  |  F 563.557.7842  |  EOE

1 

April 10, 2024 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

This letter is provided in connection with our engagement to audit the financial statements and to audit 
compliance over major federal award programs of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (City) as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2024. Professional standards require that we communicate with you certain items including our 
responsibilities with regard to the financial statement audit, the compliance audit, and the planned scope and 
timing of our audits, including significant risks we have identified.  

Our Responsibilities 

As stated in our engagement letter dated April 10, 2024, we are responsible for conducting our audit in+996 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS), Government 
Auditing Standards of the Comptroller General of the United States of America, the requirements of the Single 
Audit Act, as amended; and the provisions of the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance), for the purpose of forming and expressing opinions on the financial statements and 
on major federal award program compliance. Our audits do not relieve you or management of your respective 
responsibilities. 

Our responsibility as it relates to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is to evaluate its presentation 
for the purpose of forming and expressing an opinion as to whether it is presented fairly in all material respects 
in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Our responsibility relating to other information, whether financial or nonfinancial information (other than 
financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon), included in the entity’s annual comprehensive financial 
report includes only the information identified in our report. We have no responsibility for determining whether 
the introductory section and statistical tables, are properly stated. We require that we receive the final version 
of the annual comprehensive financial report (including all the documents that, together, comprise the annual 
comprehensive financial report) in a timely manner prior to the date of the auditor’s report, or if that is not 
possible as soon as practicable and, in any case, prior to the entity’s issuance of such information. 

Planned Scope of the Audit 

Our audits will include examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be 
examined and the areas to be tested. Our audit is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a whole are free of material misstatement, whether due to error, 
fraudulent financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws or governmental regulations. 
Because of this concept of reasonable assurance and because we will not examine all transactions, there is a risk 
that material misstatements may exist and not be detected by us. 

169

Item 19.



2 

Our audit procedures will also include determining major federal programs and performing the applicable 
procedures described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget OMB Compliance Supplement for the types 
of compliance requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each of the entity’s major programs.  

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an 
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or material noncompliance may not be detected exists, even 
though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with U.S. GAAS, Government Auditing 
Standards of the Comptroller General of the United States of America, the requirements of the Single Audit Act, 
as amended; and the provisions of the Uniform Guidance. 

Our audits will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including its internal 
control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, the risk of material 
noncompliance in the major federal award programs, and as a basis for designing the nature, timing, and extent 
of further audit procedures, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control over financial reporting. However, we will communicate to you at the conclusion of our audit, 
any material weaknesses or significant deficiencies identified. We will also communicate to you: 

 Any violation of laws or regulations that come to our attention;

 Our views related to qualitative aspects of the entity’s significant accounting practices, including
accounting policies, accounting estimates, and financial statement disclosures;

 Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit;

 Significant unusual transactions, if any;

 The potential effects of uncorrected misstatements on future‐period financial statements; and

 Other significant matters that are relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting
process.

Professional standards require us to design our audit to provide reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement whether caused by fraud or error. In designing our audit 
procedures, professional standards require us to evaluate the financial statements and assess the risk that a 
material misstatement could occur. Areas that are potentially more susceptible to misstatements, and thereby 
require special audit considerations, are designated as “significant risks.” Although we are currently in the 
planning stage of our audit, we have preliminarily identified the following significant risks that require special 
audit consideration. 

Management Override of Controls – Professional standards require auditors to address the possibility of 
management overriding controls. Accordingly, we considered as a significant risk that management of the City 
may have the ability to override controls that the City has implemented.  

Revenue Recognition – We considered revenue recognition as a significant risk due to potential complexities 
with accounting standards. 

The financial statements include the financial statements of Cedar Falls Utilities (Component Units), which we 
consider to be significant components of the financial statements. Consistent with the audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, our audit will include obtaining an understanding of Cedar Falls Utilities and their 
environment, including internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements of Cedar Falls Utilities and to design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures.  

We expect to begin our audit in June 2024 and issue our report in October 2024.  

170

Item 19.



3 

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City Council, and management of 
the City of Cedar Falls and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

Respectfully, 

Dubuque, Iowa  

171

Item 19.



172

Item 19.



173

Item 19.



174

Item 19.



What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
1545 Associates Dr., Ste. 101  |  Dubuque, IA 52002-2299  |  T 563.556.1790  |  F 563.557.7842  |  EOE

1 

April 10, 2024 

Ms. Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

You have requested that we audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business‐type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (City) as of June 30, 2024, and for the year then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City’s basic financial statements.  

In addition, we will audit the entity’s compliance over major federal award programs for the period ended 
June 30, 2024. We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and our understanding of this audit engagement by 
means of this letter.  

Our audits will be conducted with the objectives of our expressing an opinion on each opinion unit and an 
opinion on compliance regarding the entity’s major federal award programs. The objectives of our audit of the 
financial statements are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAS) and in accordance with Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence 
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

The objectives of our compliance audit are to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to form an opinion 
and report at the level specified in the governmental audit requirement about whether the entity complied in all 
material respects with the applicable compliance requirements and identify audit and reporting requirements 
specified in the governmental audit requirement that are supplementary to GAAS and Government Auditing 
Standards , if any, and perform procedures to address those requirements. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP), as promulgated by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), require that that certain information be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information (RSI) in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. These limited procedures will consist primarily of inquiries of management regarding their methods 
of measurement and presentation and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries. We will not express an opinion or provide any form of assurance on the RSI. The 
following RSI is required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. This RSI 
will be subjected to certain limited procedures but will not be audited:

175

Item 19.



2 

1. Management’s Discussion and Analysis.
2. Budgetary Comparison Schedule.
3. Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability.
4. Schedule of City Contributions (Pension).
5. Schedule of Changes in the City’s Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios.

Supplementary information other than RSI will accompany City’s basic financial statements. We will subject the 
following supplementary information to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling the supplementary 
information to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. We intend to provide an opinion on the following supplementary 
information in relation to the financial statements as a whole: 

1. Combining Fund Statements.
2. Capital Asset Schedules.
3. Financial Data Schedule (issued separately as part of required HUD report).

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

We will subject the schedule of expenditures of federal awards to the auditing procedures applied in our audit 
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling the 
schedule to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. We intend to provide an opinion on whether the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented fairly in all material respects in relation to the financial statements 
as a whole.  

Also, the document we submit to you will include the following other additional information that will not be 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements: 

1. Introductory Section – No opinion or any assurance provided.
2. Statistical Tables – No opinion or any assurance provided.

Data Collection Form 

Prior to the completion of our engagement, we will complete the sections of the Data Collection Form that are 
our responsibility. The form will summarize our audit findings, amounts and conclusions. It is management’s 
responsibility to submit a reporting package including financial statements, schedule of expenditure of federal 
awards, summary schedule of prior audit findings and corrective action plan along with the Data Collection Form 
to the federal audit clearinghouse. The financial reporting package must be text searchable, unencrypted, and 
unlocked. Otherwise, the reporting package will not be accepted by the federal audit clearinghouse. We will 
assist you in the electronic submission and certification. You may request from us copies of our report for you to 
include with the reporting package submitted to pass‐through entities.  

The Data Collection Form is required to be submitted within the earlier of 30 days after receipt of our auditors’ 
reports or nine months after the end of the audit period, unless specifically waived by a federal cognizant or 
oversight agency for audits. Data Collection Forms submitted untimely are one of the factors in assessing 
programs at a higher risk. 

176

Item 19.



 

3 

Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
We will conduct our audits in accordance with GAAS, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America, the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). As part of an audit of financial 
statements in accordance with GAAS and in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, Uniform Guidance 
and/or any state or regulatory audit requirements we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements , whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of control. 

 Obtain an understanding of the system of internal control in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. However, we will communicate to you in writing concerning any 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit of the financial 
statements that we have identified during the audit. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 Conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered in 
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

 
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an 
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or noncompliance may not be detected exists, even though 
the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards of 
the Comptroller General of the United States of America. Please note that the determination of abuse is 
subjective and Government Auditing Standards does not require auditors to detect abuse. 
 
Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any other 
periods. 
 
We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the City’s basic financial statements. Our report 
will be addressed to the governing body of the City. Circumstances may arise in which our report may differ 
from its expected form and content based on the results of our audit. Depending on the nature of these 
circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions, add an emphasis‐of‐matter or other‐matter 
paragraph(s) to our auditor’s report, or if necessary, withdraw from the engagement. If our opinions on the 
basic financial statements are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any 
reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may decline 
to express opinions or to issue a report as a result of this engagement. 
 

177

Item 19.



4 

In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue a written report 
describing the scope of our testing over internal control over financial reporting and over compliance with laws, 
regulations, and provisions of grants and contracts, including the results of that testing. However, providing an 
opinion on internal control and compliance over financial reporting will not be an objective of the audit and, 
therefore, no such opinion will be expressed. 

Audit of Major Program Compliance 

Our audit of the City’s major federal award program(s) compliance will be conducted in accordance with the 
requirements of the Single Audit Act, as amended; and the Uniform Guidance and will include tests of 
accounting records, a determination of major programs in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, and other 
procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion on major federal award program 
compliance and to render the required reports. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion on 
compliance will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion or 
withdraw from the engagement. 

The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the material noncompliance with applicable laws and regulations, the provisions of contracts and grant 
agreements applicable to major federal award programs, and the applicable compliance requirements occurred, 
whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the entity’s compliance based on the audit. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance 
will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance 
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the 
entity’s compliance with the requirements of the federal programs as a whole. 

As part of a compliance audit in accordance with GAAS and in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, 
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also identify 
and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks.  

Our procedures will consist of determining major federal programs and performing the applicable procedures 
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of 
compliance requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each of the entity’s major programs, 
and performing such other procedures as we considers necessary in the circumstances The purpose of those 
procedures will be to express an opinion on the entity’s compliance with requirements applicable to each of its 
major programs in our report on compliance issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance. 

Also, as required by the Uniform Guidance, we will obtain an understanding of the entity’s internal control over 
compliance relevant to the audit in order to design and perform tests of controls to evaluate the effectiveness of 
the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting material 
noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each of the entity’s major federal award programs. 
Our tests will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on these controls and, accordingly, 
no opinion will be expressed in our report. However, we will communicate to you, regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
internal control over compliance that we have identified during the audit. 

178

Item 19.



5 

We will issue a report on compliance that will include an opinion or disclaimer of opinion regarding the entity’s 
major federal award programs, and a report on internal controls over compliance that will report any significant 
deficiencies and material weaknesses identified; however, such report will not express an opinion on internal 
control. 

Management Responsibilities 

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management and, when appropriate, those charged with 
governance, acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility: 

1. For the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America;

2. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of the system of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error;

3. For identifying, in its accounts, all federal awards received and expended during the period and the
federal programs under which they were received;

4. For maintaining records that adequately identify the source and application of funds for federally
funded activities;

5. For preparing the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (including notes and noncash assistance
received) in accordance with the Uniform Guidance;

6. For designing, implementing, and maintaining effective internal control over federal awards that
provides reasonable assurance that the entity is managing federal awards in compliance with federal
statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the federal awards;

7. For identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with federal laws, statutes, regulations, rules,
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, and the terms and conditions of federal award programs
and implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable federal statutes, regulations,
and the terms and conditions of federal award programs;

8. For disclosing accurately, currently, and completely, the financial results of each federal award in
accordance with the requirements of the award;

9. For identifying and providing report copies of previous audits, attestation engagements, or other studies
that directly relate to the objectives of the audit, including whether related recommendations have
been implemented;

10. For taking prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified;
11. For addressing the findings and recommendations of auditors, for establishing and maintaining a

process to track the status of such findings and recommendations and taking corrective action on
reported audit findings from prior periods and preparing a summary schedule of prior audit findings;

12. For following up and taking corrective action on current year audit findings and preparing a corrective
action plan for such findings;

13. For submitting the reporting package and data collection form to the appropriate parties;
14. For making the auditor aware of any significant contractor relationships where the contractor is

responsible for program compliance;
15. To provide us with:

a. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements including disclosures, and relevant to federal award
programs, such as records, documentation, and other matters;

b. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit; and
c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity and others from whom we determine it

necessary to obtain audit evidence.

179

Item 19.



 

6 

16. For including the auditor’s report in any document containing financial statements that indicates that 
such financial statements have been audited by us, including 

a. A written acknowledgement of all the documents that management expects to issue that will be 
included in the annual report and the planned timing and method of issuance of that annual 
report; and 

b. A final version of the annual report (including all the documents that, together, comprise the 
annual report) in a timely manner prior to the date of the auditor’s report; 

17. For adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us in the 
management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us 
during the current engagement and pertaining to the current year period(s) under audit are immaterial, 
both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole;  

18. For acceptance of nonattest services, including identifying the proper party to oversee nonattest work; 
19. For maintaining adequate records, selecting and applying accounting principles, and safeguarding 

assets;  
20. For informing us of any known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving management, 

employees with significant role in the system of internal control and others where fraud could have a 
material effect on compliance; 

21. For the accuracy and completeness of all information provided; 
22. For taking reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable and other sensitive 

information; and 
23. For confirming your understanding of your responsibilities as defined in this letter to us in your 

management representation letter. 
 

With regard to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards referred to above, you acknowledge and 
understand your responsibility (a) for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, (b) to provide us with the appropriate written representations regarding 
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, (c) to include our report on the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards in any document that contains the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and that indicates 
that we have reported on such schedule, and (d) to present the schedule of expenditures of federal awards with 
the audited financial statements, or if the schedule will not be presented with the audited financial statements, 
to make the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the schedule of expenditures 
of federal awards no later than the date of issuance by you of the schedule and our report thereon.  
 
With regard to the supplementary information referred to above, you acknowledge and understand your 
responsibility (a) for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with the applicable 
criteria, (b) to provide us with the appropriate written representations regarding supplementary information, (c) 
to include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains the supplementary 
information and that indicates that we have reported on such supplementary information, and (d) to present 
the supplementary information with the audited financial statements, or if the supplementary information will 
not be presented with the audited financial statements, to make the audited financial statements readily 
available to the intended users of the supplementary information no later than the date of issuance by you of 
the supplementary information and our report thereon.  
 
As part of our audit process, we will request from management and, when appropriate, those charged with 
governance, written confirmation concerning representations made to us in connection with the audit. 
 
We understand that your employees will prepare all confirmations we request and will locate any documents or 
invoices selected by us for testing. 

180

Item 19.



 

7 

If you intend to publish or otherwise reproduce the financial statements and make reference to our firm, you 
agree to provide us with printers’ proofs or masters for our review and approval before printing. You also agree 
to provide us with a copy of the final reproduced material for our approval before it is distributed.  
 
Nonattest Services  
 
With respect to any nonattest services we perform, we agree to perform the following: 
 

 Complete the auditee’s portion of the Data Collection Form 
 
We will not assume management responsibilities on behalf of the City. The City’s management understands and 
agrees that any advice or recommendation we may provide in connection with our audit engagement are solely 
to assist management in performing its responsibilities.  
 
The City’s management is responsible for (a) making all management decisions and performing all management 
functions; (b) assigning a competent individual to oversee the services; (c) evaluating the adequacy of the 
services performed; (d) evaluating and accepting responsibility for the results of the services performed; and (e) 
designing, implementing, and maintaining the system of internal control, including the process used to monitor 
the system of internal control. 
 
Our responsibilities and limitations of the nonattest services are as follows: 
 

 We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards. 

 The nonattest services are limited to the services previously outlined above. Our firm, in its sole 
professional judgment, reserves the right to refuse to do any procedure or take any action that 
could be construed as making management decisions or assuming management responsibilities. 

 
Fees and Timing 
 
Brian Unsen is the engagement partner for the audit services specified in this letter. The engagement partner’s 
responsibilities include supervising services performed as part of this engagement and signing or authorizing 
another qualified firm representative to sign the audit report.  
 
Our fees are based on the amount of time required at various levels of responsibility, plus actual out‐of‐pocket 
expenses, administrative charges and a technology fee. Invoices are payable upon presentation. We agree that 
our gross fee, including expenses, for the audit will not exceed $48,000 for the audit of the financial statements 
(assuming one major program), including the preparation of the REAC submission. Each additional major 
program will be a fee of $5,000. 
 
The ability to perform and complete our engagement consistent with the estimated fee included above depends 
upon the quality of your underlying accounting records and the timeliness of your personnel in providing 
information and responding to our requests. To assist with this process, we will provide you with an itemized 
request list that identifies the information you will need to prepare and provide in preparation for our 
engagement, as well as the requested delivery date for those items. A lack of preparation, including not 
providing this information in an accurate and timely manner, unanticipated audit adjustments, and/or untimely 
assistance by your personnel may result in an increase in our fees and/or a delay in the completion of our 
engagement. 
 

181

Item 19.



 

8 

We may be requested to make certain audit documentation available to outside parties, including regulators, 
pursuant to authority provided by law or regulation or applicable professional standards. If requested, access to 
such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Eide Bailly LLP’s personnel. Furthermore, 
upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the outside party, who may intend, or 
decide, to distribute the copies of information contained therein to others, including other governmental 
agencies. We will be compensated for any time and expenses, including time and expenses of legal counsel, we 
may incur in making such audit documentation available or in conducting or responding to discovery requests or 
participating as a witness or otherwise in any legal, regulatory, or other proceedings as a result of our Firm’s 
performance of these services. You and your attorney will receive, if lawful, a copy of every subpoena we are 
asked to respond to on your behalf and will have the ability to control the extent of the discovery process to 
control the costs you may incur. 
 
Should our relationship terminate before our audit procedures are completed and a report issued, you will be 
billed for services to the date of termination. All bills are payable upon receipt. A service charge of 5% per 
annum, will be added to all accounts unpaid 30 days after billing date. If collection action is necessary, expenses 
and reasonable attorney’s fees will be added to the amount due. 
 
Other Matters  
 
During the course of the engagement, we will only provide confidential engagement documentation to you via 
Eide Bailly’s secure portal or other secure methods, and request that you use the same or similar tools in 
providing information to us. Should you choose not to utilize secure communication applications, you 
acknowledge that such communication contains a risk of the information being made available to unintended 
third parties. Similarly, we may communicate with you or your personnel via e‐mail or other electronic methods, 
and you acknowledge that communication in those mediums contains a risk of misdirected or intercepted 
communications. 
 
Should you provide us with remote access to your information technology environment, including but not 
limited to your financial reporting system, you agree to (1) assign unique usernames and passwords for use by 
our personnel in accessing the system and to provide this information in a secure manner; (2) limit access to 
“read only” to prevent any unintentional deletion or alteration of your data; (3) limit access to the areas of your 
technology environment necessary to perform the procedures agreed upon; and (4) disable all usernames and 
passwords provided to us upon the completion of procedures for which access was provided. We agree to only 
access your technology environment to the extent necessary to perform the identified procedures. 
 
Regarding the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements published 
electronically on your website or elsewhere, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute 
information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in these sites or to consider 
the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the original document.  
 
Professional standards prohibit us from being the sole host and/or the sole storage for your financial and non‐
financial data. As such, it is your responsibility to maintain your original data and records and we cannot be 
responsible to maintain such original information. By signing this engagement letter, you affirm that you have all 
the data and records required to make your books and records complete. 
 

182

Item 19.



 

9 

We may use third party service providers and/or affiliated entities (including Eide Bailly Shared Services Private 
Limited) (collectively, “service providers”) in order to facilitate delivering our services to you. Our use of service 
providers may require access to client information by the service provider. We will take reasonable precautions 
to determine that they have the appropriate procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized release of 
confidential information to others. We will remain responsible for the confidentiality of client information 
accessed by such service provider and any work performed by such service provider. You acknowledge that your 
information may be disclosed to such service providers, including those outside the United States. 
 
Neither of us may use or disclose the other’s confidential information for any purpose except as permitted 
under this engagement letter or as otherwise necessary for Eide Bailly to provide the services. Your confidential 
information is defined as any information you provide to us that is not available to the public. Eide Bailly’s 
confidential information includes our audit documentation for this engagement. Our audit documentation shall 
at all times remain the property of Eide Bailly LLP. The confidentiality obligations described in this paragraph 
shall supersede and replace any and all prior confidentiality and/or nondisclosure agreements (NDAs) between 
us. 
 
We agree to retain our audit documentation or work papers for a period of at least eight years from the date of 
our report.  
 
Further, we will be available during the year to consult with you on financial management and accounting 
matters of a routine nature.  
 
You agree to share all facts that may affect your financial statements, even if you first become aware of those 
facts after the date of the auditor’s report but before the date your financial statements are issued. 
 
At the conclusion of our audit engagement, we will communicate to the City Council the following significant 
findings from the audit: 
 

 Our view about the qualitative aspects of the entity’s significant accounting practices; 

 Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit; 

 Uncorrected misstatements, other than those we believe are trivial, if any; 

 Disagreements with management, if any; 

 Other findings or issues, if any, arising from the audit that are, in our professional judgment, significant 
and relevant to those charged with governance regarding their oversight of the financial reporting 
process; 

 Material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our 
audit procedures; 

 Representations we requested from management; 

 Management’s consultations with other accountants, if any; and 

 Significant issues, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed, or the subject of correspondence, 
with management. 

 
Government Auditing Standards require that we provide, upon request, a copy of our most recent external peer 
review report and any subsequent review reports to the party contracting for the audit. Accordingly, we will 
provide a copy of our most recent peer review report at your request. 
 

183

Item 19.



 

10 

MEDIATION 
 
Any disagreement, controversy or claim arising out of or related to any aspect of our services or relationship 
with you (hereafter a “Dispute”) shall, as a precondition to litigation in court, first be submitted to mediation. In 
mediation, the parties attempt to reach an amicable resolution of the Dispute with the aid of an impartial 
mediator. Mediation shall begin by service of a written demand. The mediator will be selected by mutual 
agreement. If we cannot agree on a mediator, one shall be designated by the American Arbitration Association 
(“AAA”). Mediation shall be conducted with the parties in person in Dubuque, Iowa. Each party will bear its own 
costs in the mediation. The fees and expenses of the mediator will be shared equally by the parties. Neither 
party may commence a lawsuit until the mediator declares an impasse.  
 
LIMITED INDEMNITY 
 
Eide Bailly LLP and its partners, affiliates, officers and employees (collectively “Eide Bailly”) shall not be 
responsible for any misstatements in your financial statements that we may fail to detect as a result of 
misrepresentations or concealment of information by any of your directors, officers or employees. You shall 
indemnify and hold Eide Bailly harmless from any claims, losses, settlements, judgments, awards, damages and 
attorneys’ fees arising from any such misstatement or concealment of information.  
 
Eide Bailly shall not be entitled to indemnification under this agreement unless the services were performed in 
accordance with professional standards in all material respects. 
 
LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in any agreement between us, in no event shall Eide Bailly’s 
aggregate liability to you exceed ten times fees paid under this agreement. 
 
TIME LIMITATION 
 
Any statute of limitations applicable to claims you may bring against us shall begin to run on the date when we 
delivered our report, return, or other deliverable under this agreement to you and begins to run even if you 
have not suffered any damage or loss, or have not become aware of a possible Dispute. 
 
ASSIGNMENTS PROHIBITED 
 
You shall not assign, sell, barter or transfer any legal rights, causes of actions, claims or Disputes you may have 
against Eide Bailly to any person. 
 
Please sign and return the attached copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and agreement with, 
the arrangements for our audit of the financial statements including our respective responsibilities. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be your certified public accountants and look forward to working with you 
and your staff. 
 
Respectfully, 
 

 
Brian Unsen, CPA 
Partner 

184

Item 19.



11 

*************************************************************** 

RESPONSE: 

This letter correctly sets forth our understanding. 

Acknowledged and agreed on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa by:  

Name: _______________________________________________________________ 

Title: ________________________________________________________________ 

Date: ________________________________________________________________ 

185

Item 19.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

 M E M O R A N D U M     
 

Human Resources Division 
 

TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council Members  

FROM: Bailey Schindel, Human Resources Manager 

DATE: April 26, 2024              

SUBJECT: Personnel Policy Revisions  
 
 

Attached for your approval are revisions to 17 personnel policies. The changes are 
presented in redline format for ease of review. There are very few substantive changes, 
but rather clarification of processes, cleanup, removal of duplicative items, and moving 
of items to more relevant policies.  

If you have questions regarding the attached, feel free to contact me at 319-268-5531. 

Attachment 

     

186

Item 20.



CFD 2100.243: Personnel Policies – Introduction  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 3 

  

 

CFD 2100: Personnel Policies – Introduction  
Approved June 1, 2015 May 6, 2024 by the Cedar Falls City Council 
Received and Filed August 7, 2023 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

POLICY: 

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls that this Manual be used as a presentation of the basic 

personnel Policies, Practices, and Procedures for the organization. 

DEFINITIONS:  

 “Shall” or “will” should be interpreted as mandatory and the word “may” as permissive. 

 “Supervisor” means an individual with the authority to assign, direct, and review the work of 

two or more subordinates. 

 “Immediate family” means the employee’s spouse, brother, sister, parent, child, stepchild, 

father-in-law, mother-in-law, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, 

grandfather, grandmother, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, first cousin, and any person residing 

in the employee’s household. means the employee's spouse (including domestic partner or 

common law spouse), siblings (including step) parents (including step, foster, legal guardian, 

and in-laws), children (including step, foster, ward, and in-laws), and any other person 

residing in the employee's household of a non-platonic relationship. Any other relationship 

not mentioned above shall be handled as determined by the City Administrator. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. General Procedures. 

A. This Manual contains general statements of City Policy and should not be read as including 

the fine details of each Policy, or as forming an express or implied contract or promise that 

the Policies discussed in it will be applied in all cases.  

B. Nothing in this Manual should be considered as creating an express or implied contract or 

promise concerning the Policies or Practices that the City has implemented or will implement 

in the future. Accordingly, the City retains the right to establish, change, and abolish its 

Policies, Practices, rules, and regulations at will and as it sees fit.  

C. The City may add to the Policies discussed in the Manual or revoke or modify them from time 

to time. It will try to keep the Manual current, but there may be times when Policy will change 

before this material can be revised. 

C.D.The City understands that the definition of “immediate family” may be different for different 

individuals. The City reserves the right to consider exceptions to the definition of “immediate 

family” when referenced in any City policy on a case-by-case basis. Exceptions must be 

approved by the Human Resources Division and City Administrator.  

2. Manual not a contract. This handbook is not a contract, express or implied, guaranteeing 

187

Item 20.



CFD 2100.243: Personnel Policies – Introduction  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 3 

  

 

employment for any specific duration. 

3. Managerial Discretion. The City retains the sole discretion to exercise all managerial functions, 

including the rights: 

A. To hire, dismiss, assign, supervise, and discipline employees. 

B. To determine and change starting times, quitting times, and shift structure. 

C. To transfer employees within departments or into other departments and other 

classifications, where permitted by law. 

D. To determine and change the size and qualifications of the work force. 

E. To determine and change methods by which its operations are to be carried out. 

F. To determine and change the nature, location, services rendered, quantity, quality and 

continued operations of all City operations. 

G. To assign duties to employees in accordance with the City’s needs and requirements and to 

carry out all ordinary administrative and management functions. 

4. Employees’ Obligations and Other Policies and Procedures.  

A. Employees are required to know and follow the Policies in this Manual. In addition, there may 

be specific Departmental Procedures and Policies, including, but not limited to, Risk 

Management Policies, which are applicable.  

B. Department Directors may adopt, amend and rescind Departmental Administrative Policies 

and Procedures not in conflict with these Policies as necessary for proper departmental 

administration.  

C. Employees are expected to comply with any City and Departmental Policies and Procedures, 

as well as any applicable ordinances, laws and collective bargaining agreement. Failure to 

do so may be grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  

D. To the extent there is no conflict with any collective bargaining agreement, ordinances, state 

law, federal law, Civil Service Code, Civil Service rules and regulations, City Policies and 

Departmental Procedures are applicable. The provisions of any collective bargaining 

agreement, to the extent they address specific issues contained within this Manual, shall take 

precedence.  

E. Employees of the Cedar Falls Public Library are bound by the Policies in this manual except 

to the extent any Policies conflict with Policies and Procedures established by the Library 

Board of Trustees, in which case Library Policy shall be applicable. 

5. Scope. This manual shall apply to all employees except as specifically noted in particular 

policies. Some benefits or policies may only apply to full-time employees as noted in individual 

188

Item 20.



CFD 2100.243: Personnel Policies – Introduction  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 3 

  

 

policies. To the extent certain policies are relevant or applicable, this manual also applies to 

elected officials. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 7/1/06, 6/1/15, 3/1/23 (Administrative Update), 5/6/24 

189

Item 20.



CFD 2101.243: Personnel Policies – Equal Employment Opportunity CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 1 

  

 

CFD 2101: Personnel Policy – Equal Employment Opportunity 
Approved June 1, 2015 May 6, 2024 by the Cedar Falls City Council 
Received and Filed August 7, 2023 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

POLICY: 

It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls to provide equal opportunity in employment to all employees 

and applicants for employment. No person is to be discriminated by reason of race, religion, color, 

sex, (including sexual orientation, gender identity, and pregnancy), genetic information, age (40 or 

older), national origin, disability, military status or any other characteristic which may be protected 

by applicable federal or state law with respect to wages, hire, tenure, terms, conditions or privileges 

of employment, or any other matter directly or indirectly related to employment. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. General Procedures. 

A. Any communication from an applicant for employment, an employee, a government agency, 

or an attorney, concerning any equal employment opportunity matter should be referred to 

the City Attorney Human Resources Division for action. 

B. While overall authority for implementing this Policy is assigned to the Financial Services and 

Legal Human Resources Division, an effective equal employment opportunity program 

cannot be achieved without the support of supervisory personnel and employees at all levels. 

Employees who believe they are the victims of discrimination have a responsibility to 

promptly report this fact to their supervisor, manager, director, Human Resources 

DivisionPersonnel Specialist, and/or the City AdministratorAttorney. If the complaint is 

against the City Attorney, the employee may communicate directly to the Director of Finance 

& Business Operations. 

C. Complaints of discrimination will be handled and investigated under the Grievance Procedure 

(CFD 2413), unless special procedures are considered appropriate, such as referral to the 

Iowa Civil Rights Commission or another outside investigator. All complaints of discrimination 

will be investigated promptly and in as impartial and confidential manner as possible, and a 

timely resolution of each complaint should be reached and communicated to the parties 

involved. The City prohibits any form of retaliation against employees for bringing bona fide 

complaints or providing information about discrimination. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 1/23/12, 6/1/15, 5/6/24 

 

190

Item 21.



CFD 2102.243:  Personnel Policy – Harassment-Free Workplace CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 3 

  

 

CFD 2102: Personnel Policy – Harassment-Free Workplace 
Approved June 1, 2015 May 6, 2024 by the Cedar Falls City Council 
Received and Filed August 7, 2023 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

POLICY: 

It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls to promote a productive work environment and not to tolerate 

verbal or physical conduct by any employee which harasses, disrupts, or interferes with another's 

work performance or which creates an intimidating, offensive, embarrassing or hostile environment. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. Productive Work Environment.  

A. Employees are expected to maintain a productive work environment that is free from 

harassing or disruptive activity.   

B. No form of harassment will be tolerated, including harassment for the following reasons:  

race, color, national origin, religion, creed, disability, genetic information, pregnancy, age, 

military status, sexual orientation, gender identity, or sex.   

C. Special attention must be paid to the prohibition of sexual harassment. 

2. Management Responsibilities.  

A. Each Supervisor, Manager, Department Director, and the City Administrator have a 

responsibility to keep the workplace free from any form of harassment, including sexual 

harassment.  No Supervisor, Manager, Director, or City Administrator is to threaten or 

insinuate, either explicitly or implicitly, that an employee's refusal or willingness to submit to 

sexual advances will affect the employee's terms or conditions of employment. 

B. Sexual Harassment Definition:  Sexual harassment is a violation of Title VII of the Civil Rights 

Act of 1964, and it is against the City’s Policies for any employee to sexually harass another 

employee by: 

1). Making unwelcome sexual advances or requests for sexual favors or other verbal or 

physical conduct of a sexual nature a condition of an employee’s employment; or 

2). Making submission to or rejection of such conduct the basis for employment decisions 

affecting the employee; or 

3). Creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment by such conduct. 

C. Examples of Sexually Harassing Conduct:  Other sexually harassing or offensive conduct in 

the workplace, whether committed by Supervisors, Managers, Department Directors, City 

Administrator, elected officials, nonsupervisory employees, or nonemployees is also 

prohibited.  Such conduct includes, but is not limited to: 

1). Verbal or written:  Demand for sexual favors; sexual innuendoes; suggestive comments; 

191

Item 22.



CFD 2102.243:  Personnel Policy – Harassment-Free Workplace CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 3 

  

 

jokes of a sexual nature; sexual propositions or advances; threats; offensive language; 

repeated and unwanted pressures for a date; demeaning, insulting, intimidating, or 

sexually suggestive comments about an individual’s dress or body; any written, recorded 

or electronically transmitted messages (such as email, instant messaging, and Internet 

materials) which are demeaning, insulting, intimidating or sexually suggestive; 

2). Non-Verbal:  Sexually suggestive objects or pictures, graphic commentaries, suggestive 

or insulting sounds, leering, whistling, obscene gestures. 

3). Physical:  Unwanted physical conduct of any kind including touching, pinching, fondling, 

brushing the body, coerced sexual intercourse, assault. 

D. Sexual harassment may be overt or subtle.  Some behavior which is appropriate in a social 

setting may not be appropriate in the workplace.  But whatever form it takes, verbal, written, 

non-verbal or physical, sexual harassment can be insulting and demeaning to the recipient 

and cannot be tolerated in the workplace. Sexual harassment by any employee, manager, 

supervisor, or non-employee will not be tolerated. 

E. Other Harassment:  Any of the above conduct, or other offensive conduct, directed at 

individuals because of their race, color, creed, gendersex, sexual orientation, gender identity, 

national origin, religion, disability, genetic information, pregnancy, age, physical condition, 

appearance or military status also is prohibited.  Any of the above conduct, or other offensive 

conduct, directed at other individuals, regardless of their status, is prohibited.  In addition, 

any offensive horseplay, pranks or practical jokes are prohibited (see also CFD 2401: 

Employee Behavior, Section 2.K). 

3. Reporting Harassment.  

A. Any employee who believes that a Supervisor's, Manager's, Department Director's, City 

Administrator’s, other employee's or nonemployee's actions or words constitute unwelcome 

harassment has a responsibility to report or complain about the situation as soon as possible.  

The report or complaint should be made to the employee's Supervisor, Manager, Department 

Director, Human Resources Division or City Administrator.    

B. Reports of harassment by co-employees or non-employees should be made to a Supervisor; 

however, reports may be made to any manager, Director, Human Resources Division or the 

City Administrator.   

C. Female eEmployees may, at their own discretion, choose to file sexual harassment 

complaints with a female management employee, and to have another female employee 

assist them throughout the course of the investigation. 

4. Investigation of Complaints.  

A. Complaints of harassment are to be handled and investigated under the City’s grievance 

policy, unless alternate procedures are deemed appropriate.  Regardless, all complaints of 

harassment are to be investigated promptly and in as impartial and confidential a manner as 

possible.  Employees are required to cooperate in any investigation.   

192

Item 22.



CFD 2102.243:  Personnel Policy – Harassment-Free Workplace CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 3 

  

 

B. Investigation of a complaint will normally include conferring with the parties involved and any 

named or apparent witnesses.   

C. A timely resolution of each complaint is to be reached and communicated to the parties 

involved.   

D. Retaliation against any employee for filing a complaint or participating in an investigation is 

strictly prohibited. 

5. Disciplinary Consequences.   

A. Any employee, Supervisor, Manager, Department Director, or the City Administrator who is 

found to have engaged in harassment of another employee will be subject to appropriate 

disciplinary action, depending on the circumstances, up to and including discharge.   

B. The City prohibits any form of retaliation against employees for bringing bona fide complaints 

or providing information about harassment.  However, if an investigation of a complaint 

shows that the complaint or information was false, the individual who provided the false 

information will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.   

C. Results of investigations involving non-employees who are found to have engaged in 

harassment of an employee, will be turned over to the City Administrator for appropriate 

action. 

6. Possible Criminal Prosecution. This Policy is not intended to be a substitute for criminal 

prosecution of criminal acts of harassment.  Such acts are subject to separate, outside 

investigation by the appropriate law enforcement authorities. 

7. Additional Considerations.   

A. The question of whether a particular action or incident is a purely personal, social relationship 

without a discriminatory effect on employment requires a factual determination based on all 

facts in the matter.   

B. The City trusts that all employees will continue to act responsibly to establish and maintain a 

pleasant working environment free from discrimination and harassment.  

B.C. The policy set forth above shall also apply to elected and appointed officials.   

C.D. Employees are encouraged to raise questions regarding discrimination or 

harassment with their Supervisor or the Legal Services Human Resources Division. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 7/1/06, 1/23/12, 6/1/15, 3/1/23 (Administrative Update), 5/6/24 

193

Item 22.



CFD 2106.243:  Personnel Policy – Probationary Period CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 2 

  

 

CFD 2106: Personnel Policy – Probationary Period 
Approved June 1, 2015 May 6, 2024 by the Cedar Falls City Council 
Received and Filed August 7, 2023 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

POLICY: 

It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls that all new full-time, part-time and all present employees 

transferred to a new job are to be carefully monitored and evaluated for an initial probationary period.  

After satisfactory completion of the probationary period, those employees will be evaluated as 

provided for in CFD 2152: Performance Appraisals. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. General Guidance. 

A. Normally, the probationary period for new employees is six months.  The probationary period 

for new civil service police officers and firefighters is determined by Iowa Code Chapter 400.  

Supervisors should observe carefully the performance of each employee in a new job 

position.  Where appropriate, weaknesses in performance, behavior, or deportment are to be 

brought to the employee's attention for correction.  The probationary period may be extended 

at the discretion of the supervisor not to exceed 12 months from date of hire. 

B. Supervisors should prepare a written evaluation of the employee's job performance by the 

end of the first three months and at the end of six months on the new job.  Each evaluation 

should include a recommendation as to whether the employee should continue in the 

position.  Copies of the evaluations are to be forwarded to the Department Director and the 

Human ResourcesFinancial Services Division for inclusion in the employee's personnel file. 

C. Following the completion of the initial six-month probationary period, Eemployees will be 

allowed to continue in their new positions if they are given both a satisfactory evaluation and 

their supervisor's endorsement to continue in the job.  Employees who do not receive a 

satisfactory evaluation and endorsement may be given additional timehave their probationary 

period extended in 30-day increments, up to six months maximum, to demonstrate their 

ability to do the job if the supervisor feels additional time is warranted in order to achieve 

acceptable job performance.  Employees are not guaranteed any position for any specified 

period of time.  Employees may be terminated at any time during and after the probationary 

period, with or without cause and with or without notice (see also CFD 2100: Personnel 

Policies Introduction). 

D. Supervisors may recommend the termination of a probationary employee at any time.  A 

recommendation for termination should be submitted in writing to the Department Director 

(or the City Administrator if a director position), the Director of Finance & Business 

Operations, and the Human Resources ManagerCity Attorney for review and should include 

an evaluation and a listing of actions taken to assist the employee. Action to terminate must 

have the prior approval of the Department Director, City Administrator, and the Human 

Resources ManagerCity Attorney. 

194

Item 23.



CFD 2106.243:  Personnel Policy – Probationary Period CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 2 

  

 

E. Transferred employees who are unable to perform satisfactorily in their new jobs may, at the 

discretion of management, be returned to their original jobs. 

F. Newly hired employees are eligible for benefits in accordance with other benefits policies and 

plan documents. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 7/1/06, 1/1/08, 6/1/15, 5/6/24 

195

Item 23.



CFD 2107.243: Personnel Policy – Transfer CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 2 

  

 

CFD 2107: Personnel Policy – Transfer  
Approved March 1, 2019 May 6, 2024 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

Received and Filed August 7, 2023 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

POLICY: 

It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls that it may, at its own discretion, initiate or approve employee 

job transfers from one job to another or from one location to another within the restrictions 

established by Chapter 400 of the Code of Iowa and applicable collective bargaining agreements. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. General Guidance. 

A. The City shall have the ability to require employees to make either a temporary or long term 

job transfer in order to accommodate the City's needs.  

B. Employees may request a voluntary job transfer. However, to be eligible for voluntary 

transfer, employees must meet the requirements of the new position, must have held their 

current position for at least six three months, must have a satisfactory performance record, 

and must have no adverse disciplinary action during the same period. 

C. Job openings for which management seeks candidates from within the City will be posted on 

employees’ bulletin boards. From time to time, Management may, as it considers appropriate, 

make transfers without posting notice. 

D. Eligible employees who request a transfer will be considered by management. 

E. Requests for transfer normally should be handled as follows: 

1). The employee should submit a written request to their Finance & Business Operations 

Department Supervisor. The request should include the reason for the transfer and the 

department and specific job that the employee wants. Requests based on posted job 

openings must comply with the Procedures described in CFD 2108: Promotion and 

should be initiated prior to the application deadline. 

2). The supervisor in conjunction with the Finance & Business Operations Department 

Human Resources Division should determine whether the requested job or a suitable job 

opening exists and whether the employee is eligible.  If the opening exists and the 

employee is eligible, the request for transfer will be sent to the employee's supervisor. 

3). The supervisor should forward the request for transfer to the employee's current 

Department Director with a recommendation for approval or disapproval. The 

recommendation will be reviewed by the current Department Director and the City 

AdministratorDirector of Finance & Business Operations. 

4). If the employee is eligible for a job opening, the candidate will interview with the 

Department Director or designee who has the job opening. The candidate will be allowed 

196

Item 24.



CFD 2107.243: Personnel Policy – Transfer CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 2 

  

 

time off with pay for job interviews related to the transfer. 

5). The Department Director with the job opening will make the final transfer decision, subject 

to the approval of the City AdministratorDirector of Finance & Business Operations. 

6). Supervisors and Department Directors may initiate the procedure and propose 

employees for a position. 

F. Transferred employees will be subject in their new positions to the provisions of CFD 2106: 

Probationary Period. In addition, transferred employees may be required to have a medical 

examination to insureensure that they are physically able to perform the duties of the new 

position. 

G. Pay for transferred employees will be handled as follows: 

1). Employees transferred to a job with the same salary range will continue to receive their 

existing rate of pay. 

2). Employees who are transferred for disciplinary reasons, lack of work, budgetary reasons 

(transfer in lieu of layoff), reorganization, or at their own request, to a job in a lower salary 

range will be paid at the lower rate commencing with the start of the new job. 

3). Employees transferred to a new job due to reorganization or elimination of a position and 

fall within a lower salary range will continue to receive their current rate of pay until they 

fall within the new salary range.  

H. Transfers involving employees moving into, out of, or within any unit covered by a collective 

bargaining agreement must conform to the provisions of the agreement. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 7/1/06, 6/1/15, 3/1/19, 5/6/24 

197

Item 24.



CFD 2108.243: Personnel Policy – Promotion CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 2 

  

 

CFD 2108: Personnel Policy – Promotion 
Approved March 1, 2019 May 6, 2024 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

Received and Filed August 7, 2023 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

POLICY: 

It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls to hire employees for entry-level positions, to provide training 

and development for employees when necessary, and to offer employees promotions to higher-level 

positions when appropriate. The City will engage in outside recruitment for promotional positions. In 

limited cases, only internal recruitment may be an option, such as for re-organizational purposes 

wherein outside recruitment is not necessary. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. General Guidance. 

A. All employees are encouraged to seek advancement opportunities and to obtain promotion 

and career guidance from their Supervisor and Department Director.  

B. An employee's basic eligibility for promotion will be determined by the requirements of the 

new job. In addition, the employee must have an overall satisfactory performance record.  

C. Job openings and promotions for which management seeks candidates from within the City 

will be posted on employee bulletin boards for at least ten days prior to the application 

deadline. When job openings or promotion opportunities are posted: 

1). Interested employees must initiate written notification to the Finance & Business 

Operations Department by the application deadline. 

2). Supervisors and Department Directors may initiate the procedure within the same time 

period and propose employees for the position; and 

3). The Finance & Business Operations Department may, at its discretion, or by the direction 

of higher management, solicit outside candidates during or after the posting period. 

D. Current employee candidates for job openings and promotions will be considered for the 

position as outlined in CFD 2107: Transfer. Applicants recruited from outside the City will be 

considered for employment as outlined in CFD 2104: Hiring and Rehiring. 

E. Current employee candidates for promotion will usually be screened and selected on the 

basis of attendance and work records, performance appraisals, and job-related qualifications 

including aptitude or achievement tests, continuing education and progress toward an 

advanced degree. For positions within the City's Civil Service System, candidates must be 

certified eligible for promotion by the Civil Service Commission. In addition, employees 

seeking promotion may be required to have an updated background check conducted, and 

a medical examination, including a drug test (see CFD 2105: Medical Procedures). 

198

Item 25.



CFD 2108.243: Personnel Policy – Promotion CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 2 

  

 

F. Newly promoted employees will be subject, where required, to the provisions of CFD 2106: 

Probationary Period.  

G. Pay for newly promoted employees will normally be at least the minimum pay range for the 

new position, or the employee may be offered a 3% - 7% increase over their current pay, 

whichever is greater. If market conditions require higher pay for the promotional position, the 

higher pay rate shall be approved by the Department Director, (or the City Administrator if a 

director position) and the Director of Finance & Business Operations, and the City 

Administrator. 

H. Seniority will may not be a factor for determining transfer, promotion, interim or acting status, 

or layoff or recall, except as required by an applicable collective bargaining agreement. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 7/1/06, 6/1/15, 3/1/19, 5/6/24  

199

Item 25.



CFD 2110.243: Personnel Policy – Outside Employment CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 2 

  

 

CFD 2110: Personnel Policy – Outside Employment 
Approved June 1, 2015 May 6, 2024 by the Cedar Falls City Council 
Received and Filed August 7, 2023 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

POLICY: 

It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls to allow its employees to engage in outside work or hold 

other jobs, subject to certain restrictions as outlined below. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. General Guidance. 

A. The City requires that employees' activities and conduct away from the job must not conflict 

with or compromise its interests, or adversely affect job performance and the ability to fulfill 

all responsibilities to the City. Employees must obtain approval from their Division Manager 

and Department Director (or City Administrator if a director) prior to accepting outside 

employment when there is a potential conflict of interest or when the outside employment 

would impede or interfere with job performance (see also CFD 2407: Conflicts of Interest). In 

determining whether outside employment creates an unacceptable compromise, situations 

that an unacceptable employment conflict shall be deemed to exist includes, but is not limited 

to the following:  

1). The outside employment involves the use of the City's time, facilities, equipment, and 

supplies, or the use of the City's badge, uniform, business card, or other evidence of 

office or employment. As provided by Iowa Code, this restriction does not apply to off-

duty police officers who provide private duty security while carrying their badge or wearing 

their official uniform, provided that the employee has secured the prior approval of the 

Police Chief to engage in the employment (see CFD 5121: Secondary Employment). 

2). The outside employment involves the receipt of, promise of, or acceptance of money or 

other consideration by the employee, or a member of the employee's immediate family, 

from anyone other than the City for the performance of any act that the employee would 

be required or expected to perform as a part of the person’s regular duties or during the 

hours that the person performs service or work for the City. 

3). The outside employment is subject to the official control, inspection, review, audit, or 

enforcement authority of the employee, during the performance of the employee's duties 

of office or employment. 

4). If the outside employment is employment described in comment 1.A.1) or 1.A.2), the 

employee shall immediately cease the employment. If the outside employment is 

described in comment 1.A.3), the employee shall take one of the following courses of 

action: 

a. Cease the outside employment. 

b. Publicly disclose the existence of the employment conflict and refrain from taking any 

200

Item 26.



CFD 2110.243: Personnel Policy – Outside Employment CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 2 

  

 

official action or performing any official duty that would detrimentally affect or create 

a benefit for the outside employment. 

B. For the purpose of this Policy, "official action" or "official duty" includes, but is not limited to, 

participating in any vote, taking affirmative action to influence any vote, granting any license 

or permit, determining the facts or law in a contested case or rule making proceeding, 

conducting any inspection or providing any other official service or thing that is not made 

available generally to members of the public to further the interests of the outside 

employment. 

C. Employees who have accepted outside employment are not eligible for paid sick or personal 

absence when the absence is used to work on the outside job or is the result of an injury 

sustained on that jobEmployees covered under the Police Division union contract shall refer 

to the contract for additional information on how sick leave will be handled for injury or illness 

that occurs during the course of outside employment.  

C.D. Fraudulent use of sick leave or personal absences will result in disciplinary action 

up to and including discharge. 

D.E. For further guidance, employees are further directed to review and comply with 

CFD 2407: Conflicts of Interest. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 6/1/15, 5/6/24 

201

Item 26.



CFD 2121.243: Personnel Policy – Nepotism Prohibition CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 2 

  

 

CFD 2121: Personnel Policy – Nepotism Prohibition 
Approved October 17, 2022 May 6, 2024 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

Received and Filed August 21, 2023 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

POLICY: 

It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls to be committed to employment and advancement based 

on qualifications and merit. This policy serves to define the City’s standards for employment of 

relatives working for the City, and to safeguard against conflicts of interest or favoritism, whether 

real or perceived, which compromise the public interest. 

DEFINITION: 

 Immediate family: See CFD 2100: Introduction for immediate family definition. The 

employee's spouse (including domestic partner or common law spouse), siblings (including 

step) parents (including step, foster, legal guardian, and in-laws), children (including step, 

foster, ward, and in-laws), and any other person residing in the employee's household of a 

non-platonic relationship. Any other relationship not mentioned above causing a conflict of 

interest will be handled as determined by the City Administrator. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. Applicability.  

A. These criteria will apply to all employment decisions including: hiring, rehiring, assigning, 

transferring, promoting, or demoting an employee. 

B. Instances of indirect supervision may occur between supervisor/subordinate. This policy 

pertains to direct supervision only, unless a conflict of interest is otherwise created. 

2. Consideration for employment.  

A. A member of an employee’s immediate family will not be considered for employment by the 

City if such employment would: 

1). Create a direct supervisor/subordinate relationship; or 

2). Create a conflict of interest as determined by the City Administrator. 

B. A member of an employee’s immediate family may be considered for employment by the City 

if the immediate family member possesses all the qualifications for the position and if: 

1). No direct supervisor/subordinate relationship or conflict of interest is created (see above); 

and 

2). The immediate family member is assigned to a different Department than the employee; 

or 

3). If assigned to the same Department the immediate family member is assigned to a 

202

Item 27.



CFD 2121.243: Personnel Policy – Nepotism Prohibition CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 2 

  

 

different Division than the employee; or 

4). If assigned to the same Division the immediate family member is assigned to a               

different Shift or Section than the employee. 

3. Notification.  

A. Employees who marry or become immediate family (as defined abovein CFD 2100: 

Introduction) during the course of employment are required to inform their supervisor of the 

relationship as soon as possible, but no later than 14 days after the relationship is 

established.   

B. Violation of this policy will subject the employee(s) to disciplinary action, up to and including 

termination. Employees who violate this policy forfeit their right of transfer or reassignment. 

4. Resolution.  

A. Should the above situation occur, a decision will be made by management within 30 days of 

notification regarding which employee shall transfer or be reassigned, if possible, or which 

employee will terminate employment.  

B. Factors to be considered in this determination include, but are not limited to: position held, 

rank, seniority, past performance and fulltime employment status.  

C. The transfer, reassignment, or termination decision made by management shall be finalized 

and effective within a maximum of 90 days from the date in which the immediate family 

relationship was established.  

D. When one immediate family member leaves City employment, re-employment rights while 

the other immediate family member remains are determined by the considerations in 2.A and 

2.B above. 

5. Exemptions. 

A. Exceptions to this policy may be considered provided an immediate family member is not a 

direct supervisor and as approved by the City Administrator, upon the favorable 

recommendation of the Department Director. 

B. Employees hired prior to July 1, 2004, are exempt from application of this policy section to 

the extent it applies to their current position. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 10/17/22, 5/6/24 

203

Item 27.



CFD 2152.243: Personnel Policy – Performance Appraisals CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 3 

  

 

CFD 2152: Personnel Policy – Performance Appraisals 
Approved March 1, 2019 May 6, 2024 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

Received and Filed August 7, 2023 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

POLICY: 

It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls that the job performance of each employee be evaluated 

periodically by the employee's Supervisor. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. Reasons for Appraisal. 

A. Performance appraisals will be completed upon the following occasions: 

1). By the end of the first three months on the job as well as at the end of six months of the 

probationary period; 

1).2). If an employee’s probationary period is extended according to the provisions in 

CFD: 2106 Probationary Period, a performance appraisal must be completed at the end 

of the extended period. 

2).3). In conjunction with the annual salary review or on the anniversary date of 

employment; 

3).4). By the end of the first three months as well as at the end of six months following 

When the an employee is transferred or promotioned to a new job; 

4).5). When the employee is given a new assignment under a new Supervisor, the 

previous Supervisor will complete an appraisal unless the new Supervisor has held direct 

supervision over the employee for at least 60 days; 

0). At the time of the employee's termination, if a disciplinary or termination report is not 

prepared; and, 

0). When a reduction in staff is necessary. 

D.B. If a performance appraisal has been completed within one two months of the 

above occasions, a new appraisal does not have to be completed., except in cases involving 

discipline or termination. 

2. General Guidance. 

A. Factors to be considered include the experience and training of the employee, the job 

classification, and the employee's attainment of previously set objectives and goals. Other 

factors that should be considered include, but are not limited to, knowledge of the job, quality 

and quantity of work, promptness in completing assignments, cooperation, initiative, 

reliability, attendance, judgment, conduct, public relations, and acceptance of responsibility. 

204

Item 28.



CFD 2152.243: Personnel Policy – Performance Appraisals CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 3 

  

 

B. The written appraisal should include the Supervisor's comments and recommendations, an 

action plan for the employee, and performance goals for the next evaluation period. 

C. Department Directors (or City Administrator for directors) will review each Supervisor's written 

evaluation to help assure that the evaluation has been properly completed in as fair and 

objective a manner as possible. 

D. The Supervisor and employee must meet and discuss the evaluation, assess the employee's 

strengths and weaknesses in a constructive manner, and set objectives and goals for the 

period ahead. The employee will be given the opportunity to examine the evaluation and 

make written comments about any aspect of it. Following the appraisal meeting, the 

employee shall acknowledge receipt of a copy of the written evaluation by signing the 

document. Signing the written evaluation form does not necessarily imply that the employee 

agrees with the evaluation results, but simply indicates the employee is aware of the rating 

given and discussed the evaluation with the Supervisor. The Supervisor must sign the written 

evaluation form and forward it to the Finance & Business Operations Department to review 

for completeness and inclusion in the employee's personnel file. 

E. Employee request for review.  

1). In addition to adding written comments to their performance appraisal, employees may 

request a review. (Written evaluations are not subject to the grievance procedure.)  

2). Written comments by employees shall become part of the performance appraisal.  

3). Stage one of the review process shall be with the Division Manager. Such a request for 

stage one review shall be made in writing to the reviewing authority within seven (7) 

calendar days from the initial supervisor meeting in which the appraisal was discussed. 

Stage two of the review process shall be with the Department Director, stage three with 

the City Administrator, and stage four with the Mayor. All requests for review past stage 

one shall be made in writing within seven (7) calendar days from the decision of the 

reviewing authority at the previous stage.  

4). Failure to meet the deadlines established in this policy shall be deemed a waiver of 

performance appraisal review. If the employee requesting the review is a Division 

Manager, the review process shall begin with the Department Director.  

5). At any stage in the review process, the reviewing authority may make notations to the 

evaluation to address disputed facts or unfair and improper administration of the 

evaluation instrument. 

F. Information derived from the performance appraisal may be one factor which is considered 

when making decisions affecting training, pay, promotion, transfer, or continued employment. 

Any compensation decisions will be based on performance, the employee’s salary within 

their own pay range, and budget considerations. 

G. Employees who are employed in shared positions or in different capacities between different 

departments or divisions will receive two scores on the respective performance appraisals. 

205

Item 28.



CFD 2152.243: Personnel Policy – Performance Appraisals CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 3 

  

 

The scores will be averaged on a pro rata basis and compensation will be determined by the 

prorated score. 

H. The Procedures discussed in this Policy are only guidelines. The City may, in its sole 

discretion, modify or revoke them in whole or in part at any time. Therefore, these procedures 

are not a promise or contract, express or implied, and the City retains the right to determine 

whether and how they will be applied, depending on the circumstances. These Procedures 

do not guarantee employment for any length of time, nor do they guarantee annual 

compensation raises. Compensation decisions will be based on performance, salary pay 

ranges and budgetary considerations. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 1/1/08, 6/1/15, 3/1/19, 5/6/24 

206

Item 28.



CFD 2255.243:  Personnel Policy – Service Awards CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 1 

  

 

CFD 2255: Personnel Policy – Service Awards 
Approved January 6, 2020May 6, 2024 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

Received and Filed August 7, 2023 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

POLICY: 

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls to recognize extended service to the City by presenting 

service awards to eligible employees in accordance with the guidelines set forth below. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. Eligibility. 

A. All full-time and part-time employees, and year-around special purpose employees are 

eligible to receive a service pin upon completion of five years of service and at the end of 

every five years of service after that. 

B. Service does not have to be continuous to count toward service credit for the award. 

2. Presentation. 

A. The service award generally will be presented to the individual on the anniversary date of the 

employee’s date of employment. If this date falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or holiday, the 

award will be presented on the next regularly scheduled workday. 

B. The Financial Services Division will be responsible for identifying those employees to be 

honored, notifying the mayor or other presenter, ordering the awards, and arranging for 

appropriate announcements of awards internally, and when appropriate, externally. 

3. Award. 

A. All full-time and part-time employees, excluding special purpose and seasonal employees, 

are eligible to receive a watch upon the completion of fifteen (15) years of service. If an 

employee waives eligibility for a watch upon completion of fifteen (15) years of service, the 

employee may elect to receive a watch on or before the employee’s retirement or resignation 

from employment. 

B. Police Division Department employees, upon retirement or resignation after at least four 

(4)fifteen (15) years of service, are eligible to receive free their badge mounted on a plaque. 

B.C. Public Safety Department employees, upon retirement or resignation after at least 

four (4) years of service, are eligible to purchase their fire helmet for $100. 

C.D. Tax consequences may occur with these service awards and are the sole 

responsibility of the employee. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 11/12/12, 6/1/15, 1/6/20, 5/6/24 

207

Item 29.



CFD 2351.243: Personnel Policy – Attendance and Punctuality CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 2 

  

 

CFD 2351: Personnel Policy – Attendance and Punctuality 
Approved March 1, 2019 May 6, 2024 by the Cedar Falls City Council 
Received and Filed August 21, 2023 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

POLICY: 

It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls to require employees to report for work punctually and to 

work all scheduled hours and any required overtime. Excessive tardiness and poor attendance 

disrupt work flow, productivity and service, and will not be tolerated. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. General Guidance. 

A. Supervisors will notify employees of their starting, ending, and break times. Employees are 

expected to be engaged in carrying out their duties during all scheduled work time and should 

be ready to begin working at their scheduled starting time.  

B. Employees should notify their immediate supervisor as far in advance as possible whenever 

they are unable to report for work, know they will be late, or must leave early. Such notification 

should include a reason for the absence and an indication of when the employee can be 

expected to report for work. If the supervisor is unavailable, notification must be made to the 

Division Manager or Department Director. If the employee is unable to notify the supervisor, 

Division Manager or Department Director, then employees shall contact the Personnel 

Specialist. Voice mail messages and emails are initially acceptable when personal contact 

cannot be made with a Supervisor, Division Manager, Department Director or Personnel 

Specialist. However, employees must also continue to contact supervisors, managers and 

directors until the employee personally speaks to someone. All notifications shall be made 

by the employee, unless an emergency prevents personal notification. Employees are 

required to provide a telephone number where they can be reached when absent from work. 

C. Employees are to be compensated during authorized absences in accordance with the 

policies contained in this Personnel Policy Manual. Nonexempt employees (those employees 

subject to the minimum wage and overtime requirements of the Fair Labor Standards Act) 

will not receive compensation for time missed because of tardiness or early departure if the 

time missed exceeds ten minutes after starting time or before quitting time. Failure to notify 

the City properly of any absence may result in loss of compensation during the absence and 

may be grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 

D. Employees who are delayed in reporting for work more than thirty minutes and who have not 

notified their supervisor of their expected tardiness may lose their right to work the balance 

of the work day. In addition, employees who report for work without proper equipment or in 

improper attire may not be permitted to work.  Employees who report for work in a condition 

considered unfit for work, whether for illness or any other reason, will not be allowed to work. 

In all of the above circumstances, employees will not be allowed to use benefit time off and 

the absence shall be unpaid. 

208

Item 30.



CFD 2351.243: Personnel Policy – Attendance and Punctuality CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 2 

  

 

E. Employees generally are expected to report for work during inclement weather conditions if 

the City does not declare an emergency closing. For the purpose of this policy, inclement 

weather includes but is not limited to: snow, ice, freezing rain, extreme cold and heat, and 

poor air quality. If the City does declare an emergency closure, employees shall not report to 

work, unless directed to do so by their Division Manager or Department Director. If employees 

have already reported to work when the emergency closure is declared, then employees 

shall receive pay for the hours worked prior to closure. Employees shall not receive pay for 

hours that had been scheduled but not worked due to the closure. Permission may be granted 

to employees by the Division Manager or Department Director to continue working after 

emergency closure as circumstances require. Nonexempt employees who are unable to 

report to work or wish to leave work early because of weather conditions may be granted an 

authorized unpaid absence or may be allowed to use earned benefit time. If the employee 

notifies their supervisor or other person designated by the Department Director no later than 

starting time of the particular workday, an earned and unused vacation day or floating holiday 

may be taken. Nonexempt employees who are late because of weather conditions will be 

given a chance to make up their missed time if work schedules and conditions permit. 

F. Employees will not be required or permitted to work any period of time before or after 

scheduled starting or quitting times for the purpose of making up time lost because of 

tardiness, unauthorized absence, authorized absence, or any other reason if the result will 

be that the full-time employee works more than forty hours during the workweek or the part-

time employee works more than their normal or designated workweek hours. 

G. Employees must report to their supervisor after being late or absent, give an explanation of 

the circumstances surrounding their tardiness or absence, and, when applicable, certify that 

they are fit to return to work.  

H. Employees must obtain permission from their supervisor in order to leave the City premises 

during working hours. This restriction does not apply to authorized unpaid lunch periods. 

I. Unauthorized or excessive absences or tardiness will result in disciplinary action, up to and 

including termination.  An absence is considered to be unauthorized if the employee has not 

followed proper notification procedures or the absence has not been properly approved.  

J. Employees who are absent from work for three consecutive days without giving proper notice 

to the City will be considered as having voluntarily quit. At that time, the City will formally note 

the termination and advise the employee of the action by certified mail to the employee's last 

known address.  

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 6/1/15, 3/1/19, 5/6/24  

209

Item 30.



CFD 2354.243: Personnel Policy – Leaves of Absence CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 14 

  

 

CFD 2354: Personnel Policy – Leaves of Absence 
Approved October 17, 2022 May 6, 2024 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

Received and Filed August 7, 2023 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

POLICY: 

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls to grant employees extended leaves of absence under 

certain circumstances. Except as stated below, employees will not receive compensation during a 

leave of absence.  

DEFINITIONS: 

  12- Month Period: Calculated as the “rolling” 12- month period measured backward from the 

date an employee uses any FMLA leave. 

 Spouse:  

o All individuals in legal marriages as defined or recognized in a state where the 

individual was married (“place of celebration”), and includes individuals in same-sex 

and common law marriages. A spouse also includes a husband or wife in a marriage 

that was validly entered into outside of the United States if it could have been entered 

into in at least one state. If both spouses work for the City, and are both eligible for 

FMLA leave, both spouses will be limited to a combined total of 12 weeks of FMLA 

leave in a 12- month period for anyone or all of the following reasons: birth of a child 

and bonding with the newborn child; placement of a child with the employee for 

adoption or foster care and bonding with newly-placed child; or to care for a parent 

with a serious health condition. This limitation does not apply in cases of leave to care 

for the serious health condition of the employee’s spouse or child, or because of the 

employee’s own serious health condition.  

o Eligible spouses who work for the same employer are also limited to a combined total 

of 26 workweeks of leave in a single 12-month period to care for a covered service 

member with a serious injury or illness (commonly referred to as “military caregiver 

leave”) if each spouse is a parent, spouse, son or daughter, or next of kin of the 

service member. When spouses take military caregiver leave as well as other FMLA 

leave in the same leave year, each spouse is subject to the combined limitations for 

the reasons for leave listed above. 

 Child: A person either under 18 years of age, or 18 years of age or older who is incapable of 
self-care because of a mental or physical disability. An employee’s “child” is one for whom 
the employee has day-to-day responsibility for care and includes a biological, adopted, foster, 
stepchild, a legal ward, or a child of a person standing in loco parentis. The age limitation 
does not apply to employees applying for a FMLA military related leave. 
 

 Serious Health Condition: An illness, injury, impairment or a physical or mental condition that 

involves: 

o conditions requiring an overnight stay in a hospital or other medical care facility; or 

210

Item 31.



CFD 2354.243: Personnel Policy – Leaves of Absence CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 14 

  

 

o conditions that incapacitate you or your family member (for example, unable to work 

or attend school) for more than three consecutive days and have ongoing medical 

treatment (either multiple appointments with a health care provider, or a single 

appointment and follow-up care such as prescription medication); or 

o chronic conditions that cause occasional periods when you or your family member 

are incapacitated and require treatment by a health care provider at least twice a 

year; or 

o pregnancy (including prenatal medical appointments, incapacity due to morning 

sickness, and medically required bed rest). 

PROCEDURES: 

1. Family and Medical Leave. The City will comply with the provisions of the federal Family and 

Medical Leave Act (hereinafter referred to as "FMLA") as described by U.S. Department of Labor 

requirements1.  

A. In accordance with FMLA, the City will grant unpaid family and medical leave to eligible 

employees for up to 12 weeks per 12- month period for any one or more of the following 

reasons: 

1). The birth of a child or placement of a child with the employee for adoption or foster care. 

Birth and bonding must be taken as a continuous block of leave unless the Director allows 

intermittent leave.  

2). To care for a spouse, child, or parent who has a serious health condition; or 

3). For a serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the essential 

functions of their job. 

4). For any qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that a spouse, son, daughter, or parent 

is a military member on covered active duty or call to covered active dutyactive-duty 

status. 

B. An eligible employee may also take up to 26 workweeks of leave during a "single 12-month 

period" to care for a covered service member with a serious injury or illness, when the 

employee is the spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin of the service member. The 

single 12-month period for leave to care for a covered service member (both current service 

members and veterans) with a serious injury or illness begins on the first day you take leave 

for this reason and ends 12 months later, regardless of the 12- month period established by 

your employer for other types of FMLA leave. Eligible employees are entitled to a combined 

total of 26 workweeks of leave for any FMLA-qualifying reason during the “single 12-month 

period.” (Up to 12 of the 26 weeks may be for an FMLA-qualifying reason other than to care 

                                                

1 Department of Labor: dol.gov/agencies/whd/fmla 

211

Item 31.



CFD 2354.243: Personnel Policy – Leaves of Absence CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 14 

  

 

for a covered service member.) 

C. FMLA Eligibility. To be eligible for FMLA leave, an employee must be employed by the City 

for at least 12 months and have worked at least 1,250 hours for the City over the 12- month 

period immediately preceding the leave. The 12 months of employment do not have to be 

consecutive. Employees applying for and granted a FMLA leave are required to meet 

notification and documentation requirements as outlined further in this policy. Failure to meet 

these requirements may result in the denial or revocation of FMLA leave. 

D. Intermittent or Reduced Leave: 

1). An employee may take leave intermittently (minimum of 15- minute increments) or on a 

reduced leave schedule when medically necessary to care for an immediate family 

member with a serious health condition or because of a serious health condition of the 

employee. “Medically necessary” means that there must be a medical need for the leave 

and the leave can best be accomplished through an intermittent or reduced leave 

schedule. The employee may be required to transfer temporarily to a position with 

equivalent pay and benefits that better accommodates recurring periods of leave. The 

employee must make a reasonable effort to schedule treatment(s) so as not to unduly 

disrupt the City’s operations. If an employee requests reduced or intermittent leave, once 

the intermittent or reduced leave has been completed, the employee must be transferred 

back to the same position that the employee held prior to taking the FMLA leave or to an 

equivalent position. An employee may take leave intermittently or on a reduced leave 

schedule for birth or placement for adoption or foster care of a child only with the 

Director’s approval. Leave due to qualifying exigencies may also be taken on an 

intermittent basis. 

E. Employee Notice Requirement: 

1). An employee is generally required to give thirty (30) days’ notice in the event of a 

foreseeable leave. When 30 days’ notice is not possible, the employee must provide 

notice as soon as practicable and generally must comply with the City’s normal call-in 

procedures. Employees must provide sufficient information for the employer to determine 

if the leave may qualify for FMLA protection and the anticipated timing and duration of 

the leave. Sufficient information may include that the employee is unable to perform job 

functions; the family member is unable to perform daily activities, the need for 

hospitalization or continuing treatment by a health care provider, or circumstances 

supporting the need for military family leave. Employees also must inform the employer 

if the requested leave is for a reason for FMLA leave that was previously taken or certified. 

Employees also may be required to provide a certification and periodic recertification 

supporting the need for leave.  

F. A “Leave of Absence Request” form should be obtained from the Human Resources Division, 

completed by the employee, signed by their supervisor and Department Director, and 

returned to the Human Resources Division for processing and forwarding of additional forms 

that may be required to complete as explained below.  

212

Item 31.



CFD 2354.243: Personnel Policy – Leaves of Absence CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 4 of 14 

  

 

G. Response to Employees: 

1). As a FMLA covered employer, the City will provide employees with a Notice of Eligibility 

and Rights & Responsibilities form within five business days of receiving a leave request 

or becoming aware of the need for FMLA leave.  

2). The City’s response will establish whether the employee is eligible for FMLA leave and 

will notify the employee of their rights and responsibilities under the FMLA.  

H. Certification and Designation. 

1). The City may require certification in support of the leave from a healthcare provider no 

later than fifteen (15) calendar days after applicable Department of Labor form(s) are 

provided for the employee’s own or a qualified family member’s serious health condition. 

Upon receipt, the employee will be notified by Human Resources whether the leave will 

be designated as FMLA leave and the amount of leave that will be deducted from the 

employee’s FMLA entitlement. Military related leave requests require completion of the 

applicable Department of Labor form available from and returned to Human Resources 

staff. 

2). For an employee’s own medical leave, the City may require a second or third opinion at 

the City’s expense as well as periodic reports on the employee’s status. 

3). If the employee has not returned medical certification within 15 calendar days as stated 

on the Notice of Eligibility and Rights & Responsibilities, the City is not aware of 

extenuating circumstances, and the City is unable to determine if the need for leave 

qualifies for FMLA, the City will notify the employee in writing that the FMLA leave request 

has been denied, using the Designation Notice. 

4). When an employee is on leave and information received by Human Resources deems it 

to meet FMLA criteria, the City shall designate the leave as FMLA without receiving a 

FMLA leave request from the employee and without requiring the completion of the 

applicable medical certification form. Where applicable, employees who are on any 

approved leave of absence, whether work related or not, who also qualify for FMLA leave 

shall be required to use FMLA leave concurrently with such other leave of absence. 

I. Return to Work Authorization 

1). A release to duty from the employee’s health care provider must be provided to the 

Human Resources Division prior to returning to work. If a fitness-for-duty appointment is 

deemed necessary by the City based on position duties, the employee will be asked to 

have a fitness-for-duty examination by a health care provider selected by the City, at the 

City’s expense.  

J. Effect on Benefits: 

1). Vacation, seniority and other benefits will continue to accrue during an unpaid leave 

unless such leave exceeds thirty (30) consecutive calendar days, in which case no 

213

Item 31.



CFD 2354.243: Personnel Policy – Leaves of Absence CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 5 of 14 

  

 

benefits shall accrue during the entire leave. Accrual of benefits for employees on 

intermittent leave or on a reduced work schedule may be calculated on a pro-rata basis 

in proportion to their work schedule. No proration of benefit accruals shall occur if 

employees maintain full-time work status (at least 32 hours per week) or the equivalent 

of full-time work status is covered with the use of earned benefits.  

2). Continuation of Health Insurance. 

a. An employee on FMLA leave may remain a participant in the City’s health insurance 

plan throughout the duration of the leave, as if actively employed. The employee will 

be required to pay the same cost of coverage as if actively at work. Employee 

contributions will be required either through payroll deduction or by direct payment to 

the City. The employee will be informed of the amount and method of payment at the 

beginning of the leave. Loss of insurance coverage may result if the premium amount 

is more than 30 days late. The City will provide written notice to the employee that 

the payment has not been received and allow at least 15 days after the date of the 

letter before coverage stops. If the employee misses a premium payment and the City 

pays the employee’s contribution, the employee will be required to reimburse the City 

for the delinquent payment upon return from the leave. If an employee does not return 

to work, the City may require reimbursement for the share of the premiums it paid 

during the FMLA leave.  

3). Return to Work: 

a. An employee returning from FMLA leave is entitled to return to the position held when 

the leave began, if that position is vacant. If the position is not vacant, the employee 

must be returned to an equivalent position with equivalent benefits, pay and other 

conditions. Employees are required to provide at least 72 hours’ advance notice of 

their return to work after such leave, unless this requirement is waived by the 

employee’s supervisor and by the Human Resources Division. 

2. Other Leaves of Absences:  

A. Employees generally are eligible for leaves of absence if they have completed at least 12 

months of service, or as specified by law.  

B. The granting and duration of each leave of absence and the compensation received by the 

employee, if any, during the leave of absence will be determined by the City in conjunction 

with applicable federal and state law and in accordance with the City’s best interest.  

C. Requests for a leave of absence or any extension of a leave shall generally be submitted in 

writing to the employee's Department Director 30 days prior to commencement of the leave 

period, or as soon as is practicable. The final decision concerning the request will be made 

by the Department Director, after consultation with the Human Resources Division. All 

employees on approved leave are expected to report any change of status in their need for 

a leave or their intention to return to work to their Department Director. 

D. The following types of leaves will be considered: 

214

Item 31.



CFD 2354.243: Personnel Policy – Leaves of Absence CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 6 of 14 

  

 

1). Extended Family and Medical Leave (Non-FMLA).  

a. In cases where an employee is not eligible for FMLA leave and the employee’s leave 

duration would typically qualify for FMLA, the employee may be granted a leave of 

absence.  

b. Approval for such leave must be granted by the Department Director or by the City’s 

Risk Management Committee if the leave exceeds two (2) consecutive weeks. The 

length of any such leave will be governed by individual circumstances, but in most 

cases such extended leave should not exceed 12 weeks in any 12- month period. At 

least 72 hours’ notice is required in advance of the employee’s return to work date, 

unless this requirement is waived by the employee’s Department Director and by the 

Human Resources Division. 

2). Pregnancy not covered under FMLA: Pregnant employees who are not eligible for FMLA 

leave shall be granted a leave of absence for the period that the employee is disabled 

because of the pregnancy, childbirth or other related medical conditions, or for eight 

weeks as provided by Iowa law, whichever is less.  

3). Other sick leave not covered under FMLA: See CFD 2356: Sick Leave. 

4). Personal Leave of Absence: Employees may be granted a leave of absence to attend to 

personal matters in cases in which the City determines that an extended period of time 

away from the job will be in the best interests of the employee and the City. 

5). Military Leave of Absence: See CFD 2357: Military Leave. 

6). Educational Leave of Absence: Employees who want to continue their education in 

preparation for added responsibilities with the City may be granted an educational leave 

of absence, if in accordance with the City’s best interest and at the discretion of the 

employee’s Department Director. 

7). Public Office Leave of Absence: Employees who are candidates for municipal, county, 

state, or federal office shall be granted leave upon request for the period from 30 days or 

less prior to a contested primary, special or general election, until the day after the 

election. Employees who are elected or appointed to public office shall be granted leave 

for such public office upon request. Public office leaves of absence shall be without pay. 

8). Bereavement Leave: Full-time and permanent part-time employees may be allowed up 

to five (5) working days absence with pay in case of the death of a member of the 

employee’s immediate family (see CFD 2100: Introduction for immediate family 

definition).  

a. For the purpose of this policy "immediate family" includes the employee's spouse 

(including domestic partner or common law spouse), siblings (including step), parents 

(including step, foster, legal guardian, and in-laws), children (including step, foster, 

ward and in-laws), and any person residing in the employee's household of a non-

platonic relationship. 

215

Item 31.



CFD 2354.243: Personnel Policy – Leaves of Absence CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 7 of 14 

  

 

b.a. In the event of the death of a brother-in-law, sister-in-law, grandparent or 

grandchild of the employee or the employee’s spouse, the employee is allowed up to 

three (3) working days absence with pay. 

c.b. Bereavement leave absences are intended to include all travel. However, in 

circumstances involving unusually long traveling distances, department directors may 

extend bereavement absences up to three (3) additional days with pay. 

c. Bereavement leave shall not be taken in less than one day hour increments. 

d. Bereavement leave must be completed within 60 days after the date on which the 

employee receives notice of the bereavement event unless otherwise arranged with 

and approved by Department Director, Human Resources Division and the City 

Administrator.  

e. For permanent part-time employees, a regular scheduled day off work may not be 

used in combination with bereavement leave to extend consecutive days off to more 

than five (5) days. 

f. Non-union public safety management shift employees shall be allowed bereavement 

leave as set forth in this policy regardless of the shift to which they are assigned. For 

purposes of this policy for such employees, the term “working days” means one 

calendar day regardless of the number of hours scheduled. Transfer of such 

employees while on bereavement leave shall not affect entitlement to such leave. For 

purposes of this policy the term “non-union public safety management shift 

employees” includes battalion chiefs, fire captains, police captains, police lieutenants, 

public safety supervisor captains and public safety supervisor lieutenants.  

9). Workers’ Compensation: Employees who are injured in the course of their employment 

with the City shall receive benefits and leave in accordance with Iowa Code Chapter 85. 

10).Police/Fire Disability Leave: Eligible public safety department personnel may be granted 

leave for duty related conditions in accordance with Iowa Code Chapter 411. 

E. Employees who are on an approved leave of absence may not perform work for any other 

employer during that leave, except when the leave is for military, public service, or otherwise 

as permitted by law.  

3. Use of paid benefit time and other benefits while on leave. 

A. Every employee on a sick leave, Non-FMLA leave, or FMLA leave who is not maintaining full-

time work status or who is not covering absences with earned benefit time up to at least full-

time work status equivalent will be required to use all floating holidays, vacation, 

compensatory time, sick leave/casual days, and sick days while on leave.  

B. Earned benefit time shall be used until exhausted. Use of accrued, but unearned vacation 

may then be used when special circumstances warrant and as approved (see also CFD 2256: 

Vacations). If all benefit time has been exhausted, and the employee is not covered by FMLA, 

216

Item 31.



CFD 2354.243: Personnel Policy – Leaves of Absence CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 8 of 14 

  

 

the employee may be subject to termination of employment. 

C. Emergency response exception:  

1). Employees who require a medical absence for an injury arising out of service as a 

volunteer fire fighter or emergency medical responder during a period of an emergency 

response may choose to take the medical leave as unpaid up to a maximum of 12 weeks; 

and shall not be required to use accrued paid leave (sick, vacation or comp time) for 

medical absence as a result of the injury.  

2). After 12 weeks of unpaid leave the employee shall be required to take paid benefit time 

as defined in this section.  

3). The employee shall still be required to follow all other policies and rules of the City related 

to medical leave and FMLA leave.  

D. Employees covered by the City’s long- term disability or workers’ compensation insurance 

may supplement their pay up to 100% of their normal wages.  

E. Every employee on a personal or educational leave of absence will be required to use all 

compensatory time, floating holidays and vacation days while on leave. Earned benefit time 

shall be used until exhausted prior to the use of accrued, but unearned vacation. 

F. Employees who are candidates for public office must use earned paid benefit time during the 

public service leave of absence. Employees who are elected or appointed to a position 

entitling them to a public service leave of absence may, if they choose, use earned paid 

benefit time during the leave. If earned paid benefit time is exhausted during a public office 

leave of absence, or if eligible employees choose not to use paid benefit time, the leave or 

remainder of the leave shall be without pay.  

G. The City will provide health insurance and other benefits to employees on leave as required 

by law. No paid benefit time shall accrue during periods of unpaid leave, unless otherwise 

specified by union contract. 

H. Holidays (named and floating holidays) will be designated as FMLA leave when a holiday 

falls during a week in which an employee is taking the full week of FMLA leave or in cases 

when an employee takes less than a full week but they are expected or were scheduled to 

work the holiday.  

I. Policies related to required use and carry over of paid benefit time shall apply when 

employees are on leaves of absence. 

J. Availability of paid benefit time is no guarantee of continued employment.  

4. Return from Leave of Absence.  

A. Employees returning from a leave of absence will be reinstated to their same job or to an 

equivalent job with equivalent status and pay, if required by law. However, in order to be 

217

Item 31.



CFD 2354.243: Personnel Policy – Leaves of Absence CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 9 of 14 

  

 

reinstated to their same job or equivalent job, employees must return to work within 12 weeks 

after the expiration of an approved sick leave or FMLA leave, or for employees who do not 

qualify for FMLA leave, within 12 weeks of their first absence.  

B. This time may be extended upon recommendation of the Department Director and approval 

by the City Administrator for good cause, such as availability of additional earned sick leave 

benefit time. Employees who have taken personal, educational or public service leave cannot 

be guaranteed employment upon expiration of leave.  

C. Employees returning from a sick leave may be required to provide certification of their ability 

to perform the essential functions of their job, with or without reasonable accommodation and 

may be required to complete a fitness-for-duty examination or evaluation with the City’s 

medical provider.  

D. Employees are required to provide at least 72 hours advance notice of their return to work 

after such leaves, unless this requirement is waived by the employee’s supervisor and by the 

Human Resources Division.  

E. Employees returning from a military leave must also comply with all of the reinstatement 

requirements specified by federal law.  

F. If the same job or one of equivalent status and pay is not available as a result of a reduction 

in force, the employee will be treated in the same manner as though s/he they were not on 

leave at the time of the reduction in force. 

5. Special Leave of Absence for Arrest and Incarceration.  

A. Employees who are unable to report for work because of arrest and incarceration will be 

placed on a special personal leave of absence. If the employee is unable to secure bail, the 

leave of absence will continue until final disposition of the charges.  

B. If the employee is freed on bail, a decision whether to allow the resumption of active 

employment pending disposition of the charges will be made by the employee's Department 

Director and the Director of Finance & Business Operations. They will determine whether 

reinstatement would be consistent with the City's needs and requirements. Likewise, when 

an employee is convicted of a crime, the employee's Department Director and the Director 

of Finance & Business Operations will determine if it is in the best interests of the City to 

allow resumption to active employment or termination. 

6. Voluntary Quit. If an employee fails to return to work at the conclusion of an approved leave of 

absence, including any extension of the leave, the employee will be considered to have 

voluntarily terminated employment. 

7. Resource. Department of Labor: https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/fmla 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 1/1/05, 7/1/06, 1/1/09, 4/09, 1/23/12, 2/13/12, 11/12/12, 11/25/13, 6/1/15, 

3/1/19, 1/6/20, 7/6/20, 11/2/20, 3/7/22, 10/17/22, 5/6/24  

218

Item 31.



CFD 2354.243: Personnel Policy – Leaves of Absence CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 10 of 14 

  

 

APPLICATION FOR FAMILY OR MEDICAL LEAVE 

 

Name:____________________________________Dept/Div:____________________________ 

Current Address: ________________________________________________________________ 

Home Phone: ___________________________ Cell Phone:______________________________ 

Date of Anticipated Leave: _______________________________________________________ 

Expected Date of Return to Work: __________________________________________________ 

General Reason for Leave (Serious Health Condition for Self, Serious Health Condition for Family 

Member, Birth of Child, Placement of a Child, Exigency, etc.): 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

A leave request based upon an employee's own serious health condition or the serious health 

condition of the employee's spouse, child or parent must be accompanied by a verifying medical 

certification from a physician. 

By signing below, employee acknowledges that failure to return to work at the end of the leave period 

may be treated as a resignation unless an extension has been approved in writing by the City. 

Employee further acknowledges that restoration to employment is subject to the following conditions: 

1. As a condition of restoration, an employee returning from leave due to an employee’s 

own serious health condition, must provide written certification from their health care 

provider, certifying the ability to perform the essential functions of their job, with or without a 

reasonable accommodation, and may be required to complete a fitness-for-duty evaluation with the 

City’s physician, prior to the employee’s return to work.     

2. Every attempt will be made to restore an employee returning from leave to their original 

position.  If the employee's original position is unavailable, the employee will be placed in an 

equivalent position with equivalent pay and benefits. 

3. An employee returning from family and medical leave shall not be entitled to the accrual of 

any seniority or employment benefits during the unpaid period of leave.  Seniority accrues in 

accordance with applicable collective bargaining agreements and Personnel Policies. 

 

 

 

219

Item 31.



CFD 2354.243: Personnel Policy – Leaves of Absence CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 11 of 14 

  

 

4. An employee returning from leave must provide at least 72 hours advance notice of the 

employee’s return to work date, unless this requirement is waived by the employee’s supervisor and 

by the Financial Services Division. 

 

Employee's Signature:___________________________________________ Date: ____________ 

 

APPROVED BY:      

Supervisor: _____________________________________________________Date:___________ 

Department Director: _____________________________________________Date:___________ 

 

 

 

DETAILED EXPLANATION FOR LEAVE 

 

Leave Explanation: _____________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Employee's Signature:_____________________________________________ Date: __________ 

 

APPROVED BY:      

Human Resources ManagerDirector of Finance & Business 

Operations:_____________________________ Date:__________ 

 

 

 

220

Item 31.



CFD 2354.243: Personnel Policy – Leaves of Absence CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 12 of 14 

  

 

APPLICATION FOR FAMILY OR MEDICAL LEAVE (NON-FMLA) 

 

Name:____________________________________Dept/Div:____________________________ 

Current Address: ________________________________________________________________ 

Home Phone:___________________________  Cell Phone:______________________________ 

Date of Anticipated Leave: _______________________________________________________ 

Expected Date of Return to Work: __________________________________________________ 

General Reason for Leave (Serious Health Condition for Self, Serious Health Condition for Family 

Member, Birth of Child, Placement of a Child, Exigency, etc.): 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

A leave request based upon an employee's own serious health condition or the serious health 

condition of the employee's spouse, child or parent must be accompanied by a verifying medical 

certification from a physician. 

By signing below, employee acknowledges that failure to return to work at the end of the leave period 

may be treated as a resignation unless an extension has been approved in writing by the City. 

Employee further acknowledges that restoration to employment is subject to the following conditions: 

1. As a condition of restoration, an employee returning from leave due to an employee’s 

own serious health condition, must provide written certification from their health care 

provider, certifying the ability to perform the essential functions of their job, with or without a 

reasonable accommodation, and may be required to complete a fitness-for-duty evaluation with the 

City’s physician, prior to the employee’s return to work.     

2. An employee returning from leave must provide at least 72 hours advance notice of the 

employee’s return to work date, unless this requirement is waived by the employee’s supervisor and 

by the Financial Services Division. 

 

Employee's Signature:___________________________________________Date: ____________ 

 

 

APPROVED BY:      

221

Item 31.



CFD 2354.243: Personnel Policy – Leaves of Absence CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 13 of 14 

  

 

Supervisor: _____________________________________________________Date:___________ 

Department Director: _____________________________________________Date:___________ 

 

 

 

DETAILED EXPLANATION FOR LEAVE 

 

Leave Explanation:_____________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Employee's Signature: ____________________________________________ Date: __________ 

 

APPROVED BY:      

Human Resources ManagerDirector of Finance & Business Operations: 

____________________________ Date:______ ____ 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

222

Item 31.



CFD 2354.243: Personnel Policy – Leaves of Absence CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 14 of 14 

  

 

APPLICATION FOR EXTENDED LEAVE (OTHER) 

 

Name:____________________________________Dept/Div:___________________________ 

Current Address: _______________________________________________________________ 

Home Phone: ____________________________  Cell Phone:____________________________ 

Date of Anticipated Leave: _______________________________________________________ 

Expected Date of Return to Work (Maximum 12 weeks): _______________________________ 

Reason for Leave (Explain):_______________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

NOTE:  For leaves of absence due to Personal, Military, Educational or Public Service.  An employee 

returning from leave must provide at least 72 hours advance notice of the employee’s return to work 

date, unless this requirement is waived by the employee’s supervisor and by the Financial Services 

Division.  (See Personnel Policy 704: Leave of Absence) 

By signing below, employee acknowledges that failure to return to work at the end of the leave period 

may be treated as a resignation unless an extension has been approved in writing by the City. 

 

Employee's Signature: ________________________________________Date: ______  ________ 

 

APPROVED BY: 

Supervisor:                                                                                                    Date: ____________   _ 

Department Director:                                                                                     Date: ____    ________ 

Human Resources ManagerDirector of Finance & Business Operations:                                                

  Date: _ __   ____ _____ 

Risk Management:                                                                                        Date: _ __   ____ _____ 

 

223

Item 31.



CFD 2356.243: Personnel Policy – Sick Leave CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 4 

  

 

CFD 2356: Personnel Policy – Sick Leave 
Approved July 6, 2020 May6, 2024 by the Cedar Falls City Council 
Received and Filed August 7, 2023 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

POLICY: 

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls to grant its full-time employees and part-time non-union 

employees (excluding seasonal and special purpose) paid sick leave during times of incapacitation 

for work or for the birth, adoption or foster placement of a child in accordance with the procedures 

below. personal illness, personal injury, appointments with members of the medical profession, and 

an illness or injury of a member of the immediate family. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. Sick Leave Credited.  

A. Sick leave shall be earned by the employee as follows: 

1). After first seven (7) days of employment-- One (1) day 

2). After thirty (30) days of employment-- One (1) additional day 

3). After each month of employment-- One (1) additional day 

B. At the end of the first year, thirteen (13) days shall have been earned. After the first year of 

employment, an additional one (1) day shall be earned for each additional month of 

employment. There is no limit on the accumulation of sick leave. Upon beginning 

employment, the employee shall be credited with the first year’s sick leave of thirteen (13) 

days. If employment is terminated during the first year, any sick leave used above the amount 

earned shall be deducted from the employee’s last paycheck. 

C. Part-time, non-union employees’ sick leave benefits will be paid on a pro rata basis based 

upon the number of hours actually worked in the prior year computed as of their anniversary 

date. Part-time, non-union employees’ accrual of sick leave benefits will accrue on an annual 

basis rather than a monthly basis. 

2. Use of Sick Leave.  

A. Sick leave shall be used only for personal illness, personal injury, medical appointments with 

members of the medical profession, and an illness or injury of a member of the immediate 

family, which includes the following: the spouse, children, grandchildren, brothers, sisters, 

parents and grandparents of both the employee and spouse. For “immediate family” definition 

refer to CFD 2100: Introductions. 

B. Sick leave may also be taken for the birth, adoption or foster placement of a child as provided 

for in the federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA).  

C. In emergency situations, sick leave may be used for other purposes if approved in advance 

224

Item 32.



CFD 2356.243: Personnel Policy – Sick Leave CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 4 

  

 

by the City Administrator.  

3. Sick Leave/Benefit Notification.  

A. The employee will receive straight time for each work day that said employee is absent while 

on sick leave to the extent of earned sick leave; but not more sick benefit per week than 

employee’s pay for a normal work week.  

B. Sick leave is in no way to be construed as additional vacation time.  

C. Sick leave shall not be granted unless the supervisor or other persons as established by each 

department has been notified by not later than the starting time of the particular workday. 

Such notification should include a reason for the absence and an indication of when the 

employee is expected to return to work.  

D. If the supervisor is unavailable, the employee must contact the Division Manager or 

Department Director. If the employee is unable to notify the supervisor, Division Manager or 

Department Director, then the employee should contact the Human Resources 

DivisionPersonnel Specialist.  

E. Voice mail messages, text messages and emails are initially acceptable when personal 

contact cannot be made with a supervisor, Division Manager, Department Director, or Human 

Resources DivisionPersonnel Specialist, but the employee must continue to contact 

supervisors, managers and directors until the employee personally speaks to someone.  

F. Employees are required to personally notify unless emergency prevents personal notification.  

G. Employees are required to provide a telephone number where they can be reached when 

absent from work. 

4. Non-FMLA Extended Family and Medical Leave.  

A. An employee who is sick or injured and unable to work, or who has an immediate family 

member who is sick or injured and requires the care of the employee, or in the event of the 

birth of a child or placement with the employee of a child for adoption or foster care, which 

will result in absence from work for two consecutive weeks or more, may be granted a leave 

of absence if the employee does not qualify for FMLA leave, if work conditions and other 

circumstances permit.  

B. If the need for leave is foreseeable, the employee is required to provide at least thirty (30) 

days advance notice to the employee’s supervisor of the need for leave.  

C. When such long term non-FMLA leave is unforeseeable, the employee must provide notice 

as soon as practicable and generally must comply with the City’s normal call-in procedures 

until extended leave is granted.  

D. Approval for such leave must be granted by management and by the City’s Risk Management 

225

Item 32.



CFD 2356.243: Personnel Policy – Sick Leave CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 4 

  

 

Committee.  

E. An immediate family member for purposes of this NON-FMLA leavepolicy means spouse, 

child or parent of the employee as defined under the Family and Medical Leave Act.  

F. Except for the birth of a child or placement with the employee of a child for adoption or foster 

care, an employee on extended family or medical leave shall provide as soon as practicable 

a certification from a health care provider stating that the condition prevents the employee 

from performing the essential functions of the employee’s job, or if applicable, supporting the 

need for leave to care for the immediate family member.  

G. The length of any such leave will be governed by individual circumstances, but in no event 

shall such extended leave exceed twelve weeks in any twelve- month “rolling” period.  

H. At least 72 hours’ notice is required in advance of the employee’s return to work date, unless 

this requirement is waived by the employee’s supervisor and by the Financial Services 

Division. 

5. Vacation and Sick Leave. If an employee is scheduled for vacation and becomes ill or injured 

to the extent they must seek medical attention, the employee may be allowed to switch vacation 

leave to sick leave, subject to Department Director approval and written documentation from a 

member of the medical profession. 

6. Use of Paid Benefits After Sick Leave is Exhausted. If any earned paid benefit time remains 

after sick leave benefits have been exhausted, such earned paid benefit time shall then be used 

until exhausted. Accrued but unearned vacation may then be used when special circumstances 

warrant and as approved (see also CFD 2256: Vacations). 

7. Substantiation of Sick Leave. At the discretion of the department head, sick leave covering a 

period in excess of two (2) working days must be substantiated by a written statement from a 

member of the medical profession, stating the nature of the sickness or injury, and that the 

employee is again physically able to perform their duties. Substantiation of birth, adoption or 

foster placement of a child may also be required. (see also CFD 2351: Attendance and 

Punctuality; CFD 2354: Leaves of Absence; and CFD 2105: Medical Procedures.) 

8. Injury On-The-Job and Return to Work. Any employee who is injured on the job will not be 

allowed to return to work until the Legal ServicesHuman Resources Division is presented with a 

written statement from a member of the medical profession stating that the employee is able to 

perform the essential functions of the job as the same may be temporarily modified. All accidents 

and injuries must be reported to the employee’s supervisor immediately. 

9. Other Injuries/Illnesses and Return to Work. Employees who have had a non-occupational 

illness or injury will not be allowed to return to work unless the Human ResourcesLegal Services 

Division is presented with a written statement from a member of the medical profession stating 

that the employee is able to perform the essential functions of the job as the same may be 

temporarily modified, depending upon the needs of the position and the nature and extent of any 

activity restrictions. Any temporary assignments under this policy must have the prior approval 

226

Item 32.



CFD 2356.243: Personnel Policy – Sick Leave CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 4 of 4 

  

 

of the City’s Risk Management Committee Department Director, Human Resources Division, and 

City Administrator. Employees may be required to complete a fitness for duty exam by the City’s 

health care provider before returning to work in any capacity. (See also CFD 2354: Leaves of 

Absence). 

10. Abuse of Sick Leave. Employees who abuse sick leave shall be subject to discipline, up to and 

including termination. 

11. Sick Leave Accumulation and Accrual. No lump sum payment may be made for unused sick 

leave, except as provided in CFD 2159: Severance Pay, to qualifying employees. 

12. Non-Union Public Safety Personnel.  

A. Non-union public safety management shift employees assigned to a 6-3 shift shall accrue 

and earn sick leave as follows: 8.25 hours for each month of employment on the shift.  

B. Non-union public safety management shift employees assigned to a 24 hour shift shall accrue 

and earn sick leave as follows: 24 hours for each month of employment on the shift.  

C. Non-union public safety shift management employees assigned to non-shift shall accrue and 

earn sick leave as follows: 8 hours for each month of employment on the non-shift.  

D. Sick leave accrual and earning is calculated or recalculated at the time of shift assignment 

and only completed months of employment are included in such calculation or recalculation.  

E. For purposes of this policy the term “non-union public safety management shift employees” 

includes battalion chiefs, fire captains, police captains, police lieutenants, public safety 

supervisor captains and public safety supervisor lieutenants.  

F. Use of sick leave shall be converted to hours regardless of the police or fire shift to which the 

non-union public safety management shift employees are assigned. Use of sick leave shall 

be as provided in this policy. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 3/22/04, 1/1/05, 7/1/06, 6/1/15, 3/1/19, 1/6/20, 7/6/20, 5/6/24  

227

Item 32.



CFD 2401.243:  Personnel Policy – Employee Behavior CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 4 

  

 

CFD 2401: Personnel Policy – Employee Behavior 
Approved January 16, 2017 May 6, 2024 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

Received and Filed August 7, 2023 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

POLICY: 

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls that certain rules and regulations regarding employee 

behavior are necessary for the efficient operation of the City and for the benefit and safety of all 

employees.  Employees are expected to accept certain responsibilities in matters of personal 

conduct and exhibit a high degree of personal integrity, honesty, and truthfulness at all times.  

Conduct (regardless of whether it is specifically listed below) that interferes with operations, that 

discredits the City, or that is offensive to or viewed as unfavorable by the public or co-workers will 

not be tolerated. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. Expected Employee Behavior. Employees are expected at all times to conduct themselves in 

a positive manner so as to promote the best interests of the City.  Such conduct includes, but is 

not limited to: 

A. Reporting to work punctually as scheduled and being at the proper work station, ready for 

work, at the assigned starting time. 

B. Giving proper advance notice whenever unable to work or report on time; 

C. Complying with all City safety and security regulations; 

D. Smoking only at times and in places not prohibited by law or City rules; 

E. Wearing clothing appropriate for the work being performed; 

F.E. Eating meals only in nonpublic areas and during times which does not interfere 

with serving the public;during meal periods and only in designated eating areas; 

G.F. Maintaining cleanliness and order in the workplace and work areas; 

H.G. Treating all citizens, customers, visitors, suppliers and coworkers in a courteous, 

professional and helpful manner; and demonstrating a considerate, friendly and constructive 

attitude; 

I.H. Refraining from behavior or conduct deemed offensive or undesirable, or which is contrary 

to the City's best interest; 

J.I. Performing assigned tasks efficiently and in accord with established quality standards; 

K.J.Reporting to management suspicious, unethical, or illegal conduct by co-workers, customers, 

or suppliers; 

228

Item 33.



CFD 2401.243:  Personnel Policy – Employee Behavior CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 4 

  

 

L.K.Reporting to management any threatening or potentially violent behavior by coworkers, 

citizens, customers, visitors or suppliers;  

M.L.Cooperating with City investigations. 

N.M.Being honest and truthful in all statements made to other City employees, suppliers, 

customers, and general public. 

O.N.Following all policies and procedures adopted by the City. 

2. Prohibited Employee Behavior. The following conduct is prohibited and may subject the 

individual involved to disciplinary action, up to and including termination: 

A. The reporting to work under the influence of alcoholic beverages and/or illegal drugs and 

narcotics or the use, sale, dispensing, or possession of alcoholic beverages and/or illegal 

drugs and narcotics on City premises, except for police officers when possession is part of 

their assigned duties; 

B. The use of profanity or abusive language; 

C. The possession of explosives, firearms or other weapons on City property, except police 

officers in the course of their duties; 

D. Insubordination or the refusal by an employee to follow management's instructions 

concerning job related matters; 

E. Fighting or assault on other City employees, customers, citizens, suppliers or any other 

person on City premises; 

F. Theft, destruction, defacement, or misuse of City property or property of an employee, citizen, 

supplier or customer; 

G. Gambling on City property; 

H. Falsifying, altering, misuse or misrepresentation of any City record or report, such as an 

application for employment, a medical report, a work record, a time record, an expense 

account, an absence report, and receiving records; 

I. Threatening or intimidating City employees, customers, citizens, suppliers, or any other 

person on City property; 

J. Smoking where prohibited by law or City rules; 

J.K. Bullying, referring to repeated, unreasonable actions of an individual (or a group) directed 

towards an individual (or a group), which are intended to intimidate, degrade, humiliate or 

undermine; or which create a risk to the health or safety of the individual(s).  

K.L.Horseplay, pranks, or practical jokes; 

229

Item 33.



CFD 2401.243:  Personnel Policy – Employee Behavior CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 4 

  

 

L.M.Unauthorized sleeping on the job; 

M.N.Failure to wear assigned safety equipment or failure to abide by safety rules and policies; 

N.O.Recklessness or gross negligence resulting in an accident or the threat of a serious 

accident; 

O. Improper attire, hygiene or inappropriate personal appearance; 

P. Engaging in any form of sexual or other harassment; 

Q.P.Violation of City policies on solicitation or distribution;  

R.Q.Improper disclosure of confidential information; 

S.R.Making false, inaccurate, or misleading statements or misrepresentations about another City 

employee, elected or appointed public official, citizen, customer, City operation, practice, 

policy, or other matters; 

T.S.Misuse and/or abuse of sick leave; 

U.T.Making a false claim against the City, including but not limited to, property loss claims and 

workers compensation claims. 

V.U.Violation of City policies in CFD 2406: Technology Resource Acceptable Use. 

W.V.Violation of any other City policies not specifically addressed above. 

3. Additional Considerations.  

A. Any off-duty conduct including, but not limited to, being arrested for operating a motor vehicle 

while intoxicated, that jeopardizes an employee’s ability to perform essential job duties will 

subject the employee to disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 

B. The examples in Section 2 above, are illustrative of the type of behavior that will not be 

permitted but are not intended to be an all-inclusive listing.  Any violation of the City's policies 

or any conduct considered inappropriate or unsatisfactory, at management's discretion, will 

subject the employee to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  Questions about 

this policy should be directed to the City AttorneyHuman Resources Division. 

B.C.The policy set forth above shall also serve as a guideline for the conduct of elected and 

appointed officials.  

C. Employees required to wear city designated uniforms for employment, or those wearing 

clothing with the City logo upon it, shall only wear the designated uniform or clothing while 

on duty during working hours.  Employees may wear uniforms for special events as approved 

by the Department Director.  

230

Item 33.



CFD 2401.243:  Personnel Policy – Employee Behavior CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 4 of 4 

  

 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 1/23/12, 11/12/12, 6/1/15, 1/16/17, 5/6/24  

231

Item 33.



CFD 2402.243: Personnel Policy – Employee Personal Appearance CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 2 

  

 

CFD 2402: Personnel Policy – Employee Personal Appearance 
Approved March 1, 2019 May 6, 2024 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

Received and Filed August 7, 2023 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

POLICY: 

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls that each employee's dress, grooming, and personal hygiene 

should be appropriate to the work situation. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. General Guidelines. 

A. Employees are expected at all times to present a professional, business like image to 

customers, prospects, and the public. Favorable personal appearance, like proper 

maintenance of work areas, is an ongoing requirement of employment with the City. Radical 

departures from conventional dress or personal grooming and hygiene standards are not 

permitted. 

B. Any employees who have regular contact with the public must comply with the following 

personal appearance standards: 

1). Employees are expected to dress in a manner that is appropriate for the work being 

performed and normally acceptable in similar business establishments. Clothing must be 

clean, pressed and wrinkle-free, not excessively worn or faded and without holes or 

frayed areas. The unauthorized wearing of suggestive attire or of dungarees, shorts, T 

shirts and similar items of casual attire is not permitted, as they do not present a 

businesslike appearance. Clothing should not have inappropriate advertising or slogans, 

as determined by the Division Manager or Department Director. Jeans that are not ripped, 

tattered or worn-out and sandals may be worn on occasion with approval of Division 

Manager or Department Director. 

2). Hair, sideburns, moustaches, and beards should be clean, combed, and neatly trimmed 

or arranged, and well-kept. Shaggy, unkempt hair is not permissible regardless of length. 

3). Sideburns, moustaches, and beards should be neatly trimmed. 

4).3). Tattoos and body piercings (other than earrings) should not be visible if unsafe, 

disruptive, or otherwise inappropriate. If there is a complaint filed by an employee or a 

member of the public,. tThe complaint must be investigated by the employee’s supervisor 

and Department Director and result in a “founded” conclusion. A “founded” conclusion is 

one in which it is determined that the tattoo or body piercings are unsafe, disruptive, 

offensive or otherwise inappropriate when considering the circumstances, job duties and 

work environment. 

C. The personal appearance of employees who do not regularly meet the public is to be 

governed by the requirements of safety, comfort, and consideration for co-workers, but 

232

Item 34.



CFD 2402.243: Personnel Policy – Employee Personal Appearance CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 2 

  

 

should still be as neat and business like as working conditions permit. 

D. All employees are expected to maintain a basic and proper level of hygiene, regardless of 

position within the City. Excessive use of perfume, cologne, after shave, lotion, hair spray or 

other similar products should be avoided in consideration of other employees and the public. 

E. Certain employees may be required to meet special dress, grooming, and/or hygiene 

standards depending on the nature of their job. 

E.F. Employees required to wear city-designated uniforms for employment, or those 

wearing clothing with the City logo upon it, shall only wear the designated uniform or clothing 

while on duty during working hours. Employees may wear uniforms for special events as 

approved by the Department Director.  

F.G. Specific Departmental procedures and policies may be applicable. Division 

Managers and Department Directors are responsible for enforcing the guidelines in their 

department and will have the authority to make judgment calls for inappropriate dress. Any 

employee who does not meet the standards of this policy will be required to take corrective 

action, which may include leaving the premises and/or disciplinary action. Any work time 

missed because of failure to comply with this policy will not be compensated, and repeated 

violations of this policy will be cause for disciplinary action. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 3/1/19, 5/6/24  

233

Item 34.



CFD 2405.243: Personnel Policy – Mobile Device Allowance CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 4 

  

 

CFD 2405: Personnel Policy – Mobile Device Allowance 
Approved January 6, 2020 May 6, 2024 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

Received and Filed August 7, 2023 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

POLICY: 

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls to provide for the use of cellular telephones and other mobile 

devices by certain employees and elected officials. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. Cell Phones and Other Mobile Devices. 

A. This policy applies to cellular telephones and other mobile electronic devices capable of voice 

and electronic communication (“mobile devices”). 

B. The City recognizes a substantial business reason for the use of mobile devices by certain 

City employees and City officials in the performance of their duties. Department Directors will 

determine which employees in their department require the use of mobile devices. It will be 

the responsibility of the Director to justify and budget for the use of mobile devices. The City 

Administrator will determine which City officials will be offered the use of mobile devices. All 

such devices shall be issued on a strictly non-compensatory basis. 

C. The City will supply a City-owned mobile device to designated City management employees 

and City officials or will provide the designated employees and officials with a monthly 

allowance in their paycheck to offset the expense of a personal mobile device. The 

determination of which management employees and officials will be supplied with mobile 

devices and which will be provided a monthly allowance shall be made by the Department 

Director in consultation with the Financial Services Division. 

D. As a condition of receiving a monthly allowance for use of a personal mobile device or for 

issuance of a City owned mobile device, the mobile number for such device shall be made 

available to the public in any manner the City deems necessary or appropriate. 

E. Nothing in this policy shall be interpreted to require or allow non-exempt employees to 

monitor or use mobile devices for conducting City business while off work, unless permission 

is granted from the employees’ supervisor. 

2. Provided Mobile Devices. 

A. Any City- owned mobile device issued to City employees or City officials shall be used for 

City business only, and not for personal use other than in an emergency. 

B. The City shall retain ownership of the issued mobile device, and the device may be subject 

to inspection, forensic examination, recall, or confiscation at any time. There should be no 

expectation of privacy whatsoever regarding any information contained on the device by 

those who are issued a City- owned device. In addition, any information contained on the 

234

Item 35.



CFD 2405.243: Personnel Policy – Mobile Device Allowance CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 4 

  

 

device may be subject to an open records request. 

C. The employee or official who is issued the device may be responsible to reimburse the City 

for loss or theft of or damage to the device that occurs while issued to the employee or official, 

depending upon the circumstances, at the sole discretion of the Department Director or City 

Administrator. 

D. Use of the device shall be subject to CFD 2406: Technology Resources Acceptable Use. 

 No changes to the operating system, programs, applications, service provider or any other 

changes to the mobile device’s operation are allowed to be made to City owned devices 

without the express permission of the Department Director or City Administrator. Generally 

such changes, if any, will be made by or under the supervision of the Information Systems 

Division of the City of Cedar Falls.The device must be enrolled in the City’s Mobile Device 

Management Software. The employee must review and sign the Mobile Device Inventory 

Sheet upon receiving the device.  

E. Issued mobile devices shall be returned to the Financial Services Division upon termination 

of employment for any reason. 

2.3. Monthly Allowance for City Business on a Personal Mobile Device. 

A. The mobile device used will be the personal property of the employee or official and therefore 

the employee or official will be responsible for the capital cost of the device and the decision 

whether to carry insurance on the device at the employee or official’s own expense. The 

employee or official, at theirhis or her own expense, may add extra services or equipment 

features as desired. 

B. The monthly allowance shall be in the amount set forth in the Accounting Policies & 

Procedures and Purchasing Manual. These employees and officials must be on call 24 hours, 

7 days a week unless on authorized leave or vacation. If an employee or official who is 

provided a mobile device allowance chooses to turn the device off during off-duty hours or 

chooses to not answer the device, he or she may lose the allowance and discipline may 

occur. 

C.B. Additional specified Eemployees that have been designated by their Department 

Director, that are required to carry a mobile device due to the fact that they are heavy daily 

users, will also receive an allowance. This allowance shall be in the amount set forth in the 

Accounting Policies & Procedures and Purchasing Manualrange from $15 to $45 month, 

depending on the employee’s job requirements. These employees will be required to have 

the device on at all times for City business while at work and if on call, 24 hours, 7 days a 

week. If they do not have the device on or choose to not answer the device, they may lose 

their allowance and discipline may occur. 

D.C. The allowance amount shall not exceed the actual cost the employee or official is 

paying for the employee’s or official’s cellular service. 

235

Item 35.



CFD 2405.243: Personnel Policy – Mobile Device Allowance CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 4 

  

 

E.D. The equipment allowance for each employee or official shall be in the amount set 

forth in the Accounting Policies & Procedures and Purchasing Manual $5 month, which is 

included in the allowance above. This equipment allowance can be used by the employee or 

official for the cost of the phone or the cost of accessories (chargers, belts, clips, etc.). 

F.E. Employees and officials receiving the allowance will be allowed to make and 

receive personal calls on the mobile device since it is the employee's or official’s personal 

property. However, these personal calls shall not interfere with work, as already provided by 

city policy. 

G.F. A cellular telephone authorization form shall be completed by the employee and 

reviewed and signed by the Division Manager (if applicable) and Department Director. The 

completed form shall then be forwarded to the Controller/City Treasurer. 

H.G. The allowance shall continue until the Controller/City Treasurer is notified in 

writing by the Department Director to discontinue the allowance or until the time that the 

employee’s employment with the City is terminated. 

H. The employees and officials receiving the monthly allowance must notify his or hertheir own 

supervisor and the Controller/City Treasurer each time the mobile device number or mobile 

device provider is changed. 

I. The employees and officials receiving the monthly allowance must notify their own supervisor 

and the Information Systems department each time the mobile device is upgraded to enroll 

the new device in the City's Mobile Device Management Software. 

J. Initially, the employee or official will be required to submit documentation verifying the mobile 

device number and the cost of the plan to ensure that the allowance does not exceed the 

cost of the plan amount. If an employee or official changes the device number, he or she 

shall be required to notify Financial Services immediately and provide the appropriate 

documentation. 

K. On a periodic basis, the Financial Services Division will review the allowance amount to 

ensure that it is a reasonable. The allowance will be added to the second payroll of each 

month. 

L. If conducting city business on the device any information on the device may be subject to a 

public records request. 

K.M. The device must be enrolled in the City’s Mobile Management Software. This will 

ensure security policies will be enforced. For example, the screen must lock after five minutes 

of inactivity and the operating system must be current.  

3.1. Provided Mobile Devices. 

A. Any City owned mobile device issued to City employees or City officials shall be used for City 

business only, and not for personal use other than in an emergency. 

236

Item 35.



CFD 2405.243: Personnel Policy – Mobile Device Allowance CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 4 of 4 

  

 

B.A. The City shall retain ownership of the issued mobile device, and the device may 

be subject to inspection, forensic examination, recall, or confiscation at any time. There 

should be no expectation of privacy whatsoever regarding any information contained on the 

device by those who are issued a City owned device. In addition, any information contained 

on the device may be subject to an open records request. 

C.A. The employee or official who is issued the device may be responsible to reimburse 

the City for loss or theft of or damage to the device that occurs while issued to the employee 

or official, depending upon the circumstances, at the sole discretion of the Department 

Director or City Administrator. 

D.A. Use of the device shall be subject to CFD 2406: Technology Resources 

Acceptable Use. 

E.A. No changes to the operating system, programs, applications, service provider or 

any other changes to the mobile device’s operation are allowed to be made to City owned 

devices without the express permission of the Department Director or City Administrator. 

Generally such changes, if any, will be made by or under the supervision of the Information 

Systems Division of the City of Cedar Falls. 

F.A. Issued mobile devices shall be returned to the Financial Services Division upon 

termination of employment for any reason. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 6/1/15, 7/18/16, 3/1/19, 1/6/20, 5/6/24 

237

Item 35.



CFD 2406.243:  Personnel Policy – Technology Resources Acceptable Use CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 12 

  

 

CFD 2406: Personnel Policy – Technology Resources 
Acceptable Use 

Approved June 1, 2015 May 6, 2024 by the Cedar Falls City Council 
Received and Filed August 7, 2023 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

POLICY: 

The City of Cedar Falls provides employees with electronic business tools that connect to the City’s 

technology infrastructure. The Technology Resources Acceptable Use Policy guides employee use 

of these electronic resources at work in City facilities, as well as at remote locations. 

DEFINITIONS: 

 Technology resources: Refers to physical equipment; programs, programming languages, 

instructions, routines or configurations required to perform work using physical equipment; 

communication services and other types of technology provided for conducting City business; 

including but not limited to computers and computer networks; computer files; printers and 

copiers; hand held computing devices; cell phones and services; telephone systems; 

business software and device operating systems and configurations; audio, video and 

photographic equipment and media; e-mail and voice mail systems; social media; storage 

media; Internet; Intranet; Extranet; courier services; facsimiles; pagers; two-way radio 

equipment; all devices and software that connect to and/or are part of the City’s technology 

infrastructure.  

 Remote locations: Any location other than the employee’s usual work environment, including 

but not limited to employees’ homes, educational workshops or conferences, vendor and/or 

prospective contractor site, hotels, and airports. 

 Data: Information such as records, images, email, voice messages or other textual or graphic 

material stored on or accessible through technology resources whether that data resides on 

City resources or is accessible through the Internet or other online services through the use 

of City technology resources. 

 User: Employees, volunteers, independent contractors, interns, consultants, agents, and 

third parties working on behalf of the City who have access to City technology resources. 

 User ID: A unique identity assigned to a user. 

 Password: A string of characters that allows access to a technology resource. 

 Media: A device, such as hard drive, CD, DVD, USB Thumb or micro drive, Zip drive, Floppy 

drive, tape or other capable of data or image storage. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. General Guidance. 

238

Item 36.



CFD 2406.243:  Personnel Policy – Technology Resources Acceptable Use CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 12 

  

 

A. Access to technology resources of the City is provided for purposes related to City business 

operations, professional development and association, and as otherwise approved by the 

City Administrator. The City encourages the use of these resources because they make 

employees and City business more efficient and effective. These resources are City property 

and their purpose is to facilitate City business. Department Directors will determine who on 

their staff is provided access to these resources.  

2. Proper Use. 

A. Every employee with access to these resources has a responsibility to maintain and enhance 

the City's public image and to use the City’s technology resources in a productive manner. 

Supervisors are responsible for instructing employees on the proper use of the technology 

resources used by the City for both internal and external business. Misuse of City technology 

resources is not productive work during city time, and is disruptive to other employees. 

Violation of the City’s property rights with respect to technology resources includes, but is not 

limited to: 

A. Theft or vandalism to software, data, media and electronic services as well as physical 

equipment; 

B. Copying City-owned or licensed software or data for personal or external use; 

C. Attempting to modify City-owned or licensed software without approval from the 

Information Systems (IS) Manager; 

D. Attempting access to Operating System prompts or executing Operating System 

commands without approval from the IS Manager; 

E. Attempting to damage or disrupt operation of technology resources; 

F. Attempting to intentionally access or modify data files, databases, directories, software 

or configuration settings without proper authorization; 

G. Attempting to circumvent or subvert security measures; 

3. Misconduct. 

A.  Use of City computing resources for purposes other than those intended by the City 

department granting access to these resources, includes, but is not limited to: 

A. Allowing access to technology resources by unauthorized persons; 

B. Using City resources for external or personal purposes, including but not limited to 

operating a personal business; conducting an external job search; soliciting or 

persuading for personal or commercial ventures; campaigning for political causes or 

candidates; promoting, advertising or soliciting funds or membership in religious causes 

or private organizations, playing games; obtaining information which has no relevance to 

239

Item 36.



CFD 2406.243:  Personnel Policy – Technology Resources Acceptable Use CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 12 

  

 

city business such as sporting events, jokes, cartoons, chain letters and participating in 

chat rooms; 

C. Transmission, retrieval or storage of communications or other materials of a 

discriminatory or harassing nature; with derogatory or inflammatory remarks regarding 

race, color, sex, age, disability, religion, national origin or political belief; or with abusive, 

profane or offensive language;  

D. Visiting non work-related sites, including but not limited to chat rooms or other social 

media, pornographic or sexually explicit sites; personal shopping or engaging in any 

illegal activity including but not limited to gambling; unless for the purpose of criminal 

investigation or enforcement of City policy; 

E. Invading the privacy of an individual by using electronic means to ascertain confidential 

information; 

F. Copying or altering another user’s software without permission from the Information 

Systems Manager; 

G. Copying or altering another user’s data without permission from that user; 

H. Knowingly accepting or using software or data which has been obtained by illegal means; 

i.e., the City’s technology resources shall not be used to send, receive, upload or 

download copyrighted materials, trade secrets, proprietary financial information, or 

similar materials without specific prior authorization; 

I. Downloading any programs or documents from other sources unless pre-approved by 

the Information Systems Manager; 

J. Intercepting network traffic for any purpose unless engaged in authorized network 

administrative duties; 

K. Using City technology resources for illegal or otherwise inappropriate purposes. 

Examples of this include, but are not limited to: transmission, retrieval or storage of 

violent, threatening, inflammatory, defrauding, harassing, abusive, profane, demeaning, 

insulting, intimidating, discriminatory, obscene, illegal, immoral, or sexually suggestive 

materials, remarks or messages.  No transmission, retrieval or storage of materials, 

remarks or messages regarding an individual's race, color, sex, age, disability, religion, 

national origin or political belief, or with abusive, profane or offensive language are 

permitted. Employees are prohibited from using technology resources to obtain 

information regarding any of these prohibited uses unless for the purpose of criminal 

investigation or enforcement of City policy; 

L. Deliberately using the technology resources to disrupt the productivity of other users or 

technology resources. Disruptions include, but are not limited to: distribution of 

unsolicited advertising or entertainment objects, personal business promotion and 

propagation of malware and viruses; 

240

Item 36.



CFD 2406.243:  Personnel Policy – Technology Resources Acceptable Use CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 4 of 12 

  

 

M. Using technology resources for purposes of satisfying idle curiosity about the affairs of 

others, with no substantial business purpose for obtaining access to the files or 

communications of others. 

N. Any use that that compromises the integrity of the City and its business. 

O. Using the City’s technology resources in the commission of a crime. 

P. Use of the City’s technology resources that violate CFD 2102 Harassment-Free 

Workplace policy, CFD 2401 Employee Behavior policy, or any other policy set forth in 

the City of Cedar Falls’ Employee’s Policy and Procedures Manual. 

4. Charges.  

A. Communications services and equipment may have toll charges or other usage-related 

expenses. Employees should be aware of these charges and should consider cost and 

efficiency needs when choosing the proper vehicle for each business communication.  

B. Employees should consult their supervisor if there is a question about the proper mode of 

communication. 

5. User IDs and Passwords. 

A. Many of the City’s technology resources require that each user have a unique identity, 

referred to as a user ID, protected by a password, to gain access to the system. This 

password must conform to the requirements of the system and be changed periodically as 

prompted by the system. The password may be changed as frequently as desired or as 

required due to password disclosure. The user ID is used to represent a user in various 

activities, to provide access to particular technology resources based on duties and purpose 

for requiring such access. As such, these identities are an instrument of identification and 

misuse constitutes forgery or misrepresentation. 

B. Conduct that involves misuse of identities includes but is not limited to: 

A. Allowing another individual to use the identity and password; 

B. Using another individual’s identity and password even if the individual has neglected to 

safeguard his or her computer identity. 

C. Applying passwords to files without the consent of the Information Systems Manager. 

6. Acquisition and Use of Technology.  

A. The City of Cedar Falls recognizes technology resources as productivity tools with potentially 

unlimited capabilities. Individual departments and divisions may experience differing degrees 

of efficiency resulting from technology implementation.  

B. Justification of needs is essential. Justifiable uses for technology are those uses that 

241

Item 36.



CFD 2406.243:  Personnel Policy – Technology Resources Acceptable Use CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 5 of 12 

  

 

effectively solve a customer service problem involving productivity or information availability. 

C. The following uses for a computer are recommended and promoted by City: 

A. To increase productivity,  

B. To improve an existing service, 

C. To offer a new service,  

D. To reduce costs and/or to provide for the utilization of more efficient and cost effective 

techniques, procedures, and methodologies, 

E. To provide records that can be made available to other technology resources. 

D. All technology resources must be approved and processed (ordered) by Information 

Systems. Approval is needed as part of the annual budget or on adjustments to that approved 

budget.  

7. Training. Proper training is crucial to the success of any technological system. Consequently, 

prior to installation, it is imperative that users become familiar with selected products. Therefore, 

training from vendor or Information Systems personnel is mandatory.  

8. Installation. The Information Systems Division assists users in determining placement of 

technology resources. Information Systems will provide installation and testing of resources. 

Once resources are installed, they should not be moved or replaced. 

9. Care and Maintenance.  

A. Users must insureensure that technology resources are not exposed to extremes of heat or 

cold, dust, smoke, or other potential contaminants.  

B. Drinks and food should be kept away from equipment and storage media.  

C. Media is particularly sensitive to heat, water, or magnets; care should be exercised when 

handling them. Information Systems shall be advised of any malfunctions arising with 

technology resources. 

10. Restrictions. Technology creates special environments in which certain restrictions must be 

observed. The following apply to all user departments within the City: 

A. Authorized Use: Technology resources are provided for City business only. Personal and 

other non-City uses are not authorized, however incidental personal usage that does not 

violate any of the other terms of this policy may be permitted on an occasional basis. All 

business and personal usage is considered public information and is subject to disclosure at 

any time. 

B. Personal use: Employees’ use of City technology resources for personal purposes is allowed 

242

Item 36.



CFD 2406.243:  Personnel Policy – Technology Resources Acceptable Use CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 6 of 12 

  

 

on a limited basis. Limited, incidental, personal use is permitted; however, employees may 

not use City communications services and equipment for extensive personal or non-City 

business purposes. When personal use is necessary, employees must properly log any user 

charges and promptly reimburse the City for them. However, whenever possible, personal 

use that incurs user charges should be placed on a collect basis or charged directly to the 

employee’s personal credit card or account. Employees should limit personal use of City 

technology resources as much as possible. In addition, frivolous use of the City’s technology 

resources is not allowed. City technology resources may not be removed from the premises 

without prior authorization from the employee’s supervisor. City technology resources 

removed from the premises shall be used only for work relatedwork-related purposes and 

shall be returned to the City premises as soon as the work relatedwork-related purposes are 

accomplished.  

C. Authorized resources: Only technology purchased/acquired by the City is to be operated on 

technology owned by the City. Only Information Systems is authorized to install technology 

resources.  

D. Off-Site Use: Since technology resources are purchased for specific departmental needs, 

they are not to be transported from their approved locations unless the move is associated 

with the proper conduct of City business. This restriction is applicable to data, media, 

programs, documentation and equipment. Exceptions would be technology purchased for its 

portability and/or available from Information Systems on a checkout basis. 

E. Technology Development Ownership: Any technology developed by the City is the property 

of the City of Cedar Falls and shall not be sold or given to anyone without written consent. 

F. Copyright Protection: Through the purchase or acquisition of technology resources, the City 

automatically must comply with provisions of copyright laws. These laws, to which all 

technology users must adhere, are usually found in accompanying manuals or on the 

provider’s web site. These laws generally prohibit the copying of programs for use other than 

backup. 

G. Emergency Contacts: Employees who do not have direct access to City technology resources 

should make provisions to have emergency or other necessary incoming messages routed 

to their supervisor or to the Human Resources DivisionPersonnel Specialist, if the supervisor 

is not accessible. Although the City will attempt to deliver personal messages to employees, 

it cannot and does not accept responsibility for the prompt or accurate relay of these 

messages. 

11. Security and Data Integrity. The placement of a technology resources in a user area and the 

mobility of the equipment and associated media create special user concerns, as outlined below: 

A. The user must ensure that all equipment is located in a secure area where opportunities 

for theft are minimized. 

B. The user must insureensure that only authorized personnel have access to technology 

resources and that they are used only for legitimate items of City business. 

243

Item 36.



CFD 2406.243:  Personnel Policy – Technology Resources Acceptable Use CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 7 of 12 

  

 

C. Employees should not remain logged into unattended systems for long periods of time. 

This creates an opportunity for unauthorized users to access the system. Every user shall 

log off hardware and data services every day at the close of business and as required for 

extended periods away from the equipment, i.e. during lunch breaks, to prevent 

unauthorized access. 

D. An employee requiring access to the system shall be referred to Information Systems by 

the employee’s supervisor with an explanation of the access privileges desired. 

E. Maintenance of the user’s access privileges will remain the responsibility of the 

Information Systems Manager in conjunction with departmental needs. 

F. Data files must be safeguarded from unauthorized access. 

G. It is the responsibility of employees having custody of records classified by law as 

confidential to appropriately protect that confidentiality. The ability to load a large amount 

of data for transmission via an easily transported medium (magnetic media or storage 

devices), Internet or email makes it imperative that confidential data be carefully 

controlled and safeguarded. 

H. Users are required to request that Information Systems run virus scan processes on any 

files introduced to the system via magnetic media, download or email.  

12. Accessibility. Many computer systems are shared by City staff and need to be available for use. 

Screen saver passwords inhibit the ability to share systems and prevent Information Systems 

staff from completing maintenance work and are prohibited. 

13. Component Disposal. When a user department no longer has use for a technology resource, 

the components should be transferred to the Information Systems Division through the 

appropriate property transfer process. The Information Systems Division will maintain a 

repository of technology components and will supply user departments with available 

components as needed.  

14. Security and Privacy Expectations.  

A. The City routinely monitors usage patterns of its technology resources. The reasons for this 

monitoring are many, including cost analysis/allocation and the management of the City's 

network and attached appliances.  

B. All technology resources and their contents are the property of the City of Cedar Falls. All 

passwords, user ID’s, documents and messages created and/or transmitted by City 

employees are the property of the City of Cedar Falls.  

C. The City reserves the right to monitor and audit all electronic transmissions conducted via 

the City’s technology resources. Employees should have no expectation of privacy when it 

comes to use of the City’s technology resources.  

244

Item 36.



CFD 2406.243:  Personnel Policy – Technology Resources Acceptable Use CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 8 of 12 

  

 

D. The City reserves the right to monitor, inspect, copy, review, and store at any time and without 

notice any and all usage of the City’s technology resources, and any and all files, information, 

software, and other content created, sent, received, downloaded, uploaded, accessed, or 

stored in connection with employee usage.  

E. The City reserves the right to disclose email, text, documents, usage logs and images to 

regulators, the courts, law enforcement, and other third parties without the employee’s 

consent. 

15. Protection of Personally Identifiable Information (PII) and Other Information 

A. In compliance with Uniform Grant Guidance in Title 2 Code of Federal Regulation (C.F.R.) 

Grants and Agreements, Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 

and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, it is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

to protect Personally Identifiable Information (PII) of employees, customers, vendors, 

contractors, volunteers, etc.  

B.  Personally Identifiable Information is any information pertaining to an individual that can be 

used to distinguish or trace a person's identity. 

C. The definition of PII is not anchored to any single category of information or technology. 

Rather, it requires a case-by-case assessment of the specific risk that an individual can be 

identified. Non-PII can become PII whenever additional information is made publicly 

available, in any medium and from any source, that, when combined with other available 

information, could be used to identify an individual. 

D. Some information that is considered Non-Sensitive PII is available in public sources such as 

telephone books, public websites, etc. Non-Sensitive PII is only considered protected if linked 

with other Protected PII. Examples of Non-Sensitive PII includes: 

A. First and Last name 

B. Address 

C. Work telephone number 

D. Work e-mail address 

E. Home telephone number 

F. General educational credentials 

G. Photos and video 

E. Protected PII means an individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination with 

any one or more of types of information, including, but not limited to: 

A. Social security number 

245

Item 36.



CFD 2406.243:  Personnel Policy – Technology Resources Acceptable Use CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 9 of 12 

  

 

B. Username and password 

C. Passport number 

D. Credit card number 

E. Clearances 

F. Banking information 

G. Biometrics 

H. Date and place of birth 

I. Mother's maiden name 

J. Criminal, medical, and financial records 

K. Educational transcripts 

L. Photos and video including any of the above 

M. This does not include PII that is required by law to be disclosed, such as a law 

enforcement subpoena or court order. 

F. The City must take reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable 

information and other information the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity 

designates as sensitive or the non-Federal entity considers sensitive consistent with 

applicable Federal, state, local, and tribal laws regarding privacy and obligations of 

confidentiality. 

G.  All electronic files that contain Protected PII will reside within a protected information system 

location. All physical files that contain Protected PII will reside within a 

locked/secured/monitored location when not being actively viewed or modified. Protected PII 

is not to be downloaded to personally owned employee workstations or mobile devices (such 

as laptops, personal digital assistants, mobile phones, tablets, or removable media). PII will 

also not be sent through any form of unsecure electronic communication e.g. e-mail or instant 

messaging systems. Significant security risks emerge when PII is transferred from a secure 

location to a less secure location or is disposed of improperly. When disposing of PII the 

physical or electronic file should be shredded or securely deleted. 

H. The City Administrator and Director of Finance and Business Operations must be informed 

of a real or suspected disclosure or breach of Protected PII data within 24 hours after 

discovery. Examples: misplacing a paper report containing PII; loss of a laptop, mobile 

device, or removable media containing PII; accidental email of PII; possible virus or malware 

infection of a computer containing PII. 

I. Periodic audits of organization owned equipment and physical locations may be performed 

246

Item 36.



CFD 2406.243:  Personnel Policy – Technology Resources Acceptable Use CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 10 of 12 

  

 

to ensure that protected PII is stored in approved information systems or locations. The 

purpose of the audit is to ensure compliance with this policy and to provide information 

necessary to continuously improve practices. 

J. Records containing personal data are to be disposed of so as to prevent inadvertent 

compromise of data and will use a disposal method that will render all personal data 

unrecognizable and beyond reconstruction. 

E.K.Anyone found to be in violation of this policy may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and 

including termination, as deemed appropriate based on the facts and circumstances giving 

rise to the violation. 

15.16. Data Storage and Transfer.  

A. To maintain the integrity and security of the City’s data, all electronic files, documents, 

images, and other data elements shall be stored on the City’s server resources in areas 

designated by the City’s Information Systems Division.  

B. Employees may not store data on the local computer’s hard drive, CD, DVD, USB Thumb or 

micro drive, Zip drive, Floppy drive, or any other external storage device without authorization 

from the Information Systems Division.  

C. Data may be stored temporarily on portable media for off-site work requirements, training, 

business presentations and similar events where access to the City’s server resources is not 

readily available. 

16.17. Communications. 

A.  Technology resources are provided to employees for business purposes and are governed 

by the same use and prohibited uses as the City’s other technology resources. As with all 

other employee work product, communications are the property of the City and therefore are 

not considered private.  

B. Each employee is responsible for the content of all text, audio or images placed or sent over 

the City's system.  

C. The City’s communication systems are intended for official business usage only. Incidental 

usage that does not violate any of the other terms in this policy may be permitted on an 

occasional basis.  

D. All business or personal incidental usage is considered public information and subject to 

disclosure at any time.  

17.18. Identity.  

A. No communications may be sent which hides the identity of the sender or represents the 

sender as someone else or someone from another City.  

247

Item 36.



CFD 2406.243:  Personnel Policy – Technology Resources Acceptable Use CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 11 of 12 

  

 

B. All communication using the City's systems should contain the employee's name and title or 

position. 

18.19. Responsibility. Any information sent by an employee to another individual outside of the 

City using the City’s technology resources are statements that reflect on the City. Personal 

disclaimers do not absolve the message or the sender from City affiliation. 

19.20. Monitoring of Technology Use.  

A. All City technology, including the messages and work product produced, transmitted or stored 

by them, are the sole property of the City.  

B. The City may access and monitor employee use of technology resources as it considers 

appropriate.  

C. Employees should have no expectation of privacy with respect to information stored in or 

transmitted to or from city-provided technology resources.  

D. The City reserves the right to access messages whenever there is a legitimate purpose to do 

so, whether during the completion of normal City business, upon employee termination, if 

required by law, or in the course of an audit or investigation.  

E. When a supervisor reasonably suspects misuse of City technology resources, the 

Department Director shall contact the Information Systems Division, the Director of Finance 

and Business Operations and the City Attorney in order to proceed with an audit. 

20.21. Confidential, Proprietary, and Personal Information.  

A. Confidential, proprietary and personal Information must be protected.  

B. Unless authorized to do so by the City Administrator or his designee, employees are 

prohibited from using the City’s technology resources to transmit confidential information to 

outside parties.  

C. Employees may not access, send, receive, solicit, print, copy, or reply to confidential or 

proprietary information about the City, employees, citizens, suppliers, and other business 

associates and partner organizations.  

D. Confidential information includes but is not limited to confidential financial data, credit card 

numbers, Social Security numbers, employee performance reviews, salary details, and 

passwords.  

E. Employees should not assume electronic communications are totally private and should 

transmit highly confidential data by secure methods.  

21.22. Disciplinary Actions. Anyone found in violation of this policy will be subjected to disciplinary 

action that could result in termination of system access, termination of employment and/or 

criminal prosecution, if appropriate. 

248

Item 36.



CFD 2406.243:  Personnel Policy – Technology Resources Acceptable Use CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 12 of 12 

  

 

22.23. Police Conduct. Nothing in this policy should be construed to limit the Police Department’s 

ability to conduct investigations in the course of regular police activities. 

23.24. Criminal Violation. Employees are reminded that Chapter 721.2 of the Code of Iowa states 

that it is a serious misdemeanor if any public officer, employee, or any person acting under color 

of public office or employment knowingly uses or permits any other person to use the property 

owned by the City for any private purposes for personal gain. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 6/1/15, 5/6/24  

249

Item 36.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council Members 

 FROM: Brenda Balvanz, Human Resources Specialist 

 DATE: April 25, 2024 

 SUBJECT:  New Job Classification – Policy & Administration Specialist 
 
 
Following the fiscal year ’25 budget approval, attached is an updated version of the Policy 
& Administration Specialist job classification for your review.  The redlined update reflects 
a requested update related to the supervision received.  Otherwise, this position serves 
as a new non-exempt Administration Division Civil Service position reviewed by Carlson 
Dettmann, the City’s job classification and pay plan consultant. 
 
This position will oversee and support a broad range of programs, projects, and activities 
involving city government administration.  The position will provide executive level support 
to the City Administrator’s office and City Department Directors to independently perform 
a variety of complex, highly responsible, professional duties involving the administration 
and analysis of municipal programs, projects, and policies.  Duties will evolve and may 
include handling special projects as assigned.    
 
Staff recommends approval of the attached at the May 6, 2024, City Council meeting.  If 
you have questions regarding the attached, please contact Bailey Schindel at 319-268-
5531 or Jennifer Rodenbeck at 319-268-5108. 
 
 
Attachment 

250

Item 37.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification –Policy & Administration Specialist   1

Job Title Policy & Administration Specialist  Job Code 012 

Department Administration  Pay Band 9 

FLSA Status Non-Exempt  Union Status Non-Union 

Prepared 10/16/23  Adopted 
5/6/241/02/2
4 

 
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by employees 
in the class.  Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 
 
 

POSITION DEFINITION 

 
Under the general direction of the City Administrator, oversee and support a broad range of programs, 
projects, and other activities involving city government administration.  This position provides executive 
level support to the City Administrator’s office and independently performs a variety of complex, highly 
responsible, professional work involving the administration and analysis of municipal programs, projects, 
and policies.  Duties are constantly evolving and changing and may include handling special projects as 
assigned.  
 
 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

 
Receives direction from the City Administrator or designated City Department Director. 
 
This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities.  
 
 

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 

 
Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Conduct research for special projects; monitor and report on department initiatives and strategic 
planning process.   
 

 Assist City departments in special projects included in the City’s five-year Capital Improvements 
Program (CIP).  
 

 Assist with media relations, publication and communication efforts utilizing a variety of multimedia 
formats.  
 

 Research potential grant opportunities and complete applications as needed.  Complete required 
grant reporting as required.  

251

Item 37.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification –Policy & Administration Specialist   2

 Research trends within municipal management/operations nationwide and track pertinent State 
and Federal legislation that may impact city operations.  

 
 Collect information for use in policy development by the City Administrator, City Attorney, and the 

Mayor.  
 

 Prepare and coordinate correspondence, reports, memoranda, media communications, and 
directives for the City Administrator. 
 

 Work with senior management to maintain accurate, timely schedules of major projects for City 
Council and public consumption.  
 

 Collaborate with Human Resources on employee engagement, satisfaction and/or climate surveys 
and initiatives to improve overall culture. Also assist in Human Resources in expanded recruitment 
efforts and diversity, equity, and inclusion (DEI) related programs and initiatives. 
 

 Assist Economic Development Coordinator with special projects.  
 

 Assist administration in conducting various citizen surveys and public outreach programs.  
 

 May act as liaison to city boards and commissions or other community organizations.  
 

 Establish and maintain effective working relationships with Commissioners, City Council, City 
Mayor, City Administrator, City Department Directors, Managers and Supervisors, City employees, 
business and community groups, and representatives of the media and public.  

 
 
OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Attend and make presentations at City Council, board and commission meetings as required; 
attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations 
in the field of social justice. 

 
 Participate in the work of subordinate level staff as necessary; process various paperwork and 

data; input information into the computer, access files, and maintain records.  
 

 Assist with the operating budgets for the offices of City Administrator and Mayor and assist in 
monitoring budgeted expenditures.  
 

 Assist the Human Resources division with general HR/DEI duties as needed. 
 

 Perform other duties as assigned. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

252

Item 37.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification –Policy & Administration Specialist   3

MINIMUM SKILLS  AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 
REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE 

 
 Understanding of municipal governments, city regulations/codes and ordinances.  

 
 Principles and practices of public administration, policy development, and operational functions 

within a municipality.  
 

 Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment. 
 

 Principles of project management.  
 

 Principles of business letter writing and report preparation. 
 

 English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation. 
 

 Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes, and regulations. 
 

 Municipal record keeping policies and procedures.  
 
ABILITY TO PERFORM 

 
 Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, project consequences of proposed actions and 

implement recommendations in support of goals. 
 

 Handle confidential information in a sensitive manner.  
 

 Work independently on projects and research assignments.  
 

 Interpret and apply federal, state and local policies, laws and regulations. 
 

 Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 
 

 Ability to listen, identify, and understand information and ideas of another person. 
 

 Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

253

Item 37.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification –Policy & Administration Specialist   4

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES 

 
MINIMUM EXPERIENCE 
 
Experience in public policy, business administration, or municipal operations is preferred.  Internships in 
these areas may count as experience.  
 
MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING 
 
Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university in public administration, political science, 
business administration, or a related field.   
 
LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED 
 
Possession of an appropriate, valid driver’s license.    
 
 

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 
 
Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers; 
sensitive deadlines and irregular work hours. 
 
PHYSICAL CONDITIONS 
 
Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, or walking 
for prolonged periods of time; general manual dexterity required for typing for prolonged periods of time. 

254

Item 37.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council members 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: April 29, 2024 

 SUBJECT: Lease Agreement with the Chicago, Central & Pacific Railroad Company 
(now known as Canadian National Railway) 

 
 
Last August, the City received a proposed five-year land lease from the CN for 
roadways, sidewalk, lawn, and park site.  The area is approximately 8,400 square feet.  
The lease would be from May 23, 2023 – June 30, 2028.  We have documentation of 
leases with the railroad since at least 1987.  The lease rate would be $1,200/year, plus 
any real estate taxes. 
 
Staff’s review of the lease raised several questions.  We requested insurance limits that 
match what we carry.  This is agreeable and has been revised in the attached lease.  
Originally fencing of the premises was part of the lease.  After questioning where that 
would be and what type of fencing was needed, the CN removed that provision.  The 
ability for the City to terminate with 30 days’ notice just like the CN is now part of the 
lease.  Finally, flexibility in the extent of PPE required when on railroad property has 
been accommodated (no hardhat required for mowing/trimming activities). 
 
The leased premises benefit the City in a number of ways.  Exhibit A within the lease is 
a map, showing how this lease provides access to: 

 the dam,  

 Sturgis Park,  

 Olsens Riverside 
Park,  

 Ice House Museum, 
and 

 a parking lot 
supporting these 
amenities. 

 
Staff recommends approval 
of the five-year lease 
attached. 

255

Item 38.



1

This Lease cancels and supersedes Lease No. 25904 dated June 21st, 1988 between Chicago, 
Central & Pacific Railroad Company and City of Cedar Falls, Iowa as well as all subsequent 
extensions and amendments.  

PROPERTY LEASE AGREEMENT 
Lease No. 2160 / 3003480 

THIS Property Lease Agreement (“Lease”) made as of the 31st day of May, 2023, by and 
between CHICAGO, CENTRAL & PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY as Lessor 
(hereinafter called “Railroad”), with offices located at 17641 S Ashland Ave, Homewood, IL 
60430 and CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, whose mailing address is 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, 
IA, 50613 and whose telephone number is 319-268-5152 and email address is 
jacque.danielsen@cedarfalls.com as Lessee (hereinafter called the “Lessee”). 

WITNESSETH, that the parties hereto, for and in consideration of the performance of the 
covenants, conditions and agreements hereinafter expressed, agree as follows: 

1. LEASE OF PREMISES.  Railroad leases to Lessee and Lessee leases from 
Railroad, upon the terms, covenants and conditions herein contained, the use of the property 
consisting of 0.81 acres, more or less, as shown Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof, 
(hereinafter called the “Premises”), located at or near Milepost 282.76-282.94, Waterloo 
Subdivision at Cedar Falls, County of Blackhawk, State of Iowa. 

The Premises are to be used by Lessee and Lessee’s Agents, Contractors, Licensees and 
Invitees exclusively for a roadway, sidewalk, lawn and park site; and for no other purpose without 
the express written consent of Railroad.   

2. TERM.  The term of this Lease shall be for an initial term of FIVE (5) YEARS 
commencing on the 1st day of July, 2023, and ending at 12:00 AM CST on the 30th day of June, 
2028, unless sooner terminated or renewed as hereinafter provided.  

3.       RENTAL. Lessee agrees to pay as rent for the Premises the amount of $1,200.00 
per year, payable annually in advance. 

Although Lessee’s right to possession of the Premises shall terminate when the term of this Lease 
has expired or is terminated prior to such expiration in accordance with the provisions of this 
Lease, Lessee’s obligations under this Lease, including but not limited to the obligation to pay 
rental, taxes and assessments, and utilities, shall continue until Lessee delivers possession of the 
Premises to Railroad in the condition required by this Lease.  Any payment that is not received by 
Railroad by the due date shall bear interest at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum calculated 
from the due date to the date of receipt, or the maximum rate allowed by law, whichever is less.  
In addition to payment of interest to cover loss of use of the funds, Lessee must pay a late payment 
charge of $100.00 to cover Railroad’s cost of administration resulting from each such late 
payment. 

Lessee shall arrange for and pay the cost of any utility service that is desired or required with 
respect to Lessee’s use of the Premises.  If Railroad pays any utility charges which are Lessee’s 
obligation under the provisions of this Lease, all sums paid by Railroad shall be deemed to be 
additional rent and recoverable as such, and shall bear interest at the rate of twelve percent (12%) 

256

Item 38.



2

per annum, or the maximum rate allowed by law, whichever is less, from the date paid by Railroad 
until Railroad is reimbursed by Lessee. 

4. LEASE SUBJECT TO SUPERIOR RIGHTS.  Lessee accepts this Lease subject to 
all existing liens, encumbrances, mortgages and other superior rights, if any, in and to said 
Premises.  Lessee agrees it shall not have any claim against Railroad for damage on account of 
any deficiency in title of the Premises and agrees that in the event of failure of such title the sole 
remedy of Lessee shall be the right to the return of a proportionate share of rent paid in advance 
for any period in which Lessee is deprived of possession of Premises by a claim of title superior 
to that of Railroad.  Lessee accepts the Premises subject to rights of any party, including Railroad, 
in and to any existing conduits, sewers, water lines, gas lines, power lines, cable lines, fiber optic 
lines, drainage, telephone, telegraph, or other wires, and poles and utilities  of any kind whatsoever, 
whether or not of record.  Should it at any time become necessary to relocate any of same because 
of this Lease, Lessee shall bear and pay that cost.  Lessee accepts the Premises subject to rights of 
any party, including Railroad, in and to any existing roadways, easements, permits, or licenses.  
Lessee agrees to provide to Railroad, and other lessees, grantees and permitees of Railroad, access 
over and through the Premises on these existing roadways, easements, permits or licenses should 
such access be deemed necessary by Railroad.  Railroad hereby reserves unto itself and its grantees 
and licensees: (a) the right and easement to install, construct, use, operate, maintain, repair and 
replace any pipe, conduit or tunnel, and any electric, cable, fiber optic, communication or signal 
transmission lines, together with poles and guys therefore,  as may now exist or may hereafter be 
placed upon, under or over the Premises, (b) all ores and minerals of any kind or nature, whether 
on or underlying the surface of the Premises, together with the full and exclusive right, privilege 
and license to explore, protect, conserve, mine, extract, remove and market such minerals, and (c) 
all railroad operating rights, if any, associated with the Premises under applicable law; it being 
agreed that this Lease is subject and subordinate to any and all such rights, easements and uses.  
Lessee further agrees that Railroad shall not be responsible for the care or maintenance of such 
roadways, easements, permits or licenses.  Railroad makes no covenant for quiet enjoyment of the 
Premises.  Lessee assumes any damage Lessee may sustain as a result of, or in connection with, 
any want or failure at any time of Railroad’s title to the Premises. 

5. PREMISES ACCEPTED AS IS.  Lessee has examined the Premises, knows the 
condition of the Premises, has received the same in existing order and repair and acknowledges 
that no representations as to the condition and repair thereof have been made by Railroad or its 
agents or employees prior to or at the execution of this Lease that are not herein expressed.  Lessee 
accepts the Premises “AS IS, WHERE IS”, subject to all existing conditions, including but not 
limited to any existing easements, railroad facilities, pipe lines, telephone, telegraph, 
communication and signal lines or any other similar facilities.  Lessee also acknowledges that 
Railroad shall have the right to make future installations from time to time of any of the 
aforementioned types of facilities, provided such future installations do not unreasonably interfere 
with Lessee’s use of the Premises.  Should it at any time become necessary to relocate any of 
Railroad’s facilities by reason of the Lease, or Lessee’s use of Premises, Lessee shall bear and pay 
the cost thereof. 

6. TAXES/SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AND UTILITIES 

(a) In addition to rental payment provided for herein, Lessee shall be responsible for 
general real estate taxes and general and special assessments levied against the Premises and/or 
improvements located thereon.  Lessee shall pay taxes and assessments applicable to the Premises 

257

Item 38.



3

promptly upon receipt of a statement from Railroad, which shall be delivered to Lessee when 
Railroad receives bills from the taxing authority.  If general real estate taxes are paid in arrears, 
the first payment required to be made by Lessee shall be based on an appropriate proration of the 
tax bill received by Railroad that covers the Premises.  Upon termination of this Lease, Lessee 
shall be obligated to pay taxes and assessments applicable to the Premises up to and including the 
effective date of said termination, which obligations shall be determined on the basis of the most 
recent tax bill covering the Premises.  If the Premises are included with other property in a single 
tax bill, the amount of the taxes attributable to the land in the Premises shall be determined on a 
square-foot basis.  If the Premises are not locally assessed, but are included in Railroad’s unit 
assessment which applies to Railroad’s operating property, Lessee shall receive an estimated 
statement from Railroad for general real estate taxes attributable to the Premises while the 
Premises are included in Railroad’s unit assessment.  Any improvements located on the Premises 
that are owned by Lessee are to be assessed directly to Lessee, and Lessee must pay all taxes 
attributable to such improvements before such taxes become overdue.  In addition to general real 
estate taxes and assessments attributable to the Premises, Lessee shall also be responsible for all 
other taxes, license fees and charges which may be assessed during the term of this Lease against 
the Premises, any improvements thereon or Lessee’s occupancy or operations thereon.  If Railroad 
pays any tax, assessment or charge which is Lessee’s obligation under the provisions of this Lease, 
all sums paid by Railroad shall be deemed to be additional rent and recoverable as such, and shall 
bear interest at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum, or the maximum rate allowed by law, 
whichever is less, from the date paid by Railroad until Railroad is reimbursed by Lessee. 

7. IMPROVEMENTS BY LESSEE -- RAILROAD CONSENT REQUIRED.  

No improvement shall be installed or constructed on the Premises by or on behalf of Lessee 
unless Railroad has received a complete set of plans and specifications for such improvement and 
Railroad’s authorized representative has given prior written consent thereof.  Railroad’s consent 
to any improvement of the Premises shall not result in an assumption of any responsibility or 
liability by Railroad arising from the installation or construction of any improvement, which shall 
be at the sole risk and expense of Lessee.  Lessee shall not permit any lien or claim of lien to be 
filed against Railroad or the Premises with respect to any improvement installed or constructed on 
the Premises by or on behalf of Lessee.  Lessee hereby waives its right to a lien with respect to any 
such improvement and shall require a waiver of lien against Railroad and the Premises by any 
party or parties who furnish labor, material or services with respect to an improvement of the 
Premises, such waiver to be delivered to and received by Railroad before any work is performed 
on the Premises.  FURTHERMORE, EACH PARTY WHO FURNISHES SUCH LABOR, 
MATERIAL OR SERVICES MUST AGREE IN WRITING TO BE DELIVERED TO AND 
RECEIVED BY RAILROAD BEFORE ANY WORK IS PERFORMED ON THE 
PREMISES (I) TO DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS RAILROAD FROM 
ANY LIABILITY ARISING IN CONNECTION WITH WORK TO BE PERFORMED ON 
THE PREMISES, AND (II) TO INSURE RAILROAD AGAINST ANY SUCH LIABILITY 
BY A POLICY OF INSURANCE WHICH IS SATISFACTORY TO RAILROAD’S 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE.  PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK 
ON THE PREMISES, LESSEE SHALL DELIVER TO RAILROAD COPIES OF ALL 
CONTRACTS AND INSURANCE POLICIES RELATIVE TO IMPROVEMENT OF THE 
PREMISES.  LESSEE AND/OR THEIR CONTRACTOR(S) WILL BE REQUIRED TO 
OBTAIN AND CARRY A RIGHT OF ENTRY AGREEMENT FROM THE MANAGER, 
PUBLIC WORKS OR AN AUTHORIZED RAILROAD REPRESENTATIVE THEREOF 
PRIOR TO ACCESSING THE PREMISES.

258

Item 38.



4

Thomas L. Brasseur 
Manager, Public Works 
24002 Vreeland Road 
Flat Rock, Michigan 48134 
email:  thomas.brasseur@cn.ca

8. LESSEE’S USE TO COMPLY WITH LEGAL REQUIREMENTS AND SHALL 
AVOID HAZARDS, NUISANCE, ETC. 

(a) Lessee agrees at its sole risk and expense to comply with all obligations 
imposed on it and on its use of the Premises under the terms of this Lease and any and all applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and requirements imposed by any governmental authority with jurisdiction 
over Lessee, Railroad or the Premises, any public ways adjacent to the Premises and/or the 
business conducted by Lessee on the Premises.  Lessee also agrees to comply with current 
circulars, specifications and standards (as they may be revised from time to time) imposed by the 
Association of American Railroads or any similar organization with respect to railroad operations 
on or in the vicinity of the Premises, copies of said circulars, specifications and standards being 
available for delivery to Lessee by Railroad upon written request. 

(b) During the term of this Lease, Lessee shall maintain in good and safe 
condition and in good order and repair, the Premises and all improvements thereon (except for 
railroad improvements to be maintained by Railroad or public improvements to be maintained by 
appropriate public bodies or public utilities), all at Lessee’s sole risk and expense.  Lessee shall 
also keep any sidewalks on or abutting the Premises in good order, repair and safe condition, 
unobstructed and free from snow and ice. 

(c) Lessee shall not erect or maintain any building, structure or physical 
obstruction of any kind adjacent to or over any railroad track at distances less than those prescribed 
by lawful authority, but in no event shall said distances be less than (i) eight and one-half (8 1/2) 
feet horizontally from the center line of any track, measured at right angles (said horizontal 
minimum clearance with respect to curved tracks to be increased by one inch for each degree of 
curvature); and (ii) twenty-five (25) feet vertically above top of rail (except as to wires, the 
overhead minimum clearance of which shall be in accordance with specifications of the current 
National Electrical Safety Code, and in no case less than twenty-seven (27) feet [twenty-five (25) 
feet in case of wires or cables suspended from messengers] above the top of rails), unless lesser 
distances are prescribed by lawful authority and approved, in writing by Railroad.  However, any 
written approval by Railroad shall not relieve Lessee from any risk arising from establishment of 
clearances less than those specifically provided above.  Lessee shall be responsible for ascertaining 
all clearance requirements imposed by lawful authority and Lessee hereby acknowledges that since 
Railroad’s crews are not able to make precise measurements during normal operations, Railroad’s 
continued operation of a track with clearances less than those prescribed herein shall not be a 
waiver of the requirements set forth herein. 

(d) Lessee shall not interfere with or obstruct drainage ditches or drain pipes on 
or below the surface of the Premises, nor shall Lessee put or permit any contaminous matter to 
enter into any drainage ditch or drain pipe on Premises.  If it should become necessary to make 
any change or alteration in any existing drainage ditch, drain pipe or pipes on the surface or below 
the surface of the Premises by reason of any improvements that Lessee may desire to construct 

259

Item 38.



5

thereon, Lessee shall, at its own risk and expense, make such changes or alterations in a manner 
satisfactory to the authorized officer of Railroad. 

(e) Lessee agrees that at all times during the term of this Lease, Lessee shall 
exercise due diligence to protect the Premises and all property located thereon and in the vicinity 
thereof against any danger of fire from any cause whatsoever.  Without limiting the generality of 
the foregoing, Lessee specifically agrees that artificial lighting shall be by electricity only and that 
flammable or explosive substances shall be adequately protected from hazards of fire and 
explosion and meet the requirements set forth in the then current edition of the National Electrical 
Safety Code with respect to Class I Hazardous Locations, the current specifications of the 
Association of American Railroads, and applicable federal, state and municipal laws, rules and 
regulations governing handling of flammable or explosive substances. 

(f) Lessee shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Material to be treated, 
stored, generated or disposed of on or in the Premises by Lessee, Lessee’s agents, employees, 
contractors, subcontractors or invitees, or any related persons or entities, without first obtaining 
Railroad’s written consent and in compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, 
regulations and requirements of all governmental authorities and the various departments thereof.  
DURING THE TERM OF THIS LEASE, IF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS ARE TREATED, 
STORED, GENERATED, OR DISPOSED OF ON OR IN THE PREMISES EXCEPT AS 
PERMITTED ABOVE, OR IF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS ARE TREATED, STORED, 
GENERATED, OR DISPOSED OF ON, IN, OR FROM THE PREMISES IN VIOLATION 
OF LOCAL, STATE, OR FEDERAL LAW, OR IF THE PREMISES OR SURROUNDING, 
ADJACENT OR NEARBY PROPERTY BECOMES CONTAMINATED IN ANY 
MANNER FOR WHICH LESSEE IS LEGALLY LIABLE, LESSEE SHALL DEFEND, 
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS RAILROAD FROM ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, 
DAMAGES, FINES, JUDGMENTS, PENALTIES, COSTS, LIABILITIES, OR LOSSES 
(INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, A DECREASE IN VALUE OF THE 
PREMISES, DAMAGES CAUSED BY LOSS OR RESTRICTION OF RENTABLE OR 
USABLE SPACE, OR ANY DAMAGES CAUSED BY ADVERSE IMPACT ON 
MARKETING OF THE SPACE, AND ANY AND ALL SUMS PAID FOR SETTLEMENT 
OF CLAIMS, ATTORNEYS’ FEES, CONSULTANT, AND EXPERT FEES) ARISING 
DURING OR AFTER THE LEASE TERM. THIS DEFENSE, INDEMNIFICATION AND 
HOLDING HARMLESS INCLUDES, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY AND ALL COSTS 
INCURRED BECAUSE OF ANY INVESTIGATION OF CONTAMINATION OR 
VIOLATION OF LOCAL, STATE OR FEDERAL LAW, OR ANY CLEANUP, 
REMOVAL, OR RESTORATION MANDATED BY A FEDERAL, STATE, OR LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT OR AGENCY THEREOF.  Without limitation of the foregoing, if Lessee 
causes or permits the presence of any Hazardous Material on the Premises that results in 
contamination, Lessee shall promptly, at its sole expense, take any and all necessary actions to 
return the Premises to the condition existing prior to the presence of any such Hazardous Material 
on the Premises.  Lessee shall first obtain Railroad’s approval for any such remedial action.  As 
used herein, “Hazardous Material” means and includes, without limit, any flammable explosives, 
radioactive materials, hazardous materials, hazardous wastes, hazardous or toxic substances, or 
related materials defined in the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and 
Liability Act of 1980, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 9601, et seq.), the Hazardous Material 
Transportation Act, as amended (49 U.S.C. §§ 1801, et seq.), the Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. § 6901, et seq.), and Toxic Substances Control Act, as 

260

Item 38.



6

amended (15 U.S.C. §§ 2601, et seq.), and in the regulations adopted and publications promulgated 
pursuant thereto, as such laws or regulations now exist or may exist in the future.  For purposes of 
this Lease, “Hazardous Material” shall include petroleum and any fraction thereof. 

(g) Lessee shall not permit any activity on the Premises which could reasonably 
be construed as a nuisance or annoyance to owners or occupants of property in the vicinity of the 
Premises or which might result in a claim of interference or risk to the health, welfare and/or safety 
of the community.  Lessee shall not dispose of “Solid Waste” on the Premises; as such term is 
defined in the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 6901 et seq.).  
Lessee shall in no way pollute the Premises or any surrounding property.  Railroad shall be the 
sole and exclusive judge as to whether any activity permitted by Lessee on the Premises violates 
the requirements of the foregoing provision.  Failure by Lessee to immediately abate or discontinue 
any nuisance or annoyance claimed by Railroad or to immediately remove the cause and affects 
of any pollution shall be considered a default under the provisions of this Lease. 

(h) The parties hereby acknowledge that sale or dispensation of intoxicating 
liquors on the Premises is prohibited, unless specifically permitted by an amendment to the Lease 
that is signed by Railroad’s authorized officer.  Such amendment shall require, among other things, 
that Lessee furnish dram shop insurance or other appropriate insurance protecting Railroad from 
the risks incident to such sale or dispensation, 

(i) Lessee shall be prohibited from placing or allowing on the Premises any 
signs other than a reasonable sign advertising Lessee’s business being conducted at the Premises 
or a “For Sale/Lease” sign on any building owned by Lessee and located on the Premises.  The 
size and location of any such permitted sign is subject to Railroad’s approval. 

9. INDEMNIFICATION.  AS FURTHER CONSIDERATION AND AS A 
CONDITION WITHOUT WHICH THIS LEASE WOULD NOT HAVE BEEN ISSUED 
AND TO THE EXTENT PERMISSIBLE BY LAW, LESSEE AGREES, REGARDLESS OF 
ANY NEGLIGENCE OR OTHER LEGAL FAULT BY OR ON THE PART OF 
RAILROAD OR ITS OWNERS, DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, 
INVITEES, LESSEES AND LICENSEES, AND RELATED PERSONS AND ENTITIES, 
TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND HOLD HARMLESS RAILROAD, ITS OWNERS, 
DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS (THE “RAILROAD PARTIES”) 
FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, DEMANDS, ACTIONS AND CAUSES 
OF ACTION, AND TO ASSUME ALL RISK, RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY 
(INCLUDING ALL LIABILITY FOR ANY EXPENSES, ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND 
COSTS INCURRED OR SUSTAINED BY RAILROAD OR ANY OF RAILROAD 
PARTIES, WHETHER IN DEFENSE OF ANY SUCH CLAIMS, DEMANDS, ACTIONS 
AND CAUSES OF ACTION OR IN THE ENFORCEMENT OF THE 
INDEMNIFICATION RIGHTS HEREBY CONFERRED OR OTHERWISE): 

(a) FOR DEATH OF, OR BODILY INJURY TO, ANY PERSONS, 
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, OWNERS, DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, 
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, INVITEES, LESSEES AND LICENSEES OF THE PARTIES 
HERETO, AND FOR LOSS, DAMAGE OR INJURY TO ANY PROPERTY, INCLUDING 
BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THAT BELONGING TO OR IN THE CUSTODY OR 
CONTROL OF THE OWNERS, DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, 

261

Item 38.



7

INVITEES, LESSEES AND LICENSEES OF THE PARTIES HERETO, IN WHOLE OR 
IN PART ARISING FROM, GROWING OUT OF, OR IN ANY MANNER OR DEGREE 
DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY CAUSED BY, ATTRIBUTABLE TO, OR RESULTING 
FROM THE ISSUANCE OR EXERCISE OF THIS LEASE OR THE FAILURE OF 
LESSEE TO CONFORM TO ALL THE CONDITIONS OF THIS LEASE, WORK 
PERFORMED BY RAILROAD FOR LESSEE UNDER THE TERMS OF THIS LEASE, 
THE CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, RENEWAL, ALTERATION, 
CHANGE, RELOCATION, EXISTENCE, PRESENCE, USE, OPERATION, OR 
REMOVAL OF ANY FACILITIES INCIDENT THERETO, OR FROM ANY ACTIVITY 
CONDUCTED BY OR ON BEHALF OF LESSEE ON OR IN THE VICINITY OF THE 
AREA COVERED BY THE LEASE, AND

(b) FOR DEATH OF, OR BODILY INJURY TO, THE OWNERS, 
DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, INVITEES, AND RELATED 
PERSONS AND ENTITIES OF LESSEE, AND FOR ANY AND ALL LOSS, DAMAGE OR 
INJURY TO THEIR PROPERTY, AND TO ANY PROPERTY BELONGING TO OR IN 
THE CARE, CUSTODY AND CONTROL OF LESSEE, IN WHOLE OR IN PART 
ARISING FROM, GROWING OUT OF, OR IN ANY MANNER OR DEGREE DIRECTLY 
OR INDIRECTLY CAUSED BY, ATTRIBUTABLE TO OR RESULTING FROM THE 
CONDUCT OF ANY RAILROAD OPERATIONS AT OR NEAR THE PREMISES. 

It is the intention of the parties hereto that Lessee shall be solely responsible for all such destruction 
or damage to property or for bodily injury to death of persons which would not have occurred if 
the Premises had never been leased.  The word “Railroad” as used in this Section shall include the 
assigns of Railroad and any other railroad company that may be operating upon and over any tracks 
crossing the Premises.  At the election of Railroad, Lessee, upon receipt of notice to that effect, 
shall assume or join in the defense of any claim based upon allegations purporting to bring said 
claim within the coverage of this section. 

10. INSURANCE.  Lessee shall provide and maintain in effect during the term of this 
Lease commercial general liability insurance (occurrence based), including public liability, 
property damage, and comprehensive liability covering liability assumed by Lessee under the 
provisions of Lessee’s convents herein. Such insurance shall have a minimum combined single 
limit of liability of $5,000,000, with an aggregate of not less than $7,000,000. The insurance 
shall not contain an exclusion for either damage occurring on, near or adjacent to railroad 
property. Such insurance shall be primary and non-contributory.  

Lessee shall provide and maintain in effect during the term of this Lease Environmental Legal 
Liability Insurance applicable to bodily injury, property damage, including loss of use of 
damaged property or of property that has not been physically injury or destroyed;  cleanup costs; 
and defense, including costs and expenses incurred in the investigation, defense or settlement of 
claims, or compliance with statute; all in connection with any loss from surface, subsurface 
pollution contamination or seepage, or handling, treatment, disposal, or dumping of waste 
materials or substances. Coverage shall be maintained in an amount of not less than $2,000,000 
per pollution incident, with an annual aggregate of not less than $7,000,000. Such insurance shall 
be primary and non-contributory.   

262

Item 38.



8

Lessee shall also keep its personal property, fixtures, and any buildings and improvements 
constructed or placed on the Premises by Lessee insured with “Causes of Loss – Special Form” 
(or equivalent) insurance in an amount to cover one hundred percent (100%) of the replacement 
cost of such property, fixtures, buildings and improvements.   

All insurance required hereunder shall be in companies and form acceptable to Railroad and such 
insurance policies shall be endorsed to name Railroad as an additional insured party and to 
provide not less than thirty (30) days to Railroad of any cancellation thereof any material change 
in coverage. Lessee agrees to cause all insurance policies to contain a waiver of subrogation 
against Railroad, its owners, directors, officers, employees and agents (the “Railroad Parties”) 
and to be so written that the insurers shall have no claim or recourse of any kind whatsoever 
against Railroad, Railroad Parties, or the Premises. Lessee shall furnish to Railroad complete 
copies of all such insurance policies with evidence of payment and premiums therefore.  The 
providing of said insurance coverage and Railroad’s acceptance thereof shall not be deemed a 
limitation or modification of the liability or obligations of Lessee as provided in this Lease, but 
shall be additional security therefore. 

Lessee may self-insure for any and all required insurance. 

11. DEFAULT. 

(a) If Railroad does not receive in full any installment of rent by the date such 
payment is due and such default continues for a period of ten (10) days, or if Lessee shall default 
in the performance of any other covenants or agreements herein contained and such default 
continues for a period of ten (10) days after Railroad delivers written notice thereof to Lessee, or 
if bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, foreclosure of any similar proceedings affecting Lessee 
shall be instituted and not dismissed for a period of ten (10) days, or if Lessee abandons the 
Premises for a period of thirty (30) days, Railroad may, in any such instance, at its election treat 
such occurrence as a breach of this Lease and have one or more of the following described 
remedies, in addition to any and all remedies available at law or in equity. 

(i) Railroad may terminate this Lease and the term created hereby, in which 
event Railroad may forthwith repossess the Premises and be entitled to recover as 
damages a sum of money equal to the value of the rent and additional rent provided 
to be paid by Lessee for the Premises for the balance of the stated term of the Lease, 
less the fair rental value of the Premises for said period (and the result thereof shall 
then be reduced to its present value using a discount rate of 10%), and any other 
sum of money and damages owed by Lessee to Railroad. 

(ii) Railroad may terminate Lessee’s right of possession and may repossess the 
Premises by any lawful means, without further demand or notice of any kind to 
Lessee and without terminating this Lease, in which event Railroad shall, to the 
extent it is required by law to mitigate any damages, relet all or any part of the 
Premises, for such rent and upon such terms as shall be commercially reasonable 
and satisfactory to Railroad (including the right to relet the Premises for a term 
greater or lesser than that remaining under the term of this Lease and the right to 
relet the Premises as a part of a larger area and the right to change the character or 
use made of the Premises).  For the purpose of such reletting, Railroad is authorized 

263

Item 38.



9

to make any repairs, changes, alterations or additions in or to the Premises that may 
be necessary or convenient and if Railroad shall fail or refuse to relet the Premises 
or if the Premises are relet and a sufficient sum shall not be realized from such 
reletting after paying the costs and expenses of such repairs, changes, alterations 
and additions and the expenses of such reletting and of the collection of the rent 
accruing therefrom to satisfy the rent provided for in this Lease to be paid, then 
Lessee shall pay to Railroad as damages a sum equal to the amount of the rent and 
additional rent reserved in this Lease for such period or periods, or, if the Premises 
have been relet, Lessee shall satisfy and pay any such deficiency upon demand 
therefor from time to time, and Lessee agrees that Railroad may file suit to recover 
any sums falling due under the terms of this paragraph and any other sums due 
under this Lease from time to time and that no suit or recovery of any portion due 
Railroad hereunder shall be any defense to any subsequent action brought for any 
amount not theretofore reduced to judgment in favor of Railroad. 

Lessee hereby agrees that to the extent any of the foregoing notice periods provided in this 
Article 11 and elsewhere in this Lease are greater than the notice periods required under the 
applicable state statutes, such greater notice periods as are provided for herein shall substitute for 
any such statutory notice periods, and any notices given pursuant to the terms hereof shall be 
deemed the notice required by any such statute. 

(b) Whenever or however this Lease or Lessee’s right to possession is 
terminated, Railroad shall have the right (without being guilty of any manner of trespass or forcible 
entry or detainer) either with or without notice or demand, and either with or without process of 
law, to immediately take possession of Premises and any improvements thereon, and to remove 
therefrom Lessee and any and all effects that may be then on the Premises, using such force as 
may be necessary, and to repossess and enjoy the Premises.  When the term of this Lease shall be 
ended for any cause, Lessee covenants and agrees to give up and surrender to Railroad peaceably 
and immediately the Premises and all improvements thereon without further demand or notice, 
and in good order, repair and condition, failing which Railroad may restore the Premises and 
improvements to good order, repair and condition at the sole risk and expense of Lessee.  
Termination of this Lease shall not affect Railroad’s rights with respect to Lessee’s obligations for 
rent or otherwise and shall not prevent Railroad from pursuing such other actions or proceedings, 
as it may deem advisable. 

(c) Lessee agrees that Railroad shall at all times have the right to distrain for 
rent due, and shall have a first lien upon all building, structures or other personal property of Lessee 
on the Premises, whether exempt by law or not, as security for the payment of the rent and other 
amounts to be paid hereunder, and the faithful performance of the covenants herein contained, and 
in the event of default on the part of Lessee in any respect under this Lease, Railroad shall have 
the right to take the said property and sell it at public auction, giving such notice as is required by 
law and from the proceeds of such sale to pay all rents, expenses or other amounts which may at 
such time be due, and to pay over to Lessee the surplus moneys arising from such sale. 

(d) If Lessee fails to substantially begin compliance with any obligations under 
the terms of this Lease after receiving ten (10) days written notice from Railroad, Railroad may, 
at its option, perform such obligations at the sole risk and expense of Lessee.  Cost of work 
performed by Railroad for Lessee’s account as referred to in this Lease is hereby defined to be the 

264

Item 38.



10

cost of labor and material furnished by Railroad and rental on equipment used.  To the cost of labor 
there shall be added 10% to cover supervision and accounting.  Also added shall be the cost of 
vacation allowance, paid holiday allowance, health and welfare allowance, Railroad Retirement 
and/or Social Security taxes, unemployment compensation and premiums on workmen’s 
compensation, property damage and public liability insurance.  To the cost of material there shall 
be added 15% to cover accounting, handling and transportation.  In addition, the cost shall include 
taxes payable by Railroad under any excise, sales or use tax based on the wages of labor, cost of 
material, or the gross cost of the work, as the case may be.  Lessee shall pay bills covering such 
cost and expense as herein defined within fifteen (15) days after the receipt thereof.  Bills not paid 
when due shall bear interest at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum from the date due, or 
the maximum rate allowed by law, whichever is less. 

(e) In the event that Railroad shall incur any costs or expenses, including 
attorneys’ fees and costs, in enforcing Lessee’s covenants and agreements under this Lease, Lessee 
shall reimburse Railroad for all such costs, expenses and attorneys’ fees as additional rent 
hereunder. 

(f) Acceptance of money by Railroad from Lessee after any default by Lessee 
or after the expiration of the term of this Lease or after the service of any notice or after the 
commencement of any suit, or after final judgment for possession of the Premises, shall not waive 
such default or reinstate, continue or extend the term of this Lease or affect any such notice or suit, 
as the case may be. 

12. TERMINATION OF THIS LEASE/NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIAL CHANGE. 

(a) Railroad shall have the right at any time in its sole and absolute discretion 
to terminate this Lease and recover possession of the Premises by delivery to Lessee of thirty (30) 
days prior written notice of Railroad’s election.  Railroad shall also give Lessee thirty (30) days 
prior written notice before a substantial change occurs which effects Lessee’s rights herein.  If this 
Lease is terminated pursuant to this Section without any default by Lessee, Lessee shall be entitled 
to refund of the balance of the security deposit, if any, and unearned prepaid rental, which is not 
required to satisfy Lessee's obligations. 

(b) Upon termination of this Lease by expiration of the term, election of 
Railroad, or pursuant to any provision of this Lease, Lessee shall remove all buildings, structures, 
foundations, footings, materials, signs, debris or other articles or facilities owned or used by 
Lessee, above or below the surface of the premises by Lessee, or by any person, firm or corporation 
or former Lessee through which the Lessee does or did at any time obtain a clear position of the 
premises whether by assignment or otherwise. Lessee agrees to restore the premises to a condition 
satisfactory to the Railroad.   Lessee shall be responsible to leave the Premises in a neat, safe and 
clean condition and if Lessee fails to do so, Railroad shall have the right to perform necessary 
work at the sole risk and expense of Lessee.  Termination date of said Lease will not be in effect 
until all buildings and structures, if any, are removed from the Premises and all rental payments 
and any and all costs incurred by the Railroad, if any, are paid by Lessee. 

(c) Railroad shall have the right, but not the duty, to require Lessee to remove 
from the Premises any improvement which is installed or constructed on the Premises by Lessee, 
said removal to be performed at Lessee's sole risk and expense, and if Lessee fails to so perform 

265

Item 38.



11

Railroad shall have the right to perform necessary work to remove said improvement and to restore 
the Premises, all at the sole risk and expense of Lessee. 

(d) No termination of this Lease shall release either party hereto from any 
liability or obligation that has accrued prior to said termination. 

13. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS -- NO ASSIGNMENT PERMITTED WITHOUT 
RAILROAD CONSENT. 

(a) Lessee shall not have the right to assign this Lease or to sublet the Premises 
or any part thereof, without the prior written consent of Railroad, which may be withheld for any 
reason or no reason.  Lessee shall not allow or permit any transfer of this Lease or any interest 
hereunder by operation or law and shall not convey, mortgage, pledge or encumber this Lease or 
the Premises.  Any attempted assignment, sublease or transfer of this Lease shall be void if not 
made pursuant to Railroad’s prior written consent. 

(b) This Lease and all covenants, agreements, terms and conditions contained 
herein shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors, assigns and transferees of 
Railroad and the permitted successors, assigns and transferees of Lessee. 

14. MISCELLANEOUS. 

(a) If the whole or any part of the Premises shall be taken or condemned by any 
competent authority for any purpose, or is sold by Railroad under the threat of condemnation, the 
term of this Lease shall end upon and not before the date when possession of the part so taken shall 
be required for such use or purpose and without apportionment of the award.  Current rent shall be 
apportioned as of the date of such termination and Lessee shall have no right to share in the 
condemnation award or sales proceeds. 

(b) Railroad shall have the right at any time, but not the obligation, to inspect 
Premises to assure itself that there has been compliance with the terms of this Lease, but the 
exercise by Railroad of such right, or the failure to exercise the same, shall not relieve Lessee of 
any obligation imposed upon Lessee under the terms of this Lease.  Railroad shall have the right, 
during the period of ninety (90) days prior to the expiration or other termination of the term hereof, 
to post on the Premises notices of “For Rent” or “For Sale” and to show the Premises to prospective 
tenants or purchasers. 

(c) This Lease is made subject to the approval of any governmental authority 
having jurisdiction thereover. 

(d) The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of the Lease shall not 
affect or impair any other provision. 

(e) It is expressly agreed by and between the parties hereto that the agreements, 
terms and covenants contained in this Lease are the entire agreement entered into between the 
parties affecting the lease of the Premises. 

266

Item 38.



12

(f) Failure or delay of Railroad to require full compliance with any one or more 
of the terms of this Lease shall not be held as a waiver of a right to subsequently insist upon such 
compliance or terminate this Lease, or to terminate this Lease for any subsequent breach which 
may occur, or to enforce any other provision of this Lease. 

(g) Railroad and Lessee voluntarily, intentionally and irrevocably waive the 
right to a trial by jury with respect to any legal proceeding based hereon or arising out of, under or 
in connection with this Lease. 

(h) The captions of the various Sections of this Lease are for convenience only 
and are not to be considered in the interpretation hereof. 

(i) This Lease shall be governed by the laws of the State in which the Premises 
are located, without regard to choice of law principles. 

(j) Lessee agrees, at Lessee’s sole cost and expense, to keep the Premises in a 
neat and orderly condition during the term of this Lease. 

(k)       Lessee agrees, at Lessee’s sole cost and expense, during the lease period to 
maintain all roads and to repair/maintain all fencing during the term of this Lease.   

 (l) Proper PPE (hard hat, safety vest, safety glasses and safety shoes) must be 
worn by all employees at all times while on the Premises, except when in a vehicle, or mowing or 
weed trimming.  

 (m) Lessee will not allow snow removal or debris to be placed on adjacent 
Railroad property. 

(n) Lessee will not negatively impact drainage from Railroad property. 

(o) Lessee will not impair or damage track structure. 

(p) Railroad to inspect the condition of the property prior to lease termination 
to ensure the Premises are in equal or better condition than the condition at the start of the Lease 
term. 

15. NOTICES.  All notices to be given to Lessee shall be considered as having been 
properly given upon mailing such notice by certified U. S. mail, postage prepaid, addressed to 
Lessee at its billing and mailing address set forth above.  For the purposes of effectuating 
termination of the Lease, notice may be served upon Lessee by (a) personally delivering notice of 
termination to Lessee; (b) by personally delivering notice to any of Lessee’s employees on the 
Premises; (c) by posting said notice of termination on the Premises; or (d) by mail as above 
provided.  Utilization of any one or more of such methods for giving notice of termination of this 
Lease shall be considered to be proper notice to Lessee. 

All notices to Railroad shall be addressed to the Senior Manager, Real Estate, at the address 
stated above or to such other address as may be designated by written notice given by Railroad’s 
authorized representative, by U. S. certified mail, return receipt requested and shall be considered 
as having been properly given when actually received by Railroad. 

267

Item 38.



13

16. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  If the Premises are sold or transferred, voluntarily 
or involuntarily, Railroad’s Lease obligations and liabilities accruing after the transfer shall be the 
sole responsibility of the new owner.  If Railroad, its agents, employees, officers, directors or 
owners are ordered to pay Lessee a judgment because of Railroad’s default, then Lessee’s sole 
remedy to satisfy the judgment shall be Railroad’s interest in the Premises. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Lease to be executed in 
duplicate originals as of the day and year first above written. 

RAILROAD:
CHICAGO, CENTRAL & PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY 
17641 S. Ashland Avenue 
Homewood, Illinois 60430 

By:_________________________________________  
       James V. Fountain 
       Senior Manager, Real Estate 

LESSEE: 

By: ___________________________________ 

Print Name: ____________________________ 

Print Title: _____________________________ 

268

Item 38.



FIRST ST.

N
 S

T
.

A
Y

 S
T

.

S
T

.

O
N

T
 S

T
.

CEDAR RIVER

1
2
.2

m
±
 [4

0
.0

'±
]

6
.1

m
±
 [2

0
.0

'±
]

C
E

N
T

E
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

SUBDIVISION:

SPUR / ANTENNE:

SCALE / ÉCHELLE:THIS IS NOT A PLAN OF SURVEY / CECI N'EST PAS UN PLAN D'ARPENTAGE

DATE:

MILEAGE / MILLIAIRE:

LEASE SKETCHDESCRIPTION:
Cedar Falls

Blackhawk County

State of Iowa

United States of America

385_
2810.dw

g (EN
_

LS
_

2) LYO
U

T: 3003480

E
X

H
IB

IT A

Subject Lands/Terrain Sujet 

N

269

Item 38.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Thom Weintraut, AICP Planner III 
 

 DATE: May 6, 2024 

SUBJECT: Approval of Demolition Contract for the Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout
 Program, Project No. FL-000-3198 
 
Staff requested bids for demolition for the property located at 1218 Cottage Row Road. 
Council has seen previous action for the property with the approval of a purchase 
agreement on February 5, 2024, and more recently on March 18, 2024, the execution of 
a contract for asbestos testing. Once the City purchases the property and the asbestos 
testing and abatement, if needed, is complete, the City anticipates moving forward with 
the demolition of the structure in early May. 

Staff sent a Request for Bids to eight (8) contractors and received a bid from the two 
listed below. 

 Benton’s Sand and Gravel 

 Lehman Trucking & Excavating, Inc. 

Below is a summary of those bids.  

Property Address 
Lehman Trucking & 

Excavating, INC. 
Benton’s Sand & 

Gravel INC. 

1218 Cottage Row Road $13,354.00 $7,995.00 

 

The lowest bid was from Benton’s Sand & Gravel INC. in Cedar Falls with a total 
amount of $7,995.00. Funding for demolition of the properties is identified as part of the 
FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant. Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract 
and Certificate of Insurance. 

270

Item 39.



 
The Department of Community Development recommends approving and executing the 
contract with Benton’s Sand & Gravel, Inc for the demolition of the structure located at 
1218 Cottage Row Road.  It is anticipated that demolition will be completed by the end 
of May 2024. 

 If you have any questions or comments, please contact me.  
 
 
 
Attachments: 

Contract with Benton’s Sand & Gravel, INC. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development  
 Karen Howard, AICP, Planning and  Community Services Manager  

271

Item 39.



272

Item 39.



273

Item 39.



274

Item 39.



275

Item 39.



276

Item 39.



277

Item 39.



278

Item 39.



279

Item 39.



280

Item 39.



281

Item 39.



 

Exhibit “A” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Request for Bids 
 
 
 
February 26, 2024 
 
 
RE: Demolition Services 
 Properties:  1218 Cottage Row Road 

   
 
Sent Via USPS 
 
Greetings: 
  
The City of Cedar Falls is requesting RFPs for the demolition of the following property 
as part of a FEMA Hazard Mitigation Flood Buyout Program: 1218 Cottage Row Road. 
The structure will be tested for asbestos and if the structure has any asbestos present, it 
will be removed prior to any demolition work. We would like your firm to submit a 
proposal for the demolition of this property.   
 
If you wish to submit a proposal, please return it to me by noon on Friday, March 8, 
2024. The firm will be selected based on the lowest proposed fee and the contract will 
be presented for Council approval on March 18, 2024. Notice to Proceed on the project 
will be issued after the contract has been approved by City Council. Demolition for all 
properties must be completed by May 1, 2024, per the FEMA Flood Buyout Program 
requirements. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Thomas Weintraut, AICP 
Planner III 

282

Item 39.



Exhibit “B” 

 
283

Item 39.



Exhibit “C”

 
284

Item 39.



 

285

Item 39.



 

286

Item 39.



 

287

Item 39.



 

288

Item 39.



 

289

Item 39.



 

290

Item 39.



 

291

Item 39.



 

292

Item 39.



 

293

Item 39.



 

294

Item 39.



 

295

Item 39.



 

296

Item 39.



 

297

Item 39.



 

298

Item 39.



 

299

Item 39.



 

300

Item 39.



 

301

Item 39.



 

302

Item 39.



 

303

Item 39.



 

304

Item 39.



 

305

Item 39.



 

306

Item 39.



 

307

Item 39.



 

308

Item 39.



 

309

Item 39.



 

310

Item 39.



 

311

Item 39.



 

312

Item 39.



 

313

Item 39.



 

314

Item 39.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Thom Weintraut, AICP Planner III 
 

 DATE: May 6, 2024 

SUBJECT: Approval of Demolition Contract for 523 W 1st Street 
 
Staff requested bids for demolition of the property located at 523 W 1st Street. On January 
3, 2024, Council accepted the warranty deed for the property which had been purchased 
in November 2023. March 18, 2024, Council approved a contract for asbestos testing and 
abatement. The asbestos testing revealed minimal amounts of asbestos and once this 
has been abated the demolition will move forward. 

Staff sent a Request for Bids to eight (8) contractors and received a bid from the two listed 
below. 

 Benton’s Sand and Gravel 

 Lehman Trucking & Excavating, Inc. 

Below is a summary of those bids.  

Property Address 
Benton’s Sand & 

Gravel INC. 
Lehman Trucking 
& Excavating, Inc. 

528 W 1st Street $20,127.50 19,054.00 

 

In addition to the demolition of the house and the garage, the contract includes the 
removal of the two curb cuts and the construction of new curbing along this and the 
adjoining property owned by the City. 

The Department of Community Development recommends approving and executing the 
contract with Lehman Trucking & Excavating, Inc for the demolition of the structure 

315

Item 40.



located at 523 W 1st Street.  It is anticipated that demolition will move forward by the end 
of May 2024. 

 If you have any questions or comments, please contact me.  
 
 
 
Attachments: 

Contract with Lehman Trucking & Excavating, Inc. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development  
 Karen Howard, AICP, Planning and  Community Services Manager  

316

Item 40.



1 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

SERVICE/PRODUCT AGREEMENTS 

 

This Agreement is by and between __Lehman Trucking & Excavating INC._________ (“Contractor”) and the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa (“City”), and is to be effective on the date last signed by the Contractor or the City below. 

1.0.       Contractor’s Services 

1.1.       Contractor’s services shall consist only of the those services and/or products provided or supplied by 

Contractor as defined in this Agreement and as listed on Exhibit “A” attached.  (“Services” or “Scope of Services”) 

1.2.       Contractor shall not commence or perform any work outside the Scope of Services unless and until 

authorized in writing by the City.  No changes to the Scope of Services shall be valid unless agreed to by both the 

Contractor and the City in writing.  Any work performed or expenses incurred by the Contractor shall be conclusively 

presumed to be part of the Scope of Services unless a written change order covering such work, and the cost of such 

work, has been agreed to in advance.  If Exhibit “A” includes provisions for contingent services, such services shall 

not be performed until written authorization is given by the City.  

1.3.       Contractor shall assign qualified and experienced personnel to perform the Services, and Contractor hereby 

warrants to the City that Contractor has sufficient experience and financial resources to complete the Services 

required by this Agreement.  Where the Scope of Services identifies particular personnel who shall perform the 

Services, such personnel shall remain assigned to provide the Services throughout the term of this Agreement, 

unless otherwise approved in writing by the City.  In the event that such particular personnel must be replaced, 

Contractor agrees to replace such particular personnel with persons of equivalent or better qualifications, as 

approved by the City. 

1.4.       Contractor shall perform the Services in a timely manner and in accordance with any schedule set forth in 

Exhibit “A”.  The Contractor and the City agree that time is of the essence with respect to Contractor’s performance 

under this Agreement.         

1.5.       Contractor warrants that its fulfillment of this Agreement will not infringe on or misappropriate the rights of any 

third party, and that the Contractor has the complete right and full authority to convey ownership of the Services to 

the City.  Contractor shall obtain all required governmental and third-party licenses, approvals and permits for the 

provision of Services, at Contractor’s cost. 

1.6.       The person signing this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor represents and warrants that the person has 

full and sufficient authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor. 

2.0.       Compensation 

2.1.       All bids and prices shall be shown in U.S. Dollars.  All prices must remain firm for the duration of this 

Agreement. 

2.2.       After inspection (if applicable) and acceptance by the City of Services, City shall pay Contractor in 

accordance with the payment terms set forth in Exhibit “B”.  The maximum amount of all payments for Services shall 

be the amount set forth in Exhibit “B”, unless additional Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, in which 

case the maximum amount of all payments shall be adjusted accordingly.   

2.3.       Following acceptance of Services by the City, payment shall be made to the Contractor within thirty (30) days 

of receipt of a proper invoice.  The invoice shall include, at a minimum, the name and address of the Contractor, the 

invoice number, the date services were performed or goods were shipped, a general description of the services or 

317

Item 40.



2 
 

goods, total amount to be paid, any discounts or credits, and the net amount to be paid.  The invoice shall be mailed 

or emailed to the authorized representative of the City listed below, at the address listed below. 

2.4.       Expenses shall not be reimbursed to the Contractor unless specifically described in Exhibit “B”. 

2.5.       If services in addition to the Scope of Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, Contractor must 

provide a separate invoice for such additional services before payment will be made. 

2.6.       If the City fails to make any payment when due to the Contractor, the Contractor may charge the City interest 

on the unpaid balance at the rate of 5% per annum until paid.  In addition, Contractor may, after giving at least seven 

(7) days written notice to the City, suspend services under this Agreement until such unpaid balance is paid in full. 

2.7.       Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the City may withhold payment to Contractor for 

faulty Services, or if the City is advised of liens or other claims against any Services, including products. 

3.0.       Taxes. 

3.1.       The City is exempt from all federal, State of Iowa, and other states’ taxes on the purchase of products and 

services used by the City within the State of Iowa.  The City shall provide tax exemption certification as requested.   

3.2.       Any charges for taxes from which the City is exempt will be deducted from invoices before payment is made.  

4.0.       Ownership and Use of Documents 

4.1.       All Services to be provided under this Agreement, and any invention, improvement, discovery, or innovation 

(whether or not patentable) made, conceived or actually reduced to practice by Contractor in the performance of the 

Scope of Services in this Agreement will be owned exclusively by the City, including all proprietary and intellectual 

property rights.  To the extent not automatically vested in the City, Contractor hereby assigns to the City all right, title 

and interest in and to the Services, including, without limitation, copyright, patent and trade secret rights.  Upon the 

City’s request, Contractor shall execute any additional documents necessary for the City to perfect such ownership 

rights.   

4.2.       Notwithstanding Section 4.1, Contractor retains ownership of its pre-existing and proprietary materials and 

other intellectual property that may be incorporated into the Services. 

4.3.       Copies of City furnished data that may be relied upon by Contractor are limited to the printed copies (also 

known as hard copies) that are delivered to the Contractor.  Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, or 

of other formats that are furnished by the City to the Contractor are only for the convenience of the Contractor.  Any 

conclusion or information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the Contractor’s sole risk. 

4.4.       During the term of this Agreement and following completion or termination of the Agreement, the Contractor 

and any authorized Subcontractors shall maintain all accounting records and other documentation generated in 

providing Services under this Agreement.  The City or its designee shall be allowed to have access to such 

information for the purpose of inspection, audit and copying during normal business hours for a period of five (5) 

years after the final payment by the City, termination of this Agreement, or resolution of all matters under this 

Agreement, whichever date is latest.  No additional compensation shall be paid to Contractor for such retention or 

inspection by the City or designee.  

5.0.       Termination. 

5.1.       The City may terminate this Agreement at any time for its convenience by giving written notice to the 

Contractor of such termination and specifying the effective date of the termination, at least thirty (30) calendar days 

before the effective date of termination.  In that event, all finished or unfinished Services, reports and materials 

prepared or furnished by the Contractor shall, at the option of the City, become the City’s property.  If the Agreement 

is terminated by the City as provided herein, the Contractor shall be paid for all Services which have been authorized, 

318

Item 40.



3 
 

approved and provided up to the effective date of termination.  The City will not be subject to any termination fees 

from the Contractor. 

5.2.       Either party may terminate this Agreement upon seven (7) calendar days written notice in the event that the 

other party fails to substantially perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party 

initiating the termination. 

6.0.       Warranties. 

6.1.       Contractor represents and warrants that Services shall be performed in a manner consistent with the 

standard of care of other professional service providers in a similar industry and application.   

6.2.       Contractor represents and warrants that products delivered as part of the Scope of Services, including each 

component, shall be free of defects and shall conform to the quality standards of the applicable industry and shall 

meet in all respects the requirements of the Scope of Services.  If any defect or sign of deterioration is identified by 

the City within one year after delivery which is not due to the acts or omissions of the City, Contractor shall, within 15 

days after notification by the City, at Contractor’s expense, repair, adjust or replace such items to the complete 

satisfaction of the City.  

6.3.       Contractor shall be responsible for the quality, technical accuracy, completeness and coordination of all 

Services under this Agreement.  Contractor shall promptly and without charge, provide all corrective work necessary 

as a result of Contractor’s acts, errors or omissions with respect to the quality and accuracy of Contractor’s Services. 

6.4.       Contractor shall be responsible for any and all damages to property or persons as a result of Contractor’s 

acts, errors or omissions in performing the Services under this Agreement, and for any losses or costs to repair or 

remedy any Services undertaken by the City as a result of any such acts, errors or omissions. 

6.5.       Contractor’s obligations shall exist without regard to, and shall not be construed to be waived by, the 

availability or unavailability of any insurance, either by the City or by the Contractor.  None of the provisions of this 

Agreement shall be construed as a limitation on the City’s right to seek recovery of damages it suffers as a result of 

Contractor’s fault or breach. 

7.0.       Warranties – Intellectual Property.   

7.1.       Contractor represents and warrants that the Services produced or provided to the City do not infringe upon 

any copyright, trademark, trade name, trade dress patent, statutory, common law or any other right of any person or 

entity. 

7.2.       Contractor represents and warrants that the Services, and the City’s use of the same, and the exercise by the 

City of the rights granted by this Agreement, shall not infringe upon any other work or violate the rights of publicity or 

privacy of, or constitute a libel or slander against, any person or entity. 

7.3.       Contractor represents and warrants that it is the owner of or otherwise has the right to use and distribute the 

Services contemplated by this Agreement. 

8.0.       Disputes. 

8.1.       Should any dispute arise with respect to this Agreement, the parties agree to act immediately to resolve such 

dispute.  Time is of the essence in the resolution of disputes. 

8.2.       Contractor agrees that, the existence of a dispute notwithstanding, it will continue without delay to carry out 

all of its responsibilities under this Agreement that are not affected by the dispute and the City shall continue to make 

payment for all Services that are performed in conformance with this Agreement.  Should the Contractor fail to 

continue to perform its responsibilities regarding all non-disputed Services, without delay, any additional costs 

incurred by the City or the Contractor as a result of such failure to proceed shall be borne by the Contractor. 

319

Item 40.



4 
 

8.3.       Should any dispute between the parties remain unresolved, the parties mutually agree to engage in 

mediation prior to the filing of suit by either party.  The cost of mediation shall be divided equally between the parties 

except that each party shall be responsible for that party’s own expenses and attorney fees associated with 

mediation.  The City shall not engage in arbitration of any dispute. 

9.0.       Indemnification. 

9.1.       Contractor (including, for purposes of this Section, Contractor’s agents, employees, subcontractors or others 

working on behalf of Contractor) shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City and its elected and appointed 

officers, its employees, and agents working on behalf of the City, from any and all liability, loss, cost, damage and 

expense (including reasonable attorney fees and court costs) resulting from, arising out of, or related in any way to 

any claims, demands, actions or suits based upon or alleging personal injury, including bodily injury or death, and 

property damages, arising out of or in any way connected or associated with the Contractor’s performance under this 

Agreement. 

9.2.       Contractor’s duty of indemnification and to hold harmless includes, but is not limited to, Contractor’s breach 

or alleged breach of the warranties found in Sections 6.0 and 7.0 above, and shall survive the termination of this 

Agreement. 

9.3.       It is specifically agreed between the parties that this Agreement is not intended to create in the public or any 

member of the public, any third party beneficiary status or to authorize anyone not a party to this Agreement to 

maintain a suit for personal injuries or property damage.        

10.0.       Insurance. 

Contractor shall at all times during the performance of this Agreement maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit “C” 

unless this insurance requirement is waived by the City in this Section. 

Insurance requirement waived:  _______________________________________________(Signature and title of 

authorized City employee or officer)   

The City may at any time during the term of this Agreement require proof of such insurance. 

11.0.       Compliance with Laws and Regulations. 

11.1.       Contractor certifies that in performing this Agreement it will comply with all applicable provisions of federal, 

state and local laws, ordinances, rules, licenses and regulations. 

11.2.       Contractor is responsible for determining which products are considered to be hazardous chemicals under 

applicable standards and to provide the most current Safety Data Sheet (“SDS”) with the initial shipment of such 

chemicals.  Failure by Contractor to do so may be considered by the City to be delivery of a defective product and its 

delivery may be refused.  It is also the Contractor’s responsibility to provide to the City any updated or revised SDS 

as it becomes available for any such hazardous chemicals sold and delivered to the City. 

12.0.       Independent Contractor. 

Both parties shall act in their individual capacities in the performance of this Agreement and not as agents, 

employees, partners, joint ventures or associates of one another.  The employees or agents of one party shall not be 

deemed or construed to be the employees or agents of the other for any purpose whatsoever. 

13.0.       Non-Collusion. 

13.1.       Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has employed any person to solicit or 

procure this Agreement, nor will the Contractor make any payment or agreement for payment of any compensation in 

connection with the solicitation or procurement of this Agreement. 

320

Item 40.



5 
 

13.2.       Contractor agrees that there is no agreement, arrangement or understanding expressed or implied, 

contemplating any division of compensation for Services provided under this Agreement, or in the participation in 

such Services, directly or indirectly, by any person or entity, except as provided in this Agreement.  

13.3.       Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has either directly or indirectly entered 

into any agreement, arrangement or understanding to collude or otherwise take any action in restraint of free 

competitive procurement in connection with this Agreement. 

14.0.       Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity. 

14.1.       Contractor will not in the performance of this Agreement unlawfully discriminate against any employee or 

applicant for employment because of race, sex, color, creed, national origin, marital or familial status, religion, age, 

disability, sexual orientation, gender identity, genetic information or veteran status, or any other classification 

protected by federal, state, or local law.   

14.2.       Contractor shall inform all subcontractors and agents performing under this Agreement of this 

nondiscrimination and equal opportunity requirement and shall take reasonable steps to ensure their compliance with 

the same. 

15.0.       No Conflict of Interest, 

Contractor represents, warrants and covenants that no relationship exists or will exist during the term of this 

Agreement that is a conflict of interest under Iowa law.  No employee, officer or agent of the Contractor shall 

participate in the procurement or performance of this Agreement if a conflict of interest exists as to such person.  

Should a conflict of interest arise during the term of this Agreement for Contractor or any employee, officer or agent of 

Contractor, Contractor shall immediately notify the City, in which case this Agreement may be terminated and any 

additional costs incurred by the City due to such termination shall be paid by Contractor or deducted from any sums 

yet due to Contractor. 

16.0.       Force Majeure. 

16.1.       Force majeure shall be any of the following events:  acts of God or the public enemy; compliance with any 

order, rule, regulation, decree, or request of any governmental authority or agency or person purporting to act as 

such; acts of war, public disorder, rebellion, terrorism, or sabotage; floods, hurricanes, or other storms; strikes or 

labor disputes; public health emergency; or any other cause, whether or not of the class or kind specifically named or 

referred to in this Agreement which is not within the reasonable control of the party affected.  A delay in or failure of 

performance by either party shall not constitute a default in performance nor be the basis for, or give rise to, any 

claim for damages, if and to the extent such delay or failure is caused by force majeure. 

16.2.       The party who is prevented from performing by force majeure shall be obligated, within a period not to 

exceed fourteen (14) calendar days after the occurrence or detection of any such event, to provide notice to the other 

party setting forth in reasonable detail the nature thereof and the anticipated extent of the delay, and shall remedy 

such cause as soon as reasonably possible, as mutually agreed between the parties. 

16.3.       If a remedy to an event of force majeure cannot be agreed upon within a reasonable amount of time, this 

Agreement may be terminated by either party. 

17.0.       Assignment. 

No rights under this Agreement may be assigned or transferred by Contractor without the prior written consent of the 

City.  The benefits of this Agreement may inure to Contractor’s assigns, transferees, or successors in interest if 

approved by the City in writing in advance, and if such assignee, transferees or successors agree in writing to be 

bound by the terms of this Agreement. 

 

321

Item 40.



6 
 

18.0.       Governing Law.   

18.1.       This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Iowa, regardless of choice of law principles. 

18.2.       Venue for any dispute under this Agreement shall be the District Court in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa.        

19.0.       Discrepancy.   

In the event that there are any discrepancies or differences between any terms or conditions of the Contractor’s bid or 

quote and this Agreement, this Agreement shall prevail, even if the Contractor’s bid or quote is incorporated into this 

Agreement. 

20.0       Public Record. 

20.1.      This Agreement as well as Contractor’s bid or quote and all documents submitted with any such bid or quote 

shall become public documents subject to Iowa Code Chapter 22, the Iowa Open Records Law.  By submitting the 

bid or quote or any document to the City in connection with such bid or quote, the submitting party recognizes this 

and waives any claim against the City, its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and agents working on 

behalf of the City, relating to the release of any bid or document submitted. 

20.2.       Each submitting party shall hold the City and its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and 

agents working on behalf of the City, harmless from any claims arising from the release of any document or 

information made available to the City related to or arising from the bidding or quoting process. 

20.3.       Notwithstanding Sections 20.1 and 20.2, protection from disclosure may apply to those elements of any 

submittal that may be a trade secret, or confidential or proprietary information.  Should the submitting party wish to 

designate submittals as such, they must be clearly and prominently marked.  The City shall make no determination as 

to whether or not such documents are protected from disclosure under Iowa Code Chapter 22.  Rather, the City shall 

endeavor to notify the submitter of any request for such information and the submitter shall be solely responsible for 

asserting exemption from disclosure by obtaining a court order.  As long as the City makes a good faith effort to notify 

the submitter of a request for such information, the City and the City’s elected and appointed officers, the City’s 

employees, and agents working on behalf of the City, shall not be liable for any damages resulting from such 

disclosure, whether such disclosure is deemed required by law, by an order of court or administrative agency, or 

occurs through inadvertence, mistake, or negligence.  

21.0.       Debarment. 

21.1.       Contractor hereby certifies, pursuant to 48 CFR Part 9, that neither it nor its principals are presently 

debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this 

Agreement by any federal agency. 

21.2.       Contractor further certifies that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in any contracts with the City or with the State of Iowa. 

22.0        Confidentiality of Shared Information. 

No information shared between Contractor and the City in the performance of this Agreement shall be deemed 

confidential unless clearly designated as such in writing by the party seeking confidentiality at the time of sharing.  If 

designated as confidential the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of such information except as necessary 

for performance under this Agreement, unless or until written authorization for disclosure is given by the designating 

party, or as required by law, or by an order of court or administrative agency.  In the event of a dispute over the 

confidentiality of shared information, the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of the designated information 

until the issue of confidentiality is resolved.  The duty to maintain the confidentiality of such information shall survive 

the termination of this Agreement. 

322

Item 40.



7 
 

23.0.       Entire Agreement. 

23.1.       This Agreement, and Exhibits, which are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, contains the 

entire agreement and understanding by and between the parties with respect to the subject matter, and no 

representations, promises, agreements, or understandings, written or verbal, not contained in this Agreement, shall 

be of any force or effect. 

23.2.       No change, modification or waiver of this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless the same is in writing 

and signed by the party against whom such change, modification or waiver is sought to be enforced. 

24.0.       Additional Terms. 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

25.0.       Notices. 

Any notice required to be given under this Agreement and any authorization required to be provided shall be given or 

provided to: 

City:                                                                                               Contractor: 

Name: Thomas A Weintraut ______ _                                          Name: _Jacob Lehman_______________ 

Title: Planner III __________________                                        Title: ___President__________________ 

Address: 220 Clay Street                                                              Address: __1422 Ashland Ave___________ 

               Cedar Falls, IA 50613                                                                    Waterloo, IA 50613_________ 

Telephone: 319-268-5184                                                            Telephone: __319-235-6163____________ 

Email: Thomas.Weintraut@cedarfalls.com                                   Email: _lehmante@hotmail.com_________  

In Witness Whereof, the City and the Contractor have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the last date listed 

below. 

 

 

CONTRACTOR 

Name;_Lehman Trucking & Excavating INC.___ 

By: ____Jacob Lehman______________________________________ 

Its: ___President_______________________________________                    Date: ___4/15/24________________ 

 

 

323

Item 40.



8 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

By: __________________________________ 

Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

 

Attest: ________________________________                                      Date: _____________________ 

             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  

                                 

    

324

Item 40.



 

Exhibit “A” 

 

 

March 22, 2024 
 
 
 
RE: Demolition 
 Properties: 523 West First Street 
 
Sent Via email 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is requesting RFPs for the demolition of 523 West First Street and gravel 
removal from the lot adjacent to the east. The structure will be tested for asbestos and any asbestos 
containing materials we be removed. We would like your firm to submit a proposal for the demolition of 
the house, garage, and the removal of gravel from the adjacent lot to the east.   
 
If you wish to submit a proposal, please complete, and sign both copies of the Informal Project Contract 
and return them to me by noon on April 5, 2024. The firm will be selected on the basis of lowest 
proposed fee. Once a bid has been accepted a formal contract will be provided to the bidder and will 
be presented for Council approval in May. Notice to Proceed on the project will be issued after the 
contract has been approved by City Council. Demolition must be completed within 25 working days of 
issuance of Notice to Proceed. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Thomas Weintraut, AICP 
Planner III 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

325

Item 40.



Exhibit “B” 

 
326

Item 40.



Exhibit “C”

 
327

Item 40.



 

328

Item 40.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), AICP, City Planner II 

  Matthew Tolan, Civil Engineer II  

 DATE: May 6, 2024 

 SUBJECT: Preliminary Plat for Panther West Additions (PP23-009)  
 

 
REQUEST: To approve Panther West Additions Preliminary Plat (PP23-009) 

 
PETITIONER: Brent Dahlstrom, Owner; Brewer Civil LLC, Engineer 

 
LOCATION: 
 

The property is located south of Greenhill Road and North of Aldrich 
Elementary School  

 
PROPOSAL 
It is proposed to subdivide the 
54.79 acres (as highlighted in the 
image to the right) of property 
located south of Greenhill Road 
and north of Aldrich Elementary 
School to create 131 residential 
lots. It is intended to develop the 
subject property with detached 
single-family dwelling units and a 
tract intended to be dedicated to 
the City for a future public trail. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
Panther Builders LLC has submitted a preliminary plat for Panther West Additions for review. 
The subject property was recently rezoned from R-1 Residence District and MU Mixed Use 
Residential District to RP Planned Residential District for detached single-family dwelling units. 
The RP Zoning for the area was approved by the City Council on March 4, 2024, along with the 
approval of an RP Master Plan for the subject property and the development procedures 

329

Item 41.



agreement that includes the agreed-upon standards and conditions for the development. Both 
the RP Master Plan and the agreement document are attached in the packet for reference.   
 
The developer now requests approval of the preliminary plat for the subject property.   
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
Zoning 
The proposed subdivision plat includes 131 lots on 54.79 (approx.) acres of land which will be 
accessed via Greenhill Road from the north, Richard Road from the east, Arbors Drive, and 
Ironwood Drive from the south. The property is zoned RP, Planned Residential which permits a 
variety of uses subject to an approved master development plan. 
 
The purpose of the R-P Planned Residence District is to permit the establishment of multi-use 
and integrated-use residential developments and to provide for the orderly planned growth of 
residential developments in larger tracts of land. The RP District allows flexibility in the types 
of dwellings, lot sizes, building heights, and setbacks. However, to ensure that the area is 
developed in an orderly manner, provides for efficient traffic circulation between 
neighborhoods, and includes the necessary infrastructure to meet the needs of the future 
residents, a master plan must be submitted with the rezoning, and a developmental 
procedures agreement. It is also intended that such planned residence districts be designed 
and developed in substantial conformity with the standards of the comprehensive plan and 
with recognized principals of civic design, land use planning, and landscape architecture.  The 
proposed preliminary plat aligns well with the recently approved RP Master Plan (See the 
approved RP Master Plan image below for reference) and the developmental procedures 
agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

330

Item 41.



Setbacks equal to what is required in the R-4 Zoning District are required around the perimeter 
of the RP District. Therefore, where lots back up to the perimeter of the development, the 
setback is 30 feet to match the rear yard setback and the setback is 10% of the lot width, where 
lots back up to the perimeter of the development to match the side yard setback in the R-4 
Zone.  Staff notes that the perimeter setback needs to be labeled on the Preliminary Plat. The 
deed of dedication and the preliminary plat will outline the minimum building setback standards 
for all lots in the subdivision (detailed below). The lots as proposed satisfy minimum lot width 
and area criteria as specified in R-P Planned Residence District. 
 
Subdivision Design 
 
Street layout and connectivity:  
The street layout is one of the most important aspects of the proposed master plan as it should 
demonstrate a well-connected street pattern with multiple, direct routes between neighborhood 
destinations with a phasing plan that ensures that critical street routes are completed first to 
reduce traffic congestion, encourage safe walking and biking, improve emergency access and 
response times, and allow for the timely provision of essential infrastructure. Better street 
connectivity also opens the possibility of development to surrounding undeveloped/unplatted 
areas. 
 

 
  
The proposed preliminary plat (see image above for reference) follows the approved RP 
Master Plan for the subject property to ensure better street layout and connectivity. Arbors 

331

Item 41.



Drive will be extended northward to W. Greenhill Road. Richard Road will be extended 
westward into the proposed development and Ironwood Drive will be extended northward to 
connect to W. Greenhill Road. All these street extensions allow both the proposed 
development and the adjacent developments east and south of the subject property with 
alternative routes to and from the area, distributing the traffic in the neighborhood and more 
importantly providing needed street connections to navigate between the subdivisions. Staff 
notes that the proposed extension of streets as noted above will address the missing critical 
connections for the surrounding land uses including Aldrich Elementary School. 
 
In addition, Madeline Street will be extended westward from Arbors Drive, providing a 
connection opportunity for future development with all city services being stubbed to the western 
boundary of the subject property. 
 
A traffic circle will be incorporated at the intersection of Arbors Drive and Madeline Street as part 
of the proposed subdivision construction in phase 1. Work will include a mountable intersection 
that will allow larger vehicles to pass through the intersection without impedance. The traffic 
circle will assist with traffic calming along Arbors Drive adjacent to Aldrich Elementary. The 
traffic circle will also assist pedestrian users with shorter crossing distances and separate lanes. 
 
Public Sidewalks: 
To provide continuity for pedestrian circulation, public sidewalks will be extended. With the 
proposed plat, the developer will be continuing to extend a 10 feet-wide trail from the McMahill 
Plat along the east of Arbors Drive and transition it to 6 feet wide sidewalk along the east side of 
the proposed northward extension of Arbors Drive in Panther West. The 6-foot-wide sidewalk 
will be extended northerly to the Greenhill Road trail system. Besides this, a 4-foot-wide 
sidewalk will be placed along all street frontages as required by the City’s subdivision code. The 
deed of dedication will outline the details of the provision of sidewalks throughout the 
subdivision. 
 
Future Public Trail: 
As per the approved RP Master Plan and developmental procedures agreement for the subject 
property, the developer has included Tract D, which will be dedicated to the City of Cedar Falls 
for a future public trail along the northern boundary of the subdivision. This Tract will be 
developed and dedicated to the City in Phase 1 of the project. However, the trail will be added at 
a later date by the city. Tract D is located between the lots (in the proposed subdivision) and the 
floodway area (north of the proposed subdivision boundary). Staff notes that careful grading is 
done to ensure that no encroachment of any grading work is done in the floodway area (north of 
the proposed subdivision boundary). 
 
The Developer will be responsible for providing two trail through connections from the internal 
roadway to the proposed Tract D, via a 6 ft. wide concrete sidewalk, 6 inches thick, and 15 ft. 
wide Tracts E and F. Both Tracts E and F will owned by the Panther West Addition 
Homeowners Association and maintained for public access to the future trail in Tract D. These 
connections will allow future residents in the area direct access to the trail. As the trail is built, it 
may promote pedestrian vs vehicular travel to the future City Park and Aldrich Elementary 
School (south of the proposed subdivision). 
 
Staff notes that the pedestrian connection from Tract F to Tract D will be across the drainage 
easement. The sidewalk connection will need a small culvert, which will be sized for the 
proposed grade as it will be perpendicular to the drainage swale, thus creating a levelled space 

332

Item 41.



for public egress to Tract D. The applicant has indicated that the same will be addressed with 
the construction plan of that phase.  
 
The deed of dedication will outline the conditions under which the City will accept this trail tract 
area as it must be graded and seeded according to City standards to provide a level space for 
future use and maintenance.  
 
Stormwater Management: 
The overall development will utilize two 
regional detention facilities (Tract B and C 
on the proposed plat) that will be 
constructed to collect stormwater from the 
street network by intakes or captured by 
overland swales within protected drainage 
easements to be conveyed to the regional 
detention area.  Tract B will collect the 
majority of the preliminary plat boundaries 
and Tract C will collect the far easterly side 
of the development near the intersection of 
Arbors Drive and Ironwood Drive. Tract C 
also accounts for the collection and bypass 
of the Prairie West Addition detention 
facility (located south of proposed Lot 29). 
The Prairie West 2nd Addition basin 
currently outfalls by overland flow that will 
be rerouted into the proposed Panther West 
Addition’s storm sewer network and 
released into proposed Stormwater 
Management area (Tract C) with a new 
outfall into the northerly City property (see 
image to the for additional reference)   
 
Overland drainage routes are present throughout the proposed Panther West Addition and 
overall conveyance of the tracts will be released to the northern City property. A Maintenance 
and Repair Agreement (MRA) will be established between the City and developer, prior to the 
final plat, for the detention facilities to be maintained by the associated benefited properties the 
basins serve.    
 
During construction, both the basins (Tract B and C) will be established in the first phase of 
construction. It will become the responsibility of the developer not to impede the flow of the 
existing detention facility located in Prairie West 2nd. It will also be the developer’s responsibility 
to create and maintain a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan that will limit onsite erosion from 
construction-related activities, as outlined by the City Code. Compliance with these 
requirements will help to reduce sedimentation within the stormwater facilities. 
 
The applicant has added a Drainage Map exhibit in the packet as per request at the last 
Planning and Zoning Meeting on March 27th, 2024. This exhibit shows how the stormwater will 
be managed for the entire development. See below image for reference. 
 

333

Item 41.



 
 
Sanitary Sewer 
The sanitary sewer will be extended from Greenhill Road into this subdivision. The sewer will be 
extended along Arbors Drive and Ironwood Drive. Then the sanitary will continue southwesterly 
and extend along Arbors Drive, Joeseph Drive, Richard Road, Bennett Lane, Nathan Lane, and 
then Madeline Street. The sanitary sewer will be extended to the limits of the plat on the 
westerly edge of Madeline Street, per the City’s subdivision ordinance to accommodate future 
growth. 
 
Utilities 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, electric, 
gas, and communication services are available at the site. The developer is responsible for the 
construction of a properly sized water system from the 12” water main on the north end of 
Arbors Drive, the west end of Richard Road, the north end of Ironwood Drive, and the west side 
of Greenhill Road to and throughout the proposed addition. The water main will need to be to tie 
into the existing water main on the east side of Arbors Drive. The water main will be installed on 
the north/west side of the roads throughout the development. The developer will install electric 
and gas utilities throughout the addition. The fire hydrant and valve placement locations will 
need to be finalized during the water construction plan review. The developer is responsible for 
the cost of the streetlight installations required for any City streets. 
 
Easements: 
The proposed preliminary plat shows easements to provide access to services for the 
development of the subject property. Most of the lots will have drainage easements either along 
the side property line or rear property line. The plat also labels access easement, and electrical 

334

Item 41.



transmission easement on several lots. No encroachments including building structures, 
overhang of a structure, fences, landscaping shrubs/trees, driveways, private gardens, or any 
other obstruction will be allowed in any easement. 
 
Subdivision Phasing 
The development has four phases. The first phase includes the extension of critical street 
connections including the extension of Richard Road, Ironwood Drive and Arbors Drive into the 
proposed development. Phase 1 will include the development of 67 detached single-family 
dwelling units, two tracts for Stormwater Management, a tract for conveyance to adjacent 
landowners, and a tract for a Future Public trail. Phases 2 and 4 will include the development of 
18 and 27 detached single-family dwelling units respectively. Phase 3 will include the 
development of 19 detached single-family dwelling units and an extension of Madeline Street up 
to the western boundary of the subdivision. The proposed phasing aligns well with the approved 
RP Master Plan. The extensions of critical street infrastructure in Phase 1 of the project will 
likely ease traffic from existing development to the east and provide access to Aldrich 
Elementary School from both Greenhill Road and Richard Road.   
 
Lot Standards 
As per the R-P, Residential Planned zoning district, there are no minimum yard or height 
requirements except that the minimum yards, as specified in the R-4 residence district shall be 
provided around the boundaries of the planned residence district. The perimeter setbacks are 
described in the zoning section above. 
 
Minimum principal building setbacks:  
The developer proposes the following minimum setbacks for all the lots in the development.  
 

• Minimum Front Yard setback = 25 feet (Primary frontage as shown on the plat) 

• Minimum Front Yard setback = 20 feet (Secondary frontage as shown on the plat) 

• Minimum Side Yard setback = 5 feet  

• Minimum Rear Yard setback = 30 feet 
 
City staff finds that the setbacks will be appropriate for the development being like setback 
requirements for single-family dwellings in the R-4 District. All setback information is labeled on 
the plat for additional reference. However, staff notes that a label showing the perimeter setback 
line along the periphery of the proposed subdivision must be shown on sheet PP-2. 
 
Lot size: 
As per the R-P District standards, the lot area requirements of the R-4 District shall apply. In the 
R-4 District, detached single-family units require a minimum of 6000 square feet. The proposed 
lot sizes in the development vary from 10,125 sq. ft. to 66,590 sq. ft. All proposed lots exceed 
the requirements of the RP District. 
 
Driveways: 
As per the approved Development Procedural Agreement for the subject property, the developer 
will have to ensure driveway curb cuts spacing requirement. Staff notes that some of the corner 
lots located along Arbors Drive will need to maintain a minimum driveway separation of 75’-0 
from the opposing street as per SUDAS. The width of driveway may be reduced to maintain 
intersection clearance defined in SUDAS. Staff notes that the developer will be adding some 
language about restricting driveway widths for certain lots to meet driveway spacing 

335

Item 41.



requirements and the same has been specified in the deed of dedication document. Staff also 
note that no direct driveway access shall be allowed on. W. Greenhill Road for Lot 29. 
 
Notification of Surrounding Property Owners: 
City Staff sent a courtesy notice to the surrounding property owners on March 18th, 2024.  
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
The petitioner’s engineer has previously submitted a stormwater management plan to the City and 
it has been reviewed by the City Engineer. The City Engineer has determined that the plan meets 
the City’s subdivision requirements and also finds that the design will improve the drainage pattern 
that has developed over the years on this undeveloped parcel of land. 
 
The draft deed of dedication has been submitted with the packet. The wording of this document 
will be dependent on the conditions and specifications of the plat as recommended by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of the submitted preliminary plat for 
Panther West Additions (PP23-009) as per staff’s recommendation at their regular meeting on 
April 10th 2024 with a vote of 8 ayes and 0 nays.   
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction& 
Discussion 
03/27/2024 

Chair Hartley introduced the first item, the Preliminary Plat for Panther West Additions.  
Mr. Atodaria, Planner II, provided background information on the case. He explained that 
recently the subject property was rezoned to RP and was approved subject to the RP 
Master Plan and the development procedures agreement. Mr. Atodaria mentioned that 
the proposed plat will create 131 detached single-family lots, and the development will 
be done in four phases. He also explained that the 1st Phase will address three critical 
street connections that would allow the distribution of traffic within the neighborhood. Mr. 
Atodaria also noted that Tract B, located along the northwest edge of the development 
adjacent to the Dry Run Creek corridor will be conveyed to the City with the final plat for 
the 1st Phase for a future public trail. Two sidewalk connections will be extended from 
the public streets to provide access for neighborhood residents to the future trail. These 
sidewalk connections are shown on the plat as tracts that will be maintained by the 
homeowners’ association. Mr. Atodaria described how stormwater will be managed for 
the proposed subdivision and noted a few minor outstanding issues. Staff recommended 
continuing the discussion at the next meeting. 
 
Moser asked staff to clarify why is the sidewalk along Arbors Drive being reduced from a 
10 ft wide sidewalk to a 6 ft wide sidewalk. Ms. Howard mentioned that 4-foot-wide 
sidewalks are typically required along public streets within a residential subdivision. In 
this case a 10-foot trail was provided next to the school in the subdivision to the south, 
but staff recommends reducing it to 6-feet through this development to provide some 
extra width, but 10 feet may not be necessary further from the school given the greater 
cost and maintenance involved. Sorenson inquired about who will be responsible for 
adding the sidewalk. Ms. Howard stated that sidewalks are constructed along the 
frontage of each lot by the home builder when a home is constructed.   
 
Sorenson also asked about the thoughts behind the proposed roundabout in the 
development. Mr. Atodaria explained that because of the proximity to the school, a traffic 
calming along Arbors Drive would allow more safety for pedestrians. Ms. Howard added 
that on such a long stretch of road, it is important to think about traffic calming up front. 

336

Item 41.



The developer proposes a solution for traffic calming and the City reviews it for the 
appropriateness for the specific location. In this case, the developer proposed a small 
roundabout to address traffic calming. 
 
Henderson asked about easements in the proposed subdivision. Mr. Atodaria described 
all the easements illustrated on the plat. Henderson also asked about past concerns 
about street connections to Aldrich Elementary School. Ms. Howard agreed that there 
has been concern about missing segments of street that would help relieve traffic 
congestion. She explained that the proposed subdivision will be addressing several 
critical connections to the school in the 1st phase, as well as providing better distribution 
of traffic throughout the neighborhood.  
 
Public attendee Todd Coulter mentioned that he and some of his adjacent neighbors 
have some concerns about the proposed drainage easements abutting their properties 
and asked how this stormwater will be managed on the lots. The developer’s engineer 
Nick Brewer answered that the drainage easement will be entirely on the proposed lots. 
Mr. Brewer also noted that there is currently a temporary stormwater basin in that 
location, but the proposed lots will be re-graded to provide a drainage path for the 
stormwater, which will be directed to the proposed detention basin in the north-west 
area of the development. The developer’s representative Kevin Fittro mentioned that 
there will be a 25 ft drainage easement that will be free of any structures including 
fences. Ms. Howard mentioned that the developer’s engineer can prepare a stormwater 
management exhibit that the staff can bring to the next meeting (April 10, 2024) for 
better clarification and understanding of stormwater management. 
 

Discussion  
& Vote 
04/10/2024 

Chair Hartley introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background information. He 
explained that this plat was discussed at the last meeting and briefly discussed the plat 
details. He noted that it is proposed to subdivide the property to create 131 residential 
lots to develop the area with detached single-family dwelling units. He discussed 
setbacks, phasing, street layout and connectivity, as well as future public trail and 
sidewalks. He briefly reviewed the stormwater management plan and easements. Staff 
recommends approval of the proposed preliminary plat subject to any comments or 
direction from the Planning and Zoning Commission and conformance to all city staff 
recommendations. 
 
Grybovych asked how the density compares to other newer developments in the City. 
Mr. Atodaria and Ms. Howard explained that this is similar to other single family 
developments. Grybovych also asked if the size of the development would trigger 
conversation about adding a park. Mr. Atodaria discussed that parkland was dedicated 
to the City in recent years just south of the proposed development directly west of Aldrich 
Elementary School. 
 
Kevin Fittro, Panther Farms, explained that this is the same zoning and requirement of 
lot size as the Arbors development is south of the school. He noted that they have spoken 
to the neighbors and answered any questions they’ve had. 
 
Sorensen made a motion to approve the item. Leeper seconded the motion. The motion 
was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Alberhasky, Grybovych, Hartley, Henderson, 
Johnson, Leeper, Moser and Sorensen), and 0 nays. 
 
 
 

 

337

Item 41.



338

Item 41.



 STATE OF IOWA 

PP-1
2024_0403

FINAL SUBMITTAL

 LOCATION MAP 

PREPARED FOR

DEVELOPER

Nicholas C Brewer, P.E.

Signature Date

LICENSE NO. 28034

PRELIMINARY PLAT
FOR

PANTHER WEST ADDITIONS
TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA

PN: PROJECT #

2024_0403

Sheet List Table

CIVIL ENGINEER

339

Item 41.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTHER FARMS, LLC PO BOX 128 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613

AutoCAD SHX Text
28034

AutoCAD SHX Text
Brewer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Nicholas C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
Licensed

AutoCAD SHX Text
My License renewal date is:

AutoCAD SHX Text
I hereby certify that this Engineering document was prepared by me or under my direct personal supervision and that I am a duly Licensed Professional Engineer under the laws of the State  of Iowa.    

AutoCAD SHX Text
Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECEMBER 31, 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION Northeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of Section 27, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, except that part lying within 574 LD 64 as shown and depicted on Plat of Survey Doc. #2013-13902. And All that part of the Southeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 22. Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, lying Southerly of 574 LD 64 as shown and depicted on Plat of Survey Doc. #2013-13902. And All that part of the South one-half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 23, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, lying Southerly of 574 LD 64 and Doc. #2013-12296 as shown and depicted on Plat of Survey Doc. #2013-13902. Containing 54.79 Acres CURRENT ZONING R-P AVERAGE LOT SIZE 13,000 SF / 0.30 ACRES (FIGURE EXCLUDES ALL TRACTS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES 1. THIS PRELIMINARY PLAT IS A CONCEPTUAL REPRESENTATION OF THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT. THIS PRELIMINARY PLAT IS A CONCEPTUAL REPRESENTATION OF THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT. ANY FINAL PLAT AND RELATED IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY THE DEVELOPMENT SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 2. FINAL EASEMENT SIZING SHALL BE REVIEWED AT TIME OF FINAL PLATTING. SIZING SHOWN IS FINAL EASEMENT SIZING SHALL BE REVIEWED AT TIME OF FINAL PLATTING. SIZING SHOWN IS BASED ON ASSUMED DEPTH AND SIZES OF UTILITIES 3. TRACK A SHALL BE DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS FOR PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY TRACK A SHALL BE DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS FOR PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY 4. TRACTS B & C SHALL BE USED FOR STORM WATER DETENTION/RETENTION AND OVERFLOW TRACTS B & C SHALL BE USED FOR STORM WATER DETENTION/RETENTION AND OVERFLOW ROUTING. FINAL SIZING IS DEPENDENT ON AN APPROVED STORM WATER MANAGEMENT REPORT. 5. TRACT D SHALL BE DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS FOR A FUTURE PUBLIC TRAIL. TRACT D SHALL BE DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS FOR A FUTURE PUBLIC TRAIL. 6. TRACT E & F SHALL BE USED FOR PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE FUTURE TRAIL WITH SIDEWALK TRACT E & F SHALL BE USED FOR PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE FUTURE TRAIL WITH SIDEWALK PROVIDED BY THE DEVELOPER AND MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS PROVIDED THEREAFTER BY THE PANTHER WEST HOA. 7. TRACT G SHALL BE CONVEYED TO ADJACENT LANDOWNER DIRECTLY SOUTH. TRACT G SHALL BE CONVEYED TO ADJACENT LANDOWNER DIRECTLY SOUTH. 8. ALL LOT FRONTAGE (INCLUDING DOUBLE FRONTAGE), SHALL HAVE A 10' PUBLIC UTILITY ALL LOT FRONTAGE (INCLUDING DOUBLE FRONTAGE), SHALL HAVE A 10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT FROM THE PROPERTY LINE INTO THE LOT UNLESS NOTED AS GREATER ON THIS DOCUMENT. 9. ALL UTILITY EASEMENT SHOWN ARE SUBJECT TO UTILITY APPROVAL AT TIME OF FINAL ALL UTILITY EASEMENT SHOWN ARE SUBJECT TO UTILITY APPROVAL AT TIME OF FINAL PLATTING. 10. TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES INCLUDE IMPLEMENTATION OF ROUNDABOUT AND PROVIDING TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES INCLUDE IMPLEMENTATION OF ROUNDABOUT AND PROVIDING REDUCED STRAIGHT SECTIONS OF ROADWAY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet Number

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet Title

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY PLAT - SITE MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY PLAT - SOUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY PLAT - NORTHWEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY PLAT - NORTHEAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
BREWER CIVIL, LLC 2920 McCLAIN DRIVE CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 ENGINEER: NICK BREWER, PE 319.575.2725



83B

133 178

83B

391B

83B

198B

178

198B

177

391B

177B

426C 83B

PP-2
FINAL SUBMITTAL

2024_0403

LEGEND

ARBORS DRIVE

A
RB

O
RS

 D
RI

V
E

MADELINE STREET MADELINE STREET

JO
SE

PH
 D

R
IV

E

JOSEPH DRIVE

PR
EL

IM
IN

A
R
Y
 P

LA
T
 -

 S
IT

E 
M

A
P

PA
N

T
H

ER
 F

A
R
M

S,
 L

LC
PN

:
PR

O
JE

C
T
 #

PA
N

T
H

ER
 W

ES
T
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
S

UNIVER
SIT

Y AVEN
UE

RICHARD
ROAD

ED
EN

 W
A

Y

LEIGH
LANE

ANDY
AVE.

BLYTHE
BLVD.

GREENHILL ROAD

IR
O

N
W

O
O

D
D

R
IV

E

BENNETT   LANE

N
A

T
H

A
N

 L
A

N
E

R-1

R-1
R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1R-1R-1

A-1

A-1

A-1 R-1

R-P

R-P
R-P

R-P

R-1

R-P

R-P

R-P R-P

R-P

 BUILDING SETBACKS 

 SOIL COMPOSITIONS 

RICHARD ROAD

PERIMETER SETBACKS

PH
ASE

 1

PH
ASE

 2

PH
ASE

 3

PH
ASE

 4

B
EN

N
ET

T
  

 L
A

N
E

A
R
B
O

R
S 

D
R
IV

E

 BUILDING TYPES

340

Item 41.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
200'

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER SERV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMM. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD ELEC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURIED ELEC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOUR 1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOUR 5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM STRUC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY STRUC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE COR 27-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED PT. SW-SW SEC 23-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW COR SW-SW 23-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED PT. SW-SW SEC 23-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED NW-NE SEC 27-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
 PT. NE-NE SEC 27-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED PT. SE-SE SEC 22-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW COR NE-NE 27-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT C

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT D

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT E

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED SW-NE SEC 27-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED SW-NW SEC 26-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE COR NE-NE 27-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
McMAHILL FIRST ADDN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT C

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
906.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
905.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
905.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
905.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 YR INUNDATION, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YR INUNDATION, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOODWAY (CROSS HATCH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE WEST 7th

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE WEST 7th

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE WEST 5th

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE WEST 2nd

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE WEST 4th

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTINENTAL HEIGHTS ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-U

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-U

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-U

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT YARD: 25' (PRIMARY FRONTAGE) 25' (PRIMARY FRONTAGE) 20' (SECONDARY FRONTAGE) SIDE YARD: 5' 5' REAR YARD: 30'30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 55

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 122

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 45

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT G

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 37

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 40

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 39

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 38

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 34

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 36

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 35

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 33

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 18

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT B

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 19

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 20

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 28

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 13

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT C

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 23

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 17

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 71

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 100

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 82

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 128

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 127

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 129

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 126

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 130

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 125

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 131

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 124

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 91

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 93

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 97

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 68

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 61

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 72

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 62

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 60

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 92

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 94

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 95

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 96

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 120

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 121

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 123

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 59

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 51

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 74

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 73

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 63

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 64

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 70

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 69

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 65

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 49

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 48

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 47

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 43

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 46

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 44

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 50

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 75

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 76

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 77

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 78

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 79

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 80

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 81

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 85

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 67

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 66

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 83

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 113

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 115

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 114

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 110

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 112

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 111

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 86

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 87

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 88

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 89

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 90

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 105

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 106

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 107

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 108

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 109

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 119

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 118

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 116

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 117

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 52

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 53

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 54

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 56

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 58

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 57

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 42

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 104

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 103

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 102

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 101

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 98

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 99

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 41

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 32

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 31

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERIMETER SETBACK SHALL BE 30' EVERYWHERE, EXCEPT SIDE YARDS, WHERE THEY SHALL BE 10% OF THE LOT WIDTH OF THE LOT BEING MEASURED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT D

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE TRAIL BY CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO BE CONVEYED TO ADJACENT LANDOWNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT E

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT F

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR PUBLIC ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR PUBLIC ACCESS



PP-3

PR
EL

IM
IN

A
R
Y
 P

LA
T
 -

 S
O

U
T
H

FINAL SUBMITTAL
2024_0403

RICHARD
ROAD

A
RB

O
RS

 D
RI

V
E

MADELINE STREET MADELINE STREET

N
A

T
H

A
N

 L
A

N
E

JO
SE

PH
 D

R
IV

E

A
R
B
O

R
S 

D
R
IV

E

PA
N

T
H

ER
 F

A
R
M

S,
 L

LC
PN

:
PR

O
JE

C
T
 #

PA
N

T
H

ER
 W

ES
T
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
S

BENNETT LANE

B
EN

N
ET

T
 L

A
N

E

341

Item 41.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT C

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT D

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT E

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED NW-NE SEC 27-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED SW-NE SEC 27-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED SW-NW SEC 26-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW COR NE-NE 27-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE COR NE-NE 27-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
McMAHILL FIRST ADDN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE WEST 7th

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE WEST 7th

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPING TO BE REVIEWED AT THE TIME OF CONSTRUCTION DRAWING SUBMISSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. MAILBOX CLUSTER, 1 of 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUE ALONG ALL FRONTAGE, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. MAILBOX CLUSTER, 3 of 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.5' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=955.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=943.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=944.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=944.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=926.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=927.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=935.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=926.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=929.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=931.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=933.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=936.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=940.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=940.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=940.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=940.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=936.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=933.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=931.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=929.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=935.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=936.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=937.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=938.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=939.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=940.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=941.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=945.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=951.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=953.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=955.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=956.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=957.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=925.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=928.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=932.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=923.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=942.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=941.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=940.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=938.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=935.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=931.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=934.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=937.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=940.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=940.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=940.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=941.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=953.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=951.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=949.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=947.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=945.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=944.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=944.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=930.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=925.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=920.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=925.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=928.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=932.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=923.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=944.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=943.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=941.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=932.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=928.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=925.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=922.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=920.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=928.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=925.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=922.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=920.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK



PP-4

PR
EL

IM
IN

A
R
Y
 P

LA
T
 -

N
O

R
T
H

W
ES

T

FINAL SUBMITTAL
2024_0403

LEGEND

RICHARD
ROAD

JO
SE

PH
 D

R
IV

E

N
A

T
H

A
N

 L
A

N
E

A
R
B
O

R
S 

D
R
IV

E

JOSEPH DRIVE

ARBORS DRIVE

PA
N

T
H

ER
 F

A
R
M

S,
 L

LC
PN

:
PR

O
JE

C
T
 #

PA
N

T
H

ER
 W

ES
T
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
S

B
EN

N
ET

T
 L

A
N

E

RICHARD ROAD

342

Item 41.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER SERV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMM. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD ELEC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURIED ELEC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOUR 1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOUR 5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM STRUC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY STRUC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED NW-NE SEC 27-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
 PT. NE-NE SEC 27-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED PT. SE-SE SEC 22-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW COR NE-NE 27-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE COR 27-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE WEST 7th

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE WEST 7th

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. MAILBOX CLUSTER, 2 of 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUE ALONG ALL FRONTAGE, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.5' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. MAILBOX CLUSTER, 4 of 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC. TRANSMISSION ESMT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=915.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=915.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=915.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=915.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=919.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=923.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=926.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=929.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=935.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=926.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=922.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=921.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=921.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=921.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=921.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=921.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=921.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=926.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=927.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=928.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=925.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=923.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=930.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=925.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=920.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=915.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=914.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=928.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=925.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=923.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=925.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=922.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=920.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=925.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=922.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=920.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE TRAIL BY CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE TRAIL BY CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.5' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC. TRANSMISSION ESMT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE TRAIL BY CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR PUBLIC ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR PUBLIC ACCESS



PP-5

PR
EL

IM
IN

A
R
Y
 P

LA
T
 -

N
O

R
T
H

EA
ST

FINAL SUBMITTAL
2024_0403

LEGEND

ARBORS DRIVE

IR
O

N
W

O
O

D
D

R
IV

E

GREENHILL ROAD

LEIGH LANE

PA
N

T
H

ER
 F

A
R
M

S,
 L

LC
PN

:
PR

O
JE

C
T
 #

PA
N

T
H

ER
 W

ES
T
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
S

343

Item 41.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER SERV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMM. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD ELEC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURIED ELEC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOUR 1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOUR 5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM STRUC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY STRUC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE COR 27-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT C

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED PT. SW-SW SEC 23-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW COR SW-SW 23-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED PT. SW-SW SEC 23-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE WEST 7th

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE WEST 5th

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE WEST 2nd

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE WEST 4th

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL TRANSMISSION EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC. TRANSMISSION ESMT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21' ELECTRICAL TRANSMISSION EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUE ALONG ALL FRONTAGE, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' STORM AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.1' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.1' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.0' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=913.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=915.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=915.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=915.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=915.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=915.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=916.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=915.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=915.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=915.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=915.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=915.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=915.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=915.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE TRAIL BY CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO BE CONVEYED TO ADJACENT LANDOWNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT A

AutoCAD SHX Text
 466,522 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLO=N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT D

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR PUBLIC ACCESS



1 of 1
EXHIBIT

MADELINE STREET MADELINE STREET

JO
SE

PH
 D

R
IV

E

JOSEPH DRIVE

PR
EL

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 P

LA
T

 -
 D

R
A

IN
A

G
E 

M
A

P

PA
N

T
H

ER
 F

A
R

M
S,

 L
LC

PN
:

PR
O

JE
C

T
 #

PA
N

T
H

ER
 W

ES
T
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
S

UNIVER
SIT

Y AVEN
UE

RICHARD
ROAD

ED
EN

 W
A

Y

LEIGH
LANE

ANDY
AVE.

BLYTHE
BLVD.

GREENHILL ROAD

IR
O

N
W

O
O

D
D

R
IV

E

BENNETT   LANE

N
A

T
H

A
N

 L
A

N
E

R-1

R-1
R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1R-1
R-1

A-1

A-1

A-1 R-1

R-P

R-P
R-P

R-P

R-1

R-P

R-P

R-P R-P

R-P

RICHARD ROAD

B
EN

N
ET

T
  

 L
A

N
E

A
R
B
O

R
S 

D
R
IV

E

2024_0403

ARBORS DRIVE

A
RB

O
RS

 D
RI

V
E

344

Item 41.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
200'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE COR 27-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED PT. SW-SW SEC 23-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW COR SW-SW 23-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED PT. SW-SW SEC 23-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED NW-NE SEC 27-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
 PT. NE-NE SEC 27-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED PT. SE-SE SEC 22-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW COR NE-NE 27-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT C

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT D

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT E

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED SW-NE SEC 27-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED SW-NW SEC 26-T89N-R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE COR NE-NE 27-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
McMAHILL FIRST ADDN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT C

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
906.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
905.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
905.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
905.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 YR INUNDATION, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YR INUNDATION, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOODWAY (CROSS HATCH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE WEST 7th

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE WEST 7th

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE WEST 5th

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE WEST 2nd

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE WEST 4th

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTINENTAL HEIGHTS ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-U

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-U

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-U

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 55

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 122

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 45

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT G

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 37

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 40

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 39

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 38

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 34

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 36

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 35

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 33

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 18

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT B

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 19

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 20

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 28

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 13

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT C

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 23

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 17

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 71

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 100

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 82

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 128

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 127

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 129

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 126

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 130

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 125

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 131

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 124

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 91

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 93

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 97

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 68

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 61

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 72

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 62

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 60

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 92

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 94

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 95

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 96

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 120

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 121

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 123

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 59

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 51

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 74

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 73

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 63

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 64

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 70

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 69

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 65

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 49

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 48

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 47

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 43

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 46

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 44

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 50

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 75

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 76

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 77

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 78

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 79

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 80

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 81

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 85

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 67

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 66

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 83

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 113

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 115

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 114

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 110

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 112

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 111

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 86

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 87

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 88

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 89

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 90

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 105

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 106

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 107

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 108

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 109

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 119

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 118

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 116

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 117

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 52

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 53

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 54

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 56

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 58

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 57

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 42

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 104

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 103

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 102

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 101

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 98

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 99

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 41

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 32

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 31

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT D

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE TRAIL BY CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO BE CONVEYED TO ADJACENT LANDOWNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT E

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT F

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR PUBLIC ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR PUBLIC ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW



 

Z:\USERS\CD Shared\Boards & Commissions\Planning & Zoning 

Commission\Cases\Subdivision\2023\Prelim Plat\PP23-009 Preliminary Plat for Panther 

West\PZ 4-10-24\5. Deed of Dedication 4-2-24 DRAFT.doc Page 1 
 

DEED OF DEDICATION 

OF 

PANTHER WEST ADDITIONS 

TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 

 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 

  That Panther Farms LLC, an Iowa limited liability company, with its principal 

office in Cedar Falls, Iowa (the “Developer”); being desirous of setting out and platting into lots 

and streets the land described in the attached Certificate of Survey by Nicholas C. Brewer, a 

Professional Engineer, dated _____ day of ________________, 2024, does by these presents 

designate and set apart the aforesaid premises as a subdivision of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

(the “City”) the same to be known as: 

 

PANTHER WEST ADDITIONS 

TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 

 

all of which is with the free consent and the desire of the undersigned and the undersigned do 

hereby designate and set apart for public use the street(s) as shown upon the attached plat. 

 

EASEMENTS 

 

 The undersigned do hereby grant and convey to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its 

successors and assigns, and to any private corporation, firm or person furnishing utilities for the 

transmission and/or distribution of water, sanitary sewer, gas, electricity, communication service 

or cable television, perpetual easements for the erection, laying building and maintenance of said 

services over, across, on and/or under the property as shown on the attached plat.   No building 

structures, overhang of a structure, fence structures, landscaping structures, landscaping 

shrubs/trees, driveways, private gardens or any other possible obstruction can be built in and 

over any easement. Any such obstructions may be removed without notice by the City of Cedar 

Falls at the undersigned’s cost.  

 

RESTRICTIONS 

 

 Be it also known that the undersigned do hereby covenant and agree for themselves and 

their successors and assigns that each and all of the residential lots in said subdivision be and the 

same are hereby made subject to the following restrictions upon their use and occupancy as fully 

and effectively to all intents and purposes as if the same were contained and set forth in each 

deed of conveyance or mortgage that the undersigned or their successors in interest may 

hereinafter make for any of said lots and that such restrictions shall run with the land and with 

each individual lot thereof for the length of time and in all particulars hereinafter stated, to-wit: 

345

Item 41.



 

Z:\USERS\CD Shared\Boards & Commissions\Planning & Zoning 

Commission\Cases\Subdivision\2023\Prelim Plat\PP23-009 Preliminary Plat for Panther 

West\PZ 4-10-24\5. Deed of Dedication 4-2-24 DRAFT.doc Page 2 
 

 

1. Any dwelling erected on any lot shall have a minimum setback from the  

front or streetside lot line(s) as illustrated on the Plat. The minimum rear yard setback is 30 feet. 

The minimum set back from each side lot line is 5 feet, except as noted below.  To meet the RP 

perimeter setback requirements, Lot 30, 34, and 104 shall maintain setback of 10 % of lot width 

from the side lot line along perimeter boundary of the plat. Lot 29 shall maintain a setback of 20 

feet along the lot line abutting Greenhill Road.  All minimum setbacks will be required to meet 

or exceed R-P Zoning standards as illustrated on the Plat. 

 

 2.  No single-family dwelling shall be constructed, permitted or occupied on any lot 

herein having a square footage floor space, designed, intended, and constructed for living 

quarters, which space shall not include cellars, attics, garages, breezeways, porches, stoops, and 

other such non-living areas, of less than the following requirements: 

 

A. 1,200 square feet for the main base of a single story, split-level or split-foyer houses. 

 

B. 600 square feet on the first floor for story and one-half houses, or two-story houses.   

With a total for all floors not less than 1,300 square feet excluding the basement level. 

 

3.   Each single-family residence shall have a minimum of a two stall attached garage 

with a minimum of 400 square feet with a maximum of a three stall garage with a maximum of 

1,600 square feet. 

 

4.  The owner(s) of each lot, vacant or improved, shall keep his/hers lot or lots free of 

weeds and debris. 

 

5.  No obnoxious or offensive trade or activity shall be carried on upon any lot nor shall 

anything be done thereon which may be or become an annoyance or nuisance to the 

neighborhood. 

 

6.  All approaches and driveways in said subdivision shall be paved with concrete. 

 

7.  No old or used buildings shall be moved upon any of the lots in said subdivision for 

any purpose.  Any auxiliary buildings or sheds must be built of the same or similar materials of 

the residential structure on the lot and have the same roof pitch and design as said residential 

structure. 

 

8.  No radio station or short-wave operators of any kind shall operate from any lot which 

shall cause interference with audio or visual reception upon any other lot.  No exterior radio 

antenna shall be erected or maintained in or on the property.  No satellite TV antenna or “Dish” 

may be maintained, constructed or erected on any lot unless it is constructed in the rear yard and 

at least twenty feet from any property line and is shielded from the public view by shrubbery and 

landscaping.  No dish larger than 24” will be allowed. 

346

Item 41.



 

Z:\USERS\CD Shared\Boards & Commissions\Planning & Zoning 

Commission\Cases\Subdivision\2023\Prelim Plat\PP23-009 Preliminary Plat for Panther 

West\PZ 4-10-24\5. Deed of Dedication 4-2-24 DRAFT.doc Page 3 
 

 

9.  No dwelling on any lot of said subdivision shall be occupied until the exterior is 

completed and finished and the interior substantially completed and finished, and an occupancy 

permit issued by the City of Cedar Falls. 

 

10. No bus, semi-tractor, RV, fifth-wheel camper, trailer or truck of any kind except what 

is commonly described as a “pick-up truck” shall be kept or parked on any lot or street in said 

subdivision for a period not to exceed twenty-four hours, after which said vehicle can not return 

to said subdivision for a period of five days, provided, however, that this prohibition shall not 

apply to such vehicles driven in said subdivision in pursuit of and in conducting their usual 

business. 

 

11. All buildings erected on any lot in said subdivision shall be constructed in accordance 

with the Building, Plumbing, and Electrical Codes of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

12. No animals, livestock, or poultry of any kind shall be raised, bred or kept on any lot, 

except that two dogs or cats maximum, or other household pets are allowed and then only if they 

are not kept, bred or maintained for any commercial purposes, such animals shall be kept under 

control so as not to constitute a public nuisance and must be kept in compliance with applicable 

zoning laws and regulations of the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. Dog runs or 

dog kennels of any kind are prohibited. 

 

13. Any and all fencing constructed on said lots shall have a minimum set back of one 

foot from any property line. Construction of any privacy fencing must have the support posts on 

the interior side of the fencing. 

 

14.  The Tracts shall be used as follows: 

a. Tract A is conveyed herein to the City of Cedar Falls, for street purposes and public 

right-of-way. 

b. Tracts B and C shall be used for stormwater detention/retention and overflow routing 

and shall be owned by the Panther West Addition Homeowners’ Association. 

c. Tract D is conveyed herein to the City of Cedar Falls for a future public trail. 

d. Tracts E and F shall be owned by the Panther West Addition Homeowners 

Association and maintained for public access to the trail in Tract D. 

e. Tract G shall be conveyed to adjacent landowner to south. 

 

 15.  No building or structure shall be erected, placed or altered on any lot in this 

subdivision until the building plans, and plot plan, showing all buildings, patios, and pools, and 

showing the location thereof, and side yard distances, rear yard distances, front yard distances, 

driveways, and walkways, and type of construction have been approved in writing as to 

conformity and harmony of the external design and quality workmanship and materials with 

existing structures in the subdivision by a representative of Panther Farms, LLC. 

 

347

Item 41.



 

Z:\USERS\CD Shared\Boards & Commissions\Planning & Zoning 

Commission\Cases\Subdivision\2023\Prelim Plat\PP23-009 Preliminary Plat for Panther 

West\PZ 4-10-24\5. Deed of Dedication 4-2-24 DRAFT.doc Page 4 
 

 16.  Factory-built housing or modular homes will not be allowed.  Panelized homes may 

be allowed, but must meet the requirements of Panther Farms, LLC, as stated in the previous 

restriction. 

 

 17.  The Owner and/or occupant of each Lot shall jointly and severally be responsible to 

keep in good order or to maintain the area between the curbline and the property line abutting 

their property including keeping said area free of holes, pitfalls, stumps of trees, fences, brick, 

stone, cement, stakes, posts or rods to which a metal, plastic or similar receptacle designed to 

hold newspapers are affixed, private irrigation or sprinkler systems, retaining walls, landscaping 

brick, block, stone, timber or other similar material, or any other similar obstructions. All 

mailboxes shall be clustered or grouped for the units, and shall be placed between the curb line 

and the public sidewalk as approved by the US Post Office and according to City Specification. 

 

 18.  The contractor or owner of any lot shall verify the depth of the sanitary sewer service 

line serving said lot to ensure minimum drainage will be met prior to any footing or foundation 

work being completed.  All sump pump lines must be buried and attached to the subdrain along 

the back of the P.C.C. curbed street.  No sump lines will be allowed to dump directly onto the 

ground surface. 

 

       19.     Any and all drainage easements will be required to follow the “Stormwater 

Management Plan” and no building structures, fence structures, landscaping structures, private 

gardens or any other possible obstruction can be built in and over said drainage easements.  All 

lot owners and/or contractors working on said lots will be responsible to maintain in perpetuity 

said easements to be free and clear of any physical obstruction(s) thus allowing the conveyance 

of overland storm water runoff as intended per “Stormwater Management Plan” on record with 

the City of Cedar Falls Engineer’s Office. 

 

21. Lots 29 shall not have access off Greenhill Road.   

 

22.  Driveways curb cuts for Lots 1, 3, 4, 5, 8, 10, 32, 33, 44, 56, 58, 59, 65 & 67  

along Arbors Drive may need to be reduced to meet the minimum 75 feet driveway spacing 

requirements from any street intersection as per SUDAS. 

 

22. Each person or entity who is record owner of a fee or undivided fee interest in any 

lot shall be a member of the Homeowners Association to be known as Panther West 

Homeowners’ Association.  This shall not be construed to include persons or entities whom hold 

an interest merely as security for the performance of an obligation.  There shall be one vote per 

lot and each lot owner shall be a member of the Homeowners Association.  Membership shall be 

appurtenant to and may not be separated from ownership of any lot; ownership of such lot shall 

be the sole qualification of membership. 

 

      The purpose of Panther West Homeowners’ Association shall be to own and maintain 

the common area and green spaces of the development, including but not limited  to detention 

348

Item 41.



 

Z:\USERS\CD Shared\Boards & Commissions\Planning & Zoning 

Commission\Cases\Subdivision\2023\Prelim Plat\PP23-009 Preliminary Plat for Panther 

West\PZ 4-10-24\5. Deed of Dedication 4-2-24 DRAFT.doc Page 5 
 

basins to be constructed and maintained on Tracts Band C and for trail access on Tracts E and F 

as per approved Panther West Additions Plat, the detention area, trail access area and 

surrounding access and such other activities set forth in the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws 

of the Association.  Such ownership and maintenance shall include, but not limited to, mowing, 

watering, include upkeep of any underground sprinkler system, snow removal of common areas 

(Tract E and F), and maintenance of the detention areas (Tract B and C) according to the 

Maintenance and Repair Agreement with the City of Cedar Falls. Initially, the Developer, 

Panther Farms, LLC, shall perform the actual construction duties to establish the common area, 

green spaces, entrance, detention facilities, and surrounding access area. 

 

    The annual dues for the Association shall initially be set at $100 per lot per year 

beginning in ____________ 1, 2024.  The Developer, Panther Farms, LLC, shall be exempt from 

any dues expense.  The Association shall have the ability and authority to adjust annual dues as it 

deems appropriate to carry out the maintenance duties as described above. 

 

 

  24.  The undersigned and all persons and entities hereafter acquiring any right, title, or 

interest in any of the lots in said Development shall be taken and held to have agreed and 

covenanted with the owners of all other lots in this Development and with the respective 

successors and assigns of all of the rest of such other lots to conform to and observe all of the 

foregoing covenants, restrictions, and stipulations as to the construction of building thereon, for a 

period of 21 years from the date of filing of said plat, and this deed of dedication for record. 

Within the period of 21 years and in accordance with Iowa Code § 614.24 and § 614.25 or their 

successor provisions, these covenants, restrictions, and stipulations may be extended for an 

additional period of 21 years upon compliance with § 614.24 and § 614.25 of the Code of Iowa. 

In the event an extension of the covenants, restrictions, and stipulations is not filed within the 

period of 21 years or successive 21-year periods, then the covenants, restrictions, and stipulations 

contained herein shall terminate at the end of the existing period of 21 years. 

 

 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED IN PLAT 

 

1.  The Street(s) shown on the attached plat, and referred to as Tract A, will be brought to 

City grade and that the street will be thirty-one (31) feet, back of curb to back of curb, with 

approved hard surface pavement in accordance with the City of Cedar Falls, Standard 

Specifications unless otherwise specified as per approved construction plans.   

 

2.  Sanitary sewer, together with the necessary manholes and sewer service lines to all 

lots in the plat will be provided. 

 

3.  That underground utilities, as required by the Subdivision Ordinance of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, shall be installed. 

 

349

Item 41.



 

Z:\USERS\CD Shared\Boards & Commissions\Planning & Zoning 

Commission\Cases\Subdivision\2023\Prelim Plat\PP23-009 Preliminary Plat for Panther 

West\PZ 4-10-24\5. Deed of Dedication 4-2-24 DRAFT.doc Page 6 
 

4.  That city water will be provided to all lots as required by the Cedar Falls Municipal 

utilities. 

 

5.  That municipal fire hydrant(s) will be provided as required by the Cedar Falls Public 

Safety Department. 

 

6.  That Storm sewer will be provided as specified by the City Engineer. 

 

7.  That handicap ramps will be provided as required by law. 

 

8. Emergency vehicle turnarounds shall be constructed at the end of all stub streets, as 

required by City Code, and shall be maintained free and clear of any obstructions or debris. This 

shall be showed on the construction document set for the development.  

 

9. A four foot wide P.C.C. sidewalk four inches thick will be installed by the owner of all 

lots, unless noted otherwise below, during or immediately after the construction of the residence 

on any particular lot, or within five years after the date the plat is filed in the office of the 

recorder of Black Hawk County, whichever is sooner.  Said sidewalk shall be constructed across 

the full width of the lot and on corner lots also.  In the event that the City is required to construct 

the sidewalk, a lien or liens may only be imposed against the lot or lots which require city 

construction and no others in the subdivision.  Along Arbors Drive, Lots 29, 32, 33, 35-44, and 

56-65 sidewalks must be six foot wide, and on Lot 67 the sidewalk will transition from ten foot 

to six foot along the western property line. 

 

10. Developer will be responsible for constructing a six-foot-wide P.C.C. sidewalk 6 

inches thick shall be installed in Tracts E and F within the noted 15 foot wide Public Access 

Easements as shown on the Plat to provide access to Future Public Trail on Tract D. 

 

11.  That the work improvements called herein shall be in accordance with the 

specifications of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and performed under the supervision of the City 

Engineer.  In the event that the developer, Panther Farms, LLC, it grantees and assigns fail to 

complete said work and improvements called for within one (1) year from the date of the 

acceptance of said final plat by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, the City may then make 

improvements and assess the costs of the same to the respective lots.  The undersigned, for 

themselves, their successors, grantees and assigns, waive all statutory requirements of notice of 

time and place of hearing and agree that the City may install said improvements and assess the 

total costs thereof against the respective lots. 

 

12.  That the City may perform said work, levy the cost thereof as assessments, and the  

undersigned agree that said assessments so levied shall be a lien on the respective lots with the  

same force and effect as though all legal provisions pertaining to the levy of such special  

assessments have been observed, and further authorize the City Clerk to certify such assessments  

to the County Auditor as assessments to be paid in installments as provided by law. 

350

Item 41.



 

Z:\USERS\CD Shared\Boards & Commissions\Planning & Zoning 

Commission\Cases\Subdivision\2023\Prelim Plat\PP23-009 Preliminary Plat for Panther 

West\PZ 4-10-24\5. Deed of Dedication 4-2-24 DRAFT.doc Page 7 
 

 

13. The Developer shall construct and install all required public improvements within the  

subdivision plat, to conform with approved construction plans which meet the specifications of  

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Such required public improvements shall meet the following  

requirements: 

(a)          Shall be constructed and installed in a good and workmanlike manner; 

(b)          Shall be free of defects in workmanship or materials; 

(c)           Shall be free of any conditions that could result in structural or other failure of  

said improvements; 

(d)          Shall be constructed and installed in accordance with the design standards and  

technical standards established for such public improvements by the City and by Cedar Falls  

Utilities; 

(e)          Shall be constructed and installed in strict compliance with the minimum  

acceptable specifications for the construction of public improvements set forth in the Cedar Falls  

Code of Ordinances, including without limitation, Chapter 24, Subdivisions, and as such 

specifications shall be recommended for approval by the City Engineer from time to time, and  

approved by the city council.  

 

            14.  This Deed of Dedication is subject to the terms and conditions of that certain 

Infrastructure Development Agreement between Panther Farms, LLC and the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, dated June 5, 2023, which was approved by the City Council of the City by way of 

Resolution No. 23,194 dated June 5, 2023.   

 

The Developer’s construction plans are now on file in the Office of the City Engineer. 

 

SIGNED and DATED this _______ day of _______________, 2024. 

 

      Panther Farms, LLC 

 

 

      ___________________________ 

      Brent Dahlstrom, Manager 

 

STATE OF IOWA, BLACK HAWK COUNTY: ss 

 

 On this ____ day of ______________, 2024, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public 

in and for the State of Iowa, personally appeared Brent Dahlstrom, Manager of Panther Farms, 

LLC, to me known as the identical persons named in and who executed the foregoing instrument 

and acknowledged that they executed the same as their voluntary act and deed on behalf of 

Panther Farms, LLC. 

 

      ______________________________________ 

      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

351

Item 41.



1/25/2024

LEGEND

ARBORS DRIVE

A
RB

O
RS

 D
RI

V
E

MADELINE STREET MADELINE STREET

JO
SE

PH
 D

R
IV

E

JOSEPH DRIVE

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T
 R

-P
 M

A
ST

ER
 P

LA
N

PA
N

T
H

ER
 F

A
R
M

S,
 L

LC
PN

: 
  
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
 #

PA
N

T
H

ER
 W

ES
T
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
S

N
A

T
H

A
N

 L
A

N
E

PH
ASE

 1

PH
ASE

 2

PH
ASE

 3

PH
ASE

 4

R-1
R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

A-1

R-P

RICHARD ROAD

1 of 1
 BUILDING TYPES

 BUILDING SETBACKS 

UNIVER
SIT

Y AVEN
UE

RICHARD
ROAD

ED
EN

 W
A

Y

LEIGH
LANE

ANDY
AVE.

BLYTHE
BLVD.

GREENHILL ROAD

IR
O

N
W

O
O

D
D

R
IV

E

BENNETT LANE

EX
H

IB
IT

 A

352

Item 41.



353

Item 41.



354

Item 41.



355

Item 41.



    ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 
 

 DATE: April 22, 2024 

SUBJECT: Approval of Asbestos Removal Contract for the Industrial Park Property 
Demolitions Project, Project No. DM-427-3333 

 
Within the past year the City has acquired several properties adjacent to the West 
Viking Road Industrial Park as the City prepares for the future growth of the industrial 
park. Those properties include 2603 S. Union Road (2.35 acres), 2617 S. Union Road 
(2.50 acres), and 6512 W. Ridgeway Avenue (76 acres). Before the City can 
incorporate these properties into the industrial park, we must first remove the houses 
and outbuildings that exist on each of the properties. 
 
Before the City can demolish the structures, asbestos testing must occur to determine if 
any asbestos abatement is needed on any of the structures. The City Council recently 
approved a contract with Iowa Environmental Services, Inc. to perform the asbestos 
testing on the properties. Asbestos containing materials were found on all three 
properties, and now the City must remove the asbestos before demolition of the 
structures can begin. 
 
With that, quotes were requested from companies for the removal of the asbestos 
containing materials per the testing reports prepared by Iowa Environmental Services, 
Inc. Two quotes were received: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Company Bid Price 

Advanced 
Environmental 

Testing & 
Abatement 

$26,400 

Mid-Iowa 
Environmental 

$67,600 

356

Item 42.



The 3 properties that need asbestos removal are as follows: 

1. 2603 S. Union Road 
2. 2617 S. Union Road 
3. 6512 W. Ridgeway Avenue 

 

Staff recommends approval of the agreement for asbestos removal services with 
Advanced Environmental Testing & Abatement, for work at the above three properties. 
This work will be completed by the contractor after approval and issuance of a Notice to 
Proceed by the City. 
 

If you have any questions, please feel free to let me know. 
 

xc:  Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
    

357

Item 42.



358

Item 42.



359

Item 42.



360

Item 42.



361

Item 42.



362

Item 42.



363

Item 42.



364

Item 42.



365

Item 42.



366

Item 42.

GrahamS
Text Box
Exhibit "A"



367

Item 42.



368

Item 42.



369

Item 42.



370

Item 42.



371

Item 42.



372

Item 42.



373

Item 42.



374

Item 42.



2603 S. Union Rd
Technology Pkwy

Cedar Falls
Industrial Park

¨
1 " = 600 '

2617 S. Union Rd

6512 W. Ridgeway Ave

W. Ridgeway Ave

S. 
Un

ion
 R

d

Capital Way

Venture Way

W. Viking Rd

Inn
ov

ati
on

 D
r

City of Cedar Falls
Asbestos Removal Services

375

Item 42.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Thom Weintraut, Planner III 
 

 DATE: May 6, 2024 

SUBJECT: Acceptance of Warranty Deed and Flood Mitigation Deed Restriction for 1218 
Cottage Row Road as part of the Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout 
Programs, Project No. FL-000-3198   

 
On February 5, 2024, City Council approved Resolution No. 23,482 for a purchase 
agreement as part of the Northern Cedar Falls Buyout Program. City Legal staff completed 
the closing of the property on Friday, April 5, 2024. 
 

Now that the closing has been completed, City Council will need to accept the Warranty 
Deed that will be recorded at the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office. Staff recommends 
that the City Council adopt the following: 
 
 1. Resolution Approving and Accepting a Warranty Deed and Flood Mitigation 

Deed Restriction for the purchase of 36,788 sq. ft. (0.85 ac.) of real estate 
located at 1218 Cottage Row Road, owned by the Steven L Rieger Revocable 
Trust. 

 
If you have any questions regarding this project, please feel free to contact me. 
 

xc:  Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

376

Item 43.



377

Item 43.



378

Item 43.



379

Item 43.



380

Item 43.



381

Item 43.



382

Item 43.



383

Item 43.



384

Item 43.



385

Item 43.



386

Item 43.



387

Item 43.



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by:  Thomas Weintraut, Planner III, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa (319) 268-5184 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ACCEPTING A WARRANTY DEED, 

PURCHASER’S AFFIDAVIT AND TRSTEE AFFIDAVIT WITH A FLOOD 

MITIGATION DEED RESTRICTION IN CONJUCTION WITH THE NORTHERN 

CEDAR FALLS FLOOD BUYOUT PROGRAM 

 
 WHEREAS, City Staff has recommended to the Coty Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa that 

a Warranty Deed, Purchaser’s Affidavit and Trustee Affidavit with a deed restriction from Steven L Rieger, 

Trustee of the Steven L. Rieger Revocable Trust in conjunction with the Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout 

Program, 1218 Cottage Row Road be approved and accepted. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in the best interests of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve and accept said Warranty Deed, Purchaser’s Affidavit, Trustee 

Affidavit and Flood Mitigation Deed Restriction. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that said 

Warranty Deed, Purchaser’s Affidavit, Trustee Affidavit and Deed Restriction are hereto attached, 

conveying real estate to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby approved and accepted. 

 

 Adopted this 6th day of May 2024. 

 
       

____________________________________________ 

Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 

____________________________________________ 

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

388

Item 43.



 2 

CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) SS: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 

 

 

I, Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that the above and 

foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution No. _____ duly and legally adopted by the 

City Council of said City on the _____ day of ____________________, 2024. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 2024. 

  

 

 

  

Kim Kerr, CMC 

City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
 

389

Item 43.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Thom Weintraut, Planner III 
  Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: May 6, 2024 

 SUBJECT: Pinnacle Prairie Commercial South Phase VI preliminary and final plat.   
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve the preliminary and final plat for Pinnacle Prairie 
Commercial South – Phase VI. Cases #PP23-004 and #FP23-002 
 

PETITIONER: Greenhill Estates, Inc & Oster Family Limited Partnership, owner; Steve 
Letnes, LMM Investment LLC, developer; Lary Koosman, CGA, Engineer  
 

LOCATION: 
 

The property is located between Viking Road and Brandilynn Boulevard 
approximately 350 feet east of Prairie Parkway 
 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The petitioners, LMM 
Investments (developer) and 
Greenhill Estates, Inc & Oster 
Family Limited Partnership 
(owners), proposes to 
resubdivide Lot 3 of Pinnacle 
Prairie Commercial South 
Phase II into three (3) lots, 
totaling 3.51 acres, to create a 
new subdivision entitled 
Pinnacle Prairie Commercial 
South Phase VI.   
 
The property is located 
between Viking Road and 
Brandilynn Boulevard across 
the street from Menards. The 
applicant submitted preliminary 
and final plat applications for 
concurrent review.   

390

Item 44.



 
BACKGROUND 
The property is part of the Pinnacle 
Prairie Master Plan adopted in 2004. Lot 
3, which is proposed for re-subdivision, is 
part of Pinnacle Prairie Commercial 
South Phase II subdivision, approved by 
the City in 2012.  The property is zoned 
Highway Commercial (Hwy-1).  
 
Lot 2 of Pinnacle Prairie Commercial 
South Phase II located to the west was 
similarly re-subdivided into smaller 
commercial lots in 2021 creating Pinnacle 
Prairie Commercial South Phase V, at 
which time a system of private drives was 
established to serve the lots. 
 
ANALYSIS  
The petitioner, LMM Investments, proposes a preliminary and final plat for Pinnacle Prairie 
Commercial South Phase VI; a replat of Lot 3 of Pinnacle Prairie Commercial South Phase II to 
create 3 new commercial lots totaling 3.51 acres.  The site is located between Viking Road and 
Brandilynn Boulevard approximately 350 feet east of Prairie Parkway. The property is zoned 
Highway Commercial (Hwy-1). Setbacks are shown on the face of the plat and are consistent 
with the required setbacks within the Hwy-1 Zoning District.    
  
To provide adequate traffic circulation and access for the three new lots, the petitioners propose 
a private drive that will connect to two private drives to the west which were constructed for 
Pinnacle Prairie Commercial South Phase V and provide another access point north to 
Brandilynn Boulevard. The drive will be 28’ wide and be located within a 50-foot wide public 
access and utility easement. The parcel to the east is for stormwater management, and 
therefore does not need to have the street stubbed to provide future access.   
 
Regarding stormwater management, the petitioner will connect to the regional stormwater 
system that has already been installed with the development of Pinnacle Prairie Commercial 
South Phase II.   
 
It is a requirement of the subdivision code that sidewalks be installed along street frontages 
within five (5) years of the final plat approval.  Lot 3 was platted as part of Pinnacle Prairie 
Commercial South Phase II in 2013, 10 years ago, and therefore a sidewalk connection must be 
constructed by the petitioners along Brandilynn Boulevard (Lot 3 of this subdivision) between 
the parcels to the west and the storm water facility parcel to the east prior to issuance of any 
occupancy permit on any of the lots created with this subdivision. At their January 24, 2024, 
meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended allowing the sidewalk 
along Lot 3 to be installed prior to an occupancy permit for any development on Lot 3, or 
five years after the filing of the final plat, whichever is sooner.     
 
The Deed of Dedication (DoD) creates a property owners association to manage the 
maintenance of the private streets and common shared property, such as snow removal and 
street maintenance. The City has reviewed the DoD and finds it is consistent with the previous 

391

Item 44.



DoD and addresses the new subdivision requirements.   
 
The applicant supplied all necessary documents that are required for a final plat including the 
Surveyor Certificates, Black Hawk County Auditor approval of the subdivision name, Attorney’s 
Title Opinion, and the final plat.  The property owner does not have a mortgage on the property; 
therefore, a statement from the lienholder is not required. 
 
The City Code states that the final plat must be in substantial conformance with the preliminary 
plat. The proposed final plat conforms to the preliminary plat and associated conditions as 
discussed by the applicant and staff.  The petitioner has met that criterion and the associated 
conditions.   
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, gas, 
and communication services are available to the site. The developer will extend the utility 
services to the proposed development. The easements identified on the plat satisfy Public 
Works and CFU requirements. 
 
Staff notes a minor correction of title of the subdivision on the plats is needed to reflect that this 
is “A re-subdivision of Lot 3, Pinnacle Prairie Commercial South – Phase II.”  
 
City Code requires sidewalks to be installed along all streets within 5 years of final plat approval. 
Sidewalks have not been installed along the Brandilynn frontage of Lot 3. The DoD contains 
language that requires the completion of the sidewalk along the Brandilynn frontage prior to 
issuance of any occupancy permit for development on any of the lots in Phase VI.  At their 
January 24, 2024, meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended allowing 
the sidewalk along Lot 3 to be installed prior to an occupancy permit for any 
development on Lot 3, or five years after the filing of the final plat, whichever is sooner.     
 
 
A courtesy mailing was sent to the neighboring property owners on January 18, 2024. 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of the Preliminary and Final Plats for 
Pinnacle Prairie Commercial South Phase VI. 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING 

Discussion 
and 
approval 
1/24/2024 

Acting Chair Hartley introduced the item and Mr. Weintraut provided 
background information. He explained that he will be presenting the 
preliminary and final plats together as there are very few separate 
comments. The property is located between Brandilynn Boulevard and 
Viking Road, across the street from Menards. He explained that he had two 
post-packet updates. Staff had a discussion with the applicants regarding the 
timing of the infill sidewalk. Staff recommended allowing the sidewalk along 
Lot 3 to be installed prior to an occupancy permit for any development on Lot 
3, or five years after the filing of the final plat, whichever is sooner. As part of 
the subdivision requirements, all other public infrastructure is required to 
either be installed prior to final plat approval, or the developer shall enter into 
a surety agreement with the City.  

392

Item 44.



 
Ms. Moser asked about the intersection along East Viking and when another 
traffic study might be done. Ms. Howard stated that there is already a plan 
for a roundabout to be placed in that location. 
  
Mr. Stalnaker asked about the public infrastructure requirements and 
installation. He asked if the City plans to go with a surety agreement for this. 
Mr. Weintraut stated yes. Ms. Howard further explained that public 
infrastructure is required to be extended to the extent of the plat so that the 
next development is able to continue from there.  
 
Mr. Leeper made a motion to approve the preliminary plat. Ms. Grybovych 
seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes 
(Alberhasky, Grybovych, Hartley, Leeper, Moser and Stalnaker), and 0 nays. 
 
Ms. Alberhasky made a motion to approve the final plat. Mr. Moser 
seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes 
(Alberhasky, Grybovych, Hartley, Leeper, Moser and Stalnaker), and 0 nays. 
 

  
Attachments:   Preliminary Plat 

Final Plat 

Deed of Dedication 

 

 

393

Item 44.



394

Item 44.



395

Item 44.



396

Item 44.



397

Item 44.



398

Item 44.



399

Item 44.



400

Item 44.



401

Item 44.



402

Item 44.



403

Item 44.



404

Item 44.



405

Item 44.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: May 6th, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: Pinnacle Prairie Commercial South Phase VI 
  Contract for Completion of Improvements 
 
The developer of the above-mentioned project, Greenhill Estates, Inc., has requested 
Final Plat approval in order to proceed with the sale of lots in the development. 
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc., the developer’s engineer, has submitted the 
estimate of remaining costs for completion of improvements. The developer has 
submitted a “Contract for Completion of Improvements” and established a Performance 
and Payment Bond in the amount of $117,564.00 to ensure completion of the project. A 
copy of the Final Plat is attached for your reference. 
  
The Engineering Division has reviewed the cost estimate for the remaining work and 
concurs that the amount of the Performance Bond is adequate to complete the project.  
The “Contract for Completion of Improvements” is based on the standard forms 
developed by our City Attorney. The developer has also provided a Maintenance Bond 
in the full amount of the public improvements that will be on file until final acceptance of 
the project by City Council. We recommend approval of the “Contract for Completion of 
Improvements”. 
 
 
xc:   Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 
 

406

Item 45.



407

Item 45.



408

Item 45.



409

Item 45.



Exhibit A

410

Item 45.



Exhibit A

411

Item 45.



CONCEPTUAL ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST

PROJECT NAME: PINNACLE PRAIRIE COMMERCIAL SOUTH PHASE VI

PROJECT NUMBER: 23-DS-0214

OWNER: LETNES GROUP AND OSTER PARTNERS LP

ENGINEER: CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOICATES, INC. (CGA)

ITEM NO. UNITS QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

5.01 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 12" LF 580.00  $            110.00  $           63,800.00 

5.02 Fittings LS 1.00  $         2,000.00  $             2,000.00 

5.03 Water Service, DIP, 6" LF 13.00  $              90.00  $             1,170.00 

5.04 Gate Valve, 6" EA 1.00  $         3,000.00  $             3,000.00 

5.05 Gate Valve, 12" EA 1.00  $         3,500.00  $             3,500.00 

5.06 Fire Hydrant Assembly EA 2.00  $         8,000.00  $           16,000.00 

5.07 Fire Hydrant Assembly, Remove and Relocate EA 1.00  $         7,000.00  $             7,000.00 

5.08 Connection to Existing Water Main EA 1.00  $         1,500.00  $             1,500.00 

SUBTOTAL 97,970.00$           

20% CONTINGENCY 19,594.00$           

117,564.00$         

Prepared By:

CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOCIATES, INC (CGA)

Adam C. Daters, PE

PUBLIC WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST

SECTION 5010 - PIPE AND FITTINGS

SECTION 5020 - VALVES, FIRE HYDRANTS AND APPURTENANCES

DESCRIPTION

2/28/2024 PAGE 1 OF 1

Exhibit B

412

Item 45.



413

Item 45.



414

Item 45.



415

Item 45.



416

Item 45.



417

Item 45.



418

Item 45.



419

Item 45.



420

Item 45.



421

Item 46.



422

Item 46.



423

Item 46.



424

Item 46.



425

Item 46.



426

Item 46.



427

Item 46.



428

Item 46.



429

Item 46.



430

Item 46.



431

Item 46.



432

Item 46.



433

Item 46.



434

Item 46.



435

Item 46.



436

Item 46.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

PUBLIC WORKS & PARKS DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PARKWAY 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Daniel Laudick and Cedar Falls City Council 

 FROM: Chase Schrage, Director, Public Works Department 

 DATE: April 29, 2024 

 SUBJECT: Iowa DOT Patents No. 6464 & No. 6465 

 
 Enclosed is a request to accept the land patents (warranty deed) for the excess 
land purchased in regards to the West 1st Street Project. The request to purchase the 
properties was on the February 5, 2024, City Council agenda. The agreement between 
the Iowa DOT and the City outlines a 50/50 cost share on any right-of-way purchased 
as part of the project. After the purchase of these parcels, the City will receive half of the 
parcel costs back in reimbursement.  
 
The Department of Public Works recommends that the City Council approve these state 
land patents. Let me know if you have any questions. 
 
 
  
 

437

Item 47.



438

Item 47.



439

Item 47.



440

Item 47.



441

Item 47.



442

Item 47.



443

Item 47.



444

Item 47.



445

Item 47.



446

Item 47.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 
 DATE: May 6, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: Viking Road and Prairie Parkway Intersection Improvements Project 

  City Project Number: RC-232-3308  
  Agreement for Traffic Safety Improvement Program 
 
Please find attached the Viking Road and Prairie Parkway Intersection Improvements Project 
Agreement with the Iowa Department of Transportation for City Council review and approval. This 
agreement will provide funding for the Viking Road and Prairie Parkway Intersection 
Improvements Project.   

 
This project involves converting the existing intersection to a roundabout to improve 
safety and add capacity to the intersection. The intersection of Viking Road and Prairie 

Parkway in Cedar Falls is currently stop controlled on Prairie Parkway and through traffic on Viking 
Road. 
 
The Traffic Safety Improvement Program (TSIP) and the agreement for Traffic Safety 
Improvement Program Funding administered through the Iowa Department of Transportation will 
provide $290,000 in approved funding awarded by the Iowa Transportation Commission Order 
No. SO-2024-26 on December 12, 2023.  

  
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approval of the 
Viking Road and Prairie Parkway Intersection Improvements Project Agreement with the Iowa 
Department of Transportation. Please sign and return the originals to the Engineering Division for 
further processing.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Ben Claypool, PhD, PE, Principal Engineer 
 
 

447

Item 48.



January 2023 

2025-TS-015_CedarFalls 1 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
AGREEMENT FOR TRAFFIC SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FUNDING 

(Site-Specific Improvement) 
 

County  Black Hawk 
Recipient Cedar Falls 
Project No.  CS-TSF-1185(659)--85-07 
Iowa DOT  
Agreement No.  2025-TS-015 

 
This agreement is entered into by and between the Iowa Department of Transportation, hereinafter 
designated the “DOT”, and the city of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter designated the “Recipient”. The 
Recipient submitted an application to the DOT for funding through the Traffic Safety Improvement 
Program (TSIP) under Iowa Code Section 312.2(11), and the application was approved by Transportation 
Commission Order No. SO-2024-26 on December 12, 2023. 
 
Pursuant to the terms of this agreement, and applicable statutes and administrative rules, the DOT 
agrees to provide funding to the Recipient to aid in the development of a certain traffic safety 
improvement project. 
 
In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises contained in this agreement, the parties agree 
as follows: 
 
1. Project Information 

 
a. The Recipient shall be the lead local governmental agency for carrying out the provisions of this 

agreement. 
 

b. All notices required under this agreement shall be made in writing to the DOT’s and/or the Recipient's 
contact person. The DOT's contact person shall be the Local Systems Project Development Engineer 
and Eastern Region Local Systems Field Engineer.  The Recipient's contact person shall be the City 
Engineer, David Wicke. 
 

c. The Recipient shall be responsible for the development and completion of the following described 
project located in the city of Cedar Falls: 

 
Construction of a roundabout at the intersection of East Viking Road and Prairie Parkway. See 
Exhibit A-1 for the location of the project and Exhibit A-2 for the estimated project cost. 
 

d. Project-specific funding stipulations in order for the project to be considered eligible to receive TSIP 
funds include: 

 
Review of the roundabout design by an Iowa DOT on-call consultant.  
 

2. Project Costs 
 

a. Eligible project costs for the project described in Section 1 of this agreement which are incurred after 
the effective date of Commission approval shall be paid from TSIP funds and other funds as listed 
below, subject to the execution of a signed agreement: 
 
 TSIP funds: $290,000 
 

b. The portion of the total project costs paid by TSIP shall not exceed the amount stated above or the 
actual cost of the TSIP eligible items, whichever is the lesser amount. 

 

448

Item 48.



January 2023 

2025-TS-015_CedarFalls 2 

c. If a letting is required, the project shall be let to contract before July 1, 2026, but no earlier than 
July 1, 2024. If a letting is not required, project activities shall be initiated prior to July 1, 2026. If any 
of these conditions are not met, the Recipient may be in default, for which the Department may 
revoke funding commitments. This agreement may be extended for a period of 12 months upon 
receipt of a written request from the Recipient at least 30 days prior to the deadline.  
 

d. Project activities or costs considered eligible for TSIP funds are those required by, or integral to, the 
safety aspects of the project. Eligible activities include the following: (a) road modernization, 
upgrading or reconstruction; (b) intersection improvements; (c) right-of-way purchases; (d) drainage 
and erosion control measures; (e) traffic control devices; (f) traffic barriers and other roadside safety 
devices; and (g) removal of trees and other fixed objects.  
 

e. Project activities or costs considered ineligible for TSIP funds include, but are not limited to, the 
following: (a) any and all costs incurred prior to Commission approval of funding; (b) routine 
maintenance of a road, street, bridge, culvert or traffic control device; (c) contract administration 
costs; (d) design and construction engineering and inspection, including construction survey; (e) utility 
construction, reconstruction, or adjustment, except as an integral part of a project; (f) sidewalks, 
shared-use paths or railroad-highway crossings, except as an integral part of a project; (g) 
maintenance or energy costs for traffic control devices or lighting; (h) aesthetic items such as brick 
pavers or decorative lighting/signal poles; and (i) expenditures for items not related to the roadway. 
For the purposes of this agreement, pavement patching is considered maintenance. 
 

f. If Federal highway funds, Federal Swap funds, Farm-to-Market funds, or other Federal funds are 
used in combination with TSIP funds, the Recipient shall also follow all administrative and contracting 
procedures which would normally be used when such funds are used on a non-TSIP project. The 
Recipient shall comply with all requirements for the use of said funds.  
 

3. Right of Way and Permits  
 

a. In the event that right-of-way is required for the project, said right-of-way shall be acquired in 
accordance with 761 Iowa Administrative Code Chapter 111, Real Property Acquisition and 
Relocation Assistance. If the project impacts the Primary Road System, the Recipient shall submit 
preliminary right-of-way plans to the DOT's Right of Way Bureau for review and approval prior to the 
commencement of any acquisition. Additionally, if said right-of-way is for an improvement to the 
Primary Road System, it shall be acquired in the name of the State of Iowa.  
 

b. The Recipient shall be responsible for obtaining any permits, such as the Work Within the Right-of-
Way Permit, Access Connection/Entrance Permit, Utility Accommodation Permit, Application for 
Approval of a Traffic Control Device, and/or other construction permits required for the project prior to 
the start of construction. Neither the approval of the TSIP application for funding nor the signing of 
this agreement shall be construed as approval of any required permit from the DOT. 
 

c. The Recipient shall be responsible for obtaining any environmental permits and approvals, when 
necessary, to comply with all environmental regulations. 
 

4. Project Design  
 

a. The Recipient shall develop all project improvements using engineering judgment. The Recipient 
shall use the DOT “Design Manual” on projects involving the Primary Road System and/or routes 
located on the National Highway System. Projects not on the Primary Road system shall use “A 
Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets", (latest edition), by the American Association of 
State Highway and Transportation Officials. In all cases the "The Manual on Uniform Traffic Control 
Devices for Streets and Highways" (MUTCD), as adopted pursuant to 761 Iowa Administrative Code, 
Chapter 130 shall apply.  
 

 

449

Item 48.



January 2023 

2025-TS-015_CedarFalls 3 

5. Bid Letting  
 

a. If the project must be let for bids, then project plans, specifications and engineer's cost estimate for 
site specific improvements and/or traffic control devices shall be prepared and certified by a 
professional engineer licensed to practice in the State of Iowa. The Recipient shall submit the plans, 
specifications and other contract documents to the DOT for review. This submittal may be in divisions 
and in the order of preference as determined by the Recipient. 
 
i. If the Recipient lets the project, the plans, specifications and other contract documents for each 

division must be submitted at least ten weeks (traffic control devices) or fourteen weeks (site 
specific project) prior to the project letting of each division. 
 

ii. If the project will be let through the Iowa DOT, project development submittals shall follow Local 
Systems I.M. 3.010.  
 

iii. The DOT shall review said submittal(s) recognizing the Recipient's development schedule and 
shall, after satisfactory review, authorize in writing the Recipient to proceed with implementation 
of the project. The work on this project shall be in accordance with the survey, plans, and 
specifications on file. Any substantial modification of these plans and specifications must be 
approved by the DOT prior to the modification being put into effect. 

 
b. If the Recipient lets the project, as described herein, the Recipient shall include in their Notice to 

Bidders that Sales Tax Exemption Certificates will be issued, as provided for by Iowa Code section 
423.3, subsection 80. The Recipient shall be responsible for obtaining the sales tax exemption 
certificates through the Iowa Department of Revenue and Finance. The Recipient shall issue these 
certificates to the successful bidder and any subcontractors to enable them to purchase qualifying 
materials for the project free of sales tax. 
 

c. If the Recipient lets the project, then the Recipient shall use positive efforts to solicit bids from and to 
utilize Targeted Small Business (TSB) enterprises as contractors and ensure that the contractors 
make positive efforts to utilize these enterprises as subcontractors, suppliers or participants in the 
work covered by this agreement. Efforts shall be made and documented in accordance with Exhibit B 
which is attached hereto and by this reference incorporated into this agreement. 
 

d. If the Recipient lets the project, then for portions of the project let to bid, the Recipient shall advertise 
for bidders, make a good faith effort to get at least three (3) bidders, hold a public letting and award 
contracts for the project work. DOT concurrence in the award must be obtained prior to the award. 
The Recipient shall provide the DOT file copies of project letting documents within five (5) days after 
letting. 
 

e. The Recipient shall be the contracting authority for the project.  
 

6. Construction and Maintenance  
 

a. The Recipient shall conduct the project development and implementation in compliance with 
applicable laws, ordinances and administrative rules. 
 

b. The Recipient shall be responsible for the daily inspection of the project, and the compilation of a 
daily log of materials, equipment and labor on the project.  
 

c. The Recipient shall maintain records, documents, and other evidence in support of work performed 
under the terms of this contract. All accounting practices applied and all records maintained will be in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and procedures. Documentation shall be 
made available for inspection and audit by authorized representatives of the DOT or its designee at 
all reasonable times during the period of the contract and for three (3) years after the date of final 
payment. Reimbursement shall be based on eligible actual and indirect costs associated with 

450

Item 48.



January 2023 

2025-TS-015_CedarFalls 4 

performance of contract service work. The Recipient shall provide copies of said records and 
documents to the DOT upon request. 
 

d. The Recipient shall notify the DOT’s contact person of the date that construction begins and the date 
that the project is substantially complete (i.e., when the road is re-opened to traffic).  
 

e. The Recipient shall require its contractors to permit the DOT authorized representative to inspect all 
work materials, records, and any other data with regard to agreement related costs, revenues and 
operating sources. 
 

f. Upon project completion and prior to final reimbursement for the project, the Recipient shall furnish 
three sets of "as-built" plans for any portion of the project which is on or intersects any primary road 
or primary road extension to the DOT's contact person for future maintenance and road design 
purposes. 
 

g. If this project requires the installation of or modification to a traffic control signal system, the Recipient 
shall be responsible for all future ownership, maintenance, operation and energy costs of said 
installation or modification. 
 

h. The Recipient hereby certifies that, for a period of five (5) years following completion of the project 
and receipt of final payment from the DOT, there shall be no modifications in the geometric features, 
the construction features, or the access management features (including driveway design and 
location) of the project, nor shall there be any fixed objects or obstructions placed in any clear zone 
established in conjunction with this project without the prior written approval of the Traffic and Safety 
Bureau. Failure to comply shall be considered a default under the terms of this agreement. 
 

7. Payments and Reimbursements 
 

a. The Recipient may submit to the DOT periodic itemized claims for reimbursement for eligible project 
activities. Eligible and ineligible costs are outlined in Iowa Administrative Code (IAC) 761 Chapter 
164, Traffic Safety Improvement Program (see IAC 761-164.6(312) and IAC 761-164.7(312)). 
Reimbursement claims shall include certification by a professional engineer licensed to practice in the 
State of Iowa that all eligible project activities for which reimbursement is requested have been 
completed in substantial compliance with the terms of this agreement. Reimbursement claims shall 
not be submitted until after July 1, 2024. 
 

b. The Department will reimburse the Recipient for properly documented and certified claims for eligible 
project costs.  The Department may withhold up to 5% of the construction costs or 5% of the TSIP 
funds available for the project, whichever is less. Reimbursement will be made either by State warrant 
or by crediting other accounts from which payment was initially made. If, upon final audit or review, 
the Department determines the Recipient has been overpaid, the Recipient shall reimburse the 
overpaid amount to the Department. After the final audit or review is complete and after the Recipient 
has provided all required paperwork, the Department will release the funds withheld, if any. 
 

c. Upon completion of the project described in this agreement, a professional engineer licensed to 
practice in the State of Iowa shall certify in writing to the DOT that the project activities were 
completed in substantial compliance with the terms of this agreement. Final reimbursement of TSIP 
funds shall be made only after the DOT accepts the project as complete. 
 

d. The Recipient shall request reimbursement and final payment from the DOT within one year of field 
completion of the work. If this condition is not met, the Recipient may be in default, for which the 
Department may revoke funding commitments. 
 

e. If the Recipient fails to perform any obligation under this agreement, the DOT shall have the right, 
after first giving thirty (30) days written notice to Recipient by certified mail return receipt requested, to 
declare this agreement in default. The Recipient shall have thirty (30) days from date of mailing of 

451

Item 48.



January 2023 

2025-TS-015_CedarFalls 5 

notice to cure the default. If the Recipient cures the default, the Recipient shall notify DOT no later 
than five (5) days after cure or before the end of said thirty (30) day period to cure default. Within ten 
(10) working days of receipt of Recipient's notice of cure, the DOT shall issue either a notice of 
acceptance of cure or notice of continued default. 
 

f. In the event a default is not cured the DOT may revoke funding commitments and/or seek repayment 
of TSIP funds granted by this agreement through charges against the Recipient's road use tax funds. 
 

8. General Provisions 
 

a. This agreement shall be considered to be in default if the DOT determines that the Recipient's 
application for funding contained inaccuracies, omissions, errors or misrepresentations. 
 

b. To the extent allowed by law, the Recipient agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the DOT harmless 
from any action or liability arising out of the design, construction, maintenance, placement of traffic 
control devices, or inspection of this project. To the extent allowed by law, this agreement to 
indemnify, defend and hold harmless applies to all aspects of the DOT's application review and 
approval process, plan and construction reviews, and funding participation. 
 

c. In accordance with Iowa Code Chapter 216, the Recipient shall not discriminate against any person 
on the basis of race, color, creed, age, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, 
religion, pregnancy, or disability. 
 

d. The Recipient shall comply with the requirements of Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990 (ADA), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), and the associated Federal 
regulations that implement these laws. 

 
e. The Recipient shall take the necessary actions to comply with applicable State and Federal laws and 

regulations. To assist the Recipient, the Department has provided guidance in the Non-Federal-aid 
Project Development Guide (Non-Federal-aid Guide) and the Instructional Memorandums to Local 
Public Agencies (I.M.s) that are referenced by the Guide. Both are available on-line at: 
https://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/im/lpa_ims.htm. The Recipient shall follow the 
applicable procedures and guidelines contained in the Non-Federal-aid Guide and I.M.s in effect at 
the time project activities are conducted. 
 

f. If any part of this agreement is found to be void and unenforceable then the remaining provisions of 
this agreement shall remain in effect. 
 

g. This agreement is not assignable without the prior written consent of the DOT. 
 

h. It is the intent of both parties that no third-party beneficiaries be created by this agreement. 
 

i. In case of dispute concerning the terms of this agreement, the parties shall submit the matter to 
arbitration pursuant to Iowa Code Chapter 679A. Either party has the right to submit the matter to 
arbitration after ten (10) days’ notice to the other party of their intent to seek arbitration. The written 
notice must include a precise statement of the disputed question. DOT and the Recipient agree to be 
bound by the decision of the appointed arbitrator. Neither party may seek any remedy with the state 
or federal courts absent exhaustion of the provisions of this paragraph for arbitration. 

 
j. This agreement, including referenced exhibits, constitutes the entire agreement between the DOT 

and the Recipient concerning this project. Representations made before the signing of this agreement 
are not binding, and neither party has relied upon conflicting representations in entering into this 
agreement. Any change or alteration to the terms of this agreement must be made in the form of an 
addendum to this agreement. Said addendum shall become effective only upon written approval of 
the DOT and Recipient. 
 

452

Item 48.

https://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/im/lpa_ims.htm


January 2023 

2025-TS-015_CedarFalls 6 

 
 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has executed Agreement No. 2025-TS-015 as of the 
date shown opposite its signature below. 
 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa: 
 

By: _______________________________ Date _________________________, 20_____. 

Title: ____________________________ 

 
 
I, _________________________, certify that I am the Clerk of the City, and that 

__________________________, who signed said Agreement for and on behalf of the City was duly 

authorized to execute the same by virtue of a formal Resolution duly passed and adopted by the City, on 

the _____________ day of ________________________, 20_____. 

 
Signed _____________________________ Date _________________________, 20_____.  
City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
 
Iowa Department of Transportation: 
 
 
By:_________________________________ Date ________________________, 20______. 
 Dave Lorenzen 
 Director,  
 Systems Operations Division 
  

453

Item 48.



January 2023 

2025-TS-015_CedarFalls 7 

EXHIBIT A-1 
[Project Location] 

  

454

Item 48.



January 2023 

2025-TS-015_CedarFalls 8 

EXHIBIT A-2 
[Estimated Project Cost] 

 
 

455

Item 48.



 

2025-TS-015_CedarFalls 9 

EXHIBIT B 
UTILIZATION OF TARGETED SMALL BUSINESS (TSB) ENTERPRISES  

ON NON-FEDERAL AID PROJECTS 
(THIRD-PARTY STATE-ASSISTED PROJECTS) 

 
In accordance with Iowa Code Section 19B.7, it is the policy of the Iowa Department of Transportation (Iowa DOT) that 
Targeted Small Business (TSB) enterprises shall have the maximum practicable opportunity to participate in the performance 
of contracts financed in whole or part with State funds. 
 
Under this policy the Recipient shall be responsible to make a positive effort to solicit bids or proposals from TSB firms and to 
utilize TSB firms as contractors or consultants.  The Recipient shall also ensure that the contractors or consultants make 
positive efforts to utilize TSB firms as subcontractors, subconsultants, suppliers, or participants in the work covered by this 
agreement. 
 
The Recipient’s “positive efforts” shall include, but not be limited to: 
 

1. Obtaining the names of qualified TSB firms from the Iowa Economic Development Authority (515-348-6200) or from 
its website at: https://www.iowaeda.com/small-business/targeted-small-business/ 

 
2. Notifying qualified TSB firms of proposed projects involving State funding.  Notification should be made in sufficient 

time to allow the TSB firms to participate effectively in the bidding or request for proposal (RFP) process. 
 

3. Soliciting bids or proposals from qualified TSB firms on each project, and identifying for TSB firms the availability of 
subcontract work. 

 
4. Considering establishment of a percentage goal for TSB participation in each contract that is a part of this project and 

for which State funds will be used.  Contract goals may vary depending on the type of project, the subcontracting 
opportunities available, the type of service or supplies needed for the project, and the availability of qualified TSB 
firms in the area. 

 
5. For construction contracts: 

 
a) Including in the bid proposals a contract provision titled “Targeted Small Business (TSB) Affirmative Action 

Responsibilities on Non-Federal Aid Projects (Third-Party State-Assisted Projects)” or a similar document 
developed by the Recipient.  This contract provision is available from the Iowa DOT Administering Bureau. 

 
b) Ensuring that the awarded contractor has and shall follow the contract provisions.   
 

6. For consultant contracts:   
 

a) Identifying the TSB goal in the Request for Proposal (RFP), if one has been set.    
 
b) Ensuring that the selected consultant made a positive effort to meet the established TSB goal, if any.  This 

should include obtaining documentation from the consultant that includes a list of TSB firms contacted; a list of 
TSB firms that responded with a subcontract proposal; and, if the consultant does not propose to use a TSB firm 
that submitted a subcontract proposal, an explanation why such a TSB firm will not be used.    

 
The Recipient shall provide the Iowa DOT Administering Bureau the following documentation: 
 

1. Copies of correspondence and replies, and written notes of personal and/or telephone contacts with any TSB firms.  
Such documentation can be used to demonstrate the Recipient’s positive efforts and it should be placed in the 
project file. 

 
2. Bidding proposals or RFPs noting established TSB goals, if any. 

 
3. Form 260017 “Checklist and Certification for the Utilization of Targeted Small Businesses (TSB)” shall be filled out 

upon completion of each project.  
https://iowadot.seamlessdocs.com/f/ChecklistandCertforUtilizationofTSBonNonFederalProjects 

 

456

Item 48.

https://www.iowaeda.com/small-business/targeted-small-business/
https://iowadot.seamlessdocs.com/f/ChecklistandCertforUtilizationofTSBonNonFederalProjects


457

Item 49.



458

Item 49.



11

9

10

8

7

CEDAR HEIGHTS

DIVISION J

1

2

3
4

5
6

7

8

Lu
pto

n's
Tim

be
r P

lat

5

6

1

2

3

4

5

6

E. RIDGEWOOD DRIVE

(20' ROW)

Lu
pto

n's
Tim

be
r P

lat

459

Item 49.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. RIDGEWOOD DRIVE (ROW UNKNOWN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
111

AutoCAD SHX Text
210

AutoCAD SHX Text
211

AutoCAD SHX Text
214

AutoCAD SHX Text
224

AutoCAD SHX Text
225

AutoCAD SHX Text
226

AutoCAD SHX Text
227

AutoCAD SHX Text
228

AutoCAD SHX Text
213

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROW ACQUISITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRECO, GREGORY L & JAYNE M 2424 WOODLAND DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOFF JERRY L & MARTHA E 2425 WOODLAND DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRECO, GREGORY L & JAYNE M 2424 WOODLAND DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANK, MICHAEL L & KIMBERLY K 1614 E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVIS, THOMAS F & LYNEA G 1622 E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROVER, SUSAN E & WILLIAM A 2408 WOODLAND DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASTON, JANE & DAVID 1615 E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
JACKSON, DAVID A & MARY C 1621 E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAMER, NINA M 1703 E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROWN, RICHARD 1709 E RIDGEWOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
YOUNG, JAMES R & LAURINDA K 1713 E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
HUNERMULLER, LIND J 2339 GREENWOOD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAUCHAN, JOHN F & RUTH A 2410 GREENWOOD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANICUCCI, DAVID & MICHELLE 1605 E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
JENNINGS, CLARK W & EVELYNE E 2315 E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
O CONNELL, MICHAEL CHILOCOTE, KATHERINE 1514 CHERRY LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINNEGAN, JOHN C 1522 CHERRY LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
YOUNG, JAMES R & LAURINDA K 1713 E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DABNEY, RUSSELL A & VICKI M 2327 GREENWOOD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREENWOOD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GESELL, BONNIE B & ANTHONY C   2518 WOODLAND DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHERRY LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR HEIGHTS AREA RECONSTRUCTION PHASE II RC-092-3271

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLACK HAWK COUNTY



TIMBER DRIVE

GRAND BLVD

GREENWOOD BLVD

460

Item 49.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KARLA N SOLHEIM 2436 GREENWOOD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ERIC N DOWELL 2435 GREENWOOD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGINALD J GREEN 1911 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAULA M GOETZ 2506 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANTHONY R PATTERSON 1915 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDWIN D KING 1919 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLEN KOEPPEL 2501 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN OGDEN 2505 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DONALD T KELLY 2512 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLIAM G NAAKTGEBOREN 2518 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
F K SANDERS 2524 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GERALDINE P HALL 2022 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLIAM G NIBBELINK 2021 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATTHEW T SKEENS 2105 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
RONALD L SAUL 2106 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENNETH M CUTTS 2116 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
REED J HUNEMULLER 2115 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAY T LEES 2015 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLACK HAWK COUNTY CONSERVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
208

AutoCAD SHX Text
206

AutoCAD SHX Text
207

AutoCAD SHX Text
205

AutoCAD SHX Text
204

AutoCAD SHX Text
203

AutoCAD SHX Text
202

AutoCAD SHX Text
201

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROW ACQUISITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT EASEMENT



461

Item 49.



462

Item 49.



3 
 

   
   
 
 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA (BUYER) 
 
 
By: _____________________________________ 
 Daniel Laudick, Mayor                              
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: _____________________________________ 
 Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss: 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of __________________, 20__, by Daniel 
Laudick, Mayor, and Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 

___________________________________ 
Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

My Commission Expires: 
 
________________________________ 

463

Item 49.



464

Item 49.



465

Item 49.



466

Item 49.



4 
 

 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

 The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (“Grantee”), does hereby accept and approve the 
foregoing Temporary Construction Easement Agreement. 
 
 Dated this _____ day of _______________, 20__. 
 
 
 
  GRANTEE: 
   
  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
   
   
  Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
   
   
ATTEST   
   
   
Kim Kerr, CMC 
City Clerk 

  

 
 
 
 
State of  ) 
   
County of  ) 
   
 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________________________, 
20__, by Daniel Laudick, Mayor, and Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. 
 
 
   
  Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 
   
   
My Commission Expires:   
   
   

467

Item 49.



468

Item 49.



469

Item 49.



470

Item 49.



471

Item 49.



472

Item 49.



473

Item 49.



474

Item 49.



475

Item 49.



476

Item 49.



477

Item 49.



478

Item 49.



479

Item 49.



480

Item 49.



481

Item 49.



482

Item 49.



483

Item 49.



484

Item 49.



485

Item 49.



486

Item 49.



487

Item 49.



3

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA (BUYER)

By: _____________________________________
Daniel Laudick, Mayor                             

ATTEST:

By: _____________________________________
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss:

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of __________________, 20__, by Daniel 
Laudick, Mayor, and Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.

___________________________________
Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa

My Commission Expires:

________________________________

488

Item 49.



489

Item 49.



490

Item 49.



491

Item 49.



492

Item 49.



493

Item 49.



494

Item 49.



4
 

ACCEPTANCE OF TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AGREEMENT

The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (“Grantee”), does hereby accept and approve the 
foregoing Temporary Construction Easement Agreement.

Dated this _____ day of _______________, 20__.

GRANTEE:

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

Daniel Laudick, Mayor

ATTEST

Kim Kerr, CMC
City Clerk

State of )

County of )

This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________________________, 
20__, by Daniel Laudick, Mayor, and Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa.

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa

My Commission Expires:

495

Item 49.



496

Item 49.



497

Item 49.



498

Item 49.



499

Item 49.



500

Item 49.



501

Item 49.



502

Item 49.



503

Item 49.



504

Item 49.



505

Item 49.



506

Item 49.



Page 1 of 9 

 
 
  

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
OWNER PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 
Property Address: 1621 E Ridgewood Drive 
Parcel Number: 215 
Project Number: RC-092-3271 

County Tax Parcel No: 891318277006 
Project Name: Cedar Heights Area Street  
    Reconstruction Phase 2  

 
THIS OWNER PURCHASE AGREEMENT is entered into on this    day of      , 202_, 
by and between David A. Jackson and Mary C. Jackson, husband and wife, Seller, and the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, Buyer. 
  
 1. Buyer hereby agrees to buy and Seller hereby agrees to convey Seller’s interests in the following real 

estate, hereinafter referred to as the “Premises”: 
  

    See Attached Acquisition Plat 
    See Attached Permanent Easement Plat 
    See Attached Temporary Easement Plat  

 
together with all improvements of whatever type situated on the Premises.  This acquisition is for public 
purposes through an exercise of the power of eminent domain. 

 
 2. If the interest in the Premises conveyed is a fee interest then such conveyance includes all of the Seller’s 

estates, rights, title and interests in the Premises.  If the interest in the Premises conveyed is or includes 
an easement interest then such conveyance is only for the purposes described in the applicable 
easement agreement.   Seller consents to any change of grade of the adjacent roadway and accepts 
payment under this Agreement for any and all damages arising therefrom.  Seller acknowledges full 
settlement and payment from Buyer for all claims according to the terms of this Agreement and 
discharges Buyer from any and all liability arising out of this Agreement and the construction of the public 
improvement project identified above (“Project”).     

 
     3. In consideration of Seller’s conveyance of Seller’s interest in the Premises to Buyer, Buyer agrees to pay 

to Seller the following: 
 
 Payment Amount   Agreed Performance   Date 
 
             $   on right of possession        

$      on conveyance of title       
             $      on surrender of possession       

$ 3,260.00    on possession and   60 days after Buyer approval       
                  conveyance   
 $ 3,260.00    TOTAL LUMP SUM 
 
 BREAKDOWN: ac. = acres sq. ft. = square feet        

Land by Fee Title 12 sq. ft.   $    60.00             
Underlying Fee Title   sq. ft.   $    
Temporary Easement 680 sq. ft.   $   280.00             

 Permanent Easement 1,168 sq. ft.   $2,920.00  
 Buildings      $    
 Other        $              
   
 
 4. Seller grants to the City a Fee Acquisition, Permanent Easement and Temporary Easement as shown on 

the attached Acquisition Plat, Permanent Easement Plat, and Temporary Easement Plat. Seller also 
agrees to execute a Warranty Deed, Permanent Easement Agreement, and Temporary Easement 

507

Item 49.



508

Item 49.



509

Item 49.



510

Item 49.



511

Item 49.



512

Item 49.



513

Item 49.



514

Item 49.



515

Item 49.



516

Item 49.



517

Item 49.



3 
 

   
   
 
 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA (BUYER) 
 
 
By: _____________________________________ 
 Daniel Laudick, Mayor                              
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: _____________________________________ 
 Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss: 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of __________________, 20__, by Daniel 
Laudick, Mayor, and Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 

___________________________________ 
Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

My Commission Expires: 
 
________________________________ 

518

Item 49.



519

Item 49.



520

Item 49.



521

Item 49.



4 
 

 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

 The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (“Grantee”), does hereby accept and approve the 
foregoing Temporary Construction Easement Agreement. 
 
 Dated this _____ day of _______________, 20__. 
 
 
 
  GRANTEE: 
   
  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
   
   
  Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
   
   
ATTEST   
   
   
Kim Kerr, CMC 
City Clerk 

  

 
 
 
 
State of  ) 
   
County of  ) 
   
 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________________________, 
20__, by Daniel Laudick, Mayor, and Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. 
 
 
   
  Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 
   
   
My Commission Expires:   
   
   

522

Item 49.



523

Item 49.



524

Item 49.



525

Item 49.



526

Item 49.



527

Item 49.



528

Item 49.



529

Item 49.



530

Item 49.



531

Item 49.



532

Item 49.



533

Item 49.



534

Item 49.



535

Item 49.



536

Item 49.



537

Item 49.



538

Item 49.



539

Item 49.



540

Item 49.



541

Item 49.



542

Item 49.



543

Item 49.



544

Item 49.



545

Item 49.



546

Item 49.



547

Item 49.



3

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA (BUYER)

By: _____________________________________
Daniel Laudick, Mayor                             

ATTEST:

By: _____________________________________
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss:

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of __________________, 20__, by Daniel 
Laudick, Mayor, and Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.

___________________________________
Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa

My Commission Expires:

________________________________

548

Item 49.



549

Item 49.



550

Item 49.



551

Item 49.



552

Item 49.



553

Item 49.



554

Item 49.



555

Item 49.



556

Item 49.



Page 1 of 5 

 
 
  

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
OWNER PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 
Property Address: 1713 E Ridgewood Drive 
Parcel Number: 219 
Project Number: RC-092-3271 

County Tax Parcel No: 891318277009 
Project Name: Cedar Heights Area Street  
    Reconstruction Phase 2  

 
THIS OWNER PURCHASE AGREEMENT is entered into on this    day of      , 202_, 
by and between James R. Young and Laurinda K. Young, husband and wife, Seller, and the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, Buyer. 
  
 1. Buyer hereby agrees to buy and Seller hereby agrees to convey Seller’s interests in the following real 

estate, hereinafter referred to as the “Premises”: 
  

    See Attached Permanent Easement Plat 
 
together with all improvements of whatever type situated on the Premises.  This acquisition is for public 
purposes through an exercise of the power of eminent domain. 

 
 2. If the interest in the Premises conveyed is a fee interest then such conveyance includes all of the Seller’s 

estates, rights, title and interests in the Premises.  If the interest in the Premises conveyed is or includes 
an easement interest then such conveyance is only for the purposes described in the applicable 
easement agreement.   Seller consents to any change of grade of the adjacent roadway and accepts 
payment under this Agreement for any and all damages arising therefrom.  Seller acknowledges full 
settlement and payment from Buyer for all claims according to the terms of this Agreement and 
discharges Buyer from any and all liability arising out of this Agreement and the construction of the public 
improvement project identified above (“Project”).     

 
     3. In consideration of Seller’s conveyance of Seller’s interest in the Premises to Buyer, Buyer agrees to pay 

to Seller the following: 
 
 Payment Amount   Agreed Performance   Date 
 
             $   on right of possession        

$      on conveyance of title       
             $      on surrender of possession       

$ 6,760.00    on possession and   60 days after Buyer approval       
                  conveyance   
 $ 6,760.00    TOTAL LUMP SUM 
 
 BREAKDOWN: ac. = acres sq. ft. = square feet        

Land by Fee Title  sq. ft.   $               
Underlying Fee Title   sq. ft.   $    
Temporary Easement  sq. ft.   $              

 Permanent Easement 1,609 sq. ft.   $ 4,260.00  
 Buildings      $    
 Other (Removal of 3 trees and landscaping)  $ 2,500.00           
   
 
 4. Seller grants to the City a Permanent Easement as shown on the attached Permanent Easement Plat. 

Seller also agrees to execute a Permanent Easement Agreement as applicable, in the forms attached 
hereto.  Any Temporary Construction Easement shall terminate upon completion of the Project unless 
otherwise specified in the Temporary Easement Agreement. 

 

557

Item 49.



558

Item 49.



3

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA (BUYER)

By: _____________________________________
Daniel Laudick, Mayor                             

ATTEST:

By: _____________________________________
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss:

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of __________________, 20__, by Daniel 
Laudick, Mayor, and Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.

___________________________________
Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa

My Commission Expires:

________________________________

559

Item 49.



560

Item 49.



561

Item 49.



562

Item 49.



563

Item 49.



564

Item 49.



Page 1 of 9 

 
 
  

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
OWNER PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 
Property Address: Lot 2 Cedar Heights Division 1 
Parcel Number: 220 
Project Number: RC-092-3271 

County Tax Parcel No: 891318277010 
Project Name: Cedar Heights Area Street  
    Reconstruction Phase 2  

 
THIS OWNER PURCHASE AGREEMENT is entered into on this    day of      , 202_, 
by and between Jon R. Reese and Carol A. Reese, husband and wife, and James R. Young and Laurinda 
K. Young, husband and wife, Seller, and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, Buyer. 
  
 1. Buyer hereby agrees to buy and Seller hereby agrees to convey Seller’s interests in the following real 

estate, hereinafter referred to as the “Premises”: 
  

    See Attached Acquisition Plat 
    See Attached Permanent Easement Plat 
    See Attached Temporary Easement Plat  

 
together with all improvements of whatever type situated on the Premises.  This acquisition is for public 
purposes through an exercise of the power of eminent domain. 

 
 2. If the interest in the Premises conveyed is a fee interest then such conveyance includes all of the Seller’s 

estates, rights, title and interests in the Premises.  If the interest in the Premises conveyed is or includes 
an easement interest then such conveyance is only for the purposes described in the applicable 
easement agreement.   Seller consents to any change of grade of the adjacent roadway and accepts 
payment under this Agreement for any and all damages arising therefrom.  Seller acknowledges full 
settlement and payment from Buyer for all claims according to the terms of this Agreement and 
discharges Buyer from any and all liability arising out of this Agreement and the construction of the public 
improvement project identified above (“Project”).     

 
     3. In consideration of Seller’s conveyance of Seller’s interest in the Premises to Buyer, Buyer agrees to pay 

to Seller the following: 
 
 Payment Amount   Agreed Performance   Date 
 
             $   on right of possession        

$      on conveyance of title       
             $      on surrender of possession       

$ 4,480.00    on possession and   60 days after Buyer approval       
                  conveyance   
 $ 4,480.00    TOTAL LUMP SUM 
 
 BREAKDOWN: ac. = acres sq. ft. = square feet        

Land by Fee Title 127 sq. ft.   $   665.00            
Underlying Fee Title   sq. ft.   $    
Temporary Easement 324 sq. ft.   $   130.00             

 Permanent Easement 1,474 sq. ft.   $3,685.00  
 Buildings      $    
 Other        $              
   
 
 4. Seller grants to the City a Fee Acquisition, Permanent Easement and Temporary Easement as shown on 

the attached Acquisition Plat, Permanent Easement Plat, and Temporary Easement Plat. Seller also 
agrees to execute a Warranty Deed, Permanent Easement Agreement, and Temporary Easement 

565

Item 49.



566

Item 49.



567

Item 49.



568

Item 49.



569

Item 49.



570

Item 49.



571

Item 49.



572

Item 49.



573

Item 49.



574

Item 49.



575

Item 49.



576

Item 49.



577

Item 49.



578

Item 49.



579

Item 49.



4 
 

 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

 The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (“Grantee”), does hereby accept and approve the 
foregoing Temporary Construction Easement Agreement. 
 
 Dated this _____ day of _______________, 20__. 
 
 
 
  GRANTEE: 
   
  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
   
   
  Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
   
   
ATTEST   
   
   
Kim Kerr, CMC 
City Clerk 

  

 
 
 
 
State of  ) 
   
County of  ) 
   
 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________________________, 
20__, by Daniel Laudick, Mayor, and Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. 
 
 
   
  Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 
   
   
My Commission Expires:   
   
   

580

Item 49.



581

Item 49.



582

Item 49.



583

Item 49.



584

Item 49.



585

Item 49.



3

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA (BUYER)

By: _____________________________________
Daniel Laudick, Mayor                             

ATTEST:

By: _____________________________________
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss:

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of __________________, 20__, by Daniel 
Laudick, Mayor, and Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.

___________________________________
Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa

My Commission Expires:

________________________________

586

Item 49.



587

Item 49.



588

Item 49.



589

Item 49.



590

Item 49.



591

Item 49.



592

Item 49.



593

Item 49.



594

Item 49.



4 
 

 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

 The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (“Grantee”), does hereby accept and approve the 
foregoing Temporary Construction Easement Agreement. 
 
 Dated this _____ day of _______________, 20__. 
 
 
 
  GRANTEE: 
   
  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
   
   
  Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
   
   
ATTEST   
   
   
Kim Kerr, CMC 
City Clerk 

  

 
 
 
 
State of  ) 
   
County of  ) 
   
 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________________________, 
20__, by Daniel Laudick, Mayor, and Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. 
 
 
   
  Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 
   
   
My Commission Expires:   
   
   

595

Item 49.



596

Item 49.



597

Item 49.



598

Item 49.



599

Item 49.



600

Item 49.



601

Item 49.



602

Item 49.



603

Item 49.



604

Item 49.



605

Item 49.



606

Item 49.



607

Item 49.



608

Item 49.



609

Item 49.



610

Item 49.



611

Item 49.



612

Item 49.



613

Item 49.



614

Item 49.



615

Item 49.



616

Item 49.



617

Item 49.



618

Item 49.



619

Item 49.



620

Item 49.



621

Item 49.



622

Item 49.



623

Item 49.



624

Item 49.



625

Item 49.



626

Item 49.



627

Item 49.



628

Item 49.



629

Item 49.



630

Item 49.



631

Item 49.



632

Item 49.



633

Item 49.



634

Item 49.



635

Item 49.



636

Item 49.



637

Item 49.



638

Item 49.



639

Item 49.



640

Item 49.



641

Item 49.



642

Item 49.



643

Item 49.



644

Item 49.



645

Item 49.



646

Item 49.



647

Item 49.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Ben Claypool, Principal Engineer, PE, PhD 
 
 DATE: May 6th, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: Maintenance and Repair Agreement  
  Post-Construction Stormwater Management Plan 

Learn & Play Preschool & Daycare LLC, 4710 Cedar Heights Dr, Cedar 
Falls, IA 50613 

 
 
The Post-Construction Stormwater Control Ordinance requires a formal Maintenance 
and Repair Agreement for the stormwater management plan. The Maintenance and 
Repair Agreement will require the benefited property to undergo, at a minimum, an 
annual inspection and to maintain records of installation, maintenance and repair 
activities of the stormwater control devices. The agreement will also create an 
easement for the City to inspect and repair the stormwater control devices if the 
property owners fail or refuse to meet the requirements of the Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement. The Maintenance and Repair Agreement is attached for your review.  
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed the stormwater management plan and 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement for Learn & Play Preschool & Daycare LLC, 4710 
Cedar Heights Dr, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 and finds it in accordance with City Code. The 
Engineering Division recommends the agreement be accepted by the City Council and 
recorded at the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office.  
 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 

648

Item 50.



649

Item 50.



650

Item 50.



651

Item 50.



652

Item 50.



653

Item 50.



654

Item 50.



655

Item 50.



656

Item 50.



657

Item 50.



658

Item 50.



659

Item 50.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

––  

  

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, Principal Engineer, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: April 26, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: Orchard Hill Pickleball Court Expansion Project 
  City Project Number: PI-000-3331 
  Bid Opening 
   

On Friday, April 19, 2024 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the Orchard 
Hill Pickleball Court Expansion Project. A total of three (3) bids was received, with Aspro, 
Inc. the low bidder: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $489,469.50 

Aspro, Inc.  $389,994.00 

Veith Construction Corporation $435,145.30 

Peterson Contractors Incorporation $477,939.00 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $489,469.50. Aspro, Inc. of Waterloo, Iowa 
submitted the low bid in the amount of $389,994.00. Attached is a bid tabulation for your 
reference. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends acceptance of 
the lowest bid from Aspro, Inc. in the amount of $389,994.00. On May 6, 2024, the 
Contract, Bonds, and Insurance Certificate have also been submitted to City Council for 
approval. 
 
Xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer  
 Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development  
 
 

660

Item 51.



Orchard Hill Pickleball Court Expansion Project (#9049472)

Owner: Cedar Falls IA, City of

Solicitor: Cedar Falls IA, City of

04/19/2024 02:00 PM CDT

Line Item Item Code Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price2 Extension3 Unit Price4 Extension5 Unit Price6 Extension7

1 2010-108-D-1 ON-SITE TOPSOIL C.Y. 535 $15.00 $8,025.00 $8.00 $4,280.00 $15.00 $8,025.00 $10.00 $5,350.00

2 2010-108-E-0 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY, WASTE C.Y. 264 $20.00 $5,280.00 $12.00 $3,168.00 $25.00 $6,600.00 $20.00 $5,280.00

3 2010-108-F-0 EXCAVATION, (SITE GRADING), CLASS 10 C.Y. 1400 $10.00 $14,000.00 $5.00 $7,000.00 $12.00 $16,800.00 $5.00 $7,000.00

4 2010-108-E-0 EXCAVATION, (BORROW), CLASS 10 C.Y. 540 $20.00 $10,800.00 $14.00 $7,560.00 $25.00 $13,500.00 $20.00 $10,800.00

5 2010-108-G-0 SUBGRADE PREPARATION S.Y. 2800 $2.00 $5,600.00 $1.25 $3,500.00 $1.50 $4,200.00 $2.00 $5,600.00

6 2010-108-I-0 SUBBASE, MODIFIED, 6 IN. S.Y. 5262 $12.00 $63,144.00 $8.50 $44,727.00 $11.00 $57,882.00 $9.25 $48,673.50

7 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 15 IN. HDPE (Dual Wall) L.F. 36 $65.00 $2,340.00 $35.00 $1,260.00 $65.55 $2,359.80 $60.00 $2,160.00

8 4040-108-A-0 SUBDRAIN, PERFORATED, 6 IN. HDPE (Dual Wall) L.F. 14 $12.00 $168.00 $15.00 $210.00 $55.00 $770.00 $45.00 $630.00

9 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, SW-512 (BASIN OUTLET) EACH 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $1,750.00 $1,750.00 $4,150.00 $4,150.00 $4,250.00 $4,250.00

10 6010-108-G-0 CONNECTION TO EXISTING MANHOLE OR INTAKE EACH 1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $300.00 $300.00 $650.00 $650.00 $1,700.00 $1,700.00

11 7010-XXX-X-X PCC FLUME & FROST FOOTING L.S. 1 $4,520.00 $4,520.00 $2,400.00 $2,400.00 $6,250.00 $6,250.00 $6,500.00 $6,500.00

12 7010-108-E-0 CURB (STANDARD 6"), PCC 6 IN., 2.0 FT. WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 831 $30.00 $24,930.00 $28.00 $23,268.00 $24.00 $19,944.00 $30.00 $24,930.00

13 7010-108-E-0 CURB (SLOPED 4"), PCC 6 IN., 2.0 FT. WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 624 $30.00 $18,720.00 $28.00 $17,472.00 $28.00 $17,472.00 $35.00 $21,840.00

14 7020-108-A-0 HMA, (ST), SURF., 1/2", PG58-28S TONS 570 $135.00 $76,950.00 $134.00 $76,380.00 $134.00 $76,380.00 $145.00 $82,650.00

15 7020-108-A-0 HMA, (ST), INTERMEDIATE, 3/4", PG58-28S TONS 330 $135.00 $44,550.00 $133.00 $43,890.00 $133.00 $43,890.00 $145.00 $47,850.00

16 7020-108-A-0 HMA, (ST), BASE., 3/4", PG58-28S TONS 660 $135.00 $89,100.00 $132.00 $87,120.00 $132.00 $87,120.00 $145.00 $95,700.00

17 7020-108-A-0 HMA, (ST), INTERMEDIATE, 3/4", PG58-28S (LEVELING COURSE) TONS 80 $135.00 $10,800.00 $133.00 $10,640.00 $133.00 $10,640.00 $140.00 $11,200.00

18 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. 32 $30.00 $960.00 $8.00 $256.00 $34.25 $1,096.00 $20.00 $640.00

19 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY S.Y. 35 $10.00 $350.00 $8.00 $280.00 $32.00 $1,120.00 $30.00 $1,050.00

20 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 4 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 47 $65.00 $3,055.00 $60.00 $2,820.00 $77.00 $3,619.00 $100.00 $4,700.00

21 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 10 $70.00 $700.00 $72.00 $720.00 $207.00 $2,070.00 $210.00 $2,100.00

22 7030-108-H-0 DRIVEWAY, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 35 $60.00 $2,100.00 $72.00 $2,520.00 $111.00 $3,885.00 $115.00 $4,025.00

23 8020-108-B-0 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, SOLVENT/WATERBORNE STA. 26.5 $85.00 $2,252.50 $100.00 $2,650.00 $107.00 $2,835.50 $105.00 $2,782.50

24 8020-108-G-0 PAINTED SYMBOLS AND LEGENDS EACH 13 $100.00 $1,300.00 $85.00 $1,105.00 $91.00 $1,183.00 $100.00 $1,300.00

25 8030-000-0-0 STREET SIGNS (SIGNS, POST, & RECIEVER) EACH 5 $350.00 $1,750.00 $225.00 $1,125.00 $241.00 $1,205.00 $275.00 $1,375.00

26 8030-108-A-0 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $8,250.00 $8,250.00 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $11,000.00 $11,000.00

27 9010-108-B-0 SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING S.F. 19100 $2.00 $38,200.00 $0.28 $5,348.00 $0.20 $3,820.00 $0.90 $17,190.00

28 9040-108-A-2 STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP), MANAGEMENT L.S. 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $1,925.00 $1,925.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

29 9040-108-D-1A WATTLES, 9IN. STRAW L.F. 800 $5.00 $4,000.00 $2.50 $2,000.00 $1.89 $1,512.00 $2.50 $2,000.00

30 9040-108-D-2A WATTLES, MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL L.F. 800 $5.00 $4,000.00 $0.50 $400.00 $0.55 $440.00 $3.00 $2,400.00

31 9040-108-E-0 TEMPORARY ROLLED EROSION CONTROL (RECP) (TYPE 2.C) S.Y. 700 $4.00 $2,800.00 $2.30 $1,610.00 $1.60 $1,120.00 $1.80 $1,260.00

32 9040-108-J -0 RIP-RAP, REVETMENT STONE (CLASS E) TONS 20 $50.00 $1,000.00 $38.00 $760.00 $122.00 $2,440.00 $65.00 $1,300.00

33 9040-108-T-1 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, INSTALLATION EACH 3 $200.00 $600.00 $150.00 $450.00 $214.00 $642.00 $150.00 $450.00

34 9040-108-T-2 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, MAINTENANCE EACH 3 $75.00 $225.00 $25.00 $75.00 $75.00 $225.00 $1.00 $3.00

35 11020-108-A-0 MOBILIZATION L.S. 1 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $21,700.00 $21,700.00 $27,500.00 $27,500.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00

36 11050-108-A-0 CONCRETE WASHOUT L.S. 1 $750.00 $750.00 $500.00 $500.00 $275.00 $275.00 $2,250.00 $2,250.00

Engineer Estimate Aspro, Inc. Vieth Const. Corp. Peterson Contractors Inc

$489,469.50 $389,994.00 $435,145.30 $477,939.00

661

Item 51.



662

Item 51.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
INIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY PROJECT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
"OUR CITIZENS ARE OUR BUSINESS" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY of CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   220 CLAY ST. CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 (319) 268-5161

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS            ENGINEERING DIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Plot Date: March 20, 2024 - 11:50 PM     By: Benjamin Claypool       Drawing Name: Drawing2.dwgMarch 20, 2024 - 11:50 PM     By: Benjamin Claypool       Drawing Name: Drawing2.dwg - 11:50 PM     By: Benjamin Claypool       Drawing Name: Drawing2.dwg11:50 PM     By: Benjamin Claypool       Drawing Name: Drawing2.dwg     By: Benjamin Claypool       Drawing Name: Drawing2.dwgBenjamin Claypool       Drawing Name: Drawing2.dwg       Drawing Name: Drawing2.dwgDrawing2.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PI-000-3331

AutoCAD SHX Text
Orchard Hill Pickleball Court Expansion Project

claypoolb
Snapshot

claypoolb
Callout
Driveway Removal

claypoolb
Callout
Seal Coat Removal

claypoolb
Callout
Driveway Removal

claypoolb
Callout
Sidewalk Removal

claypoolb
Engineer
Removals

claypoolb
Engineer
I.01

claypoolb
Engineer
21

claypoolb
Engineer
I.01

claypoolb
Engineer
21

claypoolb
Callout
Sidewalk Removal

claypoolb
Snapshot

claypoolb
Snapshot

claypoolb
Snapshot

claypoolb
Snapshot

claypoolb
Snapshot

claypoolb
Snapshot



663

Item 51.

claypoolb
Image

claypoolb
Snapshot

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
INIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY PROJECT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
"OUR CITIZENS ARE OUR BUSINESS" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY of CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   220 CLAY ST. CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 (319) 268-5161

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS            ENGINEERING DIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Plot Date: March 20, 2024 - 11:50 PM     By: Benjamin Claypool       Drawing Name: Drawing2.dwgMarch 20, 2024 - 11:50 PM     By: Benjamin Claypool       Drawing Name: Drawing2.dwg - 11:50 PM     By: Benjamin Claypool       Drawing Name: Drawing2.dwg11:50 PM     By: Benjamin Claypool       Drawing Name: Drawing2.dwg     By: Benjamin Claypool       Drawing Name: Drawing2.dwgBenjamin Claypool       Drawing Name: Drawing2.dwg       Drawing Name: Drawing2.dwgDrawing2.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PI-000-3331

AutoCAD SHX Text
Orchard Hill Pickleball Court Expansion Project

claypoolb
Line

claypoolb
Engineer
Proposed Improvements

claypoolb
Engineer


claypoolb
Engineer


claypoolb
Callout
Expanded Parking Lot - 108 Stalls

claypoolb
Callout
8 New Courts

claypoolb
Callout
Detention Basin

claypoolb
Callout
8 Existing Courts

claypoolb
Callout
New Shelter



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council  
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, Principal Engineer, PhD, PE 
 
 DATE: May 6th, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: Orchard Hill Pickleball Court Expansion Project 
  Project No. PI-000-3331 
  Contract Documents 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract; the Performance, Payment, and 
Maintenance Bonds; Certificates of Insurance; and Form of Proposal with Aspro, Inc for 
the construction of the Orchard Hill Pickleball Court Expansion Project.  
 
The Department of Public Works recommends approving and executing the contract with 
Aspro, Inc. for the construction of the Orchard Hill Pickleball Court Expansion Project. 
This project involves the removal of a portion of the Orchard Hill Park parking lot and the 
entire driveway. A larger parking lot consists in part of both a full depth HMA 
reconstruction and an HMA overlay. Concrete curb and gutter will be added and will 
channel the collected stormwater into the new detention basin on site. This project will 
also prepare the asphalt pad for the eight new pickleball courts. Internal sidewalk 
connections will be established to access the new courts. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Developement 
  
  

 
 
 

664

Item 52.



665

Item 52.



666

Item 52.



667

Item 52.



668

Item 52.



669

Item 52.



670

Item 52.



671

Item 52.



672

Item 52.



673

Item 52.



674

Item 52.



675

Item 52.



676

Item 52.



677

Item 52.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: May 6th, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: West Viking Road Reconstruction and Trail Project 
  City Project Number: RC-362-3212 
  Bid Opening 
   

On Friday, April 19, 2024 at 2:00 p.m. bids were received and opened for the West Viking 
Road Reconstruction and Trail Project. A total of four (4) bids were received, with 
Peterson Contractors Inc. the low bidder: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $7,848,226.70 

Peterson Contractors, Inc. $6,237,016.30 

Owen Contracting, Inc. $6,676,666.21 

Pirc-Tobin Construction, Inc. $6,677,862.20 

Boomerang $6,947,705.00 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $7,848,226.70. Peterson Contractors Inc. of 
Reinbeck, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $6,237,016.30. Attached is a bid 
tabulation for your reference. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends acceptance of 
the lowest bid from Peterson Contractors Inc. in the amount of $6,237,016.30. The 
Contract, Bonds, and Insurance Certificate are also submitted for City Council approval. 
 
Xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 
 
 

678

Item 53.



West Viking Road Reconstruction and Trail Project (#9016651)

Owner: Cedar Falls IA, City of

Solicitor: Snyder & Associates, Inc

04/19/2024 02:00 PM CDT

Line Item Item Code Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price2 Extension3 Unit Price4 Extension5 Unit Price6 Extension7 Unit Price8 Extension9

2.01 2010-C Clearing and Grubbing LS 1 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00

2.02 2010-D-1 Topsoil, On-site CY 10814 $12.00 $129,768.00 $4.25 $45,959.50 $4.25 $45,959.50 $8.00 $86,512.00 $8.00 $86,512.00

2.03 2010-E Excavation, Class 10 CY 33194 $10.00 $331,940.00 $4.95 $164,310.30 $4.95 $164,310.30 $7.25 $240,656.50 $8.00 $265,552.00

2.04 2010-G Subgrade Preparation, 12" Depth SY 20568 $3.00 $61,704.00 $1.15 $23,653.20 $1.15 $23,653.20 $1.00 $20,568.00 $1.00 $20,568.00

2.05 2010-I Subgrade Treatment, Geo Grid SY 2000 $6.00 $12,000.00 $6.15 $12,300.00 $6.15 $12,300.00 $3.00 $6,000.00 $4.00 $8,000.00

2.06 2010-J Subbase, Modified, 6" Depth SY 2645 $10.00 $26,450.00 $8.65 $22,879.25 $8.65 $22,879.25 $15.00 $39,675.00 $11.00 $29,095.00

2.07 2010-J Subbase, Modified, 12" Depth SY 20342 $14.00 $284,788.00 $16.50 $335,643.00 $16.50 $335,643.00 $17.75 $361,070.50 $19.00 $386,498.00

2.08 2010-M Compaction Testing LS 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

3.01 3010-F Trench Compaction Testing LS 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

4.01 4010-A-1 Sanitary Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, PVC, 8" LF 1446 $120.00 $173,520.00 $80.00 $115,680.00 $105.00 $151,830.00 $55.00 $79,530.00 $75.00 $108,450.00

4.02 4010-E Sanitary Sewer Service Stub, PVC, 4" LF 497 $80.00 $39,760.00 $75.50 $37,523.50 $100.00 $49,700.00 $60.00 $29,820.00 $70.00 $34,790.00

4.03 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 15" LF 4167 $60.00 $250,020.00 $52.00 $216,684.00 $52.00 $216,684.00 $60.00 $250,020.00 $70.00 $291,690.00

4.04 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 18" LF 2350 $70.00 $164,500.00 $55.00 $129,250.00 $55.00 $129,250.00 $60.00 $141,000.00 $72.00 $169,200.00

4.05 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 24" LF 1069 $80.00 $85,520.00 $75.00 $80,175.00 $75.00 $80,175.00 $80.00 $85,520.00 $100.00 $106,900.00

4.06 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 30" LF 28 $100.00 $2,800.00 $138.00 $3,864.00 $138.00 $3,864.00 $110.00 $3,080.00 $150.00 $4,200.00

4.07 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 36" LF 351 $100.00 $35,100.00 $133.00 $46,683.00 $133.00 $46,683.00 $125.00 $43,875.00 $155.00 $54,405.00

4.08 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 66" LF 79 $400.00 $31,600.00 $338.00 $26,702.00 $338.00 $26,702.00 $335.00 $26,465.00 $400.00 $31,600.00

4.09 4020-D Removal of Storm Sewer LF 760 $25.00 $19,000.00 $6.50 $4,940.00 $6.50 $4,940.00 $15.00 $11,400.00 $25.00 $19,000.00

4.1 4020-999-A Storm Sewer, Bend, 30 Degrees EA 2 $2,000.00 $4,000.00 $3,250.00 $6,500.00 $3,250.00 $6,500.00 $3,000.00 $6,000.00 $3,000.00 $6,000.00

4.11 4030-B, C, D Pipe Apron, Guard, and Footing, 15" EA 3 $3,000.00 $9,000.00 $2,050.00 $6,150.00 $2,050.00 $6,150.00 $3,000.00 $9,000.00 $3,000.00 $9,000.00

4.12 4030-B, C, D Pipe Apron, Guard, and Footing, 18" EA 6 $3,500.00 $21,000.00 $2,250.00 $13,500.00 $2,250.00 $13,500.00 $3,250.00 $19,500.00 $3,200.00 $19,200.00

4.13 4030-B, C, D Pipe Apron, Guard, and Footing, 24" EA 4 $4,000.00 $16,000.00 $2,850.00 $11,400.00 $2,850.00 $11,400.00 $3,850.00 $15,400.00 $3,700.00 $14,800.00

4.14 4030-B, C, D Pipe Apron, Guard, and Footing, 30" EA 2 $4,500.00 $9,000.00 $3,550.00 $7,100.00 $3,550.00 $7,100.00 $4,500.00 $9,000.00 $4,000.00 $8,000.00

4.15 4030-B, C, D Pipe Apron, Guard, and Footing, 36" EA 2 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $4,500.00 $9,000.00 $4,500.00 $9,000.00 $5,550.00 $11,100.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00

4.16 4030-B, C, D Pipe Apron, Guard, and Footing, 66" EA 2 $8,000.00 $16,000.00 $9,350.00 $18,700.00 $9,350.00 $18,700.00 $10,000.00 $20,000.00 $9,000.00 $18,000.00

4.17 4040-A Subdrain, HDPE, 6" LF 9373 $16.00 $149,968.00 $9.25 $86,700.25 $7.25 $67,954.25 $12.85 $120,443.05 $17.00 $159,341.00

4.18 4040-C-1 Subdrain Cleanout, PVC, 6", Type B EA 7 $1,000.00 $7,000.00 $650.00 $4,550.00 $650.00 $4,550.00 $1,800.00 $12,600.00 $1,000.00 $7,000.00

4.19 4040-D-1 Subdrain Connect to Structure EA 117 $250.00 $29,250.00 $300.00 $35,100.00 $300.00 $35,100.00 $300.00 $35,100.00 $300.00 $35,100.00

4.2 4040-D-1 Subdrain Outlet to Ditch EA 2 $500.00 $1,000.00 $400.00 $800.00 $400.00 $800.00 $375.00 $750.00 $600.00 $1,200.00

4.21 4040-E Storm Sewer Service Stub, PVC, 1.5" Diameter LF 400 $25.00 $10,000.00 $16.00 $6,400.00 $16.00 $6,400.00 $20.00 $8,000.00 $35.00 $14,000.00

4.22 4040-999-A Subdrain Connection, Field Tile LF 200 $25.00 $5,000.00 $12.00 $2,400.00 $12.00 $2,400.00 $25.00 $5,000.00 $20.00 $4,000.00

4.23 4040-999-B Subdrain Outlet, Connect Existing Subdrain to Structure EA 26 $400.00 $10,400.00 $475.00 $12,350.00 $475.00 $12,350.00 $600.00 $15,600.00 $900.00 $23,400.00

5.01 5010-A-1 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 12" LF 3562 $90.00 $320,580.00 $84.00 $299,208.00 $100.00 $356,200.00 $90.00 $320,580.00 $100.00 $356,200.00

5.02 5010-A-1 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 12", Restrained Joint LF 1450 $100.00 $145,000.00 $95.00 $137,750.00 $108.00 $156,600.00 $110.00 $159,500.00 $125.00 $181,250.00

5.03 5010-C-2 Fitting By Weight, DI MJ LB 2000 $22.00 $44,000.00 $14.00 $28,000.00 $9.85 $19,700.00 $8.75 $17,500.00 $14.00 $28,000.00

5.04 5010-D Water Service Stub, Copper, 3/4", Opposite Side EA 9 $4,000.00 $36,000.00 $1,700.00 $15,300.00 $2,655.00 $23,895.00 $3,000.00 $27,000.00 $2,000.00 $18,000.00

5.05 5020-A Valve, Gate, 12" EA 6 $4,000.00 $24,000.00 $3,800.00 $22,800.00 $5,600.00 $33,600.00 $4,150.00 $24,900.00 $4,500.00 $27,000.00

5.06 5020-C Fire Hydrant Assembly EA 12 $7,000.00 $84,000.00 $6,800.00 $81,600.00 $7,850.00 $94,200.00 $7,500.00 $90,000.00 $9,000.00 $108,000.00

5.07 5020-G Valve Box Extension EA 4 $1,000.00 $4,000.00 $400.00 $1,600.00 $555.00 $2,220.00 $425.00 $1,700.00 $450.00 $1,800.00

5.08 5020-I Fire Hydrant Adjustment EA 3 $4,000.00 $12,000.00 $1,800.00 $5,400.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,800.00 $5,400.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00

6.01 6010-A Manhole, SW-301, 48" EA 4 $8,000.00 $32,000.00 $4,950.00 $19,800.00 $11,000.00 $44,000.00 $7,250.00 $29,000.00 $6,000.00 $24,000.00

6.02 6010-A Manhole, SW-401, 48" EA 4 $5,000.00 $20,000.00 $3,900.00 $15,600.00 $3,900.00 $15,600.00 $3,750.00 $15,000.00 $4,500.00 $18,000.00

6.03 6010-A Manhole, SW-401, 60" EA 2 $7,000.00 $14,000.00 $6,000.00 $12,000.00 $6,000.00 $12,000.00 $6,150.00 $12,300.00 $7,000.00 $14,000.00

6.04 6010-A Manhole, SW-401, 72" EA 2 $9,000.00 $18,000.00 $7,500.00 $15,000.00 $7,500.00 $15,000.00 $8,250.00 $16,500.00 $9,000.00 $18,000.00

6.05 6010-A Manhole, SW-401, 84" EA 1 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $10,125.00 $10,125.00 $10,150.00 $10,150.00 $10,500.00 $10,500.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00

6.06 6010-B Intake, SW-507 EA 51 $6,000.00 $306,000.00 $5,550.00 $283,050.00 $5,550.00 $283,050.00 $5,250.00 $267,750.00 $5,500.00 $280,500.00

6.07 6010-B Intake, SW-509 EA 17 $8,000.00 $136,000.00 $7,225.00 $122,825.00 $7,225.00 $122,825.00 $7,150.00 $121,550.00 $8,000.00 $136,000.00

6.08 6010-B Intake, SW-510 EA 1 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $8,300.00 $8,300.00 $8,300.00 $8,300.00 $12,750.00 $12,750.00 $11,000.00 $11,000.00

6.09 6010-B Intake, SW-511 EA 1 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $5,350.00 $5,350.00 $5,350.00 $5,350.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00

6.1 6010-B Intake, SW-512 EA 4 $4,500.00 $18,000.00 $1,800.00 $7,200.00 $1,800.00 $7,200.00 $2,000.00 $8,000.00 $2,000.00 $8,000.00

6.11 6010-B Intake, SW-545 EA 1 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $9,100.00 $9,100.00 $9,100.00 $9,100.00 $10,750.00 $10,750.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00

6.12 6010-E-1 Manhole Adjustment, Minor EA 3 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $400.00 $1,200.00 $400.00 $1,200.00 $1,800.00 $5,400.00 $1,800.00 $5,400.00

6.13 6010-F-1 Manhole Adjustment, Major EA 3 $3,000.00 $9,000.00 $650.00 $1,950.00 $650.00 $1,950.00 $2,850.00 $8,550.00 $3,500.00 $10,500.00

6.14 6010-G-1 Connection to Existing Manhole EA 3 $1,500.00 $4,500.00 $1,400.00 $4,200.00 $1,400.00 $4,200.00 $525.00 $1,575.00 $2,300.00 $6,900.00

6.15 6010-G-999 Connection to Existing Pipe EA 8 $1,500.00 $12,000.00 $1,400.00 $11,200.00 $1,400.00 $11,200.00 $775.00 $6,200.00 $1,700.00 $13,600.00

6.16 6010-H-2 Remove Intake EA 3 $1,500.00 $4,500.00 $500.00 $1,500.00 $500.00 $1,500.00 $750.00 $2,250.00 $900.00 $2,700.00

7.01 7010-A Pavement, PCC, 9" Depth, Class C SY 16893 $75.00 $1,266,975.00 $58.50 $988,240.50 $59.55 $1,005,978.15 $65.00 $1,098,045.00 $62.00 $1,047,366.00

7.02 7010-E Curb and Gutter, PCC, 3.5' Wide, 9" Depth LF 2801 $40.00 $112,040.00 $40.00 $112,040.00 $32.75 $91,732.75 $32.25 $90,332.25 $36.00 $100,836.00

7.03 7010-G Concrete Median, 6 "Depth SY 186 $125.00 $23,250.00 $115.00 $21,390.00 $84.00 $15,624.00 $102.50 $19,065.00 $70.00 $13,020.00

7.04 7010-I PCC Pavement Samples and Testing LS 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

7.05 7010-999-A Truck Apron with 9" PCC Base for Pavers SY 348 $150.00 $52,200.00 $75.00 $26,100.00 $72.00 $25,056.00 $75.00 $26,100.00 $80.00 $27,840.00

7.06 7010-999-B Splitter Island with 9" PCC Base for Pavers SY 115 $150.00 $17,250.00 $80.00 $9,200.00 $72.00 $8,280.00 $110.00 $12,650.00 $80.00 $9,200.00

7.07 7010-999-C Concrete Curb, 1' Wide LF 230 $40.00 $9,200.00 $26.00 $5,980.00 $50.00 $11,500.00 $53.50 $12,305.00 $58.00 $13,340.00

7.08 7010-999-D Planter Edging, Concrete, 6 "Wide LF 290 $25.00 $7,250.00 $25.00 $7,250.00 $50.00 $14,500.00 $53.50 $15,515.00 $58.00 $16,820.00

7.09 7020-I Asphalt Pavement Samples and Testing LS 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $600.00 $600.00 $600.00 $600.00 $650.00 $650.00 $600.00 $600.00

7.1 7021-B Asphalt Overlay, 3" Depth, Surface, 0.5" Diameter, 58-28H, HT SY 3387 $25.00 $84,675.00 $33.00 $111,771.00 $32.60 $110,416.20 $34.50 $116,851.50 $37.00 $125,319.00

7.11 7030-A-1 Removal of Sidewalk SY 40 $15.00 $600.00 $15.00 $600.00 $15.00 $600.00 $20.00 $800.00 $15.00 $600.00

7.12 7030-A-3 Removal of Driveway SY 540 $10.00 $5,400.00 $6.00 $3,240.00 $6.00 $3,240.00 $8.50 $4,590.00 $15.00 $8,100.00

7.13 7030-B Removal of Curb LF 100 $25.00 $2,500.00 $8.00 $800.00 $8.00 $800.00 $22.50 $2,250.00 $20.00 $2,000.00

7.14 7030-C Shared Use Path, PCC, 6" Depth SY 12211 $55.00 $671,605.00 $36.25 $442,648.75 $38.70 $472,565.70 $41.50 $506,756.50 $37.00 $451,807.00

7.15 7030-D Special Subgrade Prep for Shared Use Path, 6" Depth SY 17096 $4.00 $68,384.00 $0.75 $12,822.00 $0.75 $12,822.00 $1.50 $25,644.00 $1.00 $17,096.00

7.16 7030-E Sidewalk, PCC, 4" Depth SY 53 $50.00 $2,650.00 $55.00 $2,915.00 $56.50 $2,994.50 $75.00 $3,975.00 $70.00 $3,710.00

7.17 7030-F Brick/Paver for Truck Apron and Splitter Islands SF 3649 $16.00 $58,384.00 $17.00 $62,033.00 $16.48 $60,135.52 $17.50 $63,857.50 $16.00 $58,384.00

7.18 7030-G Detectable Warnings SF 434 $55.00 $23,870.00 $46.00 $19,964.00 $44.00 $19,096.00 $50.00 $21,700.00 $40.00 $17,360.00

7.19 7030-H-1 Driveway, Paved, PCC, 6" Depth SY 1429 $65.00 $92,885.00 $46.00 $65,734.00 $53.25 $76,094.25 $60.00 $85,740.00 $67.00 $95,743.00

7.2 7030-H-3 Driveway, Granular, 6" Depth TON 102 $45.00 $4,590.00 $29.00 $2,958.00 $29.00 $2,958.00 $35.00 $3,570.00 $31.00 $3,162.00

7.21 7040-A Full Depth Patches, PCC, 9" Depth SY 150 $200.00 $30,000.00 $116.00 $17,400.00 $111.00 $16,650.00 $200.00 $30,000.00 $145.00 $21,750.00

7.22 7040-B Subbase Over-Excavation TON 48 $60.00 $2,880.00 $45.00 $2,160.00 $45.00 $2,160.00 $75.00 $3,600.00 $40.00 $1,920.00

7.23 7040-H Milling SY 3387 $10.00 $33,870.00 $8.15 $27,604.05 $8.15 $27,604.05 $10.00 $33,870.00 $9.00 $30,483.00

7.24 7040-H Pavement Removal SY 10850 $8.00 $86,800.00 $2.45 $26,582.50 $2.45 $26,582.50 $1.50 $16,275.00 $6.00 $65,100.00

7.25 7080-B Engineering Fabric SY 500 $5.00 $2,500.00 $1.00 $500.00 $1.00 $500.00 $3.00 $1,500.00 $1.70 $850.00

8.01 8010-A Traffic Signal Modifications LS 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $9,000.00 $9,000.00 $9,500.00 $9,500.00 $9,000.00 $9,000.00

8.02 8020-B Painted Pavement Markings, Solvent/Waterborne STA 201 $150.00 $30,150.00 $75.00 $15,075.00 $75.00 $15,075.00 $80.00 $16,080.00 $75.00 $15,075.00

8.03 8020-G Painted Symbols and Legends, Solvent/Waterborne EA 6 $250.00 $1,500.00 $125.00 $750.00 $125.00 $750.00 $135.00 $810.00 $125.00 $750.00

8.04 8020-K Pavement Markings Removed STA 39 $100.00 $3,900.00 $75.00 $2,925.00 $75.00 $2,925.00 $80.00 $3,120.00 $75.00 $2,925.00

8.05 8020-M Grooves Cut for Pavement Markings STA 201 $100.00 $20,100.00 $100.00 $20,100.00 $100.00 $20,100.00 $105.00 $21,105.00 $100.00 $20,100.00

8.06 8020-N Grooves Cut for Symbols and Legends EA 6 $200.00 $1,200.00 $200.00 $1,200.00 $200.00 $1,200.00 $215.00 $1,290.00 $200.00 $1,200.00

8.07 8030-A Temporary Traffic Control LS 1 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $65,000.00 $65,000.00 $54,900.00 $54,900.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00 $55,000.00 $55,000.00

8.08 8030-999-A Flagger CDAY 20 $600.00 $12,000.00 $750.00 $15,000.00 $600.00 $12,000.00 $575.00 $11,500.00 $450.00 $9,000.00

8.09 8030-999-B Portable Dynamic Message Sign (PDMS) CDAY 50 $200.00 $10,000.00 $200.00 $10,000.00 $200.00 $10,000.00 $215.00 $10,750.00 $200.00 $10,000.00

8.1 8040-A Traffic Signs, Type A EA 41 $250.00 $10,250.00 $50.00 $2,050.00 $50.00 $2,050.00 $52.50 $2,152.50 $54.00 $2,214.00

8.11 8040-B Traffic Signs SF 268 $5.00 $1,340.00 $25.00 $6,700.00 $25.00 $6,700.00 $27.50 $7,370.00 $27.00 $7,236.00

8.12 8040-C Wood Posts LF 487 $5.00 $2,435.00 $25.00 $12,175.00 $25.00 $12,175.00 $26.50 $12,905.50 $27.00 $13,149.00

8.13 8040-I Remove, Salvage, and Reinstall Address Sign EA 14 $200.00 $2,800.00 $150.00 $2,100.00 $150.00 $2,100.00 $150.00 $2,100.00 $162.00 $2,268.00

9.01 9010-B Hydraulic Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching, Type 6 AC 15 $4,500.00 $67,500.00 $3,400.00 $51,000.00 $3,395.00 $50,925.00 $3,500.00 $52,500.00 $3,500.00 $52,500.00

9.02 9010-D Watering MGAL 100 $100.00 $10,000.00 $75.00 $7,500.00 $125.00 $12,500.00 $75.00 $7,500.00 $75.00 $7,500.00

9.03 9030-B Plants with Warranty, Canopy Tree EA 4 $700.00 $2,800.00 $375.00 $1,500.00 $369.00 $1,476.00 $400.00 $1,600.00 $400.00 $1,600.00

9.04 9030-B Plants with Warranty, Shrubs EA 38 $65.00 $2,470.00 $60.00 $2,280.00 $56.96 $2,164.48 $60.00 $2,280.00 $60.00 $2,280.00

9.05 9030-B Plants with Warranty, Ornamental Grasses EA 369 $15.00 $5,535.00 $20.00 $7,380.00 $17.72 $6,538.68 $18.50 $6,826.50 $18.00 $6,642.00

9.06 9030-999-A Mulch, Shredded Bark and Fabric SF 899 $2.50 $2,247.50 $1.50 $1,348.50 $1.03 $925.97 $1.10 $988.90 $1.00 $899.00

9.07 9030-999-B Mulch, Rock and Fabric CY 14 $432.00 $6,048.00 $125.00 $1,750.00 $124.14 $1,737.96 $135.00 $1,890.00 $125.00 $1,750.00

9.08 9040-A-1 SWPPP Preparation LS 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00

9.09 9040-A-2 SWPPP Management LS 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00

9.1 9040-D-1 Filter Sock, 9" LF 20000 $3.00 $60,000.00 $2.00 $40,000.00 $2.35 $47,000.00 $2.00 $40,000.00 $2.00 $40,000.00

9.11 9040-D-2 Filter Sock, Removal LF 20000 $1.00 $20,000.00 $0.20 $4,000.00 $0.60 $12,000.00 $0.20 $4,000.00 $0.20 $4,000.00

9.12 9040-J Rip Rap, Class E TON 310 $70.00 $21,700.00 $50.00 $15,500.00 $49.00 $15,190.00 $55.00 $17,050.00 $75.00 $23,250.00

9.13 9040-N-1 Silt Fence LF 3500 $3.00 $10,500.00 $1.60 $5,600.00 $2.25 $7,875.00 $1.60 $5,600.00 $1.70 $5,950.00

9.14 9040-N-2 Silt Fence, Removal of Sediment LF 3500 $0.50 $1,750.00 $0.25 $875.00 $0.10 $350.00 $0.01 $35.00 $0.01 $35.00

9.15 9040-N-3 Silt Fence, Removal of Device LF 3500 $1.00 $3,500.00 $0.25 $875.00 $0.25 $875.00 $0.01 $35.00 $0.01 $35.00

9.16 9040-O-2 Stabilized Construction Entrance TON 200 $70.00 $14,000.00 $36.00 $7,200.00 $36.00 $7,200.00 $30.00 $6,000.00 $35.00 $7,000.00

9.17 9040-Q-1 Erosion Control Mulching, Hydromulching AC 30 $2,500.00 $75,000.00 $200.00 $6,000.00 $1,500.00 $45,000.00 $200.00 $6,000.00 $200.00 $6,000.00

9.18 9040-R Turf Reinforcement Mats, Type 2 SQ 250 $100.00 $25,000.00 $50.00 $12,500.00 $38.00 $9,500.00 $55.00 $13,750.00 $50.00 $12,500.00

9.19 9040-T-1 Inlet Protection Device, Surface-Applied EA 74 $100.00 $7,400.00 $75.00 $5,550.00 $100.00 $7,400.00 $75.00 $5,550.00 $75.00 $5,550.00

9.2 9040-T-2 Inlet Protection Device, Maintenance EA 148 $50.00 $7,400.00 $20.00 $2,960.00 $25.00 $3,700.00 $20.00 $2,960.00 $20.00 $2,960.00

9.21 9060-D Removal and Reinstallation of Existing Fence, Field Fence LF 2000 $20.00 $40,000.00 $25.50 $51,000.00 $38.00 $76,000.00 $8.00 $16,000.00 $20.00 $40,000.00

9.22 9060-F Temporary Fence, Snow Fence LF 4500 $5.00 $22,500.00 $6.00 $27,000.00 $6.00 $27,000.00 $6.00 $27,000.00 $4.00 $18,000.00

9.23 9080-C Safety Rail LF 100 $250.00 $25,000.00 $400.00 $40,000.00 $425.00 $42,500.00 $175.00 $17,500.00 $200.00 $20,000.00

9.24 9920-999-A Mowing EA 15 $300.00 $4,500.00 $1,000.00 $15,000.00 $225.00 $3,375.00 $1,000.00 $15,000.00 $1,000.00 $15,000.00

11.01 11,020-A Mobilization LS 1 $400,000.00 $400,000.00 $315,000.00 $315,000.00 $495,000.00 $495,000.00 $335,000.00 $335,000.00 $179,000.00 $179,000.00

11.02 10,030-A Maintenance of Postal Services LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00

11.03 11,030-B Maintenance of Solid Waste Collection LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00

11.04 11,040-B Temporary Granular Roadway SY 6700 $20.00 $134,000.00 $8.25 $55,275.00 $8.25 $55,275.00 $5.00 $33,500.00 $15.00 $100,500.00

11.05 11,050-A Concrete Washout LS 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

11.06 11,000-999-A Monument, Street Name EA 4 $40,000.00 $160,000.00 $60,000.00 $240,000.00 $57,750.00 $231,000.00 $60,000.00 $240,000.00 $70,000.00 $280,000.00

11.07 11,000-999-B Monument, Welcome Sign EA 2 $40,000.00 $80,000.00 $90,000.00 $180,000.00 $89,678.00 $179,356.00 $95,000.00 $190,000.00 $100,000.00 $200,000.00

11.08 11,000-999-D Electrical and Lighting, Roundabout LS 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00

11.09 11,000-999-E Street Light LS 1 $400,000.00 $400,000.00 $275,000.00 $275,000.00 $270,000.00 $270,000.00 $275,000.00 $275,000.00 $270,000.00 $270,000.00

11.1 9040-P-2 Dust Control, Product SY 56320 $0.36 $20,275.20 $0.50 $28,160.00 $1.00 $56,320.00 $0.10 $5,632.00 $0.25 $14,080.00

BoomerangPirc-Tobin Construction IncOwen Contracting, Inc.Peterson Contractors IncEngineer Estimate

$7,848,226.70 $6,237,016.30 $6,676,666.21 $6,677,862.20 $6,947,705.00

679

Item 53.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: May 6th, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: West Viking Road Reconstruction and Trail Project 
  City Project Number: RC-362-3212 
  Contract Documents 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Form of Contract; the Performance, 
Payment, and Maintenance Bonds; Certificates of Insurance; and Form of Proposal with 
Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the construction of the West Viking Road Reconstruction 
and Trail Project. 
 
This project involves the reconstruction of W. Viking Road from Production Drive to Union 
Road, a single lane roundabout at the future intersection of Innovation Drive and W Viking 
Road, extension of Innovation Drive in the industrial park to Viking Road, installation of 
curb & gutter from Production Drive to Hudson Road, intersection improvements at 
Hudson Road, recreational trail from Hudson Road to Innovation Drive, recreational trail 
around northerly industrial park pond, sanitary sewer installation, water main installation, 
and roundabout landscaping. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving and 
executing the contract with Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the construction of the West 
Viking Road Reconstruction and Trail Project. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 
  
  

 
 
 

680

Item 54.



681

Item 54.



682

Item 54.



683

Item 54.



684

Item 54.



685

Item 54.



686

Item 54.



687

Item 54.



688

Item 54.



689

Item 54.



690

Item 54.



691

Item 54.



692

Item 54.



693

Item 54.



694

Item 54.



695

Item 54.



696

Item 54.



697

Item 54.



698

Item 54.



699

Item 54.



700

Item 54.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: May 6th, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: 2024 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project 
  City Project Number: SA-000-3325 
   Final Acceptance  
 
The 2024 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project is completed and ready for final 
acceptance. This project consists of installing a cured in place liner within the existing 8-
inch diameter sewer lines in selected areas of the City. The total project involves 
approximately 2,873 linear feet and 66 sewer service taps. This project was under 
contract with Municipal Pipe Tool Company, LLC of Hudson, Iowa. Attached please find 
the following final documents: 
  -  Final Pay Estimate (releases retainage) 
  -  Maintenance Bond, Municipal Pipe Tool Company, LLC 
 

Funding Source Attributed Costs 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) $149,938.00 

Sewer Rental Fund (SRF) $0.00 

 
I certify that the public improvements for the 2024 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 
Project were completed in reasonable compliance with the project plans and 
specifications. 
                                                     
                                                          
 
 
          ______________________________________ 
            Matthew Tolan, EI   Date 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 

Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer  
Tyler Griffin, Water Reclamation Manager 

 

4/29/2024   

701

Item 55.



Estimate No. 2-FINAL From: 3/27/2024 99%

MPT Job ID# 2024-04 To: 4/23/2024 % Complete Total contract

Project: 2024 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Date: 4/24/2024

99%

Owner: City of Cedar Falls Contractor: Municipal Pipe Tool Co., LLC % Complete Original Contract

220 Clay Street 515 5th Street - PO Box 398

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 Hudson, IA  50643

Engineer: City of Cedar Falls - Engineering Division

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, IA 50613

BID ITEM # BASE BID ITEMS UNIT QTY PRICE EXT PRICE QTY UNIT COST VALUES

1 PIPE LINING, 8" LF 2873 34.00$                97,682.00$       2872 34.00$                  97,648.00$      

2 BUILDING SANITARY SEWER SERVICE RECONNECTIONSEA 66 75.00$                4,950.00$         68 75.00$                  5,100.00$         

3 GROUTING SERVICE LATERALS EA 66 630.00$              41,580.00$       63 630.00$                39,690.00$      

4 MOBILIZATION LS 1 7,500.00$           7,500.00$         1 7,500.00$             7,500.00$         

-$                  -$                      -$                  

-$                  -$                      -$                  

-$                  -$                      -$                  

-$                  -$                      -$                  

-$                  -$                      -$                  

-$                  -$                      -$                  

-$                  -$                      -$                  

-$                  -$                      -$                  

-$                  -$                      -$                  

-$                  -$                      -$                  

-$                  -$                      -$                  

-$                  -$                      -$                  

-$                  -$                      -$                  

-$                  -$                      -$                  

-$                  -$                      -$                  

ORIGINAL CONTRACT: 151,712.00$       Total Anticipated 151,712.00$     Total Completed 149,938.00$    

Less Retained -$                  Less Retained -$                  

Total Anticipated less retain 151,712.00$     Net Amount Earned 149,938.00$    

Previous Pay Requests

#1 3/27/24 137,064.00$    

CURRENT CONTRACT AMOUNT 151,712.00$       

Accepted by: Sharon Waschkat
Municipal Pipe Tool Co., LLC Total previous pay requests 137,064.00$    

Amount due this payment 12,874.00$      

Accepted by:

City Contract Amount 151,712.00$    

Balance to complete 1,774.00$         

MUNICIPAL PIPE TOOL COMPANY LLC
CONTRACTOR'S PAYMENT REQUEST

Anticipated : COMPLETED:

702

Item 55.



703

Item 55.



704

Item 55.



705

Item 55.



706

Item 55.



707

Item 55.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: May 6th, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement, Snyder & Associates   
  Oak Park Blvd. Sewer Replacement Project 
  Supplemental Agreement No. 3 
  City Project No. SA-002-3182 
 
Please find attached Supplemental Agreement No. 3 to the Professional Services 
Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and Snyder & Associates, Inc. for the Oak 
Park Blvd. Sewer Replacement Project. The enclosed Supplemental Agreement provides 
for construction-related services required to assist in setup and establishment of the lift 
station controls and operations for the Oak Park Blvd. Sewer Replacement Project. The 
Professional Services Agreement was previously approved by Council on February 18th, 
2019. The cost of this agreement is not to exceed $5,000 and paid for out of the Sewer 
Rental Fund.  
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department requests your consideration 
and approval of this Supplemental Agreement No. 3 with Snyder & Associates, Inc. for 
the lift station design and administration scope of services. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer  

708

Item 56.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls  

220 Clay Street  

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   

www.cedarfalls.com  
 

Engineering Division 

Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
  

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 3 
 

Oak Park Blvd. Sewer Replacement 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number SA-002-3182 
 

 
WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (Client), 
and Snyder & Associates, Inc. (Consultant), of 900 Bell Dr SW, Cedar Rapids, IA, dated February 18, 2019 
for the professional engineering services related to the Oak Park Blvd Sewer Replacement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Client and Consultant desire to amend the previous agreement(s) to include Scope of 
Services and Compensation for additional items required,  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement as follows:  
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The Scope of Services and basis for Compensation derivation are as follows: 
 

1. The Consultant will provide additional engineering services relating to the construction of the 
project. The Consultant’s services shall include but are not necessarily limited to, 
construction administration, addressing questions that arise during construction, review of 
shop drawings, assistance with field modifications and/or change orders, and other related 
construction administrative tasks as may be requested by the Client.  

 
II.  COMPENSATION 
 
 Compensation for the Services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 

other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed.  Total compensation is a not 
to exceed fee of Five thousand Dollars ($5,000) for the Scope of Service item 1. The compensation 
for this supplemental agreement is to be segregated from the original agreement.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

709

Item 56.



Snyder & Associates, Inc.  Oak Park Blvd Sewer Replacement 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. SA-002-3182 

 
 

III. In all other aspects, the obligations of the Client and Consultant shall remain as specified in the 
Professional Services Agreement dated February 18, 2019. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written below. 
 

APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT. 
 
 

By:  By:  
 
 

Printed Name:  Printed Name:    Lindsay Beaman              
 
 

Title:  Title:                    Business Unit Leader           
 
 

Date:  Date: April 11, 2024  

710

Item 56.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: May 6th, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: Fiber Optic License Agreement 
   Windstream Intellectual Property Services, LLC 
   Hudson Road & Technology Parkway  
 
Enclosed is a proposed License Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and 
Windstream Intellectual Property Services, LLC to install an additional long-distance 
telecommunications system consisting of fiber optic cable within the public right-of way of 
the City, in order to extend and upgrade services owned by Windstream intellectual 
Property Services, LLC along Hudson Road and Technology Parkway. 
 
The City of Cedar Falls has entered into previous license agreements with Windstream 
Intellectual Property Services, LLC. The proposed License Agreement follows the terms 
and conditions set forth in the earlier agreements and is intended to protect the City of 
Cedar Falls right-of way and manage and regulate in a manner consistent with federal 
and state law. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends your approval of 
this proposed License Agreement. 
 
 
xc:  David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer  
 
 
  
 

711

Item 57.



712

Item 57.



713

Item 57.



714

Item 57.



715

Item 57.



716

Item 57.



717

Item 57.



718

Item 57.



719

Item 57.



720

Item 57.



721

Item 57.



722

Item 57.



EXHIBIT A 
 

TEXT DESCRIPTION OF ALIGNMENT FOR Windstream Intellectual Property Services, LLC. FIBER OPTIC 
CABLE INSTALLATION IN CEDAR FALLS 

 

The facility shall consist of two (2”) inch diameter High-Density Polyethylene (HDPE) duct with 48 count 

fiber cable installed at minimum depths of: forty-eight (48”) inches below ground surface. 

In general terms, within the right-of-way of Hudson Road and more particularly described as follows: 
 
 

THIS PROJECT IS TO PLACE CABLE IN THE ROW OF HUDSON RD, VIKING RD UNDER THE LIMITS OF CEDER 
FALLS CITY STARTS AT GPS: 42.484329,-92.465724 AND ENDS AT GPS: 42.474920,-92.46889 PLACEMENT 
WILL BE DONE THROUGH 4940' BORING & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT PULL 48 WS FOC WITHIN MOREOVER 
PLACING 4 NEW HANDHOLES (30”X48”X36”) FOR DETAIL PLEASE SEE PLANS. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 1 

723

Item 57.



SS

NVICINITY MAP

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:VICINITY MAP

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
CITY

NTS

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

01

LCON  : RYAN GAGE (319-318-2345)
SCOPE OF WORK : BUILD APPROX 7000' UNDERGROUND FIBER FROM CUSTOMER PREM TO

                        NEW CPED AT CORNER OF VIKING RD AND HUDSON RD
CIRCUIT ID  : IA/KFGS/392859/   /WXN /
PON  : NGMSS EB1161411NMG

02

03

04

05

0607
08

WINDSTREAM CONSTRUCTION MANAGER:-
JOSEPH GOODHUE (515-321-4903)

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

Exhibit B

Page 1 of 23

City of Cedar Falls Notes:
*Contractor must submit a Right-Of-Way permit (at no additional cost to the
established utility agreement) to Inspection Services at Cedar Falls City
Hall or by utilizing www.cf1stop.com
*Contractor required to pothole and spot every utility crossing and adjacent
parallel line along the alignment, including those not explicitly shown on the
plans. 
*Contractor shall restore ROW after all work is complete.
*This alignment requires approval by the City of Cedar Falls Council prior to
approval of any permits in the City of Cedar Falls and prior to start of
construction.
*See associated comments in the planset made for reference. Contractor to
adjust placement in field to avoid other utility conflicts. Call 811 for locates.

REVIEWED FOR CODE COMPLIANCE

No.___________________________________

Dated ________________________________

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ENGINEERING DIVISION

By:___________________________________

707433044

4/18/2024

724

Item 57.



NOTE:THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL "WINDSTREAM" POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES AND ALL REQUIREMENTS FROM LOCAL PERMITTING AUTHORITIES.
THE VARIOUS PERMITS OBTAINED FOR THE PROJECT WILL BE ON FILE IN THE OFFICE
OF THE "WINDSTREAM" ENGINEER AND A CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, CITY STAMPED
"APPROVAL TO CONSTRUCT" AND SIGNED BY AN AUTHORIZED PERSON W/ THE
CEDAR FALLS ENGINEERING DIVISION, COPY SHALL BE AVAILABLE, AT ALL
TIMES, AT THE CONSTRUCTION SITE. NO CONSTRUCTION, EXCAVATION OR
IMPROVEMENT(S) OF ANY KIND SHALL BEGIN ON THE SURFACE, IN THE
SUBSURFACE OR ABOVE THE SURFACE WITHOUT A SIGNED PERMIT FROM THE
GOVERNING PERMIT AUTHORITY OR AUTHORITIES..

NOTE:CONTRACTOR PRACTICES AND ALL FINISHED WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE
CURRENT STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS (SUDAS) PROGRAM,
INCLUDING ALL LOCAL GOVERNMENTAL SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS
AND CEDAR FALLS SPECIFICATIONS IN EFFECT, WITHIN THE APPLICABLE
JURISDICTION. ALL AREAS WHERE WORK IS PERFORMED OR AFFECTED BY THE
WORK SHALL BE RETURNED TO A CONDITION EQUAL TO OR BETTER THAN THEIR
ORIGINAL CONDITION. THE CEDAR FALLS CITY ENGINEER WILL GIVE FINAL
DETERMINATION WHETHER ALL "RETURNED CONDITIONS" ARE EQUAL TO OR
BETTER THAN THE ORIGINAL (AND ACCEPTABLE).

NOTE:MISCELLANEOUS STRUCTURES AND OBSTRUCTIONS SUCH AS SIGN POSTS, MAIL
BOXES, METER BOXES, ETC., SHALL BE AVOIDED OR REMOVED AND REINSTALLED
TO A CONDITION EQUAL TO OR BETTER THAN THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION. THE
CEDAR FALLS CITY ENGINEER WILL GIVE FINAL DETERMINATION WHETHER ALL
"RETURNED CONDITIONS" ARE EQUAL TO OR BETTER THAN THE ORIGINAL

NOTE:THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE AT ALL TIMES FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF
STREETS AND OTHER UTILITIES AFFECTED BY CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS. DEBRIS
SHALL NOT BE PERMITTED TO ACCUMULATE AND ALL PREMISES SHALL BE
MAINTAINED IN A NEAT AND WORKMANLIKE CONDITION. THE CITY ENGINEER OF
THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS WILL REVIEW ALL PROPOSED DISPOSAL SITES, PRIOR TO
THEIR USE, TO DETERMINE ACCEPTABILITY.

NOTE:THE CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE ADEQUATE PRECAUTIONS TO PROTECT EXISTING
FACILITIES, SIDEWALKS, CURBS, PAVEMENTS, UTILITIES, FOLIAGE AND ADJOINING
PROPERTY AND STRUCTURES OUTSIDE OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY AND TO AVOID
DAMAGE THERETO.

NOTE:THE FOLLOWING SPECIAL PROVISIONS SHALL APPLY TO TRAFFIC REGULATIONS
DURING THE ENTIRE EXTENT OF THIS PROJECT WORK:

A. THERE SHALL BE AT ALL TIMES ADEQUATE VEHICLE AND PEDESTRIAN ACCESS FOR
INGRESS AND EGRESS FOR THE PROPERTIES ADJACENT TO THE PROJECT WORK.

B. DURING NON-WORKING HOURS THE CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP THE
EXISTING TRAFFIC LANES CLEAR FROM INTERFERENCE, INCLUDING ALL
APPROACHES AND INTERSECTIONS.

C. IF LANE BLOCKAGE IS UNAVOIDABLE, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY
THE CITY ENGINEERING DIVISION, POLICE DEPARTMENT,
FIRE DEPARTMENT, AMBULANCE SERVICES, SCHOOL BUS GARAGES,
AND ALL OTHER AGENCIES OPERATIONS AS APPROPRIATE SO THAT
THESE AGENCIES MAY PLAN TO RE-ROUTE THEIR VEHICLES AROUND
THE CONSTRUCTION WORK ZONE(S).

NOTE:WHERE HAZARDOUS CONDITIONS EXIST, PROPER SIGNING, FLAGGING, AND
BARRICADING SHALL BE PROVIDED AS DIRECTED BY THE "company name"
ENGINEER AND/OR THE CEDAR FALLS CITY ENGINEERING DIVISION. SUPPLEMENTAL
SIGNS, FLAG PERSON(S), AND BARRICADES SHALL BE PROVIDED BY THE
CONTRACTOR. NO TRENCH OR EXCAVATION SITE SHALL BE LEFT UNATTTENDED, AT
ANY TIME, OR OPEN OVERNIGHT

NOTE:TRENCHES IN PAVED AREAS SHALL BE SAW CUT TO THE FULL DEPTH OF THE
PAVEMENT AS REQUIRED BY THE PERMITTING AUTHORITY. PAVED SURFACES
SHALL BE REPAIRED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PERMITTING AUTHORITY'S
SPECIFICATIONS, CURRENT IOWA (SUDAS) STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND
SPECIFICATIONS AND THE CURRENT CEDAR FALLS SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS
TO THE IOWA (SUDAS) STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS

NOTE:THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL CURRENT AND APPLICABLE
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ADMINISTRATION (OSHA), STATE, AND
LOCAL RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE SAFETY OF EMPLOYEES AND
PROPER MATERIAL HANDLING DURING THE CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION,
AND/OR RESTORATIONS ON THIS PROJECT

NOTE:RIGHT OF WAY RESTORATION AND STREET/SIDEWALK REPAIR/REPLACEMENT
SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE LOCAL PERMITTING AUTHORITY. THE
CEDAR FALLS CITY ENGINEER WILL GIVE FINAL DETERMINATION WHETHER ALL
"RETURNED CONDITIONS" ARE EQUAL TO OR BETTER THAN THE ORIGINAL.

NOTE:FOR ALL PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AND PUBLIC PROPERTIES; ALL CONDUITS AND FIBER
OPTIC CABLE SHALL BE PLACED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF:

A) SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER
TO SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")
INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW
POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH.

B) FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,
SIDEWALKS, AND LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS,
C) FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC
RIGHT-OF-WAYS.

D) TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS.

E) TWENTY-FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLIC
CULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED.

F) AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICAL
UTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.
(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON AN INDIVIDUAL PLAN
VIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEET
OF THE PLAN SET.)

NOTE:FOR ALL DITCHLINES AND PRIVATE DRIVEWAYS, ALL CABLES SHALL BE
PLACED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES BELOW ALL DITCHLINES
AND PRIVATE DRIVEWAYS.

NOTE:INNERDUCTS CONTAINING CABLE SHALL BE SEALED AT TERMINATION POINTS
USING RUBBER PLUGS AND COMPRESSION BANDS. VACANT INNERDUCTS OR
CONDUIT RUNS SHALL BE SEALED AT TERMINATION POINTS WITH RUBBER PLUGS
EQUIPED WITH A PULL LINE ATTACHMENT RING ON WHICH TO TERMINATE THE
PULL LINE. APPROPRIATE SEALANT COMPOUND SHALL BE USED TO SEAL ANY GAPS.

NOTE:WHEN PLOWING/TRENCHING FOR PLACEMENT OF FIBER OPTIC CABLE
OR DUCT OR ANY OTHER INSTALLATION, A MARKER TAPE SHALL BE PLACED
EIGHTEEN (18") INCHES BELOW EXISTING SURFACE OR BELOW PROPOSED
FINISH GRADE WHICHEVER IS APPLICABLE, DIRECTLY IN VERTICAL LINE
ABOVE THE FIBER OPTIC CABLE OR DUCT OR ANY OTHER INSTALLATION
BEING PLACED AT THE MINIMUM DEPTH OF FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES."

NOTE:BRUSHING AND TRIMMING SHALL BE DONE AS REQUIRED. BRUSH,
BRANCHES, AND REFUSE FROM CLEARING OPERATIONS SHALL BE
IMMEDIATELY REMOVED FROM THE VICINITY OF THE RIGHT OF WAY.

NOTE:IOWA STATE LAW REQUIRES EXCAVATORS TO NOTIFY IOWA ONE-CALL
AT LEAST FORTY-EIGHT (48 HRS.) HOURS PRIOR TO ALL EXCAVATIONS
(EXCLUDING SATURDAYS, SUNDAYS, AND LEGAL HOLIDAYS). CONTRACTOR
SHALL CAREFULLY HAND DIG WITHIN THE TWENTY-FOUR (24") INCH SAFETY
ZONE WHEN EXPOSING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES. IOWA ONE-CALL DOES
NOT MARK ALL PRIVATE UTILITIES.

NOTE:PERMIT AUTHORITIES AND UTILITIES:
IOWA ONE-CALL (1-800-292-8989) (811 LOCAL ACCESS)
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS (1.319-273-8600)
MATTHEW TOLAN (1-319-268-5164)
OR DAVID WICKE (1-319-268-5162)
CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES (C.F.U) (1-319-266-1761)
OTHER:
COMPANY NAME: WINDSTREAM COMMUNICATION
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY NAME: MP Nexlevel
CONSTRUCTION SUPERVISOR: DAVID BERGFELD

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:NOTES

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
NO

NTS

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

Exhibit B

Page 2 of 23
725

Item 57.



ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:LEGEND

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
NO

NTS

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

Exhibit B

Page 3 of 23
726

Item 57.



HUDSON RD
ASPHALT

HUDSON RD
ASPHALT

HUDSON RD
ASPHALT

HUDSON RD
ASPHALT

VIKIN
G

 R
D

ASPH
ALT

VIKIN
G

 R
D

ASPH
ALT

33043/HH 5

100'

50'

50'

STA 0+00 EXISTING CWDM(HH)
BEGIN BORE

UNDERCONSTRUCTION
JT #70743304300000-2023
BFO48I
NO COUNTS

UNDERCONSTRUCTION
JT #70743304300000-2023
BFO48I
NO COUNTS

SPLICE NEW 48 WS FOC WITH
EXISTING BFO48I WS FOC IN
EXISTING CWDM(HH) & LEAVE
100' LOOP
HO1(B)-2
LAT:42.484329
LONG:-92.465724

NOTE:LOCATE & PROTECT ALL EXISTING UTILITIES.
MAINTAIN 2' SEPARATION (VERTICAL & HORIZONTAL)
FROM EXISTING UTILITIES

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

1+00

2+00

3+00

4+00

5+00

6+00

CO
STA 1+70      BORE PIT

STA 2+06      BORE PIT

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN 48"
DEPTH PULL 48 WS FOC & TRACEWIRE
WITHIN FROM EXISTING CWDM(HH) @ STA
0+00 TO CUSTOMER PED @ STA 49+20
BM60(1)(2)PF>100-4940'
TRACEWIRE(F)-4940'
BFO48I-5440'
TBD,1-2
XD,3-48

BM53F

SIDEWALK

SIDEWALK

SIDEWALK

C C C C C C

C C

137'
79'

3'

177'

88'
3'

92'

123'

233'

RW

RW

C/L

EOP

EOP
MEDIAN

C/L

EOP

EOP

C
/L

EO
P

EO
P

R
WR
W

C
/L

EO
P

EO
P

R
W

R
W

SECTION LINE

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION 26
T-89N R-14W

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION 35
T-89N R-14W

NOTE:CROSS THE VIKING RD
@ MIN. 60' DEPTH.

STORM DRAIN

RW

RW

C/L

EOP

EOP
MEDIAN

C/L

EOP

EOP

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SDSD SDSD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

JOB ID #707433044

2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY,
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

Page 01 of 08 (02/20/2024)

13'

NOTE:FOR ALL RIGHT OF WAY AND PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY
AND PUBLIC PROPERTIES; ALL CONDUITS AND FIBER OPTIC
CABLE SHALL BE PLACED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF:48''

76'

ELECTRICAL BOX

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:01

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
CITY

OF 081:50

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

SS

N

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

2550 50

50'

0

Exhibit B

Page 4 of 23

Watermain & Gasmain crossing. Contractor
to spot and verify location in field. -MT@CF

OHE pole and utility box
conflict, adjust in field after
spotting all public and
private utilities. TYP
-MT@CF

727

Item 57.



STANDARD DETAIL SHEET:
a) TRENCH DETAIL - 42" MIN DEPTH IN GRASS, 48" MIN DEPTH UNDER EXISTING /

FUTURE PRIVATE DRIVES, WALKS & TRAILS.
b) BORE DETAIL - 42" MIN DEPTH IN GRASS, 48" MIN DEPTH UNDER EXISTING / FUTURE

PRIVATE DRIVES, WALKS & TRAILS.
c) MAINTAIN 24" MIN DEPTH BELOW STORM SEWER UNDERCROSSING TO AVOID THE

CONFLICT.

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:S

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
CITY

OF S1:50

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

Exhibit B

Page 5 of 23
728

Item 57.



NOTE : MINIMUM 24'' CLEARANCE FROM EXISTING UTILITIES.

PROFILE:1

00

02

-04

-02

-08

-06

-12

-10

04

-14

-16

-18

-20

00

02

-04

-02

-08

-06

-12

-10

04

-14

-16

-18

-20

1+
00

2+
00

3+
00

4+
00

5+
00

6+
00

EXISTING
GROUND

EXISTING
GROUND

0+
00

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @
MIN. 48" DEPTH
& PULL 48 WS FOC & TRACEWIRE
WITHIN

ST
A:

1+
70

BO
R

E 
PI

T

ST
A:

00
+0

0
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 H
H

Scale in Feet

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:P1

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
NO

 OF P9NTS

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

0
1

2

VE
R

TI
C

A
L

Exhibit B

Page 6 of 23
729

Item 57.



HUDSON RD
ASPHALT

HUDSON RD
ASPHALT

NOTE:LOCATE & PROTECT ALL EXISTING UTILITIES.
MAINTAIN 2' SEPARATION (VERTICAL & HORIZONTAL)
FROM EXISTING UTILITIES

7+00

8+00

9+00

10+00

11+00

12+00

13+00

CO

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN 48"
DEPTH PULL 48 WS FOC & TRACEWIRE
WITHIN FOR MEASUREMENT REFER TO
SHEET NO.01
BFO48I
TBD,1-2
XD,3-48

BM53F

C C C C C C C C C C
134'

79'

76'

3'
3'

125'

73'

70'

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION 35
T-89N R-14W

RW

RW

C/L

EOP

EOP
MEDIAN

C/L

EOP

EOP

RW

RW

C/L

EOP

EOP
MEDIAN

C/L

EOP

EOP

JOB ID #707433044

2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY,
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

Page 02 of 08 (02/20/2024)

NOTE:FOR ALL RIGHT OF WAY AND PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY
AND PUBLIC PROPERTIES; ALL CONDUITS AND FIBER OPTIC
CABLE SHALL BE PLACED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF:48''

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:02

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
CITY

OF 081:50

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

SS

N

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

2550 50

50'

0

Exhibit B

Page 7 of 23

OHE poles along route, adjust
accordingly in field. TYP all
sheets. -MT@CF

730

Item 57.



NOTE : MINIMUM 24'' CLEARANCE FROM EXISTING UTILITIES.

PROFILE:2

00

02

-04

-02

-08

-06

-12

-10

04

-14

-16

-18

-20

00

02

-04

-02

-08

-06

-12

-10

04

-14

-16

-18

-20

6+
00

7+
00

8+
00

9+
00

10
+0

0

11
+0

0

12
+0

0

GROUND
ELEVATION
EXISTING
 GROUND

EXISTING
 GROUND

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @
MIN. 48" DEPTH
& PULL 48 WS FOC & TRACEWIRE
WITHIN

Scale in Feet

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:P2

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
CITY

OF P91:50

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

0
1

2

VE
R

TI
C

A
L

Exhibit B

Page 8 of 23
731

Item 57.



HUDSON RD
ASPHALT

HUDSON RD
ASPHALT

NOTE:LOCATE & PROTECT ALL EXISTING UTILITIES.
MAINTAIN 2' SEPARATION (VERTICAL & HORIZONTAL)
FROM EXISTING UTILITIES

13+00

14+00

15+00

16+00

17+00

18+00

19+00 CO

STA
15+62

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN 48"
DEPTH PULL 48 WS FOC & TRACEWIRE
WITHIN FOR MEASUREMENT REFER TO
SHEET NO.01
BFO48I
TBD,1-2
XD,3-48

BM53
F

C C C C C

C C C C

121'
68'
65'

3'

97'

54'

51'

3'

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION 35
T-89N R-14W

RW

RW

C/L

EOP

EOP
MEDIAN

C/L

EOP

EOP
RW

RW

C/L

EOP

EOP
MEDIAN

C/L

EOP

EOP

JOB ID #707433044

2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY,
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

Page 03 of 08 (02/20/2024)

NOTE:FOR ALL RIGHT OF WAY AND PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY
AND PUBLIC PROPERTIES; ALL CONDUITS AND FIBER OPTIC
CABLE SHALL BE PLACED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF:48''

Street light

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:03

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
CITY

OF 081:50

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

SS

N

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

2550 50

50'

0

Exhibit B

Page 9 of 23

Alignment parallels water
main, maintain separation.
Narrows at southbound
right turn lane for Target
Distribution. -MT@CF

732

Item 57.



NOTE : MINIMUM 24'' CLEARANCE FROM EXISTING UTILITIES.

PROFILE:3

00

02

-04

-02

-08

-06

-12

-10

04

-14

-16

-18

-20

00

02

-04

-02

-08

-06

-12

-10

04

-14

-16

-18

-20

12
+0

0

13
+0

0

14
+0

0

15
+0

0

16
+0

0

17
+0

0

18
+0

0

GROUND
ELEVATION
EXISTING
 GROUND

EXISTING
 GROUND

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @
MIN. 48" DEPTH
& PULL 48 WS FOC & TRACEWIRE
WITHIN

Scale in Feet

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:P3

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
CITY

OF P91:50

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

0
1

2

VE
R

TI
C

A
L

Exhibit B

Page 10 of 23
733

Item 57.



HUDSON RD
ASPHALT

HUDSON RD
ASPHALT

D
R

IVEW
AY

DRIVEWAY
NOTE:LOCATE & PROTECT ALL EXISTING UTILITIES.
MAINTAIN 2' SEPARATION (VERTICAL & HORIZONTAL)
FROM EXISTING UTILITIES

SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

20+00

21+00

22+00

23+00

24+00

25+00

26+00

CO
STA

20+88
STA

20+78

STA
23+84

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN 48"
DEPTH PULL 48 WS FOC & TRACEWIRE
WITHIN FOR MEASUREMENT REFER TO
SHEET NO.01
BFO48I
TBD,1-2
XD,3-48

C
C

C
C

C
C C C C

C

93'
50'
47'

3'

101'

58'

55'

3'

119'

74'
71'

3'

RW

C/L

EOP

EOP
MEDIAN

C/L

EOP

EOP

RW

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION 35
T-89N R-14W

RW

RW

C/L

EOP

EOP
MEDIAN

C/L

EOP

EOP

BM
53

F

STA
22+88

PR
O

PO
SED

 H
H

100'

PLACE A NEW HH &
LEAVE 100' LOOP.
BHF(30X48X36)T-1
BM2-1
BM53F-1
STEN:33044/01
LAT:42.478180
LONG:-92.465600

JOB ID #707433044

2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY,
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

Page 04 of 08 (02/20/2024)

NOTE:FOR ALL RIGHT OF WAY AND PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY
AND PUBLIC PROPERTIES; ALL CONDUITS AND FIBER OPTIC
CABLE SHALL BE PLACED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF:48''

Electrical Ped

Street Light

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:04

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
CITY

OF 081:50

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

SS

N

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

2550 50

50'

0

Exhibit B

Page 11 of 23

Hydrant 70'-0 north of ROW
jog, adjust boring depth
accordingly. -MT@CF

Watermain crossing south of
ROW jog, adjust bore depths
after spotting and field verify
depths. -MT@CF

STA 24+30 is approximate location of
watermain crossing from private to public
parallel to Hudson Road. Spot and verify
in field to adjsut bore depths. -MT@CF

STA 25+75 is the approximate
location of storm sewer crossing
from the basin to the west. Spot
in field and adjust bore depths.
-MT@CF

734

Item 57.



NOTE : MINIMUM 24'' CLEARANCE FROM EXISTING UTILITIES.

PROFILE:4

00

02

-04

-02

-08

-06

-12

-10

04

-14

-16

-18

-20

00

02

-04

-02

-08

-06

-12

-10

04

-14

-16

-18

-20

18
+0

0

19
+0

0

20
+0

0

21
+0

0

22
+0

0

23
+0

0

24
+0

0

GROUND
ELEVATION
EXISTING
 GROUND

EXISTING
 GROUND

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @
MIN. 48" DEPTH
& PULL 48 WS FOC & TRACEWIRE
WITHIN

ST
A:

22
+8

8
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 H
H

Scale in Feet

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:P4

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
CITY

OF P91:50

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

0
1

2

VE
R

TI
C

A
L

Exhibit B

Page 12 of 23
735

Item 57.



HUDSON RD
ASPHALT

HUDSON RD
ASPHALT

NOTE:LOCATE & PROTECT ALL EXISTING UTILITIES.
MAINTAIN 2' SEPARATION (VERTICAL & HORIZONTAL)
FROM EXISTING UTILITIES

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

27+00

28+00

29+00

30+00

31+00

32+00

33+00

CO

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN 48"
DEPTH PULL 48 WS FOC & TRACEWIRE
WITHIN FOR MEASUREMENT REFER TO
SHEET NO.01
BFO48I
TBD,1-2
XD,3-48

BM53
F

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

129'

84'

81'

3'

20
4'

96
'

93
'

3'

RW

RW

C/L

EOP

EOP
MEDIAN

C/L

EOP

EOP

RW

RW

C/L

EOP

EOP
MEDIAN

C/L

EOP

EOP

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION 35
T-89N R-14W

STORM DRAIN

JOB ID #707433044

2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY,
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

Page 05 of 08 (02/20/2024)

NOTE:FOR ALL RIGHT OF WAY AND PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY
AND PUBLIC PROPERTIES; ALL CONDUITS AND FIBER OPTIC
CABLE SHALL BE PLACED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF:48''

Street Light

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:05

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
CITY

OF 081:50

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

SS

N

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

2550 50

50'

0

Exhibit B

Page 13 of 23

Contractor to be advised storm sewer and watermain
both parallel Hudson Road south of this point. Spot
and maintain separation from utilities. -MT@CF

Sanitary sewer crossing
near STA 31+00. Spot
and locate crossing.
-MT@CF

736

Item 57.



NOTE : MINIMUM 24'' CLEARANCE FROM EXISTING UTILITIES.
PROFILE:5

00

02

-04

-02

-08

-06

-12

-10

04

-14

-16

-18

-20

00

02

-04

-02

-08

-06

-12

-10

04

-14

-16

-18

-20

24
+0

0

25
+0

0

26
+0

0

27
+0

0

28
+0

0

29
+0

0

30
+0

0

GROUND
ELEVATION
EXISTING
 GROUND

EXISTING
 GROUND

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @
MIN. 48" DEPTH
& PULL 48 WS FOC & TRACEWIRE
WITHIN

Scale in Feet

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:P5

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
CITY

OF P91:50

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

0
1

2

VE
R

TI
C

A
L

Exhibit B

Page 14 of 23
737

Item 57.



HUDSON RD
ASPHALT

HUDSON RD
ASPHALT

HUDSON RD
ASPHALT

HUDSON RD
ASPHALT

TEC
H

N
O

LO
G

Y PKW
Y

ASPH
ALT

NOTE:LOCATE & PROTECT ALL EXISTING UTILITIES.
MAINTAIN 2' SEPARATION (VERTICAL & HORIZONTAL)
FROM EXISTING UTILITIES

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

34+00

35+00

36+00

37+00

38+00

39+00

40+00

BM53
F

CO

STA
35+46

STA
36+96

STA 39+10 PROPOSED HH

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN 48"
DEPTH PULL 48 WS FOC & TRACEWIRE
WITHIN FOR MEASUREMENT REFER TO
SHEET NO.01
BFO48I
TBD,1-2
XD,3-48

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN 48"
DEPTH PULL 48 WS FOC & TRACEWIRE
WITHIN FOR MEASUREMENT REFER TO
SHEET NO.01
BFO48I
TBD,1-2
XD,3-48

100'

PLACE A NEW HH &
LEAVE 100' LOOP.
BHF(30X48X36)T-1
BM2-1
BM53F-1
STEN:33044/02
LAT:42.473740
LONG:-92.465930

NOTE:CROSS THE CULVERT @ MIN. 72" DEPTH
BELOW FLOW LINE.

DRY RUN
CREEK

C
C

C C C C C
C

C

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

20
8'

10
3'

10
0'

3'

145'
103'

42'

207'

97'
100'

3'

90'

178'

66'
37'

3'

RW

RW

C/L

EOP

EOP
MEDIAN

C/L

EOP

EOP
EO

P

R
W

C
/L

EO
P

R
W

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION 35
T-89N R-14W

NOTE:CROSS THE TECHNOLOGY
PKWY @ MIN. 60' DEPTH.

STORM DRAIN

RW

RW

C/L

EOP

EOP
MEDIAN

C/L

EOP

EOP

264'

UO36
NO COUNTS

UO36
NO COUNTS

PAE/VAULT:HAND::19280

NOTE:CROSS THE STORM
DRAIN @ MIN 60" DEPTH.

JOB ID #707433044

2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY,
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

Page 06 of 08 (02/20/2024)

NOTE:FOR ALL RIGHT OF WAY AND PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY
AND PUBLIC PROPERTIES; ALL CONDUITS AND FIBER OPTIC
CABLE SHALL BE PLACED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF:48''

34'

SD
SD

CULVERT BOX

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:06

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
CITY

OF 081:50

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

SS

N

C
/L EO

P

RWEO
P

R
W

TE
C

H
N

O
LO

G
Y 

PK
W

Y
AS

PH
AL

T

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

2550 50

50'

0

Exhibit B

Page 15 of 23

Maintain adequate
depth under channel.
-MT@CF

Storm Sewer and Sanitary
Sewer crossings adjacent to
utility boxes. Spot and locate all
utilities for crossing. -MT@CFSanitary Sewer Crossing

approximately 20'-0 west of
roadway intakes. Spot and
verify crossing. -MT@CF

738

Item 57.



NOTE : MINIMUM 24'' CLEARANCE FROM EXISTING UTILITIES.
PROFILE:6

00

02

-04

-02

-08

-06

-12

-10

04

-14

-16

-18

-20

00

02

-04

-02

-08

-06

-12

-10

04

-14

-16

-18

-20

30
+0

0

31
+0

0

32
+0

0

33
+0

0

34
+0

0

35
+0

0

36
+0

0

GROUND
ELEVATION
EXISTING
 GROUND

EXISTING
 GROUND

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @
MIN. 48" DEPTH
& PULL 48 WS FOC & TRACEWIRE
WITHIN

Scale in Feet

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:P6

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
CITY

OF P91:50

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

0
1

2

VE
R

TI
C

A
L

Exhibit B

Page 16 of 23
739

Item 57.



NOTE : MINIMUM 24'' CLEARANCE FROM EXISTING UTILITIES.
PROFILE:7

00

02

-04

-02

-08

-06

-12

-10

04

-14

-16

-18

-20

00

02

-04

-02

-08

-06

-12

-10

04

-14

-16

-18

-20

36
+0

0

37
+0

0

38
+0

0

39
+0

0

40
+0

0

41
+0

0

42
+0

0

GROUND
ELEVATION
EXISTING
 GROUND

EXISTING
 GROUND

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @
MIN. 48" DEPTH
& PULL 48 WS FOC & TRACEWIRE
WITHIN

ST
A:

39
+1

0
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 H
H

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @
MIN. 48" DEPTH
& PULL 48 WS FOC & TRACEWIRE
WITHIN

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @
MIN. 60" DEPTH
& PULL 48 WS FOC & TRACEWIRE
WITHIN

Scale in Feet

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:P7

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
CITY

OF P91:50

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

0
1

2

VE
R

TI
C

A
L

Exhibit B

Page 17 of 23
740

Item 57.



TECHNOLOGY PKWY
ASPHALT

NOTE:LOCATE & PROTECT ALL EXISTING UTILITIES.
MAINTAIN 2' SEPARATION (VERTICAL & HORIZONTAL)
FROM EXISTING UTILITIES

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

41+00

42+00

43+00

44+0045+00

46+00

47+00

CO

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN 48"
DEPTH PULL 48 WS FOC & TRACEWIRE
WITHIN FOR MEASUREMENT REFER TO
SHEET NO.01
BFO48I
TBD,1-2
XD,3-48

BM53F

NOTE:CROSS THE CULVERT @ MIN. 72" DEPTH
BELOW FLOW LINE.

DRY RUN
CREEK

C

C

C

C

C

C C C

C

C

C

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD
SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

66'

37'
34'

3'

EOP

EOP

C/L

RW

RW

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION 35
T-89N R-14W

STORM DRAIN

JOB ID #707433044

2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY,
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

Page 07 of 08 (02/20/2024)

NOTE:FOR ALL RIGHT OF WAY AND PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY
AND PUBLIC PROPERTIES; ALL CONDUITS AND FIBER OPTIC
CABLE SHALL BE PLACED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF:48''

SD

SD

SD

SD

CULVERT BOX

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:07

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
CITY

OF 081:50

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

SS

N
C/L

RW

EOP

RW

EOP

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

2550 50

50'

0

Exhibit B

Page 18 of 23

Verify boring depth minimums, if
needed go below box structure.
-MT@CF

741

Item 57.



NOTE : MINIMUM 24'' CLEARANCE FROM EXISTING UTILITIES.
PROFILE:8

00

02

-04

-02

-08

-06

-12

-10

04

-14

-16

-18

-20

00

02

-04

-02

-08

-06

-12

-10

04

-14

-16

-18

-20

42
+0

0

43
+0

0

44
+0

0

45
+0

0

46
+0

0

47
+0

0

48
+0

0

GROUND
ELEVATION
EXISTING
 GROUND

EXISTING
 GROUND

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @
MIN. 48" DEPTH
& PULL 48 WS FOC & TRACEWIRE
WITHIN

Scale in Feet

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:P8

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
CITY

OF P91:50

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

0
1

2

VE
R

TI
C

A
L

Exhibit B

Page 19 of 23
742

Item 57.



G

W

TEC
H

N
O

LO
G

Y PKW
Y

ASPH
ALT

DRIVEWAY

NOTE:LOCATE & PROTECT ALL EXISTING UTILITIES.
MAINTAIN 2' SEPARATION (VERTICAL & HORIZONTAL)
FROM EXISTING UTILITIES

SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

49+00

BM
53

F

FDP
GRD

50'

SERVER ROOM

LOCAL CONTACT:- RYAN GAGE
(319-318-2345)
FOR DETAILED VIEW OF FDP PLACEMENT
REFER SHEET NO. 08(A)

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY,
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

STA
48+28

PR
O

PO
SED

 H
H

STA
48+90

PR
O

PO
SED

 H
H

STA
49+20

EN
D

 BO
R

E
EXISTIN

G
 C

U
STO

M
ER

 PED

EXISTING CUSTOMER CONDUIT OF
LENGTH 455' APPROX. FROM EXISTING
CUSTOMER PED @ STA 49+20 TO
PROPOSED FDP @ STA 53+75.

STA 53+75  PROPOSED FDP

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN 48"
DEPTH PULL 48 WS FOC & TRACEWIRE
WITHIN FOR MEASUREMENT REFER TO
SHEET NO.01
BFO48I
TBD,1-2
XD,3-48

PLACE A NEW HH &
LEAVE 100' LOOP.
BHF(30X48X36)T-1
BM2-1
BM53F-1
STEN:33044/03
LAT:42.474750
LONG:-92.468880

PLACE A NEW HH &
LEAVE 100' LOOP.
BHF(30X48X36)T-1
BM2-1
BM53F-1
STEN:33044/04
LAT:42.474920
LONG:-92.46889

100'

100'

C C C C C C C C C

C

PLACE A NEW 12 CT
WALL MOUNT FDP IN
SERVER ROOM
BM2P-1
HBFO(48)-1
HO1(B)-14
PM21FW(12)200-1
STEN:33044/05
TBD,1-2
XD,3-12
LAT:42.475970
LONG:-92.469090

PLACE 48 WS FOC & TRACEWIRE WITHIN EXISTING
CUSTOMER CONDUIT FROM EXISTING CUSTOMER
PED @ STA 49+20 TO PROPOSED FDP @ STA 53+75
BFO48I-505'
TRACEWIRE(F)-455'
TBD,1-2
XD,3-48

C

C
C

SD

EO
P

EO
P

C
/L

R
W

R
W

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION 35
T-89N R-14W

NOTE:CROSS THE TECHNOLOGY
PKWY @ MIN. 60' DEPTH.

STORM DRAIN

BM
53

F

WATER LINE

GAS
LINE

JOB ID #707433044

2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY,
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

Page 08 of 08 (02/20/2024)

NOTE:FOR ALL RIGHT OF WAY AND PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY
AND PUBLIC PROPERTIES; ALL CONDUITS AND FIBER OPTIC
CABLE SHALL BE PLACED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF:48''

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:08

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
CITY

OF 081:50

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

SS

N

EO
P

EO
P

C
/L

R
W

R
W

48+00

C
O

66'
37'
34'

3'

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

2550 50

50'

0

Exhibit B

Page 20 of 23

Subdrain crossings both sides
of road, approx 48" depth from
top of curb line. -MT@CF

743

Item 57.



NOTE : MINIMUM 24'' CLEARANCE FROM EXISTING UTILITIES.

PROFILE:9

00

02

-04

-02

-08

-06

-12

-10

04

-14

-16

-18

-20

00

02

-04

-02

-08

-06

-12

-10

04

-14

-16

-18

-20

48
+0

0

49
+0

0

EXISTING
 GROUND

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @
MIN. 60" DEPTH
& PULL 48 WS FOC & TRACEWIRE
WITHIN

ST
A:

48
+2

8
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 H
H

ST
A:

48
+9

0
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 H
H

Scale in Feet

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:P9

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
NO

OF P9NTS

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET. 0

1
2

VE
R

TI
C

A
L

Exhibit B

Page 21 of 23
744

Item 57.



ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:SV

707433044

03/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

PRABHAT SINGH
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348749

TROY OZBUN
CITY

OF SV1:50

ADDRESS:- 2115 TECHNOLOGY PKWY, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

AERIAL VIEW
START GPS

ENDING  GPS

Exhibit B

Page 22 of 23
745

Item 57.



26

1. WORK BEYOND THE SHOULDER/BEHIND THE CURB
For workers and equipment operating more than 12 to 15 feet 

from the edge of the traveled way during daylight hours, such as 
mowing, litter pickup, and utility repair. The work area should be 
established on one side of the road only. No work or parking on the 
opposite side within 500 feet. The ROAD WORK AHEAD (W20-
1) signs may be replaced with other appropriate signing such as 
SHOULDER WORK AHEAD (W21-5) or worker symbol signs. For 
a single daylight period or less, all signs and channelizing devices 
may be omitted, if a vehicle displays vehicle warning light(s).

Exhibit B

Page 23 of 23
746

Item 57.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: May 6th, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: Fiber Optic License Agreement 
   Windstream Intellectual Property Services, LLC 
   W. Viking Road 
 
Enclosed is a proposed License Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and 
Windstream Intellectual Property Services, LLC to install an additional long-distance 
telecommunications system consisting of fiber optic cable within the public right-of way of 
the City, in order to extend and upgrade services owned by Windstream intellectual 
Property Services, LLC along W. Viking Road. 
 
The City of Cedar Falls has entered into previous license agreements with Windstream 
Intellectual Property Services, LLC. The proposed License Agreement follows the terms 
and conditions set forth in the earlier agreements and is intended to protect the City of 
Cedar Falls right-of way and manage and regulate in a manner consistent with federal 
and state law. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends your approval of 
this proposed License Agreement. 
 
 
xc:  David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer  
 
 
  
 

747

Item 58.



748

Item 58.



749

Item 58.



750

Item 58.



751

Item 58.



752

Item 58.



753

Item 58.



754

Item 58.



755

Item 58.



756

Item 58.



1934, as amended, The Telecommunications Act of 1996, as amended, Chapter 480A,
Code of Iowa, and Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. 

29. Governing Law: Legal Action. This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Iowa. In any legal proceedings to
interpret, construe or enforce this Agreement, the parties hereby agree and consent (a)
to irrevocably submit to the jurisdiction and venue of the Iowa District Court in and for 
Black Hawk County, over any action or proceeding to enforce or defend any matter 
arising from or related to this Agreement; (b) to irrevocably waive, to the fullest extent a
party may effectively do so, the defense of any inconvenient forum to the maintenance 
of any such action or proceeding; and (c) not to institute any legal action or proceeding
against the other party, concerning any matter arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement, in any court other than the one specified in this section. 

30. General Provisions. This Agreement, together with any exhibits referenced
herein, together constitute the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject
matter hereof. It may not be modified or amended except by a written instrument signed 
by both parties. This Agreement is binding upon the parties and the permitted 
successors, assigns and transferees of each party. 

�
- \n witness whereof, this Agreement is entered into effective as the -2.!:J day of

l..l.¥'.) \ , 20 i!). 

Windstream Intellectual Property 
Services, LLC. 

By

LICENS
a,

c:c�������!!!!!:�
CATE BARNETT 

Notary Public-Arllensas 
Pulaski County 

My Commission E1Cplres 0�·01-2033 
Commlulon t 12723i06 

STATE OF Ar�Y{JAS )
\ 

. )

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

By-------------
Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

ATTEST:

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk

couNTY oF Pv1usk >

�
Ttiis instrument was acknowledged before me on .Aph. \ 1-¼ , 20.li-l,

by _ db.lk\lLJDhV'\DV". , the,__ ______ of 
W\J<friam \V)k,Het b.1P\ prfyerb/':t'bt\'lf\\J{,• 

757

Item 58.



758

Item 58.



EXHIBIT A 
 

TEXT DESCRIPTION OF ALIGNMENT FOR Windstream Intellectual Property Services, LLC. FIBER OPTIC 
CABLE INSTALLATION IN CEDAR FALLS 

 

The facility shall consist of two (2”) inch diameter High-Density Polyethylene (HDPE) duct with 48 count 

fiber cable installed at minimum depths of: forty-eight (48”) inches below ground surface. 

In general terms, within the right-of-way of Viking Rd Road and more particularly described as follows: 
 
 

THIS PROJECT IS TO PLACE CABLE IN THE ROW VIKING RD UNDER THE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF CEDER FALLS 
STARTING AT EXISTING FACILITY LOCATED AT GPS: 42.483896 , -92.450090  AND ENDS AT GPS: 42.484022, 
-92.472062 PLACEMENT WILL BE DONE THROUGH 6164' BORING & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT PULL 48 WS FOC 
WITHIN ALSO 7' OPEN TRENCHING & PLACE 2'' INNERDUCT PULL 48 WS FOC WITHIN ALSO SPLICE NEW 48 
WS FOC WITH EXISTING UTILITIES FOC & PLACING 6 NEW HANDHOLES (30”X48”X36”) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 1 

759

Item 58.



WINDSTREAM CONSTRUCTION MANAGER
JOSEPH GOODHUE (515-321-4903)

SS

NVICINITY MAP

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:VICINITY MAP

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

NTS

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

01

LCON  : MELANIE GONZALES (720-549-2298)
SCOPE OF WORK : BUILD UNDERGROUND FIBER FROM CUSTOMER PREM TO CFU SPLICEPOINT
                                  42.48348 -92.44892.  ADD CPED AT CORNER OF VIKING RD AND HUDSON RD
                                  TO SUPPORT TECHNOLOGY PKWY REQUEST.
CIRCUIT ID  : IA/KFGS/392866/   /WXN /
PON  : NGMSS EB1161406NMG

0203040506070809
10

TROY OZBUN

.

City of Cedar Falls Notes:
*Contractor must submit a Right-Of-Way permit (at no additional cost to the established utility agreement) to
Inspection Services at Cedar Falls City Hall or by utilizing www.cf1stop.com
*Contractor required to pothole and spot every utility crossing and adjacent parallel line along the alignment,
including those not explicitly shown on the plans. 
*Contractor shall restore ROW after all work is complete.
*This alignment requires approval by the City of Cedar Falls Council prior to approval of any permits in the City
of Cedar Falls and prior to start of construction.
*See associated comments in the planset made for reference. Contractor to adjust placement in field to avoid
other utility conflicts. Call 811 for locates.

REVIEWED FOR CODE COMPLIANCE

No.___________________________________

Dated ________________________________

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ENGINEERING DIVISION

By:___________________________________

707433043 - Viking Rd Alignment

4/12/2024

760

Item 58.

tolanm
Text Box
Exhibit B

tolanm
Text Box
Exhibit B



ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:L

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

NTS

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

PROPOSED CONDUIT ON PROFILE

761

Item 58.



NOTE:THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL "WINDSTREAM" POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES AND ALL REQUIREMENTS FROM LOCAL PERMITTING AUTHORITIES.
THE VARIOUS PERMITS OBTAINED FOR THE PROJECT WILL BE ON FILE IN THE OFFICE
OF THE "WINDSTREAM" ENGINEER AND A CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, CITY STAMPED
"APPROVAL TO CONSTRUCT" AND SIGNED BY AN AUTHORIZED PERSON W/ THE
CEDAR FALLS ENGINEERING DIVISION, COPY SHALL BE AVAILABLE, AT ALL
TIMES, AT THE CONSTRUCTION SITE. NO CONSTRUCTION, EXCAVATION OR
IMPROVEMENT(S) OF ANY KIND SHALL BEGIN ON THE SURFACE, IN THE
SUBSURFACE OR ABOVE THE SURFACE WITHOUT A SIGNED PERMIT FROM THE
GOVERNING PERMIT AUTHORITY OR AUTHORITIES..

NOTE:CONTRACTOR PRACTICES AND ALL FINISHED WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE
CURRENT STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS (SUDAS) PROGRAM,
INCLUDING ALL LOCAL GOVERNMENTAL SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS
AND CEDAR FALLS SPECIFICATIONS IN EFFECT, WITHIN THE APPLICABLE
JURISDICTION. ALL AREAS WHERE WORK IS PERFORMED OR AFFECTED BY THE
WORK SHALL BE RETURNED TO A CONDITION EQUAL TO OR BETTER THAN THEIR
ORIGINAL CONDITION. THE CEDAR FALLS CITY ENGINEER WILL GIVE FINAL
DETERMINATION WHETHER ALL "RETURNED CONDITIONS" ARE EQUAL TO OR
BETTER THAN THE ORIGINAL (AND ACCEPTABLE).

NOTE:MISCELLANEOUS STRUCTURES AND OBSTRUCTIONS SUCH AS SIGN POSTS, MAIL
BOXES, METER BOXES, ETC., SHALL BE AVOIDED OR REMOVED AND REINSTALLED
TO A CONDITION EQUAL TO OR BETTER THAN THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION. THE
CEDAR FALLS CITY ENGINEER WILL GIVE FINAL DETERMINATION WHETHER ALL
"RETURNED CONDITIONS" ARE EQUAL TO OR BETTER THAN THE ORIGINAL

NOTE:THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE AT ALL TIMES FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF
STREETS AND OTHER UTILITIES AFFECTED BY CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS. DEBRIS
SHALL NOT BE PERMITTED TO ACCUMULATE AND ALL PREMISES SHALL BE
MAINTAINED IN A NEAT AND WORKMANLIKE CONDITION. THE CITY ENGINEER OF
THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS WILL REVIEW ALL PROPOSED DISPOSAL SITES, PRIOR TO
THEIR USE, TO DETERMINE ACCEPTABILITY.

NOTE:THE CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE ADEQUATE PRECAUTIONS TO PROTECT EXISTING
FACILITIES, SIDEWALKS, CURBS, PAVEMENTS, UTILITIES, FOLIAGE AND ADJOINING
PROPERTY AND STRUCTURES OUTSIDE OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY AND TO AVOID
DAMAGE THERETO.

NOTE:THE FOLLOWING SPECIAL PROVISIONS SHALL APPLY TO TRAFFIC REGULATIONS
DURING THE ENTIRE EXTENT OF THIS PROJECT WORK:

A. THERE SHALL BE AT ALL TIMES ADEQUATE VEHICLE AND PEDESTRIAN ACCESS FOR
INGRESS AND EGRESS FOR THE PROPERTIES ADJACENT TO THE PROJECT WORK.

B. DURING NON-WORKING HOURS THE CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP THE
EXISTING TRAFFIC LANES CLEAR FROM INTERFERENCE, INCLUDING ALL
APPROACHES AND INTERSECTIONS.

C. IF LANE BLOCKAGE IS UNAVOIDABLE, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY
THE CITY ENGINEERING DIVISION, POLICE DEPARTMENT,
FIRE DEPARTMENT, AMBULANCE SERVICES, SCHOOL BUS GARAGES,
AND ALL OTHER AGENCIES OPERATIONS AS APPROPRIATE SO THAT
THESE AGENCIES MAY PLAN TO RE-ROUTE THEIR VEHICLES AROUND
THE CONSTRUCTION WORK ZONE(S).

NOTE:WHERE HAZARDOUS CONDITIONS EXIST, PROPER SIGNING, FLAGGING, AND
BARRICADING SHALL BE PROVIDED AS DIRECTED BY THE "company name"
ENGINEER AND/OR THE CEDAR FALLS CITY ENGINEERING DIVISION. SUPPLEMENTAL
SIGNS, FLAG PERSON(S), AND BARRICADES SHALL BE PROVIDED BY THE
CONTRACTOR. NO TRENCH OR EXCAVATION SITE SHALL BE LEFT UNATTTENDED, AT
ANY TIME, OR OPEN OVERNIGHT

NOTE:TRENCHES IN PAVED AREAS SHALL BE SAW CUT TO THE FULL DEPTH OF THE
PAVEMENT AS REQUIRED BY THE PERMITTING AUTHORITY. PAVED SURFACES
SHALL BE REPAIRED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PERMITTING AUTHORITY'S
SPECIFICATIONS, CURRENT IOWA (SUDAS) STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND
SPECIFICATIONS AND THE CURRENT CEDAR FALLS SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS
TO THE IOWA (SUDAS) STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS

NOTE:THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL CURRENT AND APPLICABLE
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ADMINISTRATION (OSHA), STATE, AND
LOCAL RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE SAFETY OF EMPLOYEES AND
PROPER MATERIAL HANDLING DURING THE CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION,
AND/OR RESTORATIONS ON THIS PROJECT

NOTE:RIGHT OF WAY RESTORATION AND STREET/SIDEWALK REPAIR/REPLACEMENT
SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE LOCAL PERMITTING AUTHORITY. THE
CEDAR FALLS CITY ENGINEER WILL GIVE FINAL DETERMINATION WHETHER ALL
"RETURNED CONDITIONS" ARE EQUAL TO OR BETTER THAN THE ORIGINAL.

NOTE:FOR ALL PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AND PUBLIC PROPERTIES; ALL CONDUITS AND FIBER
OPTIC CABLE SHALL BE PLACED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF:

A) SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER
TO SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")
INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW
POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH.

B) FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,
SIDEWALKS, AND LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS,
C) FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC
RIGHT-OF-WAYS.

D) TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS.
E)
F) TWENTY-FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLIC
CULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED.

G) AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICAL
UTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.
(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON AN INDIVIDUAL PLAN
VIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEET
OF THE PLAN SET.)

NOTE:FOR ALL DITCHLINES AND PRIVATE DRIVEWAYS, ALL CABLES SHALL BE
PLACED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES BELOW ALL DITCHLINES
AND PRIVATE DRIVEWAYS.

NOTE:INNERDUCTS CONTAINING CABLE SHALL BE SEALED AT TERMINATION POINTS
USING RUBBER PLUGS AND COMPRESSION BANDS. VACANT INNERDUCTS OR
CONDUIT RUNS SHALL BE SEALED AT TERMINATION POINTS WITH RUBBER PLUGS
EQUIPED WITH A PULL LINE ATTACHMENT RING ON WHICH TO TERMINATE THE
PULL LINE. APPROPRIATE SEALANT COMPOUND SHALL BE USED TO SEAL ANY GAPS.

NOTE:WHEN PLOWING/TRENCHING FOR PLACEMENT OF FIBER OPTIC CABLE
OR DUCT OR ANY OTHER INSTALLATION, A MARKER TAPE SHALL BE PLACED
EIGHTEEN (18") INCHES BELOW EXISTING SURFACE OR BELOW PROPOSED
FINISH GRADE WHICHEVER IS APPLICABLE, DIRECTLY IN VERTICAL LINE
ABOVE THE FIBER OPTIC CABLE OR DUCT OR ANY OTHER INSTALLATION
BEING PLACED AT THE MINIMUM DEPTH OF FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES."

NOTE:BRUSHING AND TRIMMING SHALL BE DONE AS REQUIRED. BRUSH,
BRANCHES, AND REFUSE FROM CLEARING OPERATIONS SHALL BE
IMMEDIATELY REMOVED FROM THE VICINITY OF THE RIGHT OF WAY.

NOTE:IOWA STATE LAW REQUIRES EXCAVATORS TO NOTIFY IOWA ONE-CALL
AT LEAST FORTY-EIGHT (48 HRS.) HOURS PRIOR TO ALL EXCAVATIONS
(EXCLUDING SATURDAYS, SUNDAYS, AND LEGAL HOLIDAYS). CONTRACTOR
SHALL CAREFULLY HAND DIG WITHIN THE TWENTY-FOUR (24") INCH SAFETY
ZONE WHEN EXPOSING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES. IOWA ONE-CALL DOES
NOT MARK ALL PRIVATE UTILITIES.

NOTE:PERMIT AUTHORITIES AND UTILITIES:
IOWA ONE-CALL (1-800-292-8989) (811 LOCAL ACCESS)
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS (1.319-273-8600)
MATTHEW TOLAN (1-319-268-5164)
OR DAVID WICKE (1-319-268-5162)
CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES (C.F.U) (1-319-266-1761)
OTHER:
COMPANY NAME: WINDSTREAM COMMUNICATION
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY NAME: MP Nexlevel
CONSTRUCTION SUPERVISOR: DAVID BERGFELD

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:NOTES

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

NA

NTS

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

762

Item 58.



STANDARD DETAIL SHEET:
a) TRENCH DETAIL - 42" MIN DEPTH IN GRASS, 48" MIN DEPTH UNDER EXISTING /

FUTURE PRIVATE DRIVES, WALKS & TRAILS.
b) BORE DETAIL - 42" MIN DEPTH IN GRASS, 48" MIN DEPTH UNDER EXISTING / FUTURE

PRIVATE DRIVES, WALKS & TRAILS.
c) MAINTAIN 24" MIN DEPTH BELOW STORM SEWER UNDERCROSSING TO AVOID THE

CONFLICT.

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:S

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

OF S1:50

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

763

Item 58.



VIKING RD
ASPHALT

D
R

IV
EW

AY

D
R

IV
EW

AY

D
R

IV
EW

AY
D

R
IV

EW
AY

D
R

IV
EW

AY

SIDEWALK
SIDEWALK

C

CCC

CCCC

100'

SPLICE NEW 48 WS FOC WITH
EXISTING CO24X6 CEDAR FALLS
UTILITIES FOC IN EXISTING
AERIAL SPLICE CLOSURE ON
POLE
XXHAPO-1
HAPO(48)-1
WHO1(A)-2
HOMW(A)-2
WPM92-1
APPROXIMATE
LAT:42.483896
LONG:-92.450090

PLACE A NEW HH NEAR
THE BASE OF POLE &
LEAVE 100' LOOP
BHF(30X48X36)T-1
BM53F-1
BM2-1
STEN:33043/01
APPROXIMATE
LAT:42.483893
LONG:-92.450106

DOWN POLE-28'
POLE #FS-140A/24303
HOA-27'-4"
PM52-1
BM80PF-2
BM81PF-1
APPROXIMATE
LAT:42.483896
LONG:-92.450090

PLACE A NEW HH &
LEAVE 100' LOOP
BHF(30X48X36)T-1
BM53F-1
BM53FI-1
STEN:33043/02
APPROXIMATE
LAT:42.484196
LONG:-92.450109

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN. 60" DEPTH
PULL 48 WS FOC WITHIN FROM PROPOSED HH @
STA 0+02 TO PROPOSED CWDM(HH) @ STA 43+86
ADDITIONAL 20' FOR DEPTH CHANGES
BM60(1)(2)PF>100-4404'
BFO48I-4854'
TBD,1-2
XD,3-48

1+00

2+
00

3+
00

4+
00

5+
00

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN.
48" DEPTH PULL 48 WS FOC WITHIN
BFO48I
TBD,1-2
XD,3-48

NOTE:LOCATE & PROTECT ALL EXISTING
UTILITIES. MAINTAIN 2' SEPARATION (VERTICAL
AND HORIZONTAL) FROM EXISTING UTILITIES

NOTE:CROSS THE VIKING RD
@ MIN 60" DEPTH.

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-36
T-89N R-14W

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-25
T-89N R-14W

SECTION LINE

C/L

EOP

EOP

R/W

R/W

C/L

EOP

EOP

R/W

R/W

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

FIRE HYDRANT

ST
A

0+
00

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 P

O
LE

BE
G

IN
 T

R
EN

C
H

ST
A

0+
02

EN
D

 T
R

EN
C

H
BE

G
IN

 B
O

R
E

ST
A

1+
10

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 H

H

ST
A

3+
10

ST
A

3+
20

CO

11
8'

12
5'

58
'

55
'

3'

12
5'

48
'

45
'

3'

BM53F

BM53F

CO24X6
NO COUNTS

CO24X6
NO COUNTS

2' OPEN TRENCH & PLACE 2"
INNERDUCT @ MIN. 36" DEPTH
PULL 48 WS FOC WITHIN FROM
EXISTING POLE @ STA 0+00 TO
PROPOSED HH @ STA 0+02
BFOV(1)(2)T-2'
BFO48I-30'
TBD,1-2
XD,3-48

48
+0

0

49
+0

0

50
+0

0

51
+0

0

52
+0

0

53
+0

0

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDsan

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDsan
SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDW

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W52'
18'

11'

29'

53'

SS

N

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:01

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

OF 101:50

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

2550 50

50'

0

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

42" dia. Stormsewer
crossing including 6"
dia. subdrain crossing
each side of road.
-MT@CF

Watermain not graphically shown correctly.
Verify northerly placement with locates in field.
-MT@CF

Contractor to be advised of Gas Main in the southerly
corridor of Viking Road. Verify with locates in the field. 
-MT@CF

Contractor to be advised of Santiary Sewer Main crossing
in the westbound lanes of Viking Road. Verify with locates
in the field. Verify depth in field from adjacent manholes to
avoid conflict.
-MT@CF

Watermain is transitioning to outside of ROW.
Contractor to verify in iwth locates in the field.
-MT@CF

764

Item 58.



VIKING RD
ASPHALT

VIKING RD
ASPHALT

EN
TE

R
PR

IS
E 

D
R

AS
PH

AL
T

D
R

IV
EW

AY

CCCCCCCCCCC

6+
00

7+
00

8+
00

9+
00

10
+0

0

11
+0

0

12
+0

0

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN. 48" DEPTH
PULL 48 WS FOC WITHIN FOR MEASUREMENT
REFER SHEET NO. 01
BFO48I
TBD,1-2
XD,3-48

NOTE:LOCATE & PROTECT ALL EXISTING
UTILITIES. MAINTAIN 2' SEPARATION (VERTICAL
AND HORIZONTAL) FROM EXISTING UTILITIES

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-36
T-89N R-14W

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-25
T-89N R-14W

SECTION LINE

C/L

EOP

EOP

R/W

R/W

C/L

EOP

EOP

R/W

R/W

C
/L

EO
P

EO
P

R
/W R
/W

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSDSD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

FIRE HYDRANT

FIRE HYDRANT

CO

12
5'

50
'

47
'

3'

12
5'

50
'

47
'

3'

BM53F

66'

41
+0

0

42
+0

0

43
+0

0

44
+0

0

45
+0

0

46
+0

0

47
+0

0

SD

SD

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

SD

SD SD

SD
SD

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

SD
SD

SD SD

SD
SD

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDsan

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDsan SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SANW W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

SS

N

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:02

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

OF 101:50

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

2550 50

50'

0

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

Private storm sewer crossing
north of street intake. -MT@CF

Possible water-service
crossing near 8+40
-MT@CF

765

Item 58.



W W W

VIKING RD
ASPHALT

VIKING RD
ASPHALT

VIKING RD
ASPHALT

C
H

AN
C

EL
LO

R
  D

R
AS

PH
AL

T

CCCCCC

CCCCC

13
+0

0

14
+0

0

15
+0

0

16
+0

0

17
+0

0

18
+0

0

19
+0

0 BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN. 48" DEPTH
PULL 48 WS FOC WITHIN FOR MEASUREMENT
REFER SHEET NO. 01
BFO48I
TBD,1-2
XD,3-48

NOTE:LOCATE & PROTECT ALL EXISTING
UTILITIES. MAINTAIN 2' SEPARATION (VERTICAL
AND HORIZONTAL) FROM EXISTING UTILITIES

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-36
T-89N R-14W

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-25
T-89N R-14W

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-35
T-89N R-14W

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-26
T-89N R-14W

SECTION LINE

SECTION LINE

C/L

EOP

EOP

R/W

R/W

C/L

EOP

EOP

R/W

R/W

C
/L

EO
P

EO
P

R
/W R
/W

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

FIRE HYDRANT

ST
A

16
+8

8

STA 16+48

CO

12
5'

50
'

47
'

3'

13
0'

50
'

47
'

3'
15

5'
90

'

87
'

3'

BM53F

66'
D

R
IV

EW
AY

BM53
F

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD
34

+0
0

35
+0

0

36
+0

0

37
+0

0

38
+0

0

39
+0

0

40
+0

0

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD SD SD SD SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

SD
SD

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDsan SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN

W
W

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

ST
R

EE
T 

LI
G

H
T

SS

N

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:03

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

OF 101:50

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

2550 50

50'

0

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

Storm sewer crossing
adjacent to hydrant
placement. -MT@CF

Water-main Crossing Near 14+00
-MT@CF

Watermain, Sanitary Sewer, Storm
Sewer, gas-main crossing between
STA 17+00 to 18+00
-MT@CF

Proposed line parallels Gas Main and
Watermain. Spot and locate all utilities in field. 
-MT@CF

766

Item 58.



W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

VIKING RD
ASPHALT

W
ES

TM
IN

ST
ER

 D
R

AS
PH

AL
T

D
R

IV
EW

AY

SIDEWALK

CCCCC
C

C
C

C

100'

C
/L

EO
P

EO
P

PLACE A NEW HH &
LEAVE 100' LOOP
BHF(30X48X36)T-1
BM53F-1
BM2-1
STEN:33043/03
APPROXIMATE
LAT:42.484280
LONG:-92.457109

20
+0

0

21
+0

0

22
+0

0

23
+0

0

24
+0

025
+0

026
+0

0

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN. 48" DEPTH
PULL 48 WS FOC WITHIN FOR MEASUREMENT
REFER SHEET NO. 01
BFO48I
TBD,1-2
XD,3-48

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN. 48" DEPTH
PULL 48 WS FOC WITHIN FOR MEASUREMENT
REFER SHEET NO. 01
BFO48I
TBD,1-2
XD,3-48

NOTE:LOCATE & PROTECT ALL EXISTING
UTILITIES. MAINTAIN 2' SEPARATION (VERTICAL
AND HORIZONTAL) FROM EXISTING UTILITIES

NOTE:CROSS THE WESTMINSTER
DR @ MIN 60" DEPTH.

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-35
T-89N R-14W

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-26
T-89N R-14W

SECTION LINE

C/L

EOP

EOP

R/W

R/W

C/L

EOP

EOP

R/W

R/W

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

ST
A

20
+5

0
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 H
H

ST
A

23
+4

2

CO

15
6'

88
'

85
'

3'

14
2'

10
8'

10
5'

3'
BM

53F

BM53F

D
R

IV
EW

AY

SIDEWALK

SIDEW
ALK

R
W

R
W

66'

27
+0

0

28
+0

0

29
+0

0

30
+0

0

31
+0

0

32
+0

0

33
+0

0SD
SD

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

20'
32'

52'
84'

SS

N

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:04

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

OF 101:50

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

2550 50

50'

0

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

Proposed line parallels Gas Main and
Watermain. Spot and locate all utilities in field. 
-MT@CF

Subdrain Crossing
-MT@CFSantiary Sewer Crossing Near STA 26+50 

-MT@CF

767

Item 58.



W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

VIKING RD
ASPHALT

SIDEWALK

SIDEWALK

SIDEWALK

C
C

C
CCCCCCCC 27

+0
028
+0

0

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN. 48" DEPTH
PULL 48 WS FOC WITHIN FOR MEASUREMENT
REFER SHEET NO. 01
BFO48I
TBD,1-2
XD,3-48

NOTE:LOCATE & PROTECT ALL EXISTING
UTILITIES. MAINTAIN 2' SEPARATION (VERTICAL
AND HORIZONTAL) FROM EXISTING UTILITIES

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-35
T-89N R-14W

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-26
T-89N R-14W

SECTION LINE

C/L

EOP

EOP

R/W

R/W

C/L

EOP

EOP

R/W

R/W

ST
A

28
+1

5

CO

16
3'

13
0'

12
7'

3'

15
8'

12
4'

12
1'

3'

16
3'

13
0'

12
7'

3'

15
0'

12
7'

18
3'

DRY RUN CREEK

NOTE:CROSS THE CREEK @ MIN. 72" DEPTH
BELOW FLOW LINE. ADDITIONAL 20' IS TO
MAINTAIN THE BORE DEPTH BELOW CREEK

PLACE A NEW HH &
LEAVE 100' LOOP
BHF(30X48X36)T-1
BM53F-1
BM2-1
STEN:33043/03
APPROXIMATE
LAT:42.484401
LONG:-92.460198ST

A
28

+7
5

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 H

H

BM53
F

29
+0

0

30
+0

0

31
+0

0

32
+0

0

33
+0

0

100'

23
'

20
+0

0

21
+0

0

22
+0

0

23
+0

0

24
+0

0

25
+0

0

26
+0

0

10
1'

12
5'

SS

N

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:05

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

OF 101:50

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

2550 50

50'

0

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

Adjust handhole
placement to avoid
gas main. 
-MT@CF

Proposed line parallels Gas Main and
Watermain. Spot and locate all utilities in field. 
-MT@CF

768

Item 58.



W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

VIKING RD
ASPHALT

FI
EL

D
 E

N
TR

AN
C

E

D
R

IV
EW

AY

CC

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN. 48" DEPTH
PULL 48 WS FOC WITHIN FOR MEASUREMENT
REFER SHEET NO. 01
BFO48I
TBD,1-2
XD,3-48

NOTE:LOCATE & PROTECT ALL EXISTING
UTILITIES. MAINTAIN 2' SEPARATION (VERTICAL
AND HORIZONTAL) FROM EXISTING UTILITIES

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-35
T-89N R-14W

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-26
T-89N R-14W

C/L

EOP

EOP

R/W

R/W

C/L

EOP

EOP

R/W

R/W

SECTION LINE

ST
A

34
+7

0

CO

16
3'

13
0'

12
7'

3'

14
0'

10
7'

10
4'

3'

BM53F

34
+0

0

35
+0

0

36
+0

0

37
+0

0

38
+0

0

39
+0

0

40
+0

0

14
+0

0

15
+0

0

16
+0

0

17
+0

0

18
+0

0

19
+0

0

SS

N

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:06

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

OF 101:50

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

2550 50

50'

0

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

Possible field culvert
crossing. -MT@CF

Proposed line parallels Gas Main and
Watermain. Spot and locate all utilities in field. 
-MT@CF

769

Item 58.



W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

CCCCC

VIKING RD
ASPHALT

VIKING RD
ASPHALT

H
U

D
SO

N
 R

D
AS

PH
AL

T

H
U

D
SO

N
 R

D
AS

PH
AL

T

H
U

D
SO

N
 R

D
AS

PH
AL

T

H
U

D
SO

N
 R

D
AS

PH
AL

T

R
W

R
W C
/L

EO
P

EO
P

M
ED

IA
N

C
/L

EO
P

EO
P

SI
D

EW
AL

K SID
EW

ALK

SIDEW
ALK

C
C

CCCC
50'50'

PLACE A NEW BDO-CWDM(HH) &
SPLICE OUT FIBER OF CWDM
WITH 2 NEW 48 WS FOC
LEAVE 50' LOOP OF EACH CABLE
BDO-CWDM(HH)-1
BM53F-1
BM2-1
HO1(B)-8
HBFO(48)-1
STEN:33043/04
APPROXIMATE
LAT:42.484329
LONG:-92.465724

A

A

R
W

R
W C
/L

EO
P

EO
P

M
ED

IA
N

C
/L

EO
P

EO
P

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN. 48"
DEPTH PULL 48 WS FOC WITHIN FROM
PROPOSED CWDM(HH) @ STA 43+86 TO
PROPOSED HH @ STA 61+96
BM60(1)(2)PF>100-1772'
BFO48I-1922'
VIK,1-2
XD,3-48

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN. 48" DEPTH
PULL 48 WS FOC WITHIN FOR MEASUREMENT
REFER SHEET NO. 01
BFO48I
TBD,1-2
XD,3-48

NOTE:LOCATE & PROTECT ALL EXISTING
UTILITIES. MAINTAIN 2' SEPARATION (VERTICAL
AND HORIZONTAL) FROM EXISTING UTILITIES

NOTE:CROSS THE HUDSON
RD @ MIN 60" DEPTH.

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-35
T-89N R-14W

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-26
T-89N R-14W

C/L

EOP

EOP

R/W

R/W

C/L

EOP

EOP

R/W

R/W

SECTION LINE

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

ST
A

43
+8

6
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 C
W

D
M

(H
H

)

CO

11
8'

85
'

82
'

3'

137'

236'

17
5'

88
'

85
'

3'

15
3'

87
'

84
'

3'

BM
53

F

BM
53F

FIRE
HYDRANT

41
+0

0

42
+0

0

43
+0

0

44
+0

0

45
+0

0

46
+0

0

10
+0

0

11
+0

0

12
+0

0 13
+0

0

13
4+

00

13
3+

00

13
2+

00

SD SD SD

SD
SD

SD SD SD SD SD SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

W
W

EL
EC

TR
IC

 B
O

X

TR
AF

FI
C

 S
IG

N
AL

58
'

82
'

SS

N

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:07

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

OF 101:50

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

2550 50

50'

0

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

Spot and avoid gas
main crossing and
junction. -MT@CF

770

Item 58.



W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

CCCCCCC
C

C
C

C

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN. 48" DEPTH
PULL 48 WS FOC WITHIN FOR MEASUREMENT
REFER SHEET NO. 07
BFO48I
VIK,1-2
XD,3-48

NOTE:LOCATE & PROTECT ALL EXISTING
UTILITIES. MAINTAIN 2' SEPARATION (VERTICAL
AND HORIZONTAL) FROM EXISTING UTILITIES

VIKING RD
ASPHALT

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-35
T-89N R-14W

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-26
T-89N R-14W

C/L

EOP

EOP

R/W

R/W

C/L

EOP

EOP

R/W

R/W

SECTION LINE
D

R
IV

EW
AY

D
R

IV
EW

AY

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

ST
A

51
+3

6

CO

86
'

83
'

3'

13
0'

12
4'

84
'

81
'

3'

BM53F

47
+0

0

48
+0

0

49
+0

0

50
+0

0

51
+0

0

52
+0

0

53
+0

0

13
1+

00

13
0+

00

12
9+

00

12
8+

00

12
6+

00

12
5+

00

12
7+

00

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

SD

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

SD
SD

SD SD SD SD

SS

N

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:08

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

OF 101:50

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

2550 50

50'

0

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

771

Item 58.



W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

C
C

C
CCCCC

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN. 48" DEPTH
PULL 48 WS FOC WITHIN FOR MEASUREMENT
REFER SHEET NO. 07
BFO48I
VIK,1-2
XD,3-48

NOTE:LOCATE & PROTECT ALL EXISTING
UTILITIES. MAINTAIN 2' SEPARATION (VERTICAL
AND HORIZONTAL) FROM EXISTING UTILITIES

VIKING RD
ASPHALT

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-35
T-89N R-14W

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-26
T-89N R-14W

C/L

EOP

EOP

R/W

R/W

C/L

EOP

EOP

R/W

R/W

SECTION LINE

FI
EL

D
 E

N
TR

AN
C

E

D
R

IV
EW

AY

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

CULVERT

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

FIRE HYDRANT

ST
A

56
+4

9

CO

10
9'

75
'

72
'

3'
98

'
65

'
62

'

3'

BM53F

54
+0

0

55
+0

0

56
+0

0

57
+0

0

58
+0

0

59
+0

0

12
4+

00

12
3+

00

12
2+

00

12
1+

00

12
0+

00

11
9+

00

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

W

ELECTRIC
BOX

SS

N

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:09

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

OF 101:50

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

2550 50

50'

0

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

Watermain continues westerly from
hydrant. Contractor to adjust accordingly.
-MT@CF

772

Item 58.



W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

C
C

C

C C C C C C

FDP
GRD

100' 100'

50'

PLACE A NEW HH &
LEAVE 100' LOOP
BHF(30X48X36)T-1
BM53F-1
BM2-1
STEN:33043/05
APPROXIMATE
LAT:42.484284
LONG:-92.472084

PLACE A NEW HH &
LEAVE 100' LOOP
BHF(30X48X36)T-1
BM53F-1
BM2-1
STEN:33043/06
APPROXIMATE
LAT:42.484021
LONG:-92.472087

EXISTING CUSTOMER HH
APPROXIMATE
LAT:42.484022
LONG:-92.472062

PLACE A NEW 12 CT WALL
MOUNTED FDP IN SERVER ROOM
HBFO(48)-1
PM21FW(12)200-1
BM2P-1
HO1(B)-12
STEN:33043/07
VIK,1-2
XD, 3-12
APPROXIMATE
LAT:42.482987
LONG:-92.471956

5' OPEN TRENCH & PLACE
2" INNERDUCT @ MIN. 36"
DEPTH PULL 48 WS FOC
WITHIN FROM PROPOSED
HH @ STA 61+96 TO
EXISTING CUSTOMER HH @
STA 62+01
BFOV(1)(2)T-5'
BFO48I-105'
VIK,1-2
XD,3-48

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN. 48" DEPTH
PULL 48 WS FOC WITHIN FOR MEASUREMENT
REFER SHEET NO. 07
BFO48I
VIK,1-2
XD,3-48

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT @ MIN. 120" DEPTH
PULL 48 WS FOC WITHIN FOR MEASUREMENT
REFER SHEET NO. 07
BFO48I
VIK,1-2
XD,3-48

EXISTING CUSTOMER CONDUIT
OF LENGTH 405' APPROX. FROM
EXISTING CUSTOMER HH @ STA
62+01 TO PROPOSED FDP @ STA
66+06

PLACE 48 WS FOC IN CUSTOMER
PROVIDED CONDUIT FROM EXISITING
CUSTOMER HH @ STA 62+39 TO
PROPOSED FDP @ STA 66+44
BFO48I-455'
VIK,1-2
XD,3-48

SERVER ROOM

NOTE:LOCATE & PROTECT ALL EXISTING
UTILITIES. MAINTAIN 2' SEPARATION (VERTICAL
AND HORIZONTAL) FROM EXISTING UTILITIES

NOTE:CROSS THE VIKING RD
@ MIN 10' DEPTH.

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-35
T-89N R-14W

BLACK HAWK COUNTY
SECTION-26
T-89N R-14W

C
/L

EO
P

EO
P

R
/W

R
/W

C
/L

EO
P

EO
P

R
/W

R
/W

SECTION LINE

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD

SDSD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

SD

SDSD

FIRE HYDRANT

STA 60+98 PROPOSED HH STA 61+96 END BORE
BEGIN TRENCH

ST
A

62
+0

1
EN

D
 T

R
EN

C
H

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

U
ST

O
M

ER
 H

H

STA 66+06 PROPOSED FDP

C
O

LOCAL CONTACTS:-
MELANIE GONZALES (720-549-2298)

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD,
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

FOR DETAILED VIEW OF FDP
PLACEMENT REFER SHEET NO- 10(A)

102'
70'
67'

3'

110'

BM53F
BM

53
F

PARKING LOT

60+00

61+00 62+00

118+00

117+00

116+00

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

W

VI
KI

N
G

 R
D

AS
PH

AL
T

1'

15
'

27'54'

66'

1'

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:10

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

OF 101:50

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

SS

N

TROY OZBUN

2550 50

50'

0

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

Watermain, gas main
and storm sewer
crossings. Spot and
locate each crossing.
-MT@CF

773

Item 58.



ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:10 (A)

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

NO

     OF 10NTS

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

FDP
LOCAL CONTACTS:-
MELANIE GONZALES (720-549-2298)

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD,
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

TROY OZBUN

774

Item 58.



4'

4'

BORE & PLACE 2"
INNERDUCT @ 5' DEPTH BORE & PLACE 2"

INNERDUCT @ 4' DEPTH

5'

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:P1

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

OF P91:50

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

0
1

2

VE
R

TI
C

A
L

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

775

Item 58.



BORE & PLACE 2"
INNERDUCT @ 4' DEPTH

4'

3'
BORE & PLACE 2"
INNERDUCT @ 4' DEPTH

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:P2

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

OF P91:50

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

0
2.

5
5

VE
R

TI
C

A
L

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

776

Item 58.



4'

BORE & PLACE 2"
INNERDUCT @ 4' DEPTH

BORE & PLACE 2"
INNERDUCT @ 4' DEPTH

4'4'
ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:P3

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

OF P91:50

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

0
1

2

VE
R

TI
C

A
L

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

777

Item 58.



4'

BORE & PLACE 2"
INNERDUCT @ 4' DEPTH

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:P4

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

OF P91:50

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

0
1

2

VE
R

TI
C

A
L

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

778

Item 58.



4'

BORE & PLACE 2"
INNERDUCT @ 4' DEPTH

BORE & PLACE 2"
INNERDUCT @ 4' DEPTH

4'

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:P5

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

OF P91:50

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

0
1

2

VE
R

TI
C

A
L

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

779

Item 58.



BORE & PLACE 2"
INNERDUCT @ 4' DEPTH

4'

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:P6

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

OF P91:50

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

0
1

2

VE
R

TI
C

A
L

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

780

Item 58.



4'

BORE & PLACE 2"
INNERDUCT @ 4' DEPTH

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:P7

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

OF P91:50

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

0
1

2

VE
R

TI
C

A
L

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

781

Item 58.



BORE & PLACE 2"
INNERDUCT @ 4' DEPTH

4'

3'
BORE & PLACE 2"
WINDSTREAM  INNERDUCT
@ 4' DEPTH

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:P8

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

OF P91:50

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

0
2.

5
5

VE
R

TI
C

A
L

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

782

Item 58.



10
'

BORE & PLACE 2"
INNERDUCT @ 10' DEPTH

BORE & PLACE 2" INNERDUCT
@ 4' DEPTH NOT IN CONFLICT
WITH STORM SEWER WE HAVE
ENOUGH HORIZONTAL SPACE

4'

BORE & PLACE 2"
WINDSTREAM  INNERDUCT
@ 4' DEPTH3'

ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:P9

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

OF P91:50

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

0
2.

5
5

VE
R

TI
C

A
L

NOTE: A)SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTERTO SIX (6")
INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND SIXTY (60")INCHES MIN. BELOW AN ALLEY'S
CURRENT OR PROPOSED CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH
B)FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES MIN. BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,SIDEWALKS, AND
LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
C)FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES MIN. IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS
D)TWELVE (12") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS
E)TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES MIN. BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLICCULVERTS AND/OR PUBLIC
WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)BEING CROSSED, AND
F)AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICALUTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE
HALF (1 1/2') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON
AN INDIVIDUAL PLANVIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEETOF
THE PLAN SET.

783

Item 58.



ENGINEER:

SHEET: 

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM 

DRAWN BY:
SCALE:

EXCHANGE:
DATE:SV

707433043

3/29/2024

JOSEPH GOODHUE

AAKASH KAMBOJ
CDFLIACO

PROJECT TITLE:

PERMIT REQUIRED-
LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING
IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 800-292-8989

23CW348540

CITY

SV1:50

ADDRESS:- 2200 VIKING RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

TROY OZBUN

AERIAL VIEW

START GPSENDING GPS

784

Item 58.



26

1. WORK BEYOND THE SHOULDER/BEHIND THE CURB
For workers and equipment operating more than 12 to 15 feet 

from the edge of the traveled way during daylight hours, such as 
mowing, litter pickup, and utility repair. The work area should be 
established on one side of the road only. No work or parking on the 
opposite side within 500 feet. The ROAD WORK AHEAD (W20-
1) signs may be replaced with other appropriate signing such as 
SHOULDER WORK AHEAD (W21-5) or worker symbol signs. For 
a single daylight period or less, all signs and channelizing devices 
may be omitted, if a vehicle displays vehicle warning light(s).

785

Item 58.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: May 6th, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: 2024 Seal Coat 
  City Project Number: SC-000-3339 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the 2024 Seal Coat Project. 
 

We recommend setting Monday, May 20th, 2024, at 7:00pm as the date and time for the 
public hearing on this project and Friday, May 24th, 2024, at 2pm as the date and time 
for receiving and opening bids. We also request that the Notice to Bidders be published 
by Friday, May 10th, 2024. The Plans and Specifications will be ready for distribution to 
contractors on Tuesday, May 7th, 2024, via QuestCDN (reference #9092850), allowing 
more than two (2) weeks of review before contract letting. 
 

This Project involves seal coating five (5) street sections, one (1) single lane drive for a 
lift station, multiple single lane drives within three (3) cemeteries, and one parking lot; 
for a total covering of 46,400 S.Y. of seal coat. Work shall include proper surface 
preparation and proper placement and compaction of the surface. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $235,266.90. The project 
will be funded by Local Sales Tax and the Street Construction Fund.  
 

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the 2024 Seal Coat 
Project. 
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

786

Item 59.



Item # Description Units Quantity Unit Price Extended Price

1  Surface Preparation S.Y. 35,900.00 0.57$             20,463.00$         

2  Seal Coat S.Y. 46,400.00 3.39$             157,296.00$       

3  Pavement Markings, Painted STA. 11.8 900.00$        10,620.00$         

4  Mobilization L.S. 1 20,000.00$  20,000.00$         

5  Traffic Control L.S. 1 5,500.00$     5,500.00$           

21,387.90$         

235,266.90$       

10 % Contingency:

Total:

2024 Seal Coat Project
Project No. SC-000-3339

Engineer's Cost Estimate

City of Cedar Falls

4/24/2024

787

Item 59.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley AICP, Planner III 

 DATE: May 6, 2024 

 SUBJECT: Rezoning of certain property east of Main Street and north of E. Seerley Blvd. 
(RZ24-002) 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Rezone property from M-1 Light Industrial District to C-2 Commercial District 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

  Seven D LLC, owner; Chris Fischels of Fischels Commercial & Residential 
Group, applicant  
 

LOCATION: 
 

2300 Main Street, 2216 Main Street, and 127 E 23rd Street 

 

 
Seven D LLC requests to rezone approximately 3.8 acres of three properties at 2300 Main 
Street, 2216 Main Street, and 127 E 23rd Street from M-1 Light Industrial to C-2 Commercial.  
The applicant would like to lease a tenant space within the building at 2300 Main to a dental 
clinic. The M-1 District does not allow institutions for human care, such as a dentist’s office, so 
the owner is requesting to rezone the property to a zone that would allow a dental clinic and 
other similar uses.    
 
At the meeting on April 10, 2024, the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing 
and recommended approval of the proposed rezoning. Therefore, staff now requests that City 
Council set a public hearing date for May 20, 2024 to formally consider the rezoning request. A 
full staff report and summary report of the Planning and Zoning Commission meetings will be 
provided to City Council prior the public hearing. 
 

788

Item 60.



789

Item 60.



M-1M-1

R-4R-4

R-2R-2

C-2C-2 R-3R-3

2 3

54

18

20

21

23

25

24

30

27

22

28

36

32

34

38

37

39

40

41

43
42

44
45

46474849505152

54

56 5558 57

53

35

31

26

76

98

11
10

1312

1514

1716

19

1

29

33

NORTHNORTH

MA
IN

 S
TR

EE
T

MA
IN

 S
TR

EE
T HW

Y 
58

HW
Y 

58

2300 MAIN STREET

REZONING REQUEST
“M-1” TO “C-2”

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT A

790

Item 60.



 

RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 

 

RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF HEARING ON PROPOSED 

AMENDMENT TO  

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS ZONING MAP AND DIRECTING  

PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF SAID PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 

 WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to change the zoning from M-1 Light Industrial to C-2 Retail Commercial District, 

as described below, and 

 

 WHEREAS, said Commission has recommended approval of said change in the zoning, 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is desired to submit the same for consideration to the City Council to have 

a public hearing on the same as provided by law; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that there shall be a public hearing on a proposed change to the 

zoning from M-1 Light Industrial to C-2 Retail Commercial District to amend the Cedar Falls 

Zoning Map (Case #RZ24-002), by removing approximately 3.8 acres of real estate located at 

2300 Main Street, 2216 Main Street, and 127 E 23rd Street., as legally descripted below, from M-

1 Light Industrial and placing the same in the C-2 Retail Commercial: 

 

Legal description for land to be rezoned from M-1 to C-2: 

 

Parcel "F' of Plat of Survey attached to Quit Claim Deed 570 LD 762 of part of the Southwest 

Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 13, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th 

P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

 

AND 

 

That part of the West Half of the SE ¼ of Section 13, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 

5th P.M., bounded and described as follows: 

Commencing at the point of intersection of the Easterly extension of the center line of 22nd 

Street and a point distant 50 feet Easterly  measured at right angles from the center line of the 

main track of the Wisconsin, Iowa and Nebraska Railway Company (later the Chicago Great 

Western Railway Company, now the Chicago and North Western Transportation Company), as 

said main track center line was originally located and established over and across said Section 

13; thence Southerly parallel with said original mam track center line a distance of 147 feet, 

more or less to a point distant 147.0 feet Southerly, measured at right angles, from said Easterly 

extension of the center line of 22nd Street, said point being the point of beginning of the parcel 

of land herein described; thence continuing Southerly parallel with said original main track 

center line a distance of 367.25 feet, more or less, to a point distant 514.25 feet Southerly, 

791

Item 60.



measured at right angles, from said Easterly extension of the center line of 22nd Street; thence 

Westerly parallel with said Easterly extension of the center line of 22nd Street a distance of 75 

feet, more or less to a point distant 25 feet Westerly  measured at right angles, from said original 

main track center line:  thence Northerly parallel with said original main track center line a 

distance of 367.25 feet, more or less, to a point distant 147.0 feet Southerly, measured at right 

angles, from said Easterly extension of the center line of 22nd Street; thence Easterly parallel 

with said center line of 22nd Street, extended, a distance of 75 feet, more or less, to the point of 

beginning, except that part conveyed for right-of-way to City of Cedar Falls in Doc. #2007-

01064. 

 

AND 

 

That part of the Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 13, Township 89 North, 

Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, described as follows: 

Commencing at the intersection of the South line of the Northwest Quarter of the Southeast 

Quarter of said Section 13 with the East line of the Chicago, Great Western Railroad right-of-

way; thence East along the said South line of the Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter, 

160 feet; thence North along a line that is parallel with the East line of the Chicago, Great 

Western Railroad right-of-way, 200 feet; thence West along a line that is parallel with the said 

South line of the Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter, to the East line of the Chicago, 

Great Western Railroad right-of-way; thence South along the East line of the Chicago, Great 

Western Railroad right-of-way, to the place of beginning. 

 

AND 

 

That part of the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 13, Township 89 North, 

Range 14 West of the 5th P.M. Black Hawk County, described as follows: 

Beginning at the point of intersection of the East line of the Chicago, Great Western Railroad 

right-of-way with the North line of said Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter; thence 

South along the East line of the right-of-way, 145 feet: thence East, parallel with the North line 

of said Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter, 150 feet; thence South parallel with the East 

line of said right-of-way, 100 feet; thence East, parallel with the North line of said Southwest 

Quarter of the Southeast Quarter, to a point 364.6 feet East of the West line of said Southwest 

Quarter of the Southeast Quarter; thence  deflect left 22034’ , 639.5 feet, to the North line of said 

Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter; thence West along said North line, 851.7 feet to the 

point of beginning. except that part condemned for the use of State of Iowa and City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa in 620 LD 778. 

 

And that said the public hearing shall be held on the 20th day of May 2024, at 7:00 o’clock P.M. 

The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of said hearing the Waterloo-

Cedar Falls Courier, said notice to be published at least seven (7) days prior to the hearing date. 

 

  

 

 

 

792

Item 60.



INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of May 2024. 

 

 

______________________________ 

                                                                       Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

        

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

793

Item 60.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley AICP, Planner III 

 DATE: May 6, 2024 

 SUBJECT:  Right-of-Way Vacation Request – Longview Street to Cedar Street Alley 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Setting Public Hearing date for Right-of-Way Vacation Request  

PETITIONER: 
 

  Arthur Hesse 
 

LOCATION: 
 

1,799 sq. ft. of public right-of-way located West of Pine Street, East of 
Longview Court between Longview Street and Cedar Street. 

 

 
BACKGROUND 
Arthur Hesse requests to vacate the alley that abuts his property at 1307 Longview Street. The 
undeveloped alley extends from Cedar Street to Longview Street, west of Pine Street, east of 
Longview Court. The parcel is within the R-2 Zoning District. The proposed vacation will allow Arthur 
Hesse to own the land where his garage is located and establish a clear title. 

 
SETTING PUBLIC HEARING DATE 
An exhibit that is attached to this report indicates the area requested for the vacation.  This portion 
of the alley right-of-way was conveyed to Black Hawk County in 1940 by C.N. and Anna Bruhn 
with the recording of Bruhn’s Subdivision No. Two.  The City annexed the property in 1971.  There 
are no known utilities within the easement.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
At their meeting on April 24, 2024, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval 
of the proposed vacation. Therefore, staff now requests that City Council set a public hearing date 
for May 20, 2024, to formally consider the vacation request. A full staff report and summary report 
of the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting will be provided to City Council prior the public 
hearing. 
 
Attachments Resolution setting the public hearing date 

Right-of-Way Vacation Exhibit 

794

Item 61.



795

Item 61.



796

Item 61.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by:  Michelle Pezley, Planning III, 220 Clay St., Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 
After Recording, Return to: City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay St., Cedar Falls, IA  50613 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ____________________ 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF NOTICE AND SETTING DATE FOR PUBLIC 
HEARING ON A PROPOSAL TO VACATE A PORTION OF ALLEY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
BETWEEN CEDAR STREET AND LONGVIEW STREET IN CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
 WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has 
recommended to the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, the vacation of a portion of 
alley right-of-way along between Cedar Street and Longview Street, as described below; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council does hereby propose to consider vacating said portion of 
alley right-of-way along between Cedar Street and Longview Street after public hearing on 
required notice hereof, with the intent to make this land available for sale and conveyance 
according to State law. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, that the City Clerk be and is hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of a public 
hearing to be held in the Council Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 
7:00 p.m. on the 20th day of May 2024, on the proposal to vacate the following described right-of-
way:  

 
THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE1/4) OF SECTION TWO (02), TOWNSHIP 
EIGHTY-NINE NORTH (89N) RANGE FOURTEEN WEST (R14W), OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL 
MERIDIAN, CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 54, BRUHN’S SUBDIVISION; THENCE 
N01°24’46”W 59.91 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 54 TO THE SOUTHWEST 
CORNER OF LOT 53, SAID SUBDIVISION; THENCE N01°24’46”W 60 FEET ALONG THE 
WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 54 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 53; THENCE 
S89°13’49”W 15 FEET ALONG THE WESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE OF 
SAID LOT 53 TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF PARCEL DESCRIBED IN LAND DEED 569, 
PAGE 774 IN THE BLACK HAWK COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE. THENCE S01°24’46”E 
119.93 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID PARCEL TO THE WESTERLY EXTENSION 
OF THE SOUTH LINE OF AFORESAID LOT 54; THENCE N89°11’57”E 15 FEET ALONG SAID 

797

Item 61.



WESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 1799 SQUARE 
FEET.   
 
 
ADOPTED this 6th day of May 2024. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________________ 
 Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:   ______________________________ 
 Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

798

Item 61.



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Legal Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Laudick, City Council 

 FROM: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

 DATE: April 17, 2024 

   SUBJECT:   Amendment to Code of Ordinances Sec. 1-8 
 
 

Please find attached proposed amendment to Code of Ordinances Sec. 1-8.  The simple 

misdemeanor fines were adjusted to conform with the Code of Iowa. 

 

This amendment requires a public hearing due to reference to the Code of Iowa.  That is why 

this amendment is being proposed separately. 

  

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.   

 

Thank you.  

799

Item 62.



 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 1-8, GENERAL PENALTY; PENALTY FOR 

SCHEDULED VIOLATIONS, OF CHAPTER 1, GENERAL PROVISIONS, OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, TO CONFORM SIMPLE 

MISDEMEANOR PENALTIES TO THE CODE OF IOWA. 

                 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

                Section 1-8, General Penalty; Penalty for Scheduled Violations, of Chapter 1, General 

Provisions, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its 

entirety and a new Section 1-8, General Penalty; Penalty for Scheduled Violations, is enacted in 

lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 1-8. General penalty; penalty for scheduled violations. 

(a) General penalty. The doing of any act prohibited or declared to be unlawful, an offense or a simple 
misdemeanor by this Code or by any technical code adopted in this Code by reference, or the omission or 
failure to perform any act or duty required by this Code or by any technical code adopted in this Code by 
reference, unless another penalty is specified under subsection (b) of this section or elsewhere in this Code, 
is punishable by a fine of not less than $105.0065.00, but not in excess of $855.00625.00, or imprisonment 
for not in excess of 30 days, or both such a fine and such imprisonment.  

(b) Scheduled violation. Where a violation of this Code is a scheduled violation under state law, the penalty for 
such violation shall be the scheduled fine for such violation under state law.  

(Code 2017, § 1-8; Ord. No. 2361, § 1, 12-10-2001; Ord. No. 2693, § 1, 8-10-2009) 

State law reference(s)—Maximum penalty prescribed, Iowa Code § 364.3.  

 

INTRODUCED: _______________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI: _________________________________ 

ADOPTED: ___________________________________________________ 

                                                                                               

                                                                               ___________________________ 

                                                                                         Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

800

Item 62.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

801

Item 62.



 

ORDINANCE NO. 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 1-8, GENERAL PENALTY; PENALTY FOR 

SCHEDULED VIOLATIONS, OF CHAPTER 1, GENERAL PROVISIONS, OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, TO CONFORM SIMPLE 

MISDEMEANOR PENALTIES TO THE CODE OF IOWA. 

                 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

                Section 1-8, General Penalty; Penalty for Scheduled Violations, of Chapter 1, General 

Provisions, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its 

entirety and a new Section 1-8, General Penalty; Penalty for Scheduled Violations, is enacted in 

lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 1-8. General penalty; penalty for scheduled violations. 

(a) General penalty. The doing of any act prohibited or declared to be unlawful, an offense or a simple 
misdemeanor by this Code or by any technical code adopted in this Code by reference, or the 
omission or failure to perform any act or duty required by this Code or by any technical code 
adopted in this Code by reference, unless another penalty is specified under subsection (b) of this 
section or elsewhere in this Code, is punishable by a fine of not less than $105.00, but not in excess 
of $855.00, or imprisonment for not in excess of 30 days, or both such a fine and such 
imprisonment.  

(b) Scheduled violation. Where a violation of this Code is a scheduled violation under state law, the 
penalty for such violation shall be the scheduled fine for such violation under state law.  

(Code 2017, § 1-8; Ord. No. 2361, § 1, 12-10-2001; Ord. No. 2693, § 1, 8-10-2009) 

State law reference(s)—Maximum penalty prescribed, Iowa Code § 364.3.  

 

INTRODUCED:          

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:        

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:        

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:        

ADOPTED:          

                                                                                               

                                                                                 ___________________________   

                                                                                           Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 
 

802

Item 62.



803

Item 63.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
DAILY INVOICES FOR 05/06/24 COUNCIL MEETING



804

Item 63.



805

Item 63.



806

Item 63.



807

Item 63.



808

Item 63.



809

Item 63.



810

Item 63.



811

Item 63.



812

Item 63.



813

Item 63.



814

Item 63.



815

Item 63.



816

Item 63.



817

Item 63.



818

Item 63.



819

Item 63.



820

Item 63.



821

Item 63.



822

Item 63.



823

Item 63.



824

Item 63.



825

Item 63.



826

Item 63.



827

Item 63.



828

Item 63.



829

Item 63.



830

Item 63.



831

Item 63.



832

Item 63.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
COUNCIL INVOICES FOR 05/06/24 MEETING



833

Item 63.



834

Item 63.



835

Item 63.



836

Item 63.



837

Item 63.



838

Item 63.



839

Item 63.



840

Item 63.



841

Item 63.



842

Item 63.



843

Item 63.



844

Item 63.



845

Item 63.



846

Item 63.



847

Item 63.



848

Item 63.



849

Item 63.



850

Item 63.



851

Item 63.



852

Item 63.



853

Item 63.



854

Item 63.



855

Item 63.



856

Item 63.



857

Item 63.



858

Item 63.



859

Item 63.



860

Item 63.



861

Item 63.



862

Item 63.



863

Item 63.



864

Item 63.



865

Item 63.



866

Item 63.



867

Item 63.



868

Item 63.



869

Item 63.



870

Item 63.



871

Item 63.


	Top
	Item 1.	Minutes 4-15-24
	240415MINUTES

	Item 2.	PH-2024 Alley Reconstruction Project
	1. Memo PH - 2024 Alley Reconstruction
	2. 2024 Alley Cost Estimate

	Item 3.	PH-2024 Sidewalk Assessment Project - Zone 6
	1. PH Memo - 2024 Sidewalk Assessment
	2. 2024 Sidewalk Assessment Estimate

	Item 4.	PH-FY2024 Budget Amendment
	1 Budget Amend No 2 Memo
	2 FY24 Budget Amend No 2 PH Notice
	3 FY2024 BudgetAmend_LineItems No 2

	Item 5.	Hearing-SW Assessment
	1-Resolution-FinalAssessments-SW2023
	2-Final Schedule of Assessments-Cover Page
	3-Final Schedule of Assessments - 2023

	Item 6.	Ord. #3054-Art & Culture Center
	1. Memo ACB Ordinance 3-25-24
	2. Art  Culture Center Ordinance (002)
	3. Art  Culture Center Ordinance

	Item 7.	Ord.#3055-Visitor & Tourism Board I
	1. Memo -TourismOrdinance 3-25-2024
	2. Tourism Board Ordinances
	3. Tourism Board Ordinances

	Item 8.	Ord.#3056-Visitor & Tourism Board II
	1. Memo Tourism Ordinance II 3-25-2024
	2. Tourism Board Ordinances II
	3. Tourism Board Ordinances II

	Item 9.	Ord.#3057-Code Amendments: Visitor & Tourism Board III
	1. Memo Tourism Ordinance III 3-25-2024
	2. Tourism Board Ordinances III
	3. Tourism Board Ordiannces - III

	Item 10.	Ord. #3058-Chapter 2,Administration, Utilities Board
	1. Memo to Mayor Council CFU Board pay ordinance
	2. Steve Bernard letter
	3. CFU Board Ordinance
	4. CFU Board Ordinance

	Item 11.	Committee of the Whole Minutes-04/15/24
	Committee of the Whole-Final

	Item 12.	Boards & Commissions Appointments
	1 2024-05-06_ BPC_Platt_Harken appointment
	2 2024-05-06_BRH_Reappoint_Wiles
	2024-05-06_HRC_Appoint_Hamann
	3 2024-05-06_UBT_Soneson Reappoint

	Item 13.	Departmental Quarterly Report
	2024 Quarter 1 - Departmental Quarterly Report

	Item 14.	Fitness Coordinator-Certified List
	Fitness Coordr-CertList 4-2024

	Item 15.	Community Main Street FY24 2nd Half Report
	1_Memo to Council for CMS 2nd Half Payment 05-06-24
	2_CMS Octoer 2023 to March 2024 Biannual Report

	Item 16.	Tobacco Permits 05/06/2024
	05062024 Tobacco Memo

	Item 17.	Retail alcohol 5-6-24
	05-06-24  Retail alcohol

	Item 19.	Audit Services-Eide Bailly, LLC
	1-AUDIT SERVICES AGREEMENT COUNCIL.MEMO 2024-2026
	2 City of Cedar Falls 2024 Planning Communication
	3 Auditors 3-year Extension Signed Agreement
	4 City of Cedar Falls 2024 Engagement Letter

	Item 20.	PP 2100-Introduction
	5.6.24 personnel policy revisions
	CFD 2100.24 - Personnel Policies - Introduction 4.16.24 DRAFT

	Item 21.	PP 2101-Equal Employment Opportunity
	CFD 2101.15 - Personnel Policy - Equal Employment Opportunity 6.16.23 DRAFT

	Item 22.	PP 2102 Harassment-Free Workplace
	CFD 2102.24 - Personnel Policy - Harrassment-Free Workplace 4.16.24 DRAFT

	Item 23.	PP 2106 Probationary Period
	CFD 2106.24 - Personnel Policy - Probationary Period 4.16.24 DRAFT

	Item 24.	PP 2107 Transfer
	CFD 2107.24 - Personnel Policy - Transfer 4.16.24 DRAFT

	Item 25.	PP 2108 Promotion
	CFD 2108.24 - Personnel Policy - Promotion 4.16.24 DRAFT

	Item 26.	PP 2110 Outside Employment
	CFD 2110.24 - Personnel Policy - Outside Employment 4.16.24 DRAFT

	Item 27.	PP 2121 Nepotism
	CFD 2121.24 - Personnel Policy - Nepotism Prohibition 4.16.24 DRAFT

	Item 28.	PP 2152 Performance Appraisals
	CFD 2152.24 - Personnel Policy - Performance Appraisals 4.16.24 DRAFT

	Item 29.	PP 2255 Service Awards
	CFD 2255.24 - Personnel Policy - Service Awards 4.16.24 DRAFT

	Item 30.	PP 2351 Attendance and Punctuality
	CFD 2351.24 - Personnel Policy - Attendance and Punctuality 4.16.24 DRAFT

	Item 31.	PP 2354 Leaves of Absence
	CFD 2354.24 - Personnel Policy - Leaves of Absence 4.16.24 DRAFT to use

	Item 32.	PP 2356 Sick Leave
	CFD 2356.24 - Personnel Policy - Sick Leave 4.16.24 DRAFT

	Item 33.	PP 2401 Employee Behavior
	CFD 2401.24 - Personnel Policy - Employee Behavior 4.16.24 DRAFT

	Item 34.	PP 2402 Employee Personal Appearance
	CFD 2402.24 - Personnel Policy - Employee Personal Appearance 4.16.24 DRAFT

	Item 35.	PP 2405 Mobile Device Allowances
	CFD 2405.24 - Personnel Policy - Mobile Device Allowances 4.22.24 DRAFT

	Item 36.	PP 2406 Technology Resources Acceptable Use
	CFD 2406.24 - Personnel Policy - Technology Resources Acceptable Use 4.16.24 DRAFT

	Item 37.	Policy & Administration Specialist
	Policy & Admin Specialist 5-6-24 Council Memo
	Policy & Administration Specialist 5-6-24 Council Final Redline

	Item 38.	Chicago, Central & Pacific Railroad Company-Lease
	1. Council memo re lease 4-29-24
	2. Lease provided 4-26-24

	Item 39.	1218 Cottage Row Rd.-Demo Contract
	1. Memo Demolition Contract 5-6-2024
	2. Signed Contract
	3. Contract Exhibits

	Item 40.	523 W 1st Street-Demo
	1. Memo Demolition Contract 5-6-2024
	2. Contract 523 W 1st St
	3. Contract Exhibits

	Item 41.	Preliminary Plat for Panther West Additions
	1 CC Staff Report for Panther West
	2. ZoningLocationMap
	3. 2024_0403 Panther West - Preliminary Plat Final Submittal
	4. 2024_0403 PantherWest - Preliminary Plat - Drainage Exhibit
	5. Deed of Dedication 4-2-24 DRAFT
	6. Exhibit A - RP MasterPlan
	7. RP Development Agreement

	Item 42.	Asbestos Removal Contract - Advanced Environmental Testing and Abatement
	1_CC Memo Approving Asbestos Removal Agreement 05-06-24
	2_Form of Contract - Advanced Environmental, Inc.
	3_Ind. Park Demolition Properties

	Item 43.	Acceptance of Warranty Deed for 1218 Cottage Row Roa
	1_Memo Approving Warranty Deed
	0319_001
	2_Resolution Accepting Deed for Rieter Property 

	Item 44.	Pinnacle Prairie Commercial South Phase VI Preliminary and Final Plat
	1. PP Commercial South Ph VI  CC 5-6-24
	2. Preliminary Plat 1-15-24
	3. Final Plat
	4. DOD

	Item 45.	Pinnacle Prairie Commercial South Phase VI-Completion
	1. Contract for Completion Memo - PPCSP VI
	2. Updated Contract for Completion - PPCSP VI
	3. Exhibit A - Final Plat
	4. Exhibit B - Engineer's Cost Opinion
	5. Exhibit C - Performance Bond
	6. Exhibit D - Maintenance Bond

	Item 46.	Pavement Markings-Laser Line
	2221_001

	Item 47.	Iowa DOT Patents No. 6464 & 6465
	1. Land Patents 1st Street
	Iowa DOT Patents

	Item 48.	TSIP Agreement - Prairie Parkway Viking Rd. Intersection
	1. Memo TSIP Agreement - Viking Road and Prairie Parkway
	2. TSIP Agreement CS-TSF-1185(659)--85-07 2025-TS-015

	Item 49.	North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project Phase II
	0327_001
	2. Phase 2_ROW-2023_0915
	3. Phase II Timber Dr. - ROW Parcels
	4. Parcel 211 Jennings Temp Easement
	5. Parcel 212 - Panicucci Fee Perm and Temp Easements
	6. Parcel 213 Easton permanent and temporary easements
	7. Parcel 215 -  Jackson- Fee Temp and Perm Easement
	8. Parcel 216 Davis Temp Easement
	9. Parcel 217 Hamer Fee Perm and Temp Easements
	10. Parcel 218 - Brown Fee Perm and Temp Easements
	11. Parcel 219 - Young  Perm Easements
	12. Parcel 220 - Young Reese Fee Perm and Temp Easements
	13. Parcel 222 - Hunemuller Perm and Temp Easements
	18. Parcel 201 - Lees Temp Easement
	19. Parcel 202 - Sanders Temp Easement
	20. Parcel 203 - Goetz Temp Easement
	21. Parcel 204 -Patterson Temp Easement
	22. Parcel 205 - Green Temp Easement
	23.Parcel 206 - Dowell Temp Easement
	24. Parcel 207 - Blackhawk Co Temp Easement
	25. Parcel 208 - Solheim  Yancy Temp Easement

	Item 50.	Learn & Play Preschool & Daycare LLC-M&R
	1. Memo - MRA Learn & Play (4170 Cedar Heights Drive)
	2. MRA - Learn & Play (4170 Cedar Heights Drive)

	Item 51.	Orchard Hill Pickleball Court Expansion-Low Bid
	1. Memo Low Bid - Orchard Hill Pickleball Court Expansion Project
	2. Bid Tab
	3.Pickleball Low bid

	Item 52.	Orchard Hill Pickleball Court Expansion Project-Contract
	1. Memo - Orchard Hill Pickleball Court Expansion Project
	2. Form of Contract, PPM Bond, Insurance, and Form of Proposal

	Item 53.	W. Viking Road Recon and Trail Project-Low bid
	1. Memo Low Bid - W. Viking Rd. Recon
	2. Viking Rd Recon Bid Worksheet

	Item 54.	W. Viking Road Recon. and Trail Project-Contracts
	1. Memo Contracts - W Viking Road Recon
	2. Contracts - W Viking Rd Recon
	3. Bonds - W Viking Rd Recon
	4. Insurance - W Viking Rd Recon
	5. Form of Proposal - W Viking Road

	Item 55.	2024 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehab-Final Acceptance
	1. Final Out - 2024 CDBG Sanitary
	2. Cedar Falls, IA CIPP #2024-04 Pay Estimate #2-FINAL-REVISED
	3. Maintenance Bond - 2024 CDBG San

	Item 56.	Oak Park Blvd. Sewer Replacement Project
	1. Memo - Oak Park PSA No. 3 Snyder
	2. PSA_2024-04-11_SuppAgr3

	Item 57.	Windstream-Hudson & Tech. Parkway
	1.  Fiber Optic License Agreement Memo - Windstream Hudson Road
	2. Windstream Hudson Road Liecense Agreement
	3. Exhibit A - Windstream Hudson 707433044
	4. Exhibit B - Windstream Hudson Road #707433044

	Item 58.	Windstream-West Viking Rd.
	1.  Fiber Optic License Agreement Memo - Windstream Viking Road
	2. License Agreement - Windstream Viking Rd
	3. Exhibit A - Windstream Viking Road 707433043
	4. Exhibit B - Windstream Viking Road 707433043

	Item 59.	Set PH-2024 Seal Coat
	1. Memo PSE - 2024 Seal Coat
	2. EST - 2024 Seal Coat

	Item 60.	Set PH-2300 Main Street-Rezoning
	1 CC Staff Report set hearing 2300
	2 ZoningLocationMap
	3 Rezoning Plat
	4. CC Resolution Setting PH rezoning 2300 main

	Item 61.	Set PH-Longview Street to Cedar Street Alley
	1 CC Staff Report set hearing alley vacat
	2. survey
	3. Res Setting PH and Directing Publication of Notice

	Item 62.	Set PH-Ord.-Penalty of Scheduled Violations
	1. Memo
	2. Ordinance Amendment Section 1-8
	3. Ordinance Amendment Section 1-8-Final

	Item 63.	Bills and Claims 05/06/24
	1 Daily Invoices 050624
	2 Council Invoices 050624

	Bottom

